U. S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR BUREAU OF LABOR STATISTICS

ROYAL MEEKER, Commissioner

BULLETIN OF THE UNITED STATES $\{\dots, \{w\}\}$ Number 160

WOMEN IN INDUSTRY SERIES: No.

HOURS, EARNINGS, AND CONDITIONS OF LABOR
OF WOMEN IN INDIANA MERCANTILE ESTABLISHMENTS AND GARMENT FACTORIES



OCTOBER 16, 1914

WASHINGTON
GOVERNMENT PRINTING OFFICE
1914

CONTENTS.

	Page.
Hours, earnings, and conditions of labor of women in Indiana mercantile	
establishments and garment factories	1-198
Introduction	5-7
Scope and method of investigation	7, 8
Women employed in department and other retail stores	
Age, manner of living, and conjugal condition	
Working hours as reported by employers	11-22
Normal season	13, 14
Dull season	14, 15
Busy season	16-18
Overtime periods	18-20
Pay for overtime	20, 21
Summary	
Working hours as reported by individuals	22-31
Season of normal hours	23
Season of shortened hours	
Overtime before Christmas	24, 25
Overtime other than before Christmas	25, 26
Pay for overtime	26-31
Rates of pay and earnings	
All occupations.	
Earnings of saleswomen—commissions and premiums	
Rates of pay compared with earnings	
Earnings, by departments and occupation groups	
Saleswomen	43, 44
Workrooms	
Cash girls, bundle wrappers, etc	
Office and other employees	
Earnings related to age and experience	
Duration of employment, and unemployment	49-56
Other employment	
Unemployment	
Unemployment due to illness	
Sick benefit and medical aid	57
Toilet accommodations, employment in basements, and seats for sales-	
women	
Women employed in Indiana garment factories	58-91
Age, manner of living, and conjugal condition	60-62
Seasonal aspect of Indiana garment industry	
Duration of seasons and working hours, as reported by employers	63-68
Normal season	63, 64
Dull season	
Busy season	
Overtime periods	
Summary	

4 CONTENTS.

Hours, earnings, and conditions of labor of women in Indiana mercantile	
establishments and garment factories—Concluded.	
Women employed in Indiana garment factories—Concluded.	Page.
Duration of seasons and working hours as reported by individuals	68-73
Normal season	69
Dull season	69, 70
Busy season	70, 71
Overtime season	71, 72
Pay for overtime	72, 73
Earnings	73 - 82
Value of average weekly earnings as reported by employers	75-78
Group earnings	78
Comparative earnings of piece and time workers	78 - 82
Earnings related to age and experience	82-84
Duration of employment, and unemployment	84-90
Other employment	85,86
Unemployment	86-90
Unemployment due to illness	89, 90
Liability insurance and direct medical aid	90
Sanitary provisions	91
Detailed tables.—Department and other retail stores and garment fac-	
tories	1-187
Appendix.—Hours and earnings of women in 38 Indiana industries, as re-	
ported by employers to the Indiana Commission on Working Women 18	88-198

BULLETIN OF THE U.S. BUREAU OF LABOR STATISTICS.

WHOLE NO. 160.

WASHINGTON.

OCTOBER 16, 1914.

HOURS, EARNINGS, AND CONDITIONS OF LABOR OF WOMEN IN INDIANA MERCANTILE ESTABLISH-MENTS AND GARMENT FACTORIES.

BY MARIE L. OBENAUER AND FRANCES W. VALENTINE.1

INTRODUCTION.

The United States Bureau of Labor Statistics and the Commission on Industrial Relations undertook this investigation into the conditions of labor surrounding women in Indiana garment factories and department and other retail stores at the invitation of the Indiana Commission on Working Women. The Indiana commission, created by the legislature of 1913, was directed by the law to investigate "the hours and conditions of labor of women in this State and to determine what limitation, if any, should be placed on the hours of labor of women in any or all employments, or what improvement should be made in the conditions under which women labor in any or all employments."

The United States Bureau of Labor Statistics is engaged in making a cumulative record ² of the conditions under which women are at work in industry, and the United States Commission on Industrial

¹ In the construction of this report valuable assistance was rendered by Miss Bertha von der Nienburg. ² This Bulletin is in continuation of the series of studies on women in industry, including since 1910 the various volumes of the Report on Condition of Woman and Child Wage Earners in the United States, S. Doc. No. 645, 61st Cong., 2d sess., and especially Wage-Earning Women in Stores and Factories in Boston, Chicago, Minneapolis and St. Paul, New York City, Philadelphia, and St. Louis (printed as Vol. V of the Report on Condition of Woman and Child Wage Earners in the United States, S. Doc. No. 645, 61st Cong., 2d sess.); Bulletin No. 91, Working Hours of Wage-Earning Women in Selected Industries in Chicago; Bulletin No. 96, Working Hours, Earnings, and Duration of Employment of Women of Women in Selected Industries of Maryland and of California; Bulletin No. 116, Hours, Earnings, and Duration of Employment of Wage-Earning Women in Selected Industries in the District of Columbia; Bulletin No. 119, Working Hours of Women in Wisconsin Pea Canneries; Bulletin No. 122, Employment of Women in Power Laundries in Milwaukee.

Relations, being charged by Congress with the duty of making constructive recommendations bearing upon industrial problems, was in need of some further current information concerning the existing basis of fixing wages for women, as well as concerning other factors entering into the problem of women in industry. After a survey of the field it developed that the purposes of both the Commission and the Bureau of Labor Statistics could be served as well by choosing the garment factories and the mercantile establishments in Indiana for study as by making investigations in any other State. The invitation from the Indiana Commission on Working Women was therefore accepted. It is the purpose of the Federal agencies not only to avoid duplication, but to cooperate and supplement the work of other official agencies wherever such cooperation and supplemental work are practicable and desirable.

The principal advantage of cooperation lies in the greater uniformity effected in methods of collecting and classifying data. When a number of kindred investigations in different sections of the country are conducted by several State and Federal agencies, the resulting individual reports may be extremely valuable, but the cumulative effect is lost unless there is sufficient cooperation or similarity of method to insure a comparability of results.

According to the United States census of manufactures of 1910¹ the average number of women employed in Indiana manufacturing establishments was approximately 23,000. This number did not include the women employed in department stores and in other mercantile houses, nor did it include women in domestic service and in clerical and semiprofessional pursuits. According to the figures of the Indiana State factory reports for 1912 there are in the neighborhood of 7,000 women employed in department stores and in other mercantile houses, making altogether about 30,000 women in Indiana industries, exclusive of domestic service and clerical and semiprofessional pursuits. As approximately 6,500 women were reported ² employed in the garment trades, it is obvious that about 45 per cent of the 30,000 women in the State's industries are to be found in the two lines of employment chosen for the present investigation.

The cooperative arrangement permitted the Indiana commission to devote its funds to a correspondence investigation of the other 30 industries, which altogether employed approximately 58 per cent of the 30,000 wage-earning women, and likewise to hold public hearings, as the law directed, "in at least 10 cities in the State." All the material collected, both by the Federal agencies and by the Indiana Commission on Working Women, was analyzed and tabulated in Washington as a basis for the public hearings of the Indiana commission.

Aside from avoiding confusing duplication and needless and irritating demands upon the time of employers and employees, the cooperative arrangement was a saving of money, inasmuch as the two Federal agencies and the State agency each secured the material necessary for its purposes at about one-third the cost an independent investigation would have entailed.

SCOPE AND METHOD OF INVESTIGATION.

The studies of the two Indiana industries are presented separately in the following pages, but since wherever possible, corresponding tables are used in both industries, comparison of any specific points may easily be made. Before taking up the discussion of either industry, certain features common to the two investigations should be noted.

In each city studied all large establishments were covered and also a considerable number of the smaller concerns. The retail stores include not only the large department stores, but "ready-to-wear" stores, dry-goods stores, specialty stores, general stores, 5 and 10 cent stores, and confectionery stores. As the law creating the Indiana commission called for hearings to be held in at least 10 cities in the State, it seemed wisest to cover in the investigation the 10 cities where the hearings were to be held. The five largest cities in the State were selected, and in addition five of the secondary cities. These latter were chosen partly according to location, so that all parts of the State should be included, and partly with regard to the number of establishments of the selected industries located in these cities. The cities finally selected were Indianapolis, Muncie, Richmond, South Bend, Hammond, La Fayette, Terre Haute, Evansville, Fort Wayne, and New Albany.

The information sought was gathered from two sources, the employers and the individual employees. There was certain information dealing with the industry or establishments as a whole, which could be supplied only by the employers, and certain personal information concerning individual employees, which could be supplied only by the individuals themselves or their immediate family. The greater part of the desired information, namely, the data as to seasons, hours, overtime, occupations, and earnings, could be and was obtained from both employers and employees. This information was obtained from the employers by personal interviews with the head of the establishment or some one delegated by him; the data as to rate of pay were taken from the pay roll for a specified week in the year, and use was made of any other records of the establishment bearing on the information desired. The information sought from the individual employee was obtained

by personal interview with the employee or some member of her family at her home. This information, in addition to that mentioned above, covered such questions as nationality, age, conjugal condition, experience, and employment and earnings, including earnings in industries other than the specified industry.

The following summary gives the number of establishments and individuals scheduled in each industry:

TABLE 1.—NUMBER OF ESTABLISHMENTS COVERED IN THE INVESTIGATION AND NUMBER OF WOMEN EMPLOYEES FURNISHING INDIVIDUAL INFORMATION.

Industries.	Number of establish- ments cov- ered in the investiga- tion.	Number of women	Number of women furnishing individual informa- tion.
Department and other retail stores	140 67	5,424 6,561	711 517
Total	207	11,985	1,228

WOMEN EMPLOYED IN DEPARTMENT AND OTHER RETAIL STORES.

Complete schedules were taken in 10 cities from 140 mercantile establishments, employing normally in the selling and alteration departments 5,424 women and girls. Individual information was secured in 6 cities from 711 women at work in 92 of these establishments which, altogether, employed nearly 4,600 women.

The following table shows the number of male and female employees and the distribution, by cities, of establishments covered in the investigation and the number of individuals from whom information was secured:

TABLE 2.—NUMBER OF DEPARTMENT AND OTHER RETAIL STORES SCHEDULED EMPLOYEES IN SELLING AND ALTERATION DEPARTMENTS, AND NUMBER OF WOMEN SCHEDULED.

	Es-	Employees in selling department.				Em _l	ployees n depa	in alte rtmen	era- t.	selli terat	ployees ng and ion dep ments.	Women scheduled.		
Cities.	tab- lish- ments		Fen	ıale.		Male	Female.				Female.			Per
	sched- uled.	Male. 1	Un- der 16 yrs.	16 yrs. and over.	To- tal.	16 yrs. and over.	Un- der 16 yrs.	16 yrs, and over,	To- tal.	To- tal.	Num- ber,	Per cent of to- tal.	ber.	
Indianapolis. Terre Haute. Evansville. Fort Wayne. South Bend. Muncie Hammond. La Fayette. Richmond. New Albany.	28 13 22 14 15 13 4 8 14	665 181 139 138 90 63 103 62 23 27	100 32 6 5 11 3 3	1,720 640 444 372 391 261 227 240 157 102	2 2, 485 853 589 3 515 492 3 327 4 333 302 3 180 129	31 4 2	1	356 88 51 56 60 19 9 35 23	390 88 52 57 64 19 11 35 23	2, 875 941 641 572 556 346 344 337 203 138	760 501 434 462 283	75. 8 80. 8 78. 2 75. 9 83. 1 81. 8 69. 5 81. 6 88. 7 80. 4	331 104 129 58 63 26	15. 2 13. 7 25. 7 13. 4 13. 6
Total	140	11, 191	160	4, 554	6, 205	38	4	706	748	6,953	5, 424	78.0	711	13. 1

¹ Including 67 boys under 16 years of age.
² Seven firms employ extra women on Saturday.

³ Four firms employ extra women on Saturday. 4 Two firms employ extra women on Saturday.

Digitized for FRASER http://fraser.stlouisfed.org/ Federal Reserve Bank of St. Louis

AGE, MANNER OF LIVING, AND CONJUGAL CONDITION.

The average age of the women furnishing individual information in the stores was 24.8 years. The women in the workrooms had the highest average age-31.5 years. The saleswomen averaged 25.6 years and the cash girls, wrappers, etc., 15.4 years. One-fifth of the women in the stores were girls under 18 years of age, and 42 per cent were under 22 years of age. The most common ages reported were 18, 19, and 20, almost equal numbers being reported for these ages.

The two tables following show, first, the average age of the women in the different occupations, by cities, and, second, the number and per cent of women at specified ages.

TABLE 3.-AVERAGE AGE OF WOMEN FURNISHING INDIVIDUAL INFORMATION IN SPECIFIED OCCUPATIONS IN DEPARTMENT AND OTHER RETAIL STORES.

Cities.	Cash girls, bundle wrappers, inspectors, and stock girls.		bundle wrappers, inspectors, and stock		Saleswomen.		Alteration and millinery hands.		Ot emple		Off emplo	lce Oyees.	Total.		
	Num- ber.	Average age.	Num- ber.	Aver- age age.	Num- ber.	Aver- age age.	Num- ber.	Aver- age age.	Num- ber.	Average age.	Num- ber.	Average age.			
Indianapolis	51	15. 3	1 205	26.7	2 21	28.8	7	26. 4	43	21.9	3 327	23, 6			
Terre Haute	4	15.1	4 79	25. 7	12	36. 1	2	22.5	6	26. 3	4 103	26, 4			
Evansville	6	16.8	2 93	25. 3	16	29. 2			13	22. 9	2 128	25. 1			
Fort Wayne			52	27. 9	3	30, 3			3	29.3	58	28.1			
South Bend	4	15.2	2 39	25. 1	8	31. 4	1	18.0	9	25. 9	262	25. 3			
La Fayette			22	23. 0	2	38. 0			2	21.5	26	24, 0			
Total	65	15. 4	5 490	25.6	² 62	31.5	10	24.8	76	23. 2	6 704	24.8			

TABLE 4.—CLASSIFIED AGES OF WOMEN FURNISHING INDIVIDUAL INFORMATION EMPLOYED IN DEPARTMENT AND OTHER RETAIL STORES.

Age groups.		n each age up.
	Number.	Per cent.
14 and under 16 years. 16 and under 18 years. 18 and under 22 years. 22 and under 25 years. 25 and under 30 years. 30 and under 40 years. 40 and under 50 years. 50 and under 60 years. 60 years and over. Age not reported.	94 155 97 120 130	7. 0 13. 2 21. 8 13. 7 16. 9 18. 3 7. 3 1. 0
Total	711	100.0

Of the 711 women visited, 575, or 81 per cent, were living at home; that is, with their parents. In the majority of cases these women

¹ Not including 2 who did not report as to age and 1 who did not report exact age.
2 Not including 1 who did not report exact age.
3 Not including 2 who did not report as to age and 2 who did not report exact age.
4 Not including 1 who did not report as to age.
5 Not including 3 who did not report as to age and 3 who did not report exact age.
6 Not including 3 who did not report as to age and 4 who did not report exact age.

had only a share in the maintenance of the family, but in some instances the greater part of the burden rested on them. As this investigation did not go into the expenditure of earnings or income, no definite figures can be given on these points. Forty, or 5.6 per cent, of the women were living with relatives. Fifty-nine, or 8.3 per cent, were living on their own resources entirely; they are included in the following table in the group "Boarding and lodging." The remainder, 5.1 per cent, were keeping house in their own homes. Many of these were the sole providers for the family, some had the help of children, some the intermittent help of husbands, and some worked only when the family found itself in need of additional income to tide over some emergency. Only a few had husbands working regularly. The manner of living of the women who were interviewed in each of the six cities is shown in the following table:

TABLE 5.—LIVING CONDITIONS OF WOMEN FURNISHING INDIVIDUAL INFORMATION EMPLOYED IN DEPARTMENT AND OTHER RETAIL STORES.

	Number of women living as follows—									
Cities.	At home.	With rela- tives.	Boarding and lodging.	Keeping house.	Total.					
Indianapolis. Terre Haute. Evansville. Fort Wayne. South Bend. La Fayette.	115 46 45	22 5 4 1 7	32 6 8 17 5	21 4 2 4 5	331 104 129 58 2 62 26					
Total: Number Per cent.	575 81. 0	40 5. 6	59 8. 3	36 5. 1	1 710 100. 0					

¹ Including 5 getting own meals in lodgings.

It has been shown that 20.2 per cent of the total number of women furnishing personal data were 14 to and under 18 years of age. These girls under 18 years were all unmarried. Of the women 18 years of age and over, 99, or over one-sixth, were or had been married, but of these 99 women nearly three-fifths were widowed, separated, or divorced. At the time of the investigation the married woman whose husband was regularly employed had practically no place as a steady worker in the stores. Whether or not this showing would be borne out by returns from the whole number of women employees can not, of course, be stated. The facts as to conjugal condition for the 711 women interviewed are shown by cities in the following table:

² Not including 1 not reporting.

TABLE 6.—CONJUGAL CONDITION OF WOMEN FURNISHING INDIVIDUAL INFORMATION
IN DEPARTMENT AND OTHER RETAIL STORES.

Cities.	Single.		Married.		Wide	owed.		ced or ated.	Total.	
Cities.	Num- ber.	Per cent.	Num- ber.	Per cent.	Num- ber.	Per cent.	Num- ber.	Per cent.	Num- ber.	Per cent.
Indianapolis Terre Haute Evansville Fort Wayne South Bend La Fayette	277 91 117 46 55 26	83. 7 87. 5 90. 7 79. 3 87. 3 100. 0	25 4 4 4 4	7. 6 3. 9 3. 1 6. 9 6. 3	14 5 6 7 3	4. 2 4. 8 4. 7 12. 1 4. 8	15 4 2 1 1	4.5 3.8 1.5 1.7 1.6	331 104 129 58 63 26	100. 0 100. 0 100. 0 100. 6 100. 6 100. 6
Total	612	86. 1	41	5.8	35	4.9	23	3. 2	711	100.0

WORKING HOURS AS REPORTED BY EMPLOYERS.

To determine which part of a working schedule is properly designated as "overtime" and which "regular working hours" presents more of a problem than at first appears. For example, a firm operates during its normal season for 9 hours a day. During a slack season its working schedule is 8 hours a day, and during the busy season it is 10 hours a day. The first conclusion concerning such schedule would seem to be that the hours during the moderate run of business should be regarded as standard or "normal," the 10-hour day being reported as an overtime schedule and the 8-hour day a slack schedule. But such a conclusion proves to be faulty upon a more careful study. Leaving aside the fact that under such a policy the working schedule adopted as "standard" would in many cases be in force for only a few weeks in the year, a question of fairness is raised by this principle of classification. In the case just cited the firm would be reported as working its force "overtime" for a certain per cent of the year. Another firm whose schedule was 10 or more hours a day throughout the year would be reported as having no overtime, though the force was really working longer hours.

Of course the working hours are neither extended nor shortened by naming them "overtime" or "regular," but the importance of devising a consistent and intelligible method of reporting "overtime" lies primarily in the question of whether employees were paid for overtime or extra hours and secondarily in the more or less critical attitude of the public toward overtime work.

The policy pursued in this investigation, both in the mercantile establishments and garment factories, has been to record the "regular working hours" for each season of the year, reporting separately as "overtime" for each season the hours worked in addition to such regular hours. Using the case cited as an illustration, the regular hours of the normal season would be reported as 9; 8 hours would be reported as the regular hours of the slack season, and 10 hours

would be recorded as the regular working schedule for the busy season. From the duration of each season are excluded the weeks in which hours in addition to the regular schedule were worked, such weeks being reported separately as overtime weeks. This policy gives full recognition to the regularly recurring seasonal changes, reveals the demand regularly made upon the workers in the various seasons, and reserves for the designation of "overtime" such working hours as are in excess of these regular hours. While this principle of classification is fairer, it does not entirely eliminate objectionable features. It does recognize the regularly recurring fluctuations of working hours with fairness to all establishments, but the firm working short hours is still recorded as working overtime if working in excess of these regular hours, even though such hours are less than the regular hours of another firm.

The method presented fewer difficulties in securing schedules from employers than when the same information was sought from individuals. The employer reported the prevailing hours for the whole establishment. The individual reported only the hours actually worked by herself. Consequently her reports as to seasons, especially in the stores where conditions vary with departments, would not necessarily be comparable with those of the employer. Obviously, also, it was difficult for a woman, particularly if she had been at work in an establishment a comparatively short time, to say what was a "regular schedule" and what were exceptional working hours.

The discrepancies between the proportion of overtime reported by employers and individuals in the accompanying table are easily explicable and are no indication of misrepresentation on either side. It should be said also that the discrepancy is rather a matter of terminology than of actual working hours.

Employers were asked to include under "busy season" any period during which the normal hours were lengthened, the force increased, or the tension of work heightened; and to include under normal and dull seasons periods marked by corresponding changes. They were asked to report, in addition to these normal, dull, and busy seasons, all overtime periods. A separate table has been made of the overtime occurring before Christmas and the overtime occurring at other periods throughout the year. The following tables give the employers' reports for the various seasons. It should be kept in mind that the normal, dull, and busy seasons as shown in these tables are exclusive of all overtime and that the overtime periods are reported separately.

Although the number of women in these tables include those employed in the selling department only, the hours, except as noted, apply also to the office force. The hours for the workroom force are practically the same, but the seasons and overtime vary somewhat

from those of the selling department, and a separate table has therefore been made. In the matter of numbers of women affected, the hours for the selling departments are by far the most important, as over 70 per cent of the women are there employed, either as saleswomen, cash girls, inspectors, or bundle wrappers.

The following tables take up the subject of seasons, working hours, and overtime as reported by the employers, and will be followed by the information from individuals on the same subject.

NORMAL SEASON.

The following table shows-

- 1. That 138, or 98.6 per cent, of the 140 stores ¹ reported a normal season which averaged 29\frac{4}{2} weeks in duration and affected 4,702, or 99.7 per cent, of the prevailing number of women employed in the selling departments.
- 2. That the average weekly hours during this period were 55%, daily hours 8%, with a long day of 11% hours. There were two cities reporting average weekly hours of 57 and a fraction, and one reporting 58%.
- 3. That the longest weekly hours reported by any establishment during this season were 63 and the shortest 48.
- 4. That slightly over one-fourth of the establishments, employing 48.5 per cent of the women, reported average weekly hours of under 55; that 70.3 per cent of the establishments, employing 50.7 per cent of the women affected by the normal season, reported average weekly hours of 55 and under 60. Only $1\frac{1}{2}$ per cent of the establishments, employing 0.5 per cent of the women, reported a 48-hour week; and only 3.6 per cent, employing 0.8 per cent of the women, reported weekly hours of 60 or over.

The most striking feature of the hours in the Indiana stores, aside from the holiday-season work, was the long Saturday. Indianapolis was a marked exception to the other cities in this particular. In the spring of 1913 some of the largest department stores gave up the Saturday night work and almost all the stores, including the 5 and 10 cent stores, followed the example. Some of the establishments, however, deferred making this change until 1914. La Fayette followed close in the wake of Indianapolis in the matter of early Saturday closing. In New Albany there are still long working hours on Monday and on Saturday. In South Bend the long Thursday was eliminated in May of 1913.

¹ Two small establishments, selling ladies' coats and suits, reported the entire year as either busy or dull.

TABLE 7.—WORKING HOURS IN THE NORMAL SEASON IN THE SELLING DEPARTMENT OF DEPARTMENT AND OTHER RETAIL STORES IN 10 CITIES, AS REPORTED BY EMPLOYERS.

[The laws of Indiana limit the hours of children to 48 per week and 8 per day, unless the consent of the parents is secured. In that part of the table which gives the per cent reporting average weekly hours 37 girls who were working in establishments reporting prevailing hours of more than 48 have been excluded. Hours shown in this table do not include overtime.]

Citter	Estab- ing lish- number		Establish- ments report- ing normal season.		Women affected.		Aver-	Average hours.				
Cities.	uled.	of women em- ployed.	Num- ber.	Per cent.	Num- ber.	Per cent.	dura- tion in weeks.	Hours per week.	Pre- vailing daily hours.	Long day.	Short day.	
Indianapolis. Terre Haute Evansville Fort Wayne. South Bend Muncie Hammond La Fayette Richmond. New Albany	28 13 22 14 15 13 4 8 14	1,820 672 450 377 402 264 230 240 157 102	28 12 22 14 15 13 4 7 14 9	100.0 92.3 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 87.5 100.0	1,820 666 450 377 402 264 230 234 157 102	100.0 99.1 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 97.5 100.0	27 321 35 271 271 271 313 271 281 281 37	533 554 574 553 553 564 564 564 564 572	88 89 9 9 9 88 89 9 9 9 88 88 89 9 9 9	111 112 12 111 111 111 111 111 111 111	6 <u>1</u> 5	
Total	140	4,714	138	98.6	4,702	99.7	294	554	8	113	6	

	Per cent reporting average weekly hours of—													
Cities.	48	8.	Over 48 a	nd under 5.	55 and u	nder 60.	60 to 63.							
	Establish- ments.	Women affected.	Establish- ments.	Women affected.	Establish- ments.	Women affected.	Establish- ments.	Women affected.						
Indianapolis Terre Haute Evansville				83.3 67.9 .2 2.7	28. 6 58. 4 86. 4 92. 9	15.6 31.6 95.1	8.3 9.1	0.5 4.7						
Fort Wayne	6.7	.3	20.0 7.7	31.8 42.7	73.3 92.3 100.0 100.0	97.3 67.9 57.3 100.0 100.0								
Richmond New Albany			28.6	$\begin{array}{c} 23.5 \\ 2.0 \end{array}$	57.1 88.9	66.9 98.0	14.3	9.6						
Total	1.5	.5	24.6	48.0	70.3	50.7	3.6	.8						

¹ The hours of the office force are practically the same as those of the selling department.

DULL SEASON.

The table below shows—

- 1. That 124, or 88.6 per cent, of the establishments reported a dull season averaging 15½ weeks and affecting 86.7 per cent of the prevailing number of women employed.
- 2. That the weekly hours averaged $54\frac{5}{6}$, daily hours $8\frac{3}{4}$, with a long day of $11\frac{3}{5}$ hours. The greatest reduction from the hours of the normal season, amounting only to about $2\frac{1}{2}$ per week, occurred in Indianapolis.
- 3. That the longest weekly hours reported were 63 and the shortest 44.

4. That 4 per cent of the establishments reporting dull season, affecting 8.2 per cent of the women, report weekly hours of 48 or under; that 42.8 per cent of employers, representing 60.8 per cent of the women, report hours of over 48 and under 55 a week. Fifty per cent of the establishments, employing 30.3 per cent of all the women at work during this season, still report weekly hours of 55 and under 60. The per cent reporting 60 hours or more still remains approximately 3. In Indianapolis the custom of giving one short day and a shortened schedule for the week during the summer months was found in a number of stores, but this custom was rare in the other cities.

TABLE S.-WORKING HOURS IN THE DULL SEASON IN THE SELLING DEPARTMENT OF DEPARTMENT AND OTHER RETAIL STORES IN 10 CITIES, AS REPORTED BY EMPLOYERS.

[The laws of Indiana limit the hours of children to 48 per week and 8 per day, unless the consent of the parents is secured. In that part of the table which gives the per cent reporting average weekly hours, 26 girls who were working in establishments reporting prevailing hours of more than 48 have been excluded. Hours shown in this table do not include overtime.

Establishments

	reporti	ng dull		Women af- fected.			Average hours.					
Cities.	Num- ber.	Per cent.	Num- ber.	Per cent.	du tion wee	in	Hou per wee	r	Pre- vailin dail; hour	ıg y	Long day.	Short day.
Indianapolis. Terre Haute Evansville Fort Wayne South Bend Muncie Hammond La Fayette Richmond New Albany	26 11 17 14 14 11 3 8 13 7	92. 9 84. 6 77. 3 100. 0 93. 3 84. 6 75. 0 100. 0 92. 9 77. 8	1, 715 545 343 369 342 239 53 230 154 97	94. 2 81. 1 76. 2 97. 9 85. 1 90. 5 23. 0 95. 8 98. 1		15 ² / ₃ 14 ² / ₄ 13 16 ² / ₄ 15 ² / ₄ 12 ¹ / ₄ 20 15 ² / ₂ 13 ² / ₄	5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5	11 51 61 42 42 63 63 64 78		- State of the sta	11 112 113 114 114 114 114 114 114 114	64
Total	124	88.6	4,087	86, 7] :	151	5	18	8	2	113	6
		P	er cent r	eporting	ave	rage	week	ly l	hours	of-	-	
Cities.	44 t	o 48.		Over 48 and u der 55.		55 and un			nder 60.			o 63.
	Estab- lish- ments.	Womer		offor	Women lish ment		sh- Women		Estab- lish- ments.		Women affected.	
Indianapolis. Terre Haute Evansville Fort Wayne South Bend Muncie Hammond La Fayette Richmond New Albany	7.1	. 3	45. 29. 64. 42. 9. 37. 30. 14.	5 8 4 3 3 8 9 8 1 4 5 3 8 2	3. 5 1. 5 7. 1 1. 8 8. 9 3. 1 3. 5 4. 0 1. 0	4 6 3 5 9 10 6 5 8	1. 5 17. 0 5. 5 18. 0 4. 7 59. 0 5. 7 18. 2 0. 0 10. 8 0. 9 56. 9 0. 0 100. 0 2. 5 66. 5 3. 8 66. 9 5. 7 99. 0		15, 4			
Total	4.0	8, 2	42.	8 6	0.8	5	0.0		30.3		3.2	.7

¹ Based on prevailing number employed.

BUSY SEASON.

There were some establishments which reported no busy season except a week or 10 days before Christmas, during which period overtime was continuous. Such periods have been tabulated as periods of "overtime before Christmas" rather than as "busy season," and are therefore excluded from Table 9. Establishments which reported a busy season, for example, for six weeks before Christmas, including overtime for one week before Christmas, would be tabulated as having five weeks of busy season and one week of overtime.

The busy season as reported in Table 9 represents for almost all establishments the weeks preceding Christmas, exclusive of overtime, and for many establishments a period in the spring or fall. Over 75 per cent of the establishments reported a busy season and reported additional women employed, so that the number employed in the busy season in 107 establishments and affected by the working hours of the busy season represented an increase of 14.6 per cent over the usual number employed in the 140 establishments, while if only the 107 establishments were considered the increase in per cent would be 28.9. It should be added here that of the 33 establishments not reporting a busy season, 29, employing usually 483 women, reported overtime before Christmas, during which period 650 women were employed, and 1, employing usually 13 women, reported overtime occurring in the normal season and affecting 10 women. Only 3 establishments, employing usually 31 women, reported no busy season and no overtime.

The following table shows—

- 1. That 76.4 per cent of the establishments, affecting 5,396 women, reported a busy season averaging 8½ weeks, which it must be remembered is exclusive of any overtime periods. This average is considerably shorter than either the normal or the dull season.
- 2. That the average weekly hours were $55\frac{2}{3}$ during the busy period—practically the same as during the normal period. The significance of this lies in the fact that the demands of the season were not met on the whole by a lengthening of the hours, but by an increase of force to the extent of nearly 15 per cent in excess of the number usually employed. There probably was also a higher tension in the activity. The fact that the average hours of the busy season are 10 minutes a week under those in the normal season does not mean that firms reporting normal and busy seasons shortened the hours during the busy period, but only that among the firms reporting such seasons were those whose working-hour schedules throughout the year were shorter than those of a number of firms who reported no busy season but worked longer hours in their normal Table 10, which shows the hours for each season by establishments reporting specified seasons, will perhaps serve to make this situation plain.

- 3. That the maximum weekly hours were 64½ and the minimum weekly hours 48.
- 4. That of the establishments reporting busy season 29.9 per cent, employing 54.5 per cent of the women, reported weekly hours of more than 48 and under 55. Sixty-five and four-tenths per cent of the establishments, employing 45 per cent of the women, reported weekly hours of 55 to 59 and a fraction, and 3.8 per cent of the establishments, employing 0.5 per cent of the women, reported weekly hours of 60 or over.

Table 9.—WORKING HOURS IN THE BUSY SEASON IN THE SELLING DEPARTMENTS OF DEPARTMENT AND OTHER RETAIL STORES IN 10 CITIES, AS REPORTED BY EMPLOYERS.

[The laws of Indiana limit the hours of children to 48 per week and 8 per day, unless the consent of the parents is secured. In that part of the table which gives the percent reporting average weekly hours, 33 girls who were working in establishments reporting hours of more than 48 hours have been excluded. Hours shown in this table do not include overtime.]

Cities.	Establishm ing busy		Women	affected.	Average duration	Average hours per	
	Number.	Per cent.	Number.	Per cent.1	in weeks.	week.	
Indianapolis	26	92.9	2,474	135.9	9 8 5 3	54	
Terre Haute Evansville	12 8	92, 3 36, 4	784 279	116.7 62.0	- 0 ∰ 111	56 56	
Fort Wayne		78.6	413	109.6	11½ 73	55	
South Bend	12	80.0	292	72.6	103	54	
Muncie	11	84.6	320	121.2	113	56	
Hammond	3	75.0	237	103.0	1 	58	
La Fayette	7	87.5	282	117.5	71 81 31	56	
Richmond	12	85.7	225	143.3	81/2	56	
New Albany	5	55.6	90	88.2	34	57	
Total	107	76.4	5,396	114.6	81/2	55	

	Per cent reporting average weekly hours of—													
Cities.	4	8		and un-	55 and u	ınder 60.	60 to	641.						
	Estab- lish- ments.	Women affected.	Estab- lish- ments,	Women affected.	Estab- lish- ments.	Women affected.	Estab- lish- ments.	Women af- fected.						
Indianapolis Terre Haute Evansville Fort Wayne South Bend Muncie Hammond La Fayette Richmond	8.3	0.3	12.5 9.1 25.0 9.1	84. 1 69. 4 . 4 2. 9 55. 1 39. 7	26. 9 41. 7 87. 5 90. 9 66. 7 90. 9 100. 0 100. 0 66. 6	15.9 29.7 99.6 97.1 44.6 60.3 100.0 100.0 85.3	16.6							
New Albany					100.0	100.0								
Total	9.0	(2)	29.9	54.5	65.4	45.0	3.8	.5						

¹ Based on prevailing number employed.

66172°-Bull. 160-14--2

² Less than one-tenth of 1 per cent.

TABLE 10.—AVERAGE WEEKLY HOURS, BY SEASONS, IN DEPARTMENT AND OTHER RETAIL STORES REPORTING SPECIFIED SEASONS.

	Average	weekly hou	ırs i n establ	ishments i	eporting—
Seasons.	Normal season only.	Normal and dull season only.	Normal and busy season only.	Normal, dull, and and busy season.	Dull and busy season only.
Busy season	56.4	56.8 56.1	55.9 55.9	55.7 55.6 54.5	55. 2 54. 2

OVERTIME PERIODS.

As has been previously explained, the number of weeks as given in the preceding tables do not include any periods of overtime. Such periods are taken up in the following tables. Since the most conspicuous overtime in retail stores is that occuring before Christmas, a separate table has been made for overtime occuring before Christmas and overtime occurring at other times during the year. The method used in determining what should be called overtime has already been explained.¹

Overtime Before Christmas.—Overtime before Christmas was reported by 83.5 per cent of the establishments, affecting 69.6 per cent of all women employed in the Christmas season. Indianapolis was the only city where less than 92 per cent of the establishments reported overtime. In Indianapolis only 35.7 per cent reported overtime and it affected but 26.9 per cent of the women employed in all Indianapolis establishments before Christmas. The average duration of the overtime was one week, the range for each city extending from one-half to one and three-fifths weeks.

As would be expected, the weekly hours show a decided increase, the average for the week before Christmas being 661 hours, with a prevailing day of 11½ hours and a long day averaging 11½ hours. A short day averaging 9½ hours was also reported, but did not affect all of the establishments. The shortest hours reported were 57 and the The largest per cent of establishments, 38.8 per cent, longest 82½. reported hours of from 65 to 69 and a fraction, affecting 36.3 per cent of the women. Over 23 per cent of the establishments, affecting 16.5 per cent of the women, reported working hours of from 70 to $82\frac{1}{6}$. It is these long hours which make the days before Christmas a period of unusual strain on the women who work in the stores. remembered that the strain involved in the overtime period before Christmas comes as a climax to weeks of high tension work, for November and December are generally periods of brisk activity in retail mercantile business. Indianapolis was the only city where any real progress had been made toward a more moderate schedule of hours. Many employers in other cities expressed their willingness to give up night work "provided the other stores did."

The facts as to working hours during the period immediately preceding Christmas are shown for each city in the following table:

TABLE 11.—OVERTIME WORKING HOURS DURING CHRISTMAS SEASON IN THE SELL-ING DEPARTMENT OF DEPARTMENT AND OTHER RETAIL STORES IN 10 CITIES, AS REPORTED BY EMPLOYEES.

	Estab- lish- ments	Women em-	ments	olish- report- ertime,	Wor affec	men eted.	Aver-	Avera	ge hour Christ		before
Cities.	oper- ating during Christ- mas season.	ployed during Christ- mas season.	Num- ber.	Per cent.	Num- ber.	Per cent.	age dura- tion, weeks.	Hours per week.	Pre- vail- ing daily hours.	Long day.	Short day.
Indianapolis Terre Haute Evansville Fort Wayne South Bend Muncie Hammond La Fayette Richmond New Albany	13 22 2 13 15 13 4	2,488 796 592 474 493 371 327 312 254 153	10 13 21 12 14 12 4 8 13	35. 7 100. 0 95. 5 92. 3 93. 3 92. 3 100. 0 100. 0 92. 9 100. 0	669 796 559 439 492 358 327 312 253 150	26, 9 100, 0 93, 9 92, 6 99, 8 96, 5 100, 0 100, 0 99, 6 98, 0	tion(t) nin tip tip ninth appoint	651316646 64466666666666666666666666666666	11 112 12 11 104 114 1103 1113 1034 1135 103	12 12 12 13 11 11 12 12 12 11 12 11 13	9 83 101 93 81 9
Total	2 139	6,260	116	83.5	4,355	69.6	1	66½	113	114	91

	. '		P	er cent re	eporting	weekly l	ours of-	-	•	
Cities.	57 and u	ınder 60.	60 and 1	ı n der 65.	65 and u	ınder 70.	70 and 1	under 75.	75 to 8	21.
	Estab- lish- ments.	Women affect- ed.	Estab- lish- ments.	Women affect- ed.	Estab- lish- ments.	Women affect- ed.	Estab- lish- ments.	Women affect- ed.	Estab- lish- ments.	Wo- men affect- ed.
Indianapolis Terre Haute Evansville	15.4	1.3 29.5	50.0 30.8 4.8	82, 4 43, 5 0, 2	30.0 53.8 14.3	14. 5 27. 0 26. 8	61. 9	65. 7	10.0	1.8
Fort Wayne South Bend Muncie	8.3 14.3	1. 1 35. 2	25. 0 42. 8 41. 6	4.8 42.3 58.1	41.7 42.9 41.7	77. 2 22. 5 20. 7	25. 0 16. 7	16. 9 21. 2		
HammondLa FayetteRichmondNew Albany	12. 5	15.4	25. 0 15. 4 100. 0	27. 6 5. 5 100. 0	100. 0 62. 5 53. 8	100. 0 57. 0 36. 0	30.8	58, 5		
Trtal		10.8	31. 9	36. 4	38.8	36.3	18.9	15.3	4. 4	1.2

¹ Based on number employed during Christmas season. ² One establishment went out of business, Nov. 30, 1913.

OVERTIME OTHER THAN BEFORE CHRISTMAS.—The table below shows—

- 1. That 32.9 per cent of the establishments, affecting 18 per cent of the women, reported overtime averaging 23 weeks. This overtime was required principally for stock taking and for preparation for special sales.
- 2. That the average weekly hours during this overtime period were $58\frac{1}{2}$, the prevailing daily hours $9\frac{1}{5}$, the long day $11\frac{2}{3}$ hours, and the short day $8\frac{1}{5}$ hours.

- 3. That the maximum weekly hours for any establishment were 69 and the minimum 45%.
- 4. That 47.8 per cent of the stores reporting overtime, affecting 65.3 per cent of the women, reported weekly hours from 55 to 59 and a fraction. Thirty and four-tenths per cent of the establishments reporting overtime, affecting 20.5 per cent of the women, reported hours of 60 and under 65 per week.

TABLE 12 .- OVERTIME HOURS, OTHER THAN BEFORE CHRISTMAS IN THE SELLING DEPARTMENT OF DEPARTMENT AND OTHER RETAIL STORES IN 10 CITIES. AS REPORTED BY EMPLOYEES.

Cities.	Esta meni por over in no and seas	ting time rmal dull	Wor affec		Average duration	- 1		A verag	e hours	•	Maxi- mum weekly	Mini- mum weekly
	Num- ber,	Per cent.	Num- ber.	Per cent.	in weeks	I	Hours per week.	Pre- vail- ing daily hours.	Long day.	Short day.	hours.	hours.
Indianapolis. Terre Haute. Evansville Fort Wayne. South Bend. Muncie. Hammond.	15 8 8 1 1 4	53.6 61.5 36.4 7.1 6.7 30.8	425 174 83 3 17 49	23. 4 25. 9 18. 4 . 8 4. 2 18. 6	2; 6; 1; 1 3 1	4	57 581 601 591 551 581	9 3 9 9 3 10 <u>1</u> 81	11½ 11¾ 12 11 11↓ 12	73 81 91 82 82	69 69 65 59 <u>1</u> 57 <u>4</u> 59	45½ 55 57½ 59½ 54½ 58½
La FayetteRichmond. New Albany	2 5 2	25. 0 35. 7 22. 2	15 59 22	6.3 37.6 21.6	1 1 3	١	601 581 60	9 83 8 <u>1</u>	11½ 12 12⅓		60½ 60 61	60½ 57½ 59
Total	46	32, 9	847	18.0	2	3	581	91	113	81	69	451
				Per c	ent rep	ort	ing av	erage w	eekly l	ours of	_	
Cities.	49 a	nd un	der 55.	55	and w	nde	r 60.	60 ar	ıd und	er 65.	65 to	66.
	Esta lisa mer	h-	Womei affected	1 1	stab- ish- ents.		omen ected.	Esta lish ment	96	omen lected.	Estab- lish- ments.	Women af- fected.
Indianapolis Terre Haute. Evansville Fort Wayne South Bend. Muncie					46. 7 62. 5 25. 0 100. 0 100. 0 50. 0		77. 9 54. 0 39. 7 100. 0 100. 0 44. 9	37	3. 3 7. 5 2. 5	7, 3 46, 0 41, 0	6.7	

^{47.8} 1 Based on prevailing number employed.

5.7

10.9

60.0

50, 0

100.0

50.0

30.4

72, 9

65, 3

100.0

54.5

20.5

1.8

2.2

PAY FOR OVERTIME.

Closely connected with the discussion of overtime in mercantile establishments, where the prevailing method of payment is a weekly rate, is the question of overtime pay.

Hammond . . .

Richmond New Albany.....

La Fayette

Of the 124 establishments reporting some overtime, only 19, or 13.6 per cent, paid their saleswomen for the additional hours of work. Eight others paid regular rate, rate and a half, or double rate for extra work in the alteration departments. Twenty-two establishments gave the girls Christmas presents of money or merchandise; some of these firms also paid for the overtime work.

The number of stores working overtime and the practice as to payment for overtime hours as reported by the employer are shown for each city in the following table:

TABLE 13.—NUMBER AND PER CENT OF DEPARTMENT AND OTHER RETAIL STORES WORKING OVERTIME AND PAYING FOR OVERTIME IN 10 CITIES, AS REPORTED BY EMPLOYERS.

	Estab-	repo	shments rting time.	payir	shments ng for time.	Overti	me be- ristmas.	Estab- lish-	stock to	ime for aking or es.
Cities.	lish- ments sched- uled.	Num- ber.	Per cent.	Num- ber.	Per cent.	Estab- lish- ments report- ing.	Number paying for over-time.	ments giving Christ- mas pres- sents.	Estab- lish- ments report- ing	Num- ber paying for over- time.
Indianapolis Terre Haute Evansville Fort Wayne South Bend Muncie Hammond La Fayette Richmond New Albany	22	18 13 21 12 14 12 4 8 13	64.3 100.0 95.5 85.7 93.3 92.3 100.0 100.0 92.9 100.0	13 32 3 1 1 3 1 1 2 12	30.0 15.4 14.3 7.1 6.7 25.0 25.0 12.5 15.4 22.2	10 13 21 12 14 12 4 8 13	3 2 3 1 1 3 1 1 2 2	3 1 3 5 5 2	15 8 8 1 1 4 2 5	2 2 4 1 2 2
Total	140	124	88.6	5 19	13.6	116	6 19	22	5 46	7

SUMMARY.

The table which follows presents in compact form the working hours for all seasons of the year in the selling departments and in the alteration departments, according to reports from employers.

But 86 of the 140 stores from which data were obtained have alteration departments. The regular hours in these workrooms average somewhat less than those in the selling departments of all stores, the hours in the normal season being $54\frac{11}{12}$ per week, as compared with 555 hours. The overtime work occurring in the spring and fall seasons not only lasts for 7½ weeks, as compared with 2¾ weeks in the selling departments, but the weekly hours average 611, with a 1015hour day, as against a 58½-hour week with a 9½-hour day. Although 57.6 per cent of the stores report overtime work in the alteration department before Christmas, this is not considered a busy time in

Two other establishments pay regular rate for overtime in alteration departments only.
 Six establishments give supper or supper money.
 Two other establishments pay rate and a half, 3 others regular rate, and 1 other double rate for overtime in alteration department only.
 One establishment furnishes supper or supper money.

⁵ See notes to details. Sixteen establishments pay a fixed sum or per cent, 1 establishment pays rate and a half, and 2 do not report the rate paid.

the workrooms and in a number of cases the girls work in the selling departments.

TABLE 14.—SUMMARY OF WORKING HOURS IN THE SELLING AND IN THE ALTERA-TION DEPARTMENTS OF DEPARTMENT AND OTHER RETAIL STORES IN 10 CITIES. AS REPORTED BY EMPLOYERS.

Selling	departments,	140	stores.
---------	--------------	-----	---------

	me	Establishments reporting. Wome affecte			Aver-					Maxi-	Mini-
Seasons.	Num- ber.	Per cent.	Num- ber.	Per cent.	age dura- tion in weeks.	Hours per week.	Pre- vail- ing daily hours.	Long day.	Short day.	mum week- ly hours.	mum week- ly hours.
Regular hours: Normal season. Dull season. Busy season. Overtime hours: Normal and dull seasons. Before Christmas	138 124 107 46 116	88.6 76.4 32.9	4,702 4,087 5,396 847 4,355	199.7 186.7 1114.6	294 154 81 23	55% 54% 2 55% 58%	85 83 813 913	11-5 11-5 11-5 11-5	6 51 81 91	63 63 66 69 821	45 44 48 45 45 57

Alteration departments, 86 stores.

Regular hours: Normal season Dull season Busy season Overtime hours:	79	84.9 91.9 82.6	643 561 724	92.0 80.3 103.6	23] 16] 16]	54 11 533 553	83 85 85	11 1 11 <u>1</u> 11 <u>1</u>	71 55 85	59 60 613	33½ 33½ 49
Normal, dull, and busy seasons	28	32.6	361	51.6	71	61 }	101	11 <u>1</u>	8 11	68	503
	49	57.6	257	37.1	1	64] }	11	11 <u>1</u>	8 11	74	37 <u>1</u>

- Based on prevailing number employed.
 For explanation of these busy-season hours, see text, p. 16.
 Based on 139 stores in business during Christmas season.
 Based on number employed during Christmas season.

WORKING HOURS AS REPORTED BY INDIVIDUALS.

The preceding tables have presented the data as to seasons, working hours, and overtime, as reported by the employers. The following tables give the data on these topics as reported by individual employees in 6 of the cities.

The change of working hours has been made the basis of the seasonal classification for individuals, since it was found to be almost impossible to get any other distinction from the persons interviewed with a degree of accuracy which would warrant tabulation. Accordingly, the period during which the regular hours were maintained has been considered the normal season, the period during which the regular hours were shortened the dull season, and any periods during which the regular hours were lengthened were considered overtime periods. This does not bring out the periods during which the hours remained normal, while the tension of the work was increased, but, as has been stated, accurate information on that point could not be obtained.

In order that no misunderstanding of the seasons as reported by individuals may occur, it has been thought best to specify in the headings of the tables "Season of normal hours," "Season of shortened hours," etc. Since the seasons, as reported by individuals, are grouped for reasons explained above solely according to the changes in hours, no close comparison with the employers' seasons can be made. All women are included in these tables, i. e., cash girls and wrappers, saleswomen, alteration and millinery hands, office force, and other miscellaneous employees. Since the groupings of seasons were simply according to the change of hours, it seemed best to include workroom employees, as their hours when checked up separately, were found to be practically the same as those of the selling department.

SEASON OF NORMAL HOURS.

A season of normal hours was reported by 99.7 per cent of the 711 women furnishing individual information, the season averaging $34\frac{1}{2}$ weeks in duration. The average weekly hours were $55\frac{1}{2}$, prevailing daily hours $8\frac{1}{12}$, with a long day of $11\frac{3}{4}$ hours. Eight women reported one short day a week, but one of them worked also on Sunday.

These hours are practically the same as those reported by the employers for the normal season. Nearly 55 per cent of the women reported hours of 55 and under 60 per week. This also agrees with the employers' report. Only 2.2 per cent reported hours of 60 or over per week. Six-tenths of 1 per cent of the women reported a 48-hour week or under.

The working hours during the season of normal hours as reported by the 711 women interviewed in 6 of the cities are shown for each city in the following table:

TABLE 15.—WORKING HOURS DURING SEASON OF NORMAL HOURS REPORTED BY WOMEN FURNISHING INDIVIDUAL INFORMATION EMPLOYED IN DEPARTMENT AND OTHER RETAIL STORES IN 6 CITIES.

						Sea	son of r	ormal l	hours.				
	Wo-	Average duration	***	Aver-		Averag	e hours.		Per		eportu ly hou		rage
Cities.	men sched- uled.	of em- ploy- ment in weeks.	Wo- men re- port- ing.	age dura- tion in weeks.	Hours per week.	Prevail- ing daily hours.	Long day.	Short day.	36 to 48.	Over 48 and un- der 55.	55 and un- der 60.	60 and un- der 65.	65 to 681.
Indianapolis. Terre Haute. Evansville Fort Wayne. South Bend. La Fayette	331 104 129 58 63 26	37½ 40¾ 41¾ 38¾ 43¼ 43¼	329 104 129 58 63 26	30 ² / ₃ 36 ¹ / ₂ 41 ¹ / ₂ 31 ¹ / ₃ 39 ² / ₃ 31 ² / ₃	548 563 57 551 551 564	9 8 11 9 87 87 87	11½ 12 11Ç1, 11¾ 11¾ 11¾ 11¾	75 51 (2)	0.9	66. 0 39. 4 9. 3 13. 8 28. 6 15. 4	31. 6 58. 6 84. 5 82. 8 71. 4 84. 6	1.2 1.0 5.5 1.7	0.3 1.0 .7
Total	711	39½	709	341/2	55½	811	113	1 71	. 6	42.3	54.9	1.8	. 4

¹ Only 8 women reported short days.
2 One person worked a short day which was slightly in excess of the prevailing day worked by all women.

SEASON OF SHORTENED HOURS.

The per cent of women who reported a season of shortened hours was but 46.7. As the employers' dull season often included time during which the hours were not shortened, no comparison can be made here. The average duration of the period of shortened hours reported by the women was 7.5 weeks. The shortened hours generally occurred during the months of July and August, but as most of the women took their vacations during that period, the number of weeks reported generally fall one or two weeks short of the full two months according to length of time they took for vacations.

The average weekly hours during this period were $49\frac{1}{2}$, the daily hours $8\frac{1}{4}$, and the long day $9\frac{5}{6}$ hours. A short day, averaging $4\frac{1}{2}$ hours in length, was reported by 99 women.

In this season 24.7 per cent of the women reported average weekly hours of 48 or under, and only 1.5 per cent reported hours of 55 or over. The large majority, 73.8 per cent, reported hours over 48 and under 55.

The working hours during the season of shortened hours as reported by the 711 women furnishing individual information are shown for each city in the following table:

TABLE 16.—WORKING HOURS DURING SEASON OF SHORTENED HOURS REPORTED

BY WOMEN FURNISHING INDIVIDUAL INFORMATION EMPLOYED IN DEPARTMENT AND OTHER RETAIL STORES IN 6 CITIES.

	Women report-	Aver-		Average	hours.		Per cent reporting aver age weekly hours of—			
Cities.	ing short- ened hours.	dura- tion in weeks.	Hours per week.	Pre- vailing daily hours.	Long day.	Short day.	32½ to 48.	Over 48 and under 55.	55 to 57.	
Indianapolis. Terre Haute. Evansville. Fort Wayne. South Bend La Fayette. Total.	198 33 22 41 16 22	7½ 7½ 7½ 7½ 6½ 7⅓ 6⅓ 9½ 7⅓	48 51 51 52 52 50 49 49 49	812 813 813 813 813 814	9 11 12 12 1 103 111 111 95	42 71 42 42 42 42 42	36. 4 3. 0 22. 7 2. 4 6. 3 9. 0	63. 1 97. 0 68. 2 97. 6 87. 5 86. 5	0.5 9.1 6.2 4.5	

¹ Only 1 woman reported a long day.

OVERTIME BEFORE CHRISTMAS.

Over 65 per cent of the women interviewed reported overtime in the period immediately preceding Christmas. This per cent varied considerably in the different cities. In Indianapolis it was but 34, while in all but one of the others it was over 90 per cent.

The duration of this Christmas overtime averaged one and onequarter weeks, slightly more than was reported by the employers. It should be noted that the hours reported in the table here given are for the week immediately preceding Christmas, which represent the

² Ninety-nine women reported short days.

extreme of the overtime. The overtime did not often exceed this period, however, and the average of all overtime days would show a weekly average only very slightly different from these figures.¹

The average weekly hours reported were 66½, the daily hours 11½, and the long day 11½ hours. In Indianapolis eight women reported overtime work on Sunday. This did not appear on the employers' reports, and was not reported in any city except Indianapolis. It represents, however, one of the worst features of overtime, since it takes away from the worker the only opportunity she has to recuperate from the strain of the heavy work of the holiday season.

The working hours in the overtime period immediately preceding Christmas as reported by the women interviewed are shown for each city in the following table:

TABLE 17.—WORKING HOURS, IN OVERTIME PERIOD BEFORE CHRISTMAS, REPORTED BY WOMEN FURNISHING INDIVIDUAL INFORMATION EMPLOYED IN DEPARTMENT AND OTHER RETAIL STORES IN 6 CITIES.

	Women report- ing	Aver-		e hours v re Christ	veek be- mas.	Per cent reporting average weekly hours of—						
Cities.	over- time before Christ- mas,		Hours per week.	Pre- vailing daily hours.	Longest day.	39 and under 60.	60 and under 65. 65 and under 70.		70 and under 75.	75 to 79½.		
Indianapolis Terre Haute Evansville Fort Wayne South Bend La Fayette	99 118 55	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	1 63 5 64 70 1 2 68 1 64 66 2	10 ¹ / ₂ 11 ¹ / ₃ 11 ¹ / ₅ 11 ¹ / ₂ 10 ¹ / ₂ 11 ¹ / ₄	11½ 12 12½ 11½ 11½ 11½	25.7 8.1 1.7 1.8	37. 2 47. 5 2. 5 16. 4 13. 3 30. 0	23. 9 42. 4 17. 0 45. 5 51. 7 50. 0	10. 6 1. 0 73. 7 32. 7 25. 0 20. 0	2. 6 1. 0 5. 1 3. 6 10. 0		
Total	465	11	66 1	111	113	8.6	24.7	33. 3	29.5	3.9		

¹ Including Sunday work of 8 women averaging 24 hours each,

OVERTIME OTHER THAN BEFORE CHRISTMAS.

Overtime aside from the Christmas season was reported by employees, as by the employers, chiefly at the time of stocktaking, before or during special sales, and before spring or fall openings, and occurred sometimes in the season of normal hours and sometimes in the season of shortened hours. One hundred and seventy-three, or 24.3 per cent of the women, reported such overtime, and the average number of weeks reported was three and two-thirds—a considerably longer time than that during which Christmas overtime was reported. The hours here reported represent the average for all these overtime periods.

During this period of three and two-thirds weeks of overtime the largest per cent of women reported weekly hours of 55 and under 60, 46.8 per cent reporting in this group. The maximum hours reported were 76 and the minimum 39 hours. This minimum, however, was reported by a part-time worker. A considerable per cent worked

¹ The average weekly and daily hours of all overtime days would be slightly lower than the averages here given.

exceedingly long hours during these periods, 46.3 per cent reporting weekly hours of 60 or more. The Sunday work was even more significant in these overtime periods than in the overtime before Christmas, and as at that season it was chiefly reported by the women in Indianapolis. A large number of the women there who reported overtime other than at Christmas reported Sunday work which averaged four and one-quarter hours per Sunday. In one other city Sunday work was reported, but only by four women. The hours were even longer, however, averaging seven hours per Sunday.

The working hours in overtime periods other than before Christmas as reported by the women interviewed are shown for each city in the following table:

TABLE 18.—WORKING HOURS IN OVERTIME PERIODS OTHER THAN BEFORE CHRIST-MAS REPORTED BY WOMEN FURNISHING INDIVIDUAL INFORMATION EMPLOYED IN DEPARTMENT AND OTHER RETAIL STORES IN 6 CITIES.

	Women report- ing		Av	erage ho	urs.	I'er cent reporting average weekly hours of—						
Cities.	over- time other than before Christ- mas.	Hours per week.	Pre- vailing daily hours.	Longest day.	39 and under 55.	55 and under 60.	60 and under 65.	65 a nd under 70.	70 to 76.			
Indianapolis Terre Haute Evansville Fort Wayne South Bend La Fayette	29 13	3½ 4 4 3½ 3 5½	584 613 624 573 594 61	91 93 95 95 91 91 10	111 1111 121 121 1111 1112 12	7. 0 3. 1 7. 7 25. 0	60. 0 40. 6 20. 7 53. 8 50. 0 33. 3	24. 7 31. 3 55. 2 38. 5 12. 5 66. 7	5. 9 21. 9 17. 2	2, 4 3, 1 6, 9		
Total	173	33	5911	91	115	6. 9	46.8	32.9	10.5	2,9		

¹ Including Sunday work of 31 women averaging 45 hours each.

PAY FOR OVERTIME.

The information received from individual women on this subject has been summarized so as to bring out the amount of overtime, the per cent which is paid for, the per cent which is not paid for, and the kind and amount of compensation received. It should be noted in this connection that while the extra pay received at Christmas may be called overtime pay, it frequently is supposed to be compensation not only for the actual hours of overtime, but for all the additional strain and rush of the busy weeks before Christmas. In this table a separate grouping has been made for the 5 and 10 cent stores and for the other retail stores for two reasons: First, the 5 and 10 cent stores pay for the overtime before Christmas much more generally than do any other stores; second, the 5 and 10 cent store earnings average so much less than other stores that the influence of overtime pay upon earnings is much more marked. The following table shows

the number reporting overtime and the amount of compensation reported.

Approximately 75 per cent of the women reported overtime—71 per cent of those in the stores other than 5 and 10 cent stores and 91 per cent of the women in the 5 and 10 cent stores. Sixty-six and seven-tenths per cent of the women reporting overtime in the stores other than 5 and 10 cent stores reported no pay for overtime, while only 8.2 per cent of those in the 5 and 10 cent stores were not paid. Taking all women reporting overtime, 55.9 per cent reported no pay for their overtime work, which amounted to 16.7 hours per person.

TABLE 19.—NUMBER OF WOMEN FURNISHING INDIVIDUAL INFORMATION WHO KIND AND AMOUNT OF

Department and other retail stores-

		Wome por over		some	n rece e com for over	pensa-	no	n rece compen	sation	Overtime at Christmas season.			
Cities.	Wom- en sched- uled.	Num- ber.	Per cent.	Num- ber.	Per cent.	Average num- ber of over- time hours.	Num- ber.	Per cent.	Average number of overtime hours.	Num- ber re- port- ing.	Average num- ber of over- time hours.	Average week- ly earn- ings, includ- ing over- time pay.1	
Indianapolis Terre Haute Evansville Fort Wayne South Bend La Fayette Total	279 94 105 47 55 23 603	126 92 97 45 53 17	45. 2 97. 9 92. 4 95. 7 96. 4 73. 9	44 24 25 17 29 4	34. 9 26. 1 25. 8 37. 8 54. 7 23. 5	154 158 284 183 144 5173	82 68 72 28 24 13	65. 1 73. 9 74. 2 62. 2 45. 3 76. 5	$\begin{array}{c} 12\frac{1}{6} \\ 12\frac{1}{3} \\ 25\frac{1}{12} \\ 17\frac{1}{3} \\ 20\frac{1}{12} \\ 11\frac{1}{12} \\ \hline \\ 16\frac{5}{6} \end{array}$	19 19 18 17 28 3	16 8½ 19½ 17¾ 14½ 13½ 15	2\$7.95 7.77 7.37 10.02 8.49 11.94	

Five and ten

Indianapolis Terre Haute Evansville Fort Wayne South Bend La Fayette	52 10 24 11 8 3	45 10 21 11 8 3	86. 5 100. 0 87. 5 100. 0 100. 0 100. 0	42 10 20 7 8 3	93.3 100.0 95.2 63.6 100.0 100.0	8 1 9 1 2 2 1 2 2 5 1 1 4 3 2 2 5 1 2 1 4 3 2 2 5 1 2 1 4 3 2 2 5 1 2 2 5 1 2 3 2 2 5 1 4 3 2 2 5 1 4 3 2 2 5 1 4 3 2 2 5 1 4 3 2 2 5 1 4 3 2 2 5 1 4 3 2 2 5 1 4 3 2 2 5 1 4 3 2 2 5 1 4 3 2 5 1 4	3 1 4	6. 7 4. 8 36. 4	103 15 135	41 10 20 7 8 3	$\begin{array}{c} 7\frac{1}{2} \\ 9\frac{1}{12} \\ 20 \\ 18\frac{1}{2} \\ 25\frac{1}{12} \\ 14\frac{1}{3} \end{array}$	\$5.08 4.50 4.07 5.01 6.21 5.13
Total	108	98	90.7	90	91.8	133	8	8.2	125	89	131	4.88
Grand total	711	528	74.3	233	44.1	165	295	55.9	163	193	141	2 6.78

¹ Average earnings of year 1913.

REPORTED OVERTIME, NUMBER RECEIVING COMPENSATION FOR OVERTIME, AND COMPENSATION RECEIVED.

excluding five and ten cent stores.

	Ove	rtime a	t Christ	mas sea	son.		0	vertime	e other t	han at	Christm	as seaso	n.
		Compen	sation r	eceived	•				Aver-	Con	npensat	ion recei	ved.
Add	supper gift				Other	Num- ber	Average num- ber of	age week- ly earn- ings,	Ado	litional	pay.	Sup- per or supper	
Num- ber report- ing.	Average hours over- time.	Average amt.		Num- ber	Average amt.	num- ber report- ing.	report- ing.	over- time hours.	includ- ing	Num- ber report- ing.	Average hours over- time.	Average amt.	mon- ey, num- ber report- ing.
11 1 1 1 1	12½ 6 6 4 17	\$1.82 2.25 1.50 1.19	5 3 1	2 5 17 9 21	\$5, 00 4, 20 3, 62 2, 44 4, 62	10 7 5 1	30 9 8 1 2 4	12 ¹ / ₁₂ 24 ¹ / ₄ 44 ¹ / ₁₂ 14 6 40 ⁸	\$9. 61 8. 91 7. 46 10. 00 10. 97 11. 21	4 7 8 1 1	8½ 27¾ 44½ 14 12 120	\$1.72 9.53 7.96 3.00 6.00 32.16	27 2 1 2
16						23	54					32	

cent stores.

33 10	$\begin{array}{c} 6\frac{11}{2} \\ 9\frac{1}{2} \\ 20\frac{1}{2} \end{array}$	\$2.03 3.50	5	14 4	\$10.00 12.50	4	4	105	\$4. 58	3	121	\$1.42	2
12 3 8 1	20½ 20 25± 13½	2. 40 1. 30 5. 78 1. 00		9 4 3 3	4.56 7.25 16.67 10.00	7							
67	123	2. 71	5	37	8. 49	11	4	105	4.58	3	12 }	1.42	2
83	12½	2. 62	14	91	5. 77	34	58	2013	9.02	25	30}	7.31	34

² Two women did not report average earnings.

Of the paid overtime reported by individuals employed in stores other than 5 and 10 cent stores, 58 per cent was reported during the Christmas season. The women employed in the 5 and 10 cent stores reported 96 per cent of this paid overtime as occurring in the Christmas season. For this overtime there were several methods of pay. the 5 and 10 cent stores additional straight pay was most commonly In the other stores an arbitrary gift of money was the most frequent method of reward. The 5 and 10 cent stores also used money gifts to some extent, and the gifts reported by 37 individuals amounted to \$8.49 per person, while in the other stores the money gifts of the 54 women reporting averaged but \$3.92. The average amount of overtime per person did not vary greatly, 13.3 hours being reported by the 5 and 10 cent stores and 15 hours by the other stores. On the whole, the 5 and 10 cent stores reported less overtime, more frequent pay, and higher pay, but the average earnings of the girls who reported in the 5 and 10 cent stores were \$3.55 lower than those of the girls reporting in other stores.

Outside of the Christmas season the women employed in the 5 and 10 cent stores reported practically no overtime, but the employees of other stores reported 42 per cent of the total overtime for which compensation was received as being in seasons other than Christmas. The average amount of overtime per person was considerably higher than the amount at the Christmas season, being 21 hours as compared with 15 hours. Much of this overtime came in the workrooms, where overtime was often worked for several consecutive weeks.

It may be added also that a few individuals reported that they were occasionally given an hour or two off, without deduction, for shopping or other purposes. Such privileges, however, were not usual.

The table below summarizes the range of overtime hours worked by individuals in all stores through the year.

The greater part of the women working overtime received no pay for it, and, furthermore, the women who received no pay worked rather more hours of overtime than those who received pay, 27 per cent of the latter working 20 hours or more, while 33.9 per cent of those receiving no pay worked 20 hours or more.

The largest individual group of both paid and unpaid overtime workers was that working 5 and less than 10 hours overtime, and comparatively few worked over 39 hours. The major part of the overtime was from 5 to 25 hours. While this amount is not large, whether or not it involved undue strain on the individuals, depends on the nature of the work and number of days over which the overtime was distributed. The Christmas overtime was generally crowded into a very short space of time, and the other overtime gen-

erally came on a few days at times of stock taking, openings, or sales so that while the actual hours of overtime worked do not show long periods, they do mean considerable strain on the workers.

TABLE 20.—OVERTIME HOURS, WITH COMPENSATION AND WITHOUT COMPENSATION, REPORTED BY INDIVIDUALS IN DEPARTMENT AND OTHER RETAIL STORES OF 6 CITIES, COMBINED.

	Women reporting hours of overtime.										
Hours of overtime.	With com	pensation.		compen- tion.	Total.						
	Number.	Per cent.	Number.	Per cent.	Number.	Per cent.					
Under 5. 5 and under 10. 10 and under 15. 15 and under 25. 20 and under 25. 25 and under 30. 30 and under 40. 40 and under 50. 50 and under 60. 60 and under 80. 100 to 136. Not reported.	75 38 37 27 14 9 4 3 4 2	8. 2 32. 2 16. 3 15. 9 11. 6 6. 0 3. 9 1. 7 1. 3 1. 7	30 80 39 44 50 19 19 4 3 5	10. 2 27. 1 13. 2 14. 9 17. 0 6. 4 6. 4 1. 4 1. 0	49 155 77 81 77 33 28 8 6 9	9.3 29.4 14.6 15.3 14.6 6.2 5.3 1.5 1.1					
Total		100.0	295	100.0	528	100.0					

RATES OF PAY AND EARNINGS.

ALL OCCUPATIONS.

Information concerning wages consists of the weekly rates of pay for 5,857 women as taken from the pay rolls of 140 stores in 10 cities for a representative week, together with data as to commissions, premiums, etc., and the average full-time weekly earnings as reported by 711 individuals during the year covered by this investigation. These 711 individuals represented 92 stores in 6 of the 10 cities.

The employer was asked for his pay roll for a specified week, this week having been selected as one which should represent a normal condition of business. The week was specified so as to make the reports from the various establishments cover as nearly as possible the same period. If, however, the employer felt that the week so chosen did not fairly represent his business, another week (giving the date) which he felt was more representative was taken. The rate of pay for everyone on the pay roll was taken, together with the number receiving regular commissions, but the actual amount paid to each person in commissions, premiums, or bonuses of any sort was not included. The total amount paid during the year to women in commissions, premiums, etc., was taken as a separate item, and the influence of these supplemental earnings upon the flat rates of pay is measured in the course of this report with as much accuracy as the information at hand will permit.

The weekly earnings reported by the 711 individuals represent the average full-time weekly earnings for the weeks actually worked. The number of weeks during which the women worked are stated as full-time weeks, except that scattered days or half days' absence amounting to less than one week in all during the year were not deducted from the time but were allowed for in computing the earn-Any absences of three consecutive days or more or a week or more in scattered days were deducted from the time worked. individual was questioned as to her rate of pay and, if on commission, as to the average amount earned in commissions, due consideration being given to the different seasons of the year, when the amount earned in commissions might vary widely, and as to the number of days or fractional days she lost. The earnings recorded represent the closest estimate the individual could give of her full-time weekly earnings, including commissions, with deductions for occasional absence as noted above, or for any other reasons. If the individual had worked at more than one rate of pay during the year, the time worked at each rate was noted and the average computed accordingly.

The tables following summarize first, the reports of employers and employees as to the number of women receiving specified rates of pay; and, second, the individual reports as to average full-time weekly earnings, including commissions and premiums.

The reports from individuals while limited to 6 of the 10 cities, nevertheless represent the geographical and industrial sections of the State. The table below, summarizing the employers' reports as to weekly rates of pay, furnishes evidence of this fact, for not only are the average rates of pay for the 10 cities within 12 cents of the average for the 6 cities chosen for individual schedule gathering, but the difference in the proportion of women getting less than specified rates in the entire 10 cities and in the 6 is so small as to be negligible.

If the reader will notice the marked difference in the rates prevailing in the northern and southern cities of the State, for example, he will readily understand that the close correspondence above referred to can mean nothing else than that the 6 cities chosen for individual schedule gathering fairly represent the same sections of the State as were covered by the entire 10 cities included in the investigation.

¹ For example, if a girl worked 40 weeks during the year at \$6 per week, but was out 4 scattered days during that time, her number of weeks worked would be given as 40 and her average earnings would be 40 times \$6 (\$240), minus \$4 (representing the 4 days lost), \$236 divided by 40, or \$5.90.

TABLE 21.—PER CENT OF WOMEN RECEIVING LESS THAN SPECIFIED WEEKLY RATES OF PAY (NOT INCLUDING COMMISSIONS AND PREMIUMS), IN 140 DEPARTMENT AND OTHER RETAIL STORES IN 10 CITIES, AS SHOWN BY ESTABLISHMENT PAY ROLLS FOR A REPRESENTATIVE WEEK.

	Wo-	Aver-	Per cent receiving weekly rate of—										
Cities.	men report- ed.	age weekly rate of pay.	Un- der \$3.	Un- der \$4.	Un- der \$5.	Un- der \$6.	Un- der \$7.	Un- der \$8.	Un- der \$9.	Un- der \$10.	Un- der \$12.	\$12 or over.	
Indianapolis Terre Haute Evansville Fort Wayne South Bend La Fayette	2,609 677 486 485 457 322	\$8.01 7.62 6.80 8.67 8.77 7.50	0. 2 6. 4 . 6	8.8 15.5 18.5 .6 8.5 4.3	22.3 27.2 38.3 5.8 17.7 14.3	30. 7 36. 0 48. 4 20. 0 26. 3 33. 9	45.2 49.9 60.7 34.8 38.7 53.7	55.1 61.7 69.3 49.3 48.8 64.9	67.5 69.7 76.7 62.3 57.8 72.4	74.5 75.3 79.8 69.5 67.0 76.4	83.7 85.4 89.1 82.9 76.6 88.2	16.3 14.6 10.9 17.1 23.4 11.8	
Total	5,036	7.94	1.0	9.6	22.0	31.9	46.3	56.9	67.6	74.1	84.0	16.0	
Muncie	288 207 198 120	7. 22 7. 05 7. 48 6. 23	6.9	15.3 7.2 6.6 18.3	28. 1 18. 4 25. 8 40. 8	41.0 37.7 34.3 52.5	59. 4 63. 3 46. 5 63. 3	66.0 76.3 58.1 71.7	71. 9 82. 6 67. 7 79. 2	78.1 84.5 74.7 83.3	87.8 90.3 87.4 94.2	12.2 9.7 12.6 5.8	
Grand total	1 5,849	7.82	1.3	9.8	22.7	33.0	47.9	58.4	68.6	74.9	84.7	15.3	

¹ Not including 8, whose weekly rates of pay were not reported.

TABLE 22.—NUMBER AND PER CENT OF WOMEN RECEIVING LESS THAN SPECIFIED WEEKLY RATES OF PAY (NOT INCLUDING COMMISSIONS AND PREMIUMS), AS REPORTED BY 620 WOMEN EMPLOYED IN DEPARTMENT AND OTHER RETAIL STORES IN 6 INDIANA CITIES.

		Aver-			Wo	men re	ceivin	g week	ly rate	of—		
Cities.	Total women.	age weekly rate of pay.	Un- der \$3.	Un- der \$4.	Un- der \$5.	Un- der \$6.	Un- der \$7.	Un- der \$8.	Un- der \$9.	Un- der \$10.	Un- der \$12.	\$12 or over.
Indianapolis: Number Per cent	270 100. 0	\$7.42	8 2:96	45 16. 67	85 31. 48	103 38. 15	142 52.59	165 61. 11	189 70.00	201 74. 44	229 84. 81	41 15. 19
Number Per cent Fort Wayne:	52 100. 0	8.25	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	3, 85	9 17. 31	25.00	$\frac{22}{42.31}$	28 53. 85	$\frac{32}{61.54}$	35 67. 31	41 78.85	11 21. 15
Number	53 100.0	8.48			1 .		19 35. 85		ì		79. 25	20. 75
Number Per cent Evansville:	99 100.0	7.54		l	l	t	45 45. 45	ł	67. 68	75.76	81. 82	18. 18
Number	124 100.0	6.33	6 4.84	1	33. 87	ł	62.90	73.39	1		114 91. 94	8.06
Number	100.0	7.38		13.64		22. 73	54.55	59.09	63.64	77.27	95. 45	4.55
Total: Number Per cent	1 620 100. 0	7.38	18 2.90	86 13. 87	168 27. 10	228 36. 77	318 51. 29	378 60. 97	433 6 9 . 84	465 75.00	528 85. 16	92 14.84

¹ Of the 711 women, 91 did not report rate of pay.

66172°-Bull. 160-14--3

TABLE 23.—PER CENT OF WOMEN WHOSE AVERAGE FULL-TIME WEEKLY EARNINGS (INCLUDING COMMISSIONS AND PREMIUMS), AS REPORTED BY 711 INDIVIDUALS EMPLOYED IN DEPARTMENT AND OTHER RETAIL STORES IN 6 CITIES, WERE LESS THAN SPECIFIED AMOUNTS.

		Aver-	Per cent earning weekly									
Cities.	Women report- ing.	age weekly earn- ings.	Un- der \$3.	Un- der \$4.	Un- der \$5.	Un- der \$6.	Un- der \$7.	Un- der \$8.	Un- der \$9.	Un- der \$10.	Un- der \$12.	\$12 and over.
Indianapolis Terre Haute Evansville Fort Wayne South Bend. La Fayette. Total	314 104 126 58 63 26	1 \$8.03 7.71 2 6.38 8.60 8.72 7.22 7.76	3.5 3.8 2.4 1.6	16.2 12.5 22.2 1.7 6.3 11.5	30.3 26.9 37.3 12.1 19.0 11.5	36.6 37.5 50.0 24.1 30.2 26.9	46.5 46.2 66.7 36.2 38.1 57.7	56. 4 57. 7 74. 6 46. 6 52. 4 65. 4	65.6 67.3 81.0 58.6 58.7 65.4	71.3 76.9 84.1 60.3 66.7 80.8	81.8 81.7 92.1 77.6 77.8 96.2	18.2 18.3 7.9 22.4 22.2 3.8 16.5

Including average weekly earnings of 17 whose specified rates of pay were not reported.
 Including average weekly earnings of 3 whose specified rates of pay were not reported.
 Including 20 whose specified rates of pay were not reported.

It should be remembered, in studying the table showing rates reported by the employers, that these are flat rates and do not include commissions or premiums received by a number of saleswomen. Just how far the commission system has spread and just what effect it has on the earnings of saleswomen is discussed in detail on pages 37 to 39. For the proper understanding of Table 21, however, it should be said that there were 665 saleswomen who were receiving commissions, according to the pay rolls submitted for a representative week, and that while the earnings of these were materially affected by the commission system, as is shown later, they constitute but 11 per cent of the total number of women employed in the stores included in the investigation, and the amount earned in commissions, if distributed among the total number of women employed, would be but 27 cents per person. In other words, Table 21 showing classified weekly rates of pay, i. e., uninfluenced by commissions, bonuses, premiums, etc., represents practically the maximum which could be earned in a representative week by nearly 90 per cent of all the women.1

Table 22 summarizes the reports from 620 of the 711 individuals reporting as to flat weekly rates of pay. Table 26 shows that 95 of the saleswomen (who alone are affected by the system) received commissions during a part or the whole of the year covered by the investigation. This constitutes about 15 per cent of the 620 women individually scheduled. This discrepancy between the reports of employers and employees (11 per cent and 15 per cent) is only apparently substantial. In reality it is so inconsiderable as to render

¹ The influence of the P. M.'s (i. e., premiums on high-grade or unsalable stock) upon the rates of pay when all the women on the pay roll are considered is insignificant. These earnings are not only sporadic, uncertain, and arbitrary, but averaged only about 33 cents a week when distributed over the total number of women employed.

the figures from employers and employees mutually corroborative, for, as heretofore stated, the schedule gathering was limited to 6 of the 10 cities included in the entire investigation, and only in these 6 cities (excepting Hammond) had the commission system gained any foothold at all. It should be kept clearly in mind, however, that these 6 cities are, with one exception, the largest of the 10 cities included in the investigation and the largest in the State; that from the evidence at hand 1 the commission system has not as yet been introduced in the retail stores of the smaller cities of the State: that the small cities, while severally employing fewer women, nevertheless far outnumber the cities of the size included in the investigation and that therefore the reports on the proportion of women receiving commissions as submitted by employers in the entire 10 cities are unquestionably more representative of the wage basis prevailing in the mercantile establishments of the State than the corresponding reports of either employers or employees from the 6 cities where alone, with one exception, the commission system had gained a foothold. thermore, there is material evidence at hand that the commission system, while gaining, has not as yet very materially influenced the total earnings of all women in the department and other retail stores in the 10 cities included in this investigation, nor even in the 6 cities where it alone has made headway. Such evidence is disclosed by comparing Tables 21 and 22, summarizing the weekly rates of pay as reported by employers and by employees, with Table 23, showing the average weekly earnings as reported by the 711 women individually scheduled. It should be borne in mind that the earnings data secured from individual women (Table 23) included rates of pay and all supplemental earnings from commissions and "P. M.'s." A comparative study of these tables will reveal the following significant facts:

1. Approximately half of the women receive weekly rates of pay of less than \$7, according to the figures for the entire 10 cities as well as those for the 6 in which the commission system had made some headway and in which individual schedules were taken, the variation from an exact 50 per cent being less than 4 points in the pay roll reports and less than 2 points in the individual reports. Although the reports of employers and employees as to the proportion receiving rates of pay of less than \$7 deviate from the median line in opposite directions, the employers in the 6 cities reporting 46.3 per cent and the employees 51.3, the difference between the two is but 5 points—approximately 10 per cent. The discrepancy is not very material, especially in view of the fact that the per cents for individuals is based upon 620 reports while that for the employers is based upon more than 5,000.

¹ Aside from the fact that in the smaller cities included in the investigation the commission system was not in use, there were a considerable number of individuals scheduled who had worked a part of the year in small cities not included in the 10, and in all such cases the wage basis was a flat rate.

- 2. Table 23, which includes both rates of pay and all supplemental earnings from commissions and premiums as reported by 711 individuals, shows that 48.9 per cent were earning less than \$7 a week. This is 2.6 points more than the per cent receiving weekly rates of pay of less than \$7 as reported by the employers in the 6 cities to which individual schedule gathering was confined, and but 2.4 points, or 4.7 per cent, less than the per cent getting rates of less than \$7 a week as reported by the individuals.
- 3. The average weekly rate of pay as shown by the pay rolls for the 5,036 women in the 6 cities differs by 18 cents from the average earnings as reported by the 711 individuals interviewed in the same cities, and by but 12 cents from the average rate of pay for the 5,849 women in the 10 cities.¹ In both cases the average rate is higher than the average earnings.
- 4. The average rates of pay and the average earnings as reported by the individuals differed by 38 cents a week. The average rates of pay without supplemental earnings from commissions, etc., and the average rates of pay plus such supplemental earnings, according to the reports of employers in the 6 cities to which individual schedule gathering was confined, differed by slightly more than 29 cents.

These facts furnish conclusive evidence of the truth of the statement made heretofore, viz, that the commission system, while growing, has not as yet materially affected the earnings of the women in department and other retail stores of Indiana when the whole number are under consideration.

Three factors immediately present themselves as bearing on earnings: First, the occupations; second, the age; and, third, the experience of the individuals. As the employers did not report on either the age or experience of their employees, the employers' information as to rates of pay can be classified only according to the occupations. Of the 5,857 women for whom wage data were reported by employers in the 10 cities, approximately 61 per cent were saleswomen, 17 per cent were in the alteration or millinery workrooms, 10 per cent were cash girls, wrappers, etc., 9 per cent were in the office, and 2 per cent were in miscellaneous occupations. The table below will show that there were no material differences in the per cents of women in each occupation as reported by employers in the 6 cities in which individual schedules were secured. Of the 711 individuals reporting 69.6 per cent were saleswomen, 9 per cent were in the workrooms. 9.1 per cent were cash girls, wrappers, etc., 10.7 per cent were in the offices, and 1.6 per cent were in other miscellaneous occupations.

¹ That the average rate of pay for all women uninfluenced by commissions is higher than the average earnings including commissions, etc., reported by individuals, is explained by the fact that the employers' report includes under "Other employees" a number of buyers whose rates of pay are naturally high, while among the individuals reporting there was but 1 holding a position properly described as "buyer."

The discrepancies between the proportion of saleswomen included among individuals scheduled and the proportions shown on the pay rolls for a representative week are offset to some extent by the differences in the proportions of alteration women shown in each set of figures.

TABLE 24.—NUMBER AND PER CENT OF WOMEN IN EACH OCCUPATION GROUP IN DEPARTMENT AND OTHER RETAIL STORES, AS REPORTED BY INDIVIDUALS AND AS SHOWN BY PAY ROLLS.

	Women reported on—										
Occupation groups.		ridual lules.	Pay rolls for 6 cities.		Pay for 10	rolls cities.					
	Num- ber.	Per cent.	Num- ber.	Per cent.	Num- ber.	Per cent.					
Cash girls, messengers, bundle wrappers, inspectors, and stock girls Saleswomen. Alteration and millinery workers Office help (clerical). Other employees, including department heads and buyers Total.	65 495 64 76 11	9.1 69.6 9.0 10.7 1.6	528 3,034 908 470 104 5,044	10. 4 60. 2 18. 0 9. 3 2. 1	611 3,589 994 543 120 5,857	10. 4 61. 3 17. 0 9. 3 2. 0					

EARNINGS OF SALESWOMEN-COMMISSIONS AND PREMIUMS.

Until recently the system of pay for saleswomen has been almost universally a flat weekly rate. Within the last few years, however, the commission system has made some headway and promises to be the prevailing system of the future, though, as heretofore indicated, it has not as yet developed to such proportions as to affect materially the earnings of department-store women as a whole. Five years ago this system was very exceptional. The present study covering 10 cities in Indiana, several of which were small cities where such changes might be expected to come slowly, revealed the fact that practically 18 per cent of the establishments paid regular commissions to a number of their saleswomen. In Indianapolis 25 per cent of the stores reported commissions, but in the smaller cities the system appears to have gained little or no foothold as yet.

The most common method of paying commissions is best described by illustration: A woman may be receiving \$8 per week in a department where the average selling cost is fixed at 4 per cent of the gross sales, which would mean that her sales average \$200 a week. Very possibly she drops below this average during some weeks and may exceed it considerably at times. If she is put on a commission basis and given, for example, \$6 and 1 per cent on all her sales, her sales must equal \$200 to earn \$8. If her sales fall below, so do her earnings, but if her sales amount to \$250 she gets 1 per cent on the extra \$50, or 50 cents, while she has at the same time brought her selling cost to the firm below 4 per cent. The other system of fixing flat rates and commissions consists in allowing a saleswoman a commission

on all sales in excess of those required to bring the cost of her flat rate within the allotted per cent. For example, if a woman's flat wage is \$10 per week and the selling cost in her department is fixed at 3 per cent, she is expected to maintain an average gross sales of \$333.33 per week. Usually if she falls below this figure either her position or her rate of pay is in danger. If she exceeds \$333.33 per week, she may be allowed a commission of 1 or 2 per cent, and sometimes more, on all such excess sales. The same principle is involved in the method adopted by a large establishment in Indiana, but is given much more adequate and logical expression because the flat rates and commissions are based upon the records of average salaries and average sales for the entire year. Thus, in a department where the selling cost has averaged 3 per cent, the woman whose sales average \$250 per week would receive \$7.50 as her flat rate. A record was kept of all her She was given at the end of each commission period 3 per cent on all sales which were in excess of the average of \$250 per week. this method she might fall short one week and exceed in the next by just enough to maintain her average, the arrangement allowing a certain flexibility for the ebb and flow of trade. If she persistently fell below \$250 a week, her flat rate would be lowered if her position was not jeopardized.

The following tables show the rates of pay for saleswomen only as reported by employers in the entire 10 cities, and as reported by both employers and employees in the 6 cities where individual schedules were taken. They also show the rates of pay as affected by commissions and P. M.'s, and finally they reveal the average weekly earnings as reported by 495 individual saleswomen scheduled.

A glance at Table 25 will reveal the fact that practically the same proportion of saleswomen are getting specified rates of pay in the 6 cities to which individual schedule gathering was confined as the employers report for the entire 10 included in the investigation. The average rate of pay for the saleswomen is 12 cents higher in the 6 cities than the average in the entire 10. On the whole, the differences are so slight, therefore, that they will not figure as an important factor in this discussion.

To judge of the value of Table 25 it must be clearly understood to what extent flat rates are influenced by the commission system. As has been stated, 665 saleswomen, or less than a fifth of the total number of saleswomen reported for the 10 cities by the employers, received commissions. (In the 6 cities in which individual schedules were taken the proportion is still less than a fifth.) While 40 per cent of the 665 women receiving commissions were in one establishment, the others were distributed among 19 stores that employed normally nearly 1,100 saleswomen, or approximately one-third of the total number of saleswomen in the 140 establishments included in the investigation. This measures, according to the reports of the employers, the

headway which the commission system had made as well as the probabilities for the immediate future. For, while the pay rolls showed that 665 actually received commissions as part of their compensations, the wage basis for the entire 1,116 saleswomen in these stores is in all probability undergoing a gradual transformation by the extension of the commission system. However, it should be kept clearly in mind that at the time of the collection of this material less than one-fifth of the saleswomen in the 140 stores covered were reported by the employers as having received commission money during the period covered by the investigation.

Table 27 shows that of the 495 saleswomen personally interviewed 19.2 per cent were receiving commissions. Table 26 shows that. according to the employers' reports, the commissions paid would increase the amount paid in rates of pay-in case there were no offsetting losses-for all the saleswomen in the 20 stores using the system by an average of \$1.481 a week. The corresponding data (Table 27) from saleswomen individually scheduled show that the average earnings, which include not only commissions but all other earnings, exceed the average rate of pay by 76 cents. This discrepancy of 72 cents, while material, is doubtless accounted for by the fact that some of the employers included bonuses in their reports on commissions. Though not paid to many women, these bonuses run sometimes into such large amounts that they materially affect the average for a comparatively small number even when they are not so numerous as to exert any appreciable influence on the groups earning specified amounts.

RATES OF PAY COMPARED WITH EARNINGS.

The following tables show that, while according to reports of employers and employees, a little more than half of the women were receiving rates of pay of less than \$7 a week, 48 per cent of the saleswomen, according to the individual reports, were earning less than this amount. This difference is not great, but it shows the influence of commissions, because the commissions are very frequently introduced at these rates.

The per cent getting rates of pay of \$10 and over, according to both employers' and employees' reports, is practically the same as the proportion earning \$10 and over a week.

The average flat weekly rate of pay for all saleswomen in the six cities in which individual schedules were secured, was \$7.56 according to employers and \$7.38 according to reports of employees.

The actual earnings, including all increments from commissions, etc., as reported by individual saleswomen, was \$8.14 a week. The

¹ These figures should not be confused with those showing the influence of the commission system upon the total number of saleswomen. The saleswomen under consideration here are the 1,100 in the 20 commission stores.

tables below show that the commissions, according to employers' reports, would raise the rate of pay for all saleswomen in the six cities, if there were no compensating losses, to \$8.05, or within 9 cents of the amount reported by employees. The P. M.'s (premiums for selling certain grades of stock) would affect the discrepancy a little, as Table 28 shows. It should be said, however, that while it was in a large number of cases impossible to separate the amounts paid in commissions and the amounts paid in P. M.'s, the P. M.'s are arbitrary and uncertain payments and not to be counted as a source of measureable income throughout the year. Furthermore, in the reports from individuals in the cases where P. M.'s and commissions could be separated, the P. M.'s were inconsiderable. Just what effect these sporadic earnings would have on the rates of pay for all saleswomen, however, is shown in Table 28, which summarizes such information as the employers could furnish on the subject.

TABLE 25.—CLASSIFIED WEEKLY RATES OF PAY OF SALESWOMEN EMPLOYED IN 140 DEPARTMENT AND OTHER RETAIL STORES IN 10 CITIES, AS SHOWN BY ESTABLISHMENT PAY ROLLS FOR A REPRESENTATIVE WEEK.

[The rates here given do not include commissions on sales saleswomen.]	
--	--

	Estab-		•	Wome	n recei	ving w	eekly :	rate of	_		m	Aver-
Cities.	lish- ments repre- sented.	Un- der \$4.	\$4 to \$4.99.	\$5 to \$5.99.	\$6 to \$6.99.	\$7 to \$7.99.	\$8 to \$8.99.	\$9 to \$9,99.	\$10 to \$11.99.	\$12 and over.	Total sales- women.	weekly rate of pay.
Indianapolis: Number Per cent Terre Haute:	28 100. 0	13 0. 9	251 17. 7	155 10. 9	281 19. 7	151 10.6	177 12. 5	73 5. 1	114 8. 0	208 14.6	1,423 100.0	\$7.66
Number Per cent Evansville:	13 100.0	29 7.1	56 13. 7	45 11.0	68 16. 6	52 12. 7	10.0	19 4.7	47 11.5	12.7	409 100. 0	7.51
Number Per cent Fort Wayne:	100.0	67 18. 9	81 22.8	40 11.3	40 11.3	$\begin{array}{c} 25 \\ 7.0 \end{array}$	26 7.3	2.0	31 8. 7	30 8.5	1 355 100. 0	6.32
Number Per cent South Bend:	100.0		6. 7	61 17. 7	66 19.1	12. 2	12.8	26 7.5	44 12. 7	39 11.3	345 100.0	7.74
Number Per cent La Fayette:	15 100.0		20 7.4	10. 0	45 16. 7	33 12.3	10.7	27 10.0	26 9.6	23. 3	270 100.0	8.85
Number Per cent	100.0	4.7	28 12.1	53 22.8	18.1	24 10. 4	6.9	3.0	24 10. 4	27 11.6	232 100.0	7.19
Total, 6 cities: Number Per cent	100 71.4	120 4.0	459 15.1	381 12.6	542 17.9	327 10.8	333 11.0	159 5. 2	286 9.4	419 13. 8	3, 034 100. 0	7. 56
Muncie: Number Per cent Hammond:		20 12.3	30 18. 5	27 16. 7	26 16.0	9 5. 6	10 6. 2	7 4.3	18 11.1	15 9.3	162 100.0	6.82
Number Per cent Richmond:	100.0	2.8	5. 4	34 23. 1	45 30.6	23 15. 6	12 8. 2	1.4	10 6.8	6.1	147 100.0	6. 75
Number Per cent New Albany:	100.0	13 8.4	36 23. 4	15 9. 7	17 11.0	15 9.8	15 9.8	5. 2	23 14.9	12 7.8	154 100.0	6.08
Number Per cent	100.0	15 16. 4	24 26. 1	10 10.8	9.8	6.5	9.8	3.3	11 11.9	5 5.4	92 100.0	6. 20
Grand total: Number Per cent	140 100. 0	172 4.8	557 15. 5	467 13. 0	639 17. 8	380 10.6	379 10.6	179 5. 0	348 9. 7	460 12. 8	1 3, 589 100. 0	7.44

¹ One establishment employing 8 women did not report individual earnings,

TABLE 28.—WEEKLY RATES OF PAY FOR SALEBWOMEN IN 135 ESTABLISHMENTS AS AFFECTED BY THE COMMISSION SYSTEM, ACCORDING TO EMPLOYERS' RE-PORTS.

		All establ	ishments.		Establishments paying commissions and reporting amounts paid.						
Cities.	Number.	Number of sales- women repre- sented,	Average weekly rate of pay without com- missions.	Average weekly rate of pay with commissions.	Number.	Number of sales- women repre- sented,	Average weekly rate of pay without com- missions.	Average weekly rate of pay with com- missions,			
Indianapolis. Terre Haute. Evansville. Fort Wayne. South Bend. La Fayette. Total, 6 cities. Muncie. Richmond. New Albany.	22 13 13 8 95 13 14	1,366 409 355 336 239 232 2,937 162 154	\$7.66 7.51 6.32 7.69 9.05 7.19 7.56 6.82 6.98 6.20	\$8.53 7.62 6.37 7.70 9.74 7.26 8.05 6.82 6.98 6.20	5 3 2 1 6 2	557 118 83 6 180 98	\$7.63 6.92 5.90 8.67 9.86 7.04	\$9. 77 7, 30 6, 13 9, 33 10, 76 7, 21 9, 13			
Hammond	4	147	6.75	7. 50	1	74	7. 16	8,66			
Grand total	1 135	3,492	7.43	7.86	1 20	2 1, 116	7.62	9. 10			

Not including 5 establishments which employed 97 saleswomen and paid 52 of them on commission plan, but which did not report amount paid in commissions.
 Two of these establishments were in Indianapolis, 2 of these only 665 received commissions.

TABLE 27.—NUMBER AND PER CENT OF SALESWOMEN IN DEPARTMENT AND OTHER RETAIL STORES OF 6 CITIES WHO REPORTED EACH CLASSIFIED WEEKLY RATE OF PAY, NUMBER AND PER CENT RECEIVING COMMISSIONS, AND AVERAGE WEEKLY RATE OF PAY AND EARNINGS.

		N	ımber	and po	r cent	of wor	nen re	ceiving	-		Aver-	Re-	Aver-
Cities.	Un- der \$4.		\$5 to \$5.99.			\$8 to \$8.99.		\$10 to \$11.99	\$12 and over.	Total re- port- ing.	week- ly rate of pay.	ceiv- ing com- mis- sions.	age week ly earn- ings,
Indianapolis:													
Number	4	34	13	30	18	14	. 8	19	29	1 169	\$7.99	66	\$8.95
Per cent Terre Haute:	2.4	20.1	7.7	17.8	10. 7	8.3	4.7	11. 2	17. 2	100.0	¦	39.1	
Number	9	8	14	8	9	8	7	5	10	2 78	7. 23	5	7.30
Per cent Evansville:	11.5	10.3	17.9	10.3	11.5	10.3	9.0	6.4	12.8	100.0		6.4	
Number	17	15	14	16	9	5	3	6	6	3 91	6, 25	3	6.29
Per cent	18.7	16. 5	15.4	17.6	9.9	5. 5	3.3	6.6	6.6	100.0		3, 3	
Fort Wayne: Number]	7	1	R	7	7	1	6	8	4 48	7.98	4	8.10
Per cent		14.6	8.3	8 16. 7	14.6	14.6	2, 1	12.5	16. 7	100.0	1.30	8.3	3. 10
South Bend:	1			7	_				_		- 40		0.45
Number Per cent		6 17, 6	8.8	20, 6	5 14. 7	11.8	2.9	8.8	5 14, 7	5 34 100. 0	7.48	17 50, 0	8. 47
La Fayette:		2,	ĺ			11.0						00.0	
Number Per cent	16. 7		5.6	7 38, 9	5. 6	5.6	2 11, 1	3 16, 7		6 18 100. 0	6. 79		6.71
rer cem	10.7		-0.0	30. 9	3.0	J. 0	11. 1	10.7		100.0			
Total:	١		١								·		
Number Per cent	33 7. 5	70 16. 0	11. 2	76 17.4	49 11. 2	39 8.9	5, 0	42 9, 6	58 13. 2	7 438 100. 0	7. 38	95 8 19. 2	8. 14
rer cent	""	10.0	11.2	11.4	11.2	0.0	0.0	9.9	10.2	200.0	1	10.2	

¹ Not including 39 who did not report rate of pay.
2 Not including 1 who did not report rate of pay.
3 Not including 3 who did not report rate of pay.
4 Not including 3 who did not report rate of pay.
5 Not including 6 who did not report rate of pay.
6 Not including 4 who did not report rate of pay.
7 Not including 5 who did not report rate of pay.
8 Based on total number of saleswomen reporting, namely, 495.

Table 27 shows the influence of supplemental commission earnings upon the average rates of pay of all saleswomen. As less than onefifth of the saleswomen received commissions, the average rates of pay represent the maximum that four out of five saleswomen could earn. Although it was not possible to separate amounts paid in commissions from that paid in P. M.'s when both were reported by individuals, whenever P. M.'s alone were reported--and there were less than a dozen of such cases—the amounts were negligible. Of the 95 saleswomen who received commissions, 84 reported both rates of pay and average weekly earnings. For these 84 the average rate of pay was \$7.64; the average earnings \$9.76, or an increase of \$2.12.

This is remarkably in accord with the showing on Table 26, which summarizes the reports from employers on the same subject. Although there were 1,116 saleswomen in the 20 stores adopting the commission system, affecting the average rates of pay by \$1.48 a week, as is there shown, if the amount paid in commissions each week during the year was distributed only among the 665 women whom the pay rolls for a representative week showed to be actually receiving commissions, the amount per saleswoman would have been \$2.48 a week, or 36 cents more than the individual reports show. The discrepancy would be increased somewhat by the P. M.'s, but, as heretofore explained, the results would not be materially changed.

TABLE 28.-NUMBER AND PER CENT OF ESTABLISHMENTS PAYING P. M.'S AND THE AVERAGE WEEKLY AMOUNT PAID IN P. M.'S PER SALESWOMAN.

		Total sales-	Establis	h me nts r	eporting	P. M.'s.	Establi repo		
	Total				Salesw	omen.	P. M.'s	paid in s (sepa- m com-	Aver- age weekly
Cities.	estab- lish- ments.		Num-	Per cent of			ing 1	ıs) dur- 1913.	amount paid in P. M.'s
			ber.	total,	Num- ber.	Per cent of total.	Num- ber.	Sales- women repre- sented.	per sales- woman.
Indianapolis Terre Haute Evansville Fort Wayne South Bend La Fayette	22 14	1,423 409 355 345 270 232	3	57. 1 38. 5 22. 7 42. 9 20. 0 50. 0	126 68 61	74.8 59.7 35.5 19.7 22.6 60.8	5 5 3 2	245 244 57 7	\$0, 48 . 17 . 23 . 57
Total, 6 cities. Muncie. Hammond Richmond. New Albany.	1 100 13	3,034 162 147 154 92	`	39. 0 15. 4 50. 0	1,704	56. 2 41. 4 80. 3	19 1 1 1	694 21 44 52	.31
Grand total	140	3,589	2.14	31.4	1,941	54.1		811	

["P. M.'s" are premiums on sales of old stock or of high-priced stock.]

Total for 6 cities in which individual schedules were taken.
 Fourteen of these establishments pay commissions also and are included in Table 26.
 Five of these establishments pay commissions also and are included in Table 26.

Table 29.—CLASSIFIED WEEKLY EARNINGS OF 495 SALESWOMEN EMPLOYED IN DEPARTMENT AND OTHER RETAIL STORES IN 6 CITIES.

		Sales	wome	n whos	e week	dy ear	nings v	vere		m 1	Aver-
Cities.	Un- der \$4.	\$4 to \$4.99.		\$6 to \$6.99.	\$7 to \$7.99.	\$8 to \$8.99.		\$10 to \$11.99.	\$12 and over.	Total sales- women.	age weekly earn- ings.
Indianapolis:											
Number	5	32	14	25	24	16	16	24	41	197	\$8.95
Per cent	2.5	16.2	7.1	12.7	12. 2	8.1	8.1	12, 2	20.8	100.0	l
Terre Haute:	_		1			_	٠.,		_		
Number Per cent	9 11.4	13 16, 4	9 11.4	8 10.1	10 12.7	10.1	$\frac{10}{12.7}$	3.8	9 11.4	79 100. 0	7.30
Evansville:	11.4	10.4	11.4	10.1	12. (10.1	12.1	0.0	11.4	100.0	
Number	20	17	12	16	7	6	2	4	8	92	6, 29
Per cent	21.7	18.5	13.0	17.4	7.6	6.5	2.2	4.3	8.7	100.0	
Fort Wayne:	_			_			ł _	_ '			
Number Per cent	1 1.9	6 11. 5	7 13.5	7 13. 5	11.5	13.5	1.9	13.5	10 19. 2	100.0	8. 10
South Bend:	1.9	11.5	15.5	10. 9	11. 3	13. 3	1.9	10. 0	19.2	100.0	
Number		7	6	3	7	4	2	3	S	40	8.47
Per cent		7 17. 5	15.0	7.5	17.5	10.0	5.0	7.5	20.0	100.0	
La Fayette:	_	1			_			_			
Number	3		3	8	3		2	10 3		22	6.71
Per cent	13.6		13.6	36.4	13.6		9.1	13. 7	• • • • • •	100.0	
Total:											
Number	38	75	51	67	57	41	33	44	76	482	8.14
Per cent	7.9	15.6	10.6	13.9	11.8	8.5	6.8	9.1	15.7	100.0	

EARNINGS BY DEPARTMENTS AND OCCUPATION GROUPS.

Saleswomen.

That different departments have at present different requirements as to experience and ability and that they pay very different wages is recognized by both employers and employees. In the departments where the margin of profit and the gross sales are small and the experience required more or less limited, the wages are correspondingly low. Where the sales run high and the margin of profit is larger, and the requirements as to skill more exacting, the department pays higher wages and "can afford" to do so and still keep its selling cost low. But the wear and tear on the saleswomen is often as much in the low-paid as in the high-paid departments, and the cost of living probably does not vary to any extent except, perhaps, in the suit department, where the saleswoman must usually dress better than the girl behind the counter. The following table, compiled from information given by individuals as to their weekly earnings and average gross sales, shows the relative earnings of individual women in the various departments. It shows the highest paid department paying more than twice the wages of the lowest paid departments. These high-paying departments are, to be sure, getting the older women with the most experience, while the departments that pay low wages take the younger women who have had less experience.

The obvious conclusion that operating expenses would be reduced by employing more experienced women in all departments is not in accord with the facts, however. There are departments wherein the effect of skill and experience is limited by the nature of the goods. Experience or skill in persuasion are not large factors in swelling the daily sales in such things as thread, needles, buttons, or hooks and eyes, and experience and skill in salesmanship would therefore be a "waste of power" in these departments. This situation brings into sharp relief a vital question, viz, where efficiency is not a considerable factor, what should determine the wage level?

TABLE 30.-AVERAGE EARNINGS, AGE, AND EXPERIENCE OF 483 SALESWOMEN, BY SPECIFIED DEPARTMENTS.

Departments.	Number of women.	Average weekly earnings.	Average years of age.	Average years of experi- ence.
Coats, suits, and skirts. Gloves. Millinery.	13	\$12, 84 11, 18 2 11, 00	32, 8 30, 7 30, 0	7. 7 9. 9 6. 4
Silks. Corsets Lace, embroideries, and trimmings. Books and stationery.	9 1 11 30	10. 81 3 9. 72 9. 31 10. 16	32. 2 30. 2 28. 6 26. 8	9. 8 12. 8 7. 3 4. 5
Toilet and hair goods. Dress goods. Muslin underwear.	11 6 14	9. 00 8. 90 8. 54	23. 4 31. 2 27. 2	3. 2 8. 2 6. 2
Leather goods. Waists and wash dresses. Jewelry. Neckwear and veilings.	14 15	8, 33 4 7, 73 7, 56 7, 52	22, 4 25, 5 22, 9 27, 5	7. 0 4. 2 4. 8 6. 4
Art goods. Domestic and wash goods. Hosiery and knit underwear. Bargain tables and special sales.	15 21 12	7. 40 7. 39 4 7. 26 6 7. 15	28. 9 25. 7 29. 7 25. 1	4.4 5.4 8.3 3.0
Candy Grocery Men's furnishings and umbrellas General saleswomen	5 8 5	7. 10 6 6. 83 6. 48 6. 27	26. 0 24. 3 30. 4 26. 0	5. 1 7 5. 1 3. 7 4. 4
Ribbons. Notions. 5 and 10 cent stores. Not reported.	1 27 99	5. 67 5. 66 4. 68 3 5. 53	22. 2 23. 0 3 19. 9 22. 8	3.7 5.0 2.1 5.8

Includes 1 who also buys.
 Reported for 14 only.
 Reported for 10 only.

Workrooms.

As the commission and premium systems affect the saleswomen only, and as the prevailing and average rate of pay for the stores in the 10 cities do not differ materially from those in the 6 from which individual schedules were secured, the general rates of pay of women in all other occupations as reported by employers may be compared directly with the actual full-time earnings reported by individuals. The women in the alteration or millinery workrooms, according to the employers' reports, were 17 per cent of the total number of women employed in the 140 establishments. Of the women personally interviewed, only 64, or 9 per cent, were in this group, but the average rates as reported by employers and earnings reported by individuals were very close, the former being \$9.72 (Table 28) and the latter \$9.79 (Table 29). According to both reports the largest group is that receiving \$12 and over, a marked contrast to the other occupations.

⁴ Reported for 20 only.
5 Reported for 11 only.
6 Reported for 6 only.

Reported for 7 only.
 Reported for 98 only.

The women here are also decidedly older than in any other occupation, the average being 31½ years.

TABLE 31.—CLASSIFIED WEEKLY RATES OF PAY OF WOMEN EMPLOYED IN ALTERATION AND MILLINERY WORKROOMS OF DEPARTMENT AND OTHER RETAIL STORES IN 10 CITIES, AS SHOWN BY PAY ROLLS FOR A REPRESENTATIVE WEEK.

	Estab- lish-			Wome	n recei	ving w	cekly	rates o	f—			Aver-	
Cities.	ments having work- rooms.	Un- der \$4.	\$4 to \$4.99.	\$5 to \$5, 99.	\$6 to \$6.99.	\$7 to \$7.99.	\$8 to \$8.99.	\$9 to \$9. 99.	\$10 to \$11.99.	\$12 and over.	Total women.	age rate of pay.	
Indianapolis:													
Number Per cent	19	8 1.4	10 1.8	19 3, 5	32	75	102 18, 7	82	87	130	545	\$9.99	
Terre Haute:	67. 9	1.4	1.8	3.5	5.9	13. S	13.7	15. 0	16.0	23. 9	100.0		
Number	7	2	l	2	12	21	4	15	16	19	91	9, 64	
Per cent	53, 8	2.2		2, 2	13. 2	23.1	4.4	16.5	17.6	20, 8	100.0		
Evansville:		١.		١ _		١	_	1.		١	[
Number Per cent	40.9	2.8	5.6	7.1	15 21, 1	11 15.5	9.9	5.6	12.7	14	71 100. 0	8, 55	
Fort Wayne:	40.9	2.8	3.6	/.1	21.1	15. 5	9.9	3. 6	12, 7	19. 7	100.0	· · · · · ·	
Number	10			1	3	17	13	8	16	12	. 70	9.66	
Per cent	71.4			1.4	4.3	24.3	18.6	11.4	22, 9	17. 1	100.0	0.00	
South Bend:	į .	ĺ											
Number	11		1.5	4.3	5 7.3	8	10	12	9	21	69	10, 86	
Per cent Muncie:	73.3		1.5	4.3	7.3	11.6	14.5	17.4	13.0	30.4	100.0	· · · · · ·	
Number	10	1	3	7	6	8	5	5	7	10	52	8.82	
Per cent	76. 9	1.9	5.8	13. 5	11, 5	15, 4	9.6	9.6	13.5	19. 2	100.0	0.02	
Hammond:		1		1	1	į	1						
Number	2	-		3			¦	2	1 1	4	10	12.00	
Per cent	50. 0			30.0				20.0	10, 0	40.0	100.0		
La Fayette: Number	7	3	2	6	15	111	8	2	8	7	62	8, 05	
Per cent	87.5	4.8	3. 2	9. 7	24. 2	17.8	12.9	3. 2	12.9	11.3	100.0	0,00	
Richmond:				1	1	1		1					
Number	. 8	}			1	6	1 1	1	1	6	16	10, 16	
Per cent	57.1] -			6. 25	37.5	6, 25	6. 25	6, 25	37.5	100.0		
New Albany: Number	3	•		1	2	1		2	1	1	8	8, 38	
Per cent	33.3			12.5	25. 0	12.5		25. 0	12.5	12.5	100, 0	0,00	
Total:								i					
Number	86	16	20	47	91	158	150	133	155	224	994	9. 72	
Per cent	61.4	1.6	2, 1	4.7	9, 1	15. 9	15, 1	13. 4	15.6	22.5	100.0	l 	

TABLE 32.—CLASSIFIED WEEKLY EARNINGS OF WOMEN EMPLOYED IN ALTERATION DEPARTMENT IN 6 CITIES, AS REPORTED BY EMPLOYEES.

		. Women whose weekly carnings were—												
Cities.	Un- der \$1.	\$4 to \$4.99	\$5 to \$5.99	\$6 to \$6.99	\$7 to \$7.99	\$8 to \$8.99	\$9 to \$9.99	\$10 to \$11.99	\$12 and over.	Not re- port- ed.	Total wom- en.	Aver- age weekly earn- ings.		
Indianapolis Terre Haute Evansvills Fort Wayne	2	1	2 1 3	32	2 2 2 2	5	2	4 1 3 1 2	7 8 1 2	1	22 12 16 3	\$9. 77 12. 28 7. 16 13. 60		
South BendLa Fayette							1	z	1		9	9, 33 12, 50		
Total: Number Per cent	3.1	3.1	9. 4	7.8	6 9.4	10.9	3 4. 7	11 17. 2	21 32. 8	1.6	64 100. 0	9. 79		

Cash girls, bundle wrappers, etc.

As would be expected, the earnings of this group are the lowest. From the report of the employers, 611, or 10.4 per cent, of the female employees are in this group. The ages of these girls range from 14

to 17 years, the average being 15. Their average rate of pay is \$3.81, almost half of them receiving from \$3 to \$3.99.

Of the employees interviewed, 65, or 9.1 per cent, were in this group of employees. The average weekly earnings reported by them was \$3.15 (see Table 30)—somewhat lower than the pay roll average. It may be stated here that in a number of instances girls in this group were interviewed who reported a lower wage than any reported by the store in which they were working. For example, in one store the lowest wage shown by the pay roll was \$3, while a number of bundle wrappers from that same store reported a weekly rate of \$2.40.

TABLE 33.—CLASSIFIED WEEKLY RATES OF PAY OF SPECIFIED FEMALE EMPLOYEES IN 140 DEPARTMENT AND OTHER RETAIL STORES IN 10 CITIES, AS SHOWN BY ESTABLISHMENT PAY ROLLS.

	Casl I	n girls. backers	, messe , inspe	engers, ectors,	bund and st	lle wra ock gir	ppers, ls.		e e m - yees.	Buyers and other employees.			
Cities.		Weekl	y rate	of pay.		Total	Aver-		Aver-		7)	Aver-	
	Un- der \$3.	\$3 to \$3.99	\$4 to \$4.99	\$5 to \$5.99	\$6 and over.	num- ber.	900	Num- ber.		Num- ber.	Range of rates of pay.	age rate of pay.	
Indianapolis Terre Haute. Evansville Fort Wayne. South Bend Muncie. Hammond La Fayette Richmond New Albany	6 43 3 20	198 29 14 3 39 2 11	\$2 14 6 2 17 1 14 2	16 11 1 1 6	26 5 1 3 18	328 102 24 7 65 41 33 2 1 8	\$3, \$5 3, 33 3, 31 4, 14 3, 66 4, 96 4, 44 4, 25 5, 00 3, 67		\$6,33 5,07 7,45 9,34 10,90 8,24 7,67 9,05 8,71 6,96	23	\$6. 00-\$76, 92 \$6. 00-\$50. 00 \$4. 00-\$30. 00 10. 00-40. 00 7. 00-26. 00 4. 00-25, 00 15. 00-30. 00 6. 00-13. 00	\$25. 87 19. 54 14. 59 18. 47 17. 08 15. 00 21. 60 10. 09 9. 83	
Total	74	301	138	38	60	611	3. 81	543	8, 53	120	4. 00-76. 92	19, 20	

Office and other employees.

Nine per cent of the women reported by employers and 11 per cent of the individuals interviewed were employed in the office force. The average rate of pay, as shown by pay-roll data, was \$8.53. (Table 30.) The individuals reported average earnings somewhat higher—\$9.23. (Table 31.) The average age of this group was 23 years.

In the small group shown in the table as "Other employees" (2 per cent for the employers and 1.5 per cent for the individuals) are gathered all the miscellaneous employees not heretofore considered, such as telephone operators, floor supervisors, store matrons, etc. In the pay-roll reports buyers are included in this group, but among the individuals no buyers were interviewed who were not also saleswomen and who would not therefore be classed in that group. This will account for the wide divergence in earnings, which, in view of this small number involved and the difference in classifications, is of no significance.

TABLE 34.—CLASSIFIED WEEKLY EARNINGS OF SPECIFIED FEMALES EMPLOYEES IN DEPARTMENT AND OTHER RETAIL STORES IN 6 CITIES, AS REPORTED BY EM-PLOYEES.

,	Cash (girls, m			dle wra: k girls.		nspec-		fice oyees.	Other employees.	
Cities.		Wee	kly earn	nings.		Total	Aver- weekly	Num-	Aver- age	Num-	Aver- age
	Under \$3.	\$3 to \$3.99.	\$4 to \$4.99.	\$5 to \$5.99.	\$6 to \$6.99	num- ber.	earn- ings.	ber.	weekly earn- ings.	ber.	weekly earn- ings.
Indianapolis. Terre Haute Evansville Fort Wayne South Bend La Fayette.	11 4 3	35	5			51 4 6	\$3. 24 2. 11 2. 85 3. 41	43 6 13 3 9 2	\$8. 95 8. 72 2 7. 78 12. 18 11. 95 7. 94	7 3	\$6. 86 2 4. 75 5. 00
Total: Number Per cent	19 29. 2	40 61. 6	9. 2			65 100. 0	3. 15	76	8 9. 23	11	² 6. 25

EARNINGS RELATED TO AGE AND EXPERIENCE.

Just what bearing age and experience have on the earnings of the women studied in Indiana is shown by the table following, in which the average earnings are given for 10 different age groups, by years of experience.

Table 35.-Average weekly earnings, by specified ages and years of ex-PERIENCE, AS REPORTED BY 684 WOMEN EMPLOYEES OF THE DEPARTMENT AND OTHER RETAIL STORES IN SIX CITIES.

						Ageg	roups.					
Years of experience.		14 and under 16.		16 and under 18.		and er 22.		and er 25.	25 and under 30.		30 and under 35.	
·	Num- ber.	Average earnings.	Num- ber.	Average earnings.	Num- ber.	A verage earnings.	Num- ber.	Average earnings.	Num- ber.	A ver- age earn- ings.	Num- ber.	A ver- age earn- ings.
Under 1 year		\$3.12	45	\$4. 25		\$5.74		\$5.28	7	\$6.19	6	\$7.2
l year	. 4	2.98	29	4.42	15	5.55	9	7.94	6	6, 12	5	6.5
years			14	4.09	22	5. 20	15	8, 66	6	9.51	5	7.5
years				3. 27	28	6.77	12	7.39	7	7.85	3	7.4
years				6. 17	25	6.63	7	7.47	3	7. 32	1 2	7.5
years			1	5.00	15	7.71	11	9. 15	15	7.84	7	9.5
o years					11	6.58	11	7.88	1 14	10.17	16	10.6
vears					7	6.43	6	7.86	4	9. 13	3	15. 2
3 years] 1	6. 35	18	8.57		13. 25	5	9.1
years							3	8.31	27	7.84	1	15.0
10 years						ļ	31	9.00		11.25	37	10.1
									13	11.28	2	9.7
2 years		1							15	12.43	2	15.0
3 years	<i>.</i>								6	11. 43	1	11.8
4 years	<i></i> .								1	11.00	3	12.5
l5 years				. <i></i>							17	10.5
l6 years											1	14.0
17 years				<i>.</i>							2	11.9
11 years]			1								
19 years					1							
ou vears						1					_	11.3
21 to 29 years									<i></i>	1		
30 years and over												
•	ļ	├ -	}		·]	 						l
Total	1 49	3.11	94	4.30	1 154	6. 26	4 94	7.83	5 113	9.59	6 70	9.9

Not including earnings of 5, not reported.
 Not including earnings of 1, not reported.
 Not including earnings of 6, not reported.

Not including 1 earnings not reported.
 Not including 1 buyer, salary \$50 per week.
 Not including 2 earnings not reported.
 Not including 3 earnings not reported.
 Not including 4 earnings not reported.
 Not including 4 earnings not reported, 2 experience not reported, and 1 buyer.
 Not including 5 earnings not reported and 1 experience not reported.

Table 35.—AVERAGE WEEKLY EARNINGS, BY SPECIFIED AGES AND YEARS OF EX-PERIENCE. AS REPORTED BY 684 WOMEN EMPLOYEES OF THE DEPARTMENT AND OTHER RETAIL STORES IN SIX CITIES-Concluded.

					Age gr	oups.				
Years of experience.	35 and under 40.			and er 50.	50 a unde	and er 60.		and er.	Total.	
	Num- ber.	Average earnings.	Num- ber.	Average earnings.	Num- ber.	Average earnings.	Num- ber.	Average earnings.	Num- ber.	Average earnings.
Under 1 year. 1 year. 2 years. 3 years. 4 years. 5 years. 6 years. 7 years. 8 years. 10 years. 11 years. 12 years. 13 years. 14 years. 15 years. 17 years. 18 years. 19 years. 19 years. 10 years. 11 years. 12 years. 13 years. 14 years. 15 years. 16 years. 17 years. 18 years. 19 years. 19 years. 19 years. 10 years. 11 years. 11 years. 12 years. 12 years. 13 years. 14 years. 15 years. 16 years. 17 years. 18 years. 19 years. 19 years. 10 years. 10 years.		\$11. 39 7. 92 8. 89 14. 00 12. 91 9. 22 10. 03 12. 89 12. 00 9. 22 16. 00 13. 14 11. 53 17. 96 11. 55 15. 00	66 22 21 25 14 4 23 22 22 21	\$8. 22 7. 50 9. 28 7. 50 13. 70 19. 12 15. 00 7. 98 11. 75 11. 00 17. 06 11. 75 10. 50 9. 63 12. 00 12. 74	2 1	9,50	1	\$20.00	1 155 71 2 58 5 55 3 45 5 6 2 39 4 18 6 35 2 11 6 8 2 11 6 8 2 11 6 8 2 11 6 8 3 6 3 6 3 6 3 6 3 6 3 6 3 6 3 6 3 6 3 6	\$4. 90 5. 44 6. 23 7. 73 7. 73 9. 28 8. 81 10. 03 9. 75 9. 05 11. 25 11. 00 13. 33 11. 54 10. 57 11. 93 13. 67 11. 93 13. 10. 23
30 years and over	2 52	11. 20	7 49	10.00	2 6	8. 21	3	17.00	8 684	13. 05 7. 74

¹ Not including 2 earnings not reported and 1 age not reported.

The influence of age is immediately apparent. The average earnings of the girls 14 to 16 years were only \$3.11, but with every succeeding age group the earnings steadily increased up to the group 40 to 49 years of age, whose earnings averaged \$11.62. Here they dropped, the average earnings of the group 50 and under 60 being \$10.23. As only 9 women are reported in this and in the remaining age group and as most of them were women of exceptional ability. in responsible positions, the averages can be of no real significance. The showing indicates, however, that between 40 and 49 years of age, if not before, the majority of women in the department or retail stores have reached the height of their earning power. It is true that the majority of women do not stay in the stores until they reach that age, and also that there are exceptional women over 45 years

Not including 2 earnings not reported and 1 age not reported.
 Not including 1 earnings not reported.
 Not including 2 earnings not reported.
 Not including 1 buyer and 1 age not reported.
 Not including 4 earnings not reported.
 Not including 1 age not reported.
 Not including 2 earnings not reported and 1 experience not reported.
 Not including 2 earnings not reported, 4 age not reported, 4 experience not reported, and 1 buyer whose salary was \$50 per week.

¹ Although not brought out by this table, a study of the schedules of the women in the group 40 and under 50 years of age shows that the average earnings of those 40 and under 45 were \$12.31, while the earnings of these 45 and under 50 dropped to \$9.74.

who continue to maintain their earnings or even increase them up to 55 or 60 years of age.

Looking at the younger age groups, it will be seen that not until the group 22 and under 25 years of age is reached do the earnings reach the average which is given for all women considered, and not until the age group 25 and under 30 is reached do the average earnings reach \$9.

When the earnings are considered in relation to experience, a general increase is shown with increasing years of experience, but with some irregularities. These irregularities are probably due in part to the small numbers. The fact that the increase of earnings with years of experience appears less regular in this table than the increase of earnings according to age groups may be due largely, or even entirely, to the fact that the earnings according to experience are presented by single years, while earnings according to age are presented by age groups of 2, 3, 4, 5, and 10 years, which would, of course, tend to smooth out irregularities.

The relation between the earnings and years of experience by age groups is not evident. The numbers that go to make up the table are too small, however, to be used as evidence that no direct relation exists between the earnings and the experience in any given age group. The total does show more significant figures, as here the earnings increase for each year of experience up to five years. It may be said of all age groups, including the total, that the second five years of experience show uniformly higher earnings than the first, and the third five years higher earnings than the second.

DURATION OF EMPLOYMENT AND UNEMPLOYMENT.

The average number of weeks worked in department and other retail stores reported by store employees was 39½. The different cities did not vary much from this average, the entire range being only from 37½ weeks to 43½ weeks. Wherever vacation with pay was reported, the number of weeks for which pay was received have been included in the number of weeks worked. Of the 711 women reported, 22 per cent were women who had had less than one year's experience in stores. This is 4 per cent higher than the per cent of women of less than a year's experience in the garment factories. These women reporting less than a year's experience in the stores were not exclusively the younger ones, the ages ranging from 14 to 49 years, and nearly 25 per cent being women over 21 years of age. Of the women reporting one or more years of experience, approximately 78 per cent worked 44 or more weeks. It seems that the stores had a larger proportion of inexperienced workers than the garment factories, but offered more steady employment to those who remained in the employment.

66172°-Bull. 160-14---4

The following table shows the number of women of more than one year's experience working specified number of weeks:

TABLE 36.—WEEKS OF EMPLOYMENT DURING THE YEAR, AS REPORTED BY 554 WOMEN HAVING ONE OR MORE YEARS OF EXPERIENCE IN DEPARTMENT AND OTHER RETAIL STORES IN 6 CITIES.

		With	Num	ber repo	rting spe	cified w	eeks of o	employn	ent dur	ing the	y c ar.
Cities.	Num- ber re- port- ing.	1 or more years' ex- peri- ence.	Under 26 weeks.	26 and under 32 weeks.	32 and under 36 weeks.	36 and under 40 weeks.	40 and under 44 weeks.	44 and under 48 weeks.	48 and under 50 weeks.	50 to 52 weeks.	Weeks not re- ported,
Indianapolis Terre Haute E vansville Fort Wayne South Bend La Fayette	331 104 129 58 63 26	236 82 111 46 56 23	24 3 9 4 3 2	4 3 3 4	5 1 1 1	8 3 1 1 1 2	22 3 5 1 3	16 10 12 1 13 1	90 33 47 22 23 6	66 26 32 12 11 10	1 i 2
Total: Number. Per cent.	711 100.0	554 77.9	45 8.1	15 2.7	9 1.6	16 2.9	34 6.1	53 9.6	221 39. 9	157 28. 4	0.7

Of the 711 women reporting in the stores, a considerable number had begun to work for the first time during the year covered by this investigation. In figuring the number of possible weeks of work, as shown on the table below, all the weeks in the year prior to any individual's first employment have been omitted, and such individuals, if they had no other unemployment, have not been considered unemployed. This leaves for the 711 women a total of 33,929½ weeks to be accounted for by employment in stores, by other employment, or by unemployment. Eighty-two and nine-tenths per cent of this time was spent in employment in stores, 3.2 per cent in other employment, and 13.9 per cent in actual unemployment.

TABLE 37.—NUMBER OF WEEKS OF EMPLOYMENT IN STORES, IN OTHER INDUSTRIES, AND NUMBER OF WEEKS OF UNEMPLOYMENT FOR THE YEAR 1913, REPORTED BY 711 WOMEN EMPLOYED IN DEPARTMENT AND OTHER RETAIL STORES IN 6 CITIES.

	Women	Num- ber of	worked departs and of retail st	Weeks worked in department and other retail stores.			in other employ- ment.			Unemployment.			
Cities.	report- ing.	possible weeks of work.1		Per		men ting.	Wee	eks.	Wo: repor	men ting.	Wee	ks.	
			Number.	cent.	Num- ber.	Per cent.	Num- ber.	Per cent.	Num- ber.	Per cent.	Num- ber.	Per cent.	
Indianapolis Terre Haute Evansville Fort Wayne South Bend La Fayette. Total	331 104 129 58 63 26	15, 319½ 4, 977¾ 6, 346½ 2, 825 3, 108½ 1, 352	12, 400½ 4, 247∰ 5, 430½ 2, 252½ 2, 727½ 1, 067⅓ 28, 125∰	80.9 85.3 85.6 79.7 87.7 78.9	51 9 9 8 4 1	15.4 8.7 7.0 13.8 6.3 3.8	5611 1411 139 129 82 27	3.7 2.9 2.2 4.6 2.7 2.0	206 70 97 47 50 23	62.2 67.3 75.2 81.0 79.4 88.5	2,3571 5881 777 4431 299 1 2573	15. 4 11. 8 12. 2 15. 7 9. 6 19. 1	

 $^{^{-1}}$ As a number of women did not begin working until after the first of the year, the possible weeks of work are less than 52 times the number reporting.

OTHER EMPLOYMENT.

"Other employment" was reported by 82, or 11.5 per cent, of the women in stores and was of a varied character. The principal occupations taken up were office work, millinery, telephone operating. housework, and storekeeping for themselves. It will be seen, however, that the general tendency of the women was to keep to an occupation or industry of the same general character as the one in which they had previously been. Only about one-third of the 82 store workers who reported other employment during the period covered by the investigation reported "factory work" as such other The average duration of other employment was 13.2 This was less by nearly 3 weeks than the average amount reported among the garment-factory workers, but is, nevertheless, an amount which represents more than casual work. The women who reported other employment were not the women who were most successful in store work, as is shown by the fact that their average earnings in the stores were but \$5.15—\$2.59 lower than the average earnings of all women in the stores. Their earnings in other employment were higher than in the stores, being \$5.64, but even these earnings are still below the average for either store or factory workers. The women who report other employment average 20.5 years of age—nearly four years younger than the average. This might account for their lower earnings, but the probability still seems to be that the women seeking other employment are women who are not the most efficient in their work.

Table 38.—NUMBER OF WOMEN INDIVIDUALLY SCHEDULED IN DEPARTMENT AND OTHER RETAIL STORES REPORTING "OTHER EMPLOYMENT," AVERAGE DURA-TION OF SUCH EMPLOYMENT, AND AVERAGE WEEKLY EARNINGS THEREIN.

	Women reporting other employment.									
Cities.	Number.	Total weeks worked in other employ- ment.	Average number of weeks per person.	A verage weekly earnings in other employ- ment.	Average weekly earnings in stores.	Average age (years).				
Indianapolis. Terre Haute Evansville. Fort Wayne. South Bend. La Fayette.	* 9 8	561½ 141½ 139 129 82 27	11. 0 15. 7 15. 4 16. 1 20. 5 27. 0	2 \$5. 46 5. 87 4. 05 4 8. 19 7. 15 2. 26	\$4.91 6.50 4.18 6.61 4.95 3.58	18.7 22.4 24.9 26.6 17.3 16.0				
Total	82	1,080	13. 2	5 5. 64	5. 15	20.5				

¹ Not including 1 woman earning \$110 during 12 weeks of evening work while regularly employed in the daytime, 1 woman earning \$40 by irregular home dressmaking while laid off, and 1 earning \$10 by home millinery while laid off.

nummery while laid on.

2 Not including 3 women not reporting earnings, 1 girl earning nothing as an apprentice, and 1 woman reporting earnings for other employment but not for regular employment.

3 Not including 1 woman earning \$18.50 doing home dressmaking while laid off.

4 Not including 1 woman who was hired by the month but left after 1 week's work and received no pay.

5 See notes to details.

UNEMPLOYMENT.

Unemployment was reported by 69.3 per cent of the women, and represented 13.9 per cent of the weeks of possible work, or a total of 4,723 \(\frac{5}{12} \) weeks. As far as has been possible with the information available, these weeks have been grouped according to the various causes given for unemployment. This investigation, not having in its original plan any intensive study of the causes of unemployment, did not secure information on that subject with enough detail to make final conclusions warrantable from the material here presented, but the tendencies at least are plainly indicated.

TABLE 39.—AMOUNT, CAUSES, AND DISTRIBUTION OF UNEMPLOYMENT REPORTED BY 93 WOMEN FOR THE YEAR 1913 IN DEPARTMENT AND OTHER RETAIL STORES IN 6 CITIES.

		Unemployment.		mployn	ent dir	ectly co	nnected	with t	he indu	stry.
	Unemp			Lay	off.		Other reasons.			
Cities.	Women			men rting.	We	eks.	Wor	men ting.	Weeks.	
	report- ing.	Weeks.	Num- ber.	Per cent.	Num- ber.	Per cent.	Num- ber.	Per cent.	Num- ber.	Per cent.
Indianapolis	97	2,357 1 2 588 1 777 4 443 1	11 1 3 2	5, 3 1, 4 3, 1 4, 3	107½ 8 42 32½	4.6 1.3 5.4 7.3	1 <u>1</u> 3 <u>1</u>	0, 5 1, 4	1 8 3 20	0, 3 3, 4
South BendLa Fayette	50 5 23	299 12 5 257 3	3	6.0	162	5.3	6 2	8.7	6 58	22. 5
Total	7 493	7 4, 723 ₁₃	20	4.1	206	4. 4	4	.8	86	1.8

			τ	nemp	loymei	at due	to pers	onal r	easons.				
	Vol	untary	vacat	ion.		Illo	ess.		Other personal reasons.				
Cities.	Women reporting.		Wee	eks.		Women reporting.		ks.	Women reporting.		Weeks.		
	Num- ber.	Per cent.	Num- ber.	Per cent.	Num- ber.	Per cent.	Num- ber.	Per cent.	Num- ber.	Per cent.	Num- ber.	Per cent.	
Indianapolis Terre Haute Evansville Fort Wayne South Bend La Fayette	57 75 29	65. 5 81. 4 77. 3 61. 7 76. 0 69. 6	318½ 106⅓ 164 51 85½ 57½	13.5 18.1 21.1 11.5 28.6 22.3	64 14 28 17 17	31. 1 20. 0 28. 9 36. 2 34. 0 17. 4	3683 1184 944 165 481 52	15. 6 20. 1 12. 2 37. 2 16. 3 20. 2	115 39 39 21 26 13	55. 8 55. 7 40. 2 44. 7 52. 0 56. 5	1,5543 3121 4761 188 1491 881	66. 0 53. 1 61. 3 42. 4 49. 8 34. 2	
Total	350	71.0	7825	16.6	144	29, 2	84712	17.9	253	51. 3	2,769	58.6	

¹ Voluntary vacation to avoid being laid off.

² Including 1 woman reporting 23} weeks of unemployment but not reporting cause.

³ Blacklisted.

Including 1 woman reporting 7 weeks of unemployment but not reporting cause, Including 1 woman reporting 2 weeks of unemployment but not reporting cause.

⁷ Including 3 women reporting 323 weeks of unemployment but not reporting cause.

The first group of causes of unemployment are those directly connected with the industry. Of these causes, lay offs are the most important. Two hundred and six weeks, or 4.4 per cent, of the unemployment was due to this cause. This per cent is much less than in the garment factories, where the per cent of unemployment due to lay offs was 16.6. Most of the lay off in stores was among the work-room women, for whom the dull season frequently meant periods of idleness. There was a small group of miscellaneous causes connected with the industry, representing 1.8 per cent of the unemployment and 0.8 per cent of the women reporting unemployment. These causes embraced strikes, vacation taken in order to avoid the stigma of being laid off, and the "blacklisting" of a girl so that she was unable to get work.

The largest part of the unemployment reported by the store employees was due to personal reasons and to illness of the individual. The personal reasons have been classed under two heads, "Voluntary vacation" and "Other personal causes," comprising such reasons as illness in the worker's family, conditions or responsibilities which demanded her presence at home, idleness through choice, etc. The voluntary vacation has been made to include only such time as was voluntarily taken by the worker for rest and recreation. The line of demarkation has necessarily been rather difficult to draw, but the classification has been followed as closely as possible.

Of voluntary vacation, there were 7825 weeks, or 16.6 per cent of all the unemployment. Three hundred and fifty women, or 71 per cent, reported voluntary vacation. Only 40.2 per cent of the women in the factories reported voluntary vacations, but 39.7 per cent reported lay offs. Those periods may have been taken in place of vacations for many. The average length of the voluntary vacations for the women in the stores was about two and one-fourth weeks.

In this connection it should be stated that in addition to the periods of vacation here reported there were 198½ weeks of vacation with pay reported. This time has been included under weeks worked in the stores, as the women remained on the pay rolls and received their regular pay. The following summaries show the amount and distribution of vacation or other absence with pay, as reported by the women individually scheduled, and the number of firms giving vacations with pay, as reported by employers.

The largest per cent of unemployment from any cause was that due to miscellaneous personal reasons, 2,769 weeks, or 58.6 per cent of all the unemployment being attributed to that cause. Two hundred and fifty-three women, or 51.3 per cent, reported on average of 11 weeks in this group.

The number of years of employment required to obtain vacations with pay and the duration of such vacations, as reported by the 68 department and other retail stores granting vacations with pay, are as follows:

Establishments giving vacations with pay:	
Number	68
Per cent	48.2
Establishments giving vacation with pay to:	
All female employees	6
Females employed one-half year or over	8
Females employed 1 year or over	21
Females employed over 2 years	3
Females with duration of employment not reported	30
Establishments giving vacations with pay:	
One week	58
Two weeks	8
Three weeks or over	1
Time not reported	1

In the above statement wherever the length of the vacation varies with the length of employment the vacation received for one year's service is given.

Table 40.—NUMBER OF WOMEN INDIVIDUALLY SCHEDULED REPORTING VACATIONS OR ABSENCE WITH PAY AND DURATION OF SUCH VACATIONS OR ABSENCES.

	Individ porting tion wi		Aver- age number of		er receiv	ing vacat	tions wit	h pay.1	Total.
Cities.	Num- ber.	Per cent.	weeks' vaca- tion with pay.	Under 1 week.	1 and under 2 weeks.	2 and under 3 weeks.	3 and under 4 weeks.	4 and under 8 weeks.	number report- ing.
Indianapolis. Terre Haute Evansville Fort Wayne South Bend La Fayette.	64 43 16 13 14 12	19.3 41.4 12.4 22.4 22.2 46.2	11 11 12 1 1 13	5 2 1 1 1	44 34 10 12 9	13 6 2 4 1	3	1 1	331 104 129 58 63 26
Total	162	22.8	11	11	119	26	4	2	711

¹ Includes women receiving pay for occasional absence amounting to a week or more.

Unemployment Due to Illness.

Eight hundred and forty-seven and one-twelfth weeks, or 17.9 per cent, of the unemployment reported was due to the illness of the worker, 144, or 29.2 per cent, of the women giving this as the cause of all or part of their unemployment. It should be said that the illness here recorded is not a matter of medical record, and that a physician's word was not required to substantiate the reports of the individuals as to days lost through sickness. These methods were not adopted, first, because, while the original plans of the investiga-

tion contemplated a careful measurement of the amount of unemployment, they did not contemplate (because resources would not permit) more than a general survey of the causes of unemployment. Second, had time and resources permitted a search for cases of illness certified to by physicians, it is certain that some consideration would have to be given to unemployment due to illness in cases where no physician was called. That there are a considerable number of such cases there is little question, and the time lost thereby means lost earnings. The investigating agents therefore discussed carefully with each individual the amount of time lost during the year 1913, taking down the causes for each period of unemployment. There may be some overestimates of time lost through illness, but it is probable that such overestimates are more than offset by the fact that the occasional days of absence (through illness or for other reasons) scattered over the period of employment, were not counted in the period of unemployment.1

What the relation is between the industries studied and the rate of illness, what the normal expectation of illness is for women in a given industry, and what is the average duration of illness for the industry as a whole are questions which can not be answered from figures submitted in this report; neither are there any statistics available in this country by which to judge of the significance of such figures as are here presented.

There are, however, figures taken from the "Leipzig Local Sick Fund," ² covering 34,262 women employed as office help and saleswomen, which would seem to afford a fair comparison with the figures for the Indiana store employees. The figures for Indiana and Leipzig are therefore printed together in the following table. Inasmuch as this table should include all illness reported, in order to make it more comparable with the German figures, a few weeks of illness which were not included in the table of unemployment, as they were paid for, and therefore classed under weeks of employment in stores have been added to this table to make it as complete a record as possible of the illness reported by the women in the Indiana stores.

¹ See method of computing time worked, pp. 11 and 12.

² Twenty-fourth Annual Report of the Commissioner of Labor, p. 1336.

TABLE 41.—RATE OF SICKNESS AMONG 711 WOMEN EMPLOYED IN DEPARTMENT AND OTHER RETAIL STORES IN 6 INDIANA CITIES COMPARED WITH THAT SHOWN BY THE "LEIPZIG LOCAL SICK FUND."

	W	/omen i	n India	na store	es.	Office employees, saleswomen, etc., reported by the Leipzig Local Sick Fund (compulsory members).						
Age groups.	d		Average dura-Rate per 1,000.			Num-		Aver- age dura-	Rate per 1,000.			
	Total num- ber sched- uled.	Cases of sick- ness.	tion of each case of sick- ness (days).	Cases of sick- ness.	Days of sick- ness.	ber under obser- vation 1 year.	Cases of sick- ness.	tion of each case of sick- ness (days).	Cases of sick- ness.	Days of sick- ness.		
Under 15 years	396 196 89 23 3 1	82 40 21 7 1	34. 3 38. 1 15. 8 21. 4 54. 0	371. 0 206. 7 236. 0 304. 3 333. 3	12. 727 7. 876 3. 719 6. 522 18. 000	242 24,943 7,299 1,356 291 81 49 1	57 7,066 1,936 290 53 17 17	20. 4 23. 4 26. 4 33. 0 29. 5 49. 1 40. 5 50. 0	235. 5 283. 3 265. 2 213. 9 182. 1 209. 9 346. 9 1,000. 0	4. 806 6. 625 7. 015 7. 049 5. 364 10. 296 14. 041 50. 000		
Total	711	153	33.5	234.3	7.849	34, 262	9, 437	24.4	275.4	6. 722		

¹ The Indiana figures include in this group girls 14 and under 25 years of age.

Note.—In general the value of this table, so far as Indiana figures are concerned, may be said to be more in the suggestions that it offers than in any conclusive evidence that it gives. The German figures, based on thousands of women in many different industries, show a different rate of illness in every industry and show a widely different rate of illness for men and women in the same industry. These are questions on which much further information than that presented in this report is needed before any conclusions can be drawn.

The Leipzig figures are based on women who had all been in the industry a full year. In order to make the Indiana figures comparable, the number of women used to obtain the rates per 1,000 has been reduced so as not to include the number of weeks prior to any individual's first employment; that is, the number of weeks in industry for the 711 women scheduled would amount to a full year in industry for 653 women.

The actual number of women reporting illness in Indiana is so small, since the total number studied was only 711, that except for the first two or three age groups the figures are liable to be unduly influenced by any extreme case. In general, however, the rate of cases of illness seems to be lower in Indiana, but the rate of days of illness seems to be higher than in the German employment most nearly corresponding to the Indiana group. In other words, a smaller per cent of the Indiana women were ill, but they were ill for longer periods of time than the German women. In this connection it should be noted that the German rates include cases of illness which ended in death, while the Indiana figures do not, but as these amounted to only about 1 per cent, it would not greatly affect the comparison.

SICK BENEFIT AND MEDICAL AID.

The table below shows in a general way the extent to which provision is made for employees in times of illness. It is apparent from this table that while 48, or over a third, of the 140 establishments, employing 57 per cent of the women, report some provision for illness, yet only 15 of the 48 establishments report women actually receiving aid during the year covered by the investigation, and only 288, or slightly more than 15 per cent, of the women employed in such establishments received the sick benefits. Of these 15 establishments, 12, employing 180 women, report the exact number of days during which aid was given, the average for all sorts of benefit being 14½ days. It should be said in this connection that in practically all cases the employees contributed to the maintenance of the benefit associations.

Table 42.—SICK BENEFIT OR MEDICAL AID IN 140 DEPARTMENT AND OTHER RETAIL STORES EMPLOYING 5,9201 WOMEN IN A REPRESENTATIVE WEEK.

	Establish- ments report- ing.		Women employed.		Wome	n recei v	ing aid.	Establishments reporting extent of aid.			
Provisions.	Num- ber.	Per cent.	Num- ber.	Per cent.	Es- tab- lish- ments re- port- ing.	Num- ber.	Per cent.2	Num- ber.	Wo- men af- fected	Average duration of aid (days).	
Benefit association. Liability companies. Direct aid given by firm	13 2 33 48	9.3 1.4 23.6	1,941 143 1,294 3,378	32. 8 2. 4 21. 9	6 1 8	244 2 42 288	17. 7 2. 1 10. 6	5 1 6	144 2 34	16½ 3 6½ 14¾	

¹ Including 62 case employees not appearing in hours and earnings tables.

² The base is the number of women in the establishments reporting number of women receiving aid.

TOILET ACCOMMODATIONS, EMPLOYMENT IN BASEMENTS, AND SEATS FOR SALESWOMEN.

For reasons explained on page 91 no detailed study was made of sanitary conditions prevailing in Indiana mercantile establishments. The tables following summarize such data as were collected.

Table 43 shows that the employment of women in basements, where the ventilation is frequently poor and the light too often inadequate, is not a rare exception in Indiana. Thirty-one, or over a fifth, of the 140 stores had 12 per cent of their women employees at work in basements. In all of these basements artificial light was used.

The table indicates that, with the possible exceptions mentioned in footnotes, the toilet accommodations, so far as numbers are concerned, are not inadequate.

TABLE 43.—TOILET FACILITIES AND BASEMENT	EMPLOYMENT IN 140 DEPARTMENT
AND OTHER RETAIL STORES IN 10 CITIES,	AS REPORTED BY EMPLOYERS.

			То	ilets.	Establishments employing women in basemen							
Cities.	Estab- lish- ments sched- uled.	Women em- ployees.	Num- ber of seats exclu- sively	Average num- ber of	Num- ber.	Per cent.	Won affec		requirin	shments ig artifi- ght in nent.		
			for women.	per			Num- ber.	Per cent.	Par- tially.	En- tirely.		
Indianapolis. Terre Haute E vansville Fort Wayne South Bend. Muncie. Hammond La Fayette. Richmond New Albany	28 13 22 14 15 13 4 8 14 9	2, 633 711 494 485 462 288 207 322 198 120	126 38 33 33 24 27 20 23 21	2 20 19 15 15 10 11 10 14 9	9 3 5 3 3 2 2 2 2	32. 1 23. 1 22. 7 21. 4 20. 0 15. 4 50. 0 25. 0	278 200 333 224 16 7 62 14	13. 9 4. 4 13. 9 9. 6 23. 5 5. 0 34. 8 9. 8	1	5 22 3 3 1 22 2		
Total	140	1 5,920	352	17	31	22. 1	458	12.0	9	22		

Figures taken from pay roll of a representative week and include 63 café employees not appearing in tables of hours or earnings.

Information was collected concerning the number of seats provided for salewomen, but no table has been made because, without exception, the employers reported such provision. It should be said, however, that there was frequent complaint among the women that these seats could not be used even in "slack minutes" without incurring the displeasure of the management.

WOMEN EMYLOYED IN INDIANA GARMENT FACTORIES.

The garment industry employed more women than any other industry in the State, except one, the report of the State factory inspector showing approximately 6,200 women so listed. industry in Indiana is not, however, comparable with the clothing industry as a whole, as the Indiana establishments were engaged principally in the manufacture of workingmen's cotton clothing (overalls and shirts) and cotton gloves, work that required no tailoring, and therefore employed a larger proportion of women than would be found in establishments where woolen outer clothing was made.

The work which the greater part of the women do is operating power sewing machines. Many different operations are involved in the manufacture of even the simplest garments and several kinds of machines are used, i. e., one, two, or three needle machines, buttonhole machines, or other machines for special purposes, but all machines make the same general demands upon the operator. They require a sitting position, with a slight but constant bending over the machine,

 ² Not including 9 women in 1 establishment who may use toilets on seventh floor in office building and
 2 establishments employing 76 women, number of seats not reported.
 3 In 1 establishment 33 use toilets provided for customers' use.

close concentration of attention on the work, and quick deft movements in handling and changing the work. The machine operation is usually all piecework. A variety of occupations not suited to piece rates are included under time-work, such as marking, sorting, inspecting, checking, timekeeping, etc., according to the needs of each individual factory.

The following summarization brings into relief the proportion of women engaged in occupations requiring a continuous position, either standing or sitting, and those which permit of an alternating position. It also shows the number of women engaged in occupations requiring the use of foot-power machines and the number operating entirely power-driven machines:

TABLE 44.—OCCUPATIONAL	DEMANDS	UPON	WOMEN	EMPLOYED	IN	GARMENT	FAC-
TORI	ES, AS RE	PORTEI	BY EM	PLOYERS.			

Position required by occupation.	qui foo	pation iring u t-powe nes.	se of	qu po	pations iring u wer nes.	s re- se of ma-	Other occupations.			Total.		
	Num-	Women affected.		Num-	Women affected.		Num-	Women affected.		Occu-	Won	
	ber.	Num- ber.	Per cent.	ber.	Num- ber.	Per cent.	ber.	Num- ber.	Per cent.	tions.	Num- ber.	Per cent.
Constant standing Constant sitting Alternating positions	2 4 4	10 85 33	7. 8 66. 4 25. 8	2 1 5 1	9 3,436 3	0.3 99.6 .1	8 8 10	172 295 412	19. 6 33. 5 46. 9	12 17 15	191 3,816 448	4. 3 85. 7 10. 0
Total	10	128	2.9	8	3,448	77. 4	26	879	19. 7	44	2 4,455	100.0

¹ The machine used in 1 occupation is foot controlled.
² Data for 2,100 women were not reported.

The discussion of occupational demands is limited in this report to a brief description of the general character of the equipment and nature of the work done by women because a health and sanitation survey, covering the principal women-employing industries in the State, was made by the National Health Service at the invitation of the Indiana Commission on Working Women.

In the 67 establishments from which schedules were obtained there were 6,561 women employees, approximately the total number reported as employed in the garment factories of Indiana by the census of manufactures of 1910.¹ Individual schedules were secured from 517 of these women. As with the stores, the effort was made to cover all establishments of importance in or near 10 cities and to interview individual women in 5 of the largest cities. The distribution, by cities, of establishments and individuals scheduled is shown in the subjoined table.

¹ Vol. IX, p. 328.

Cities.			Empl	oyees.			Total women.		Women scheduled.	
	Estab- lish- ments.	Men.		Women.		Total em- ploy-		Per		Per
		Under 16 years.	16 years and over.	Under 16 years.	16 years and over.	ees.	Num- ber.	of total em- ploy- ees.	Num- ber	cent of total wo- men.
Indianapolis. South Bend. Fort Wayne. Terre Haute. Richmond and Muncie. New Albany, La Fayette, and Hammond Evansville.	25 9 11 6 5	4 3 9 2 13	585 114 63 44 44 23 24	57 159 39 3 3 38 11 12	2,380 1,736 823 499 276 285 243	3,026 2,012 934 548 371 319 280	2,437 1,895 862 502 314 296 255	80. 5 94. 2 92. 3 91. 6 84. 6 92. 8 91. 1	259 85 87 41	10. 6 4. 5 10. 1 8. 2
Total	67	32	897	319	6,242	7,490	6,561	87.6	517	7.9

TABLE 45.—NUMBER OF GARMENT FACTORIES SCHEDULED IN 10 LOCALITIES, NUM-BER OF EMPLOYEES, AND NUMBER OF WOMEN INDIVIDUALLY SCHEDULED.

The information obtained from factories and individual women employed in the garment industry has been summarized in the same manner as the corresponding information from department and other retail stores in order to facilitate comparisons between the two industries.

AGE, MANNER OF LIVING, AND CONJUGAL CONDITION.

In the garment factories the proportion of young girls was somewhat less than in the stores, 17.6 per cent being from 14 to 18 years of age, while 20.2 per cent of the women in the stores were 18 years or under. The average age of the women in factories is practically 26, one year higher than the average for the women in the stores.

The following summaries give the average age for each city and the total number of women at specified ages:

TABLE 46.—AVERAGE	AGE OF	513	WOMEN	EMPLOYED	IN	GARMENT	FACTORIES.
-------------------	--------	-----	-------	----------	----	---------	------------

Cities.	Number reporting.	Average age.
Indianapolis Terre Haute Evansville Fort Wayne South Bend	45	26. 6 28. 6 25. 3 26. 0 22. 9
Total	3513	25.9

Not including 3 women who did not report exact age.
 Not including I woman who did not report exact age.
 Not including 4 women who did not report exact age.

TABLE 47.-AGE OF 517 WOMEN EMPLOYED IN GARMENT FACTORIES.

Age groups.	Women at specified ages.		
	Number.	Percent.	
14 and under 16 years. 16 and under 18 years.	41 50	7. 9 9. 7	
18 and under 22 years.	75	21.4 14.5	
25 and under 30 years 30 and under 40 years 40 and under 50 years	98 37	17. 6 19. 0 7. 2	
50 and under 60 years. 60 years and over	11 3	2.1	
Total	517	100.0	

For the women in the garment factories the manner of living is about the same as for those in the stores. Seventy-eight and five-tenths per cent were living at home, 6.6 per cent were living with relatives. These women had practically the same home conditions as the women in the stores.¹ A considerably larger proportion of factory women were keeping house (9.7 per cent, as compared with 5.1 per cent in the stores) and a smaller per cent boarding (5.2 per cent, compared with 8.3 per cent). None were keeping house in their own rooms.

The distribution is indicated by the following table:

Table 48.—MANNER OF LIVING OF 517 WOMEN EMPLOYED IN GARMENT FACTORIES.

Cities.	At home.	With relatives.	Boarding and lodging. ¹	Keeping house.	Total.
Indianapolis South Bend Fort Wayne Terre Haute Evansville	195 68 69 34 40	20 5 4 2 3	16 2 8	28 10 6 5	259 85 87 41 45
Total: Number Percent.	406 78.5	34 6.6	27 5. 2	50 9. 7	517 100. 0

¹ Includes light housekeeping.

Of the 91 women under 18 years, none were married, but of the 426 women over 18 years, 85, or 20 per cent, were or had been married. More than half of this number were widowed or separated from their husbands. The average age of the women in the garment factories, being a year higher than that of the women in the stores, is probably related to the larger proportion of married women employed.

¹ See pp. 9 and 10.

Separated or divorced. Single. Married. Widowed. Total. Cities. Num-ber. Per Par Num-ber. Per Per Num-Num-Per Number. ber. cent. cent. cent. cent. ber. cent. Indianapolis..... South Bend..... 201 77.6 28 10.8 $\frac{6.6}{4.7}$ 13 5.0 259 100.0 4.7 5.8 1. 2 85 100.0 Fort Wayne..... 80 92.0 5 i 1.1 1.1 87 100. 0 Terre Haute..... 75.6 97.9 9.8 2.1 2 31 4 9.8 4.8 41 100.0 45 100.0 Evansville... Total.... 432 83.6 41 17 3.3 100.0

Table 49.—CONJUGAL CONDITION OF 517 WOMEN EMPLOYED IN GARMENT FACTORIES

SEASONAL ASPECT OF GARMENT INDUSTRY.

Before taking up the duration of seasons and the working hours some explanation of the goods manufactured by the Indiana garment factories is necessary.

As has been stated, the factories manufacture principally workingmen's cotton clothing and cotton gloves, nearly 60 per cent of the establishments, affecting almost the same proportion of all the women employed, reporting this grade of goods as their chief product. The manufacture of these goods not only calls for a larger proportion of women workers 1 than other branches of the clothing industry, but also affords work which is much less seasonal than in the clothing industry as a whole, since the demand for overalls, work shirts, and gloves is fairly steady throughout the year. The 67 manufacturers' reports on garments made and variations in seasons to some extent reflect these conditions, as the only firms reporting only dull and busy seasons, i. e., no period of normal business, are those engaged in the manufacture of men's custom-made suits and women's custommade and ready-to-wear clothing, and they affected but 22 per cent of the total number of women employed in the Indiana garment trades, as the table below shows.

Table 50.—NORMAL, DULL, AND BUSY SEASONS AS REPORTED FOR 67 GARMENT FACTORIES, GROUPED ACCORDING TO THE GARMENTS MADE.

		blish- nts.		en em- yed.	Perc				Per cent of establishments reporting.				
Garments manufactured.	Num- ber.	Per cent.	Num- ber.	Per cent.	Nor- mal sea- son only.	Nor- mal and dull sea- sons,	Nor- mal and busy sea- sons.	Nor- mal, dull, and busy sea- sons.					
Workingmen's clothes (including overalls, coats, and work shirts) ²	18 6	26.9 9.0	2,371 1,473 556 1,261 787 113	36. 1 22. 5 8. 5 19. 2 12. 0 1. 7	36. 4 55. 6 55. 6 22. 2 66. 7	50. 0 22. 2 16. 7 22. 2 33. 3	5.6	13. 6 16. 6 50. 0 22. 2 22. 2	33.3 11.1 33.3				
Total.	67	100.0	6,561	100.0	40. 3	31.3	3.0	19. 4	6.0				

¹The establishments manufacturing workingmen's clothing and cotton gloves employed 58.6 per cent of the women in all the clothing establishments studied.

² One establishment also makes women's ready-made clothing.

Taking all cities together, 40.3 per cent of the factories, employing 52 per cent of the women, report a normal season only, which means that for more than half of the women the work is nearly steady the year around. For the rest, besides the normal season there are periods of rush work alternating with periods of slack work, which may or may not offset each other.

DURATION OF SEASONS AND WORKING HOURS AS REPORTED BY EMPLOYERS.

The working hours for each season and for the overtime periods, as reported by the employers, are given in the following tables. It should be noted here again that the duration and hours of the normal, dull, and busy seasons are given exclusive of all overtime, and that the overtime is considered separately.

NORMAL SEASON.

Taking first the normal season, the summarizing table shows-

- 1. That 63, or 94 per cent, of the 67 establishments reported a normal season which averaged practically 37 weeks in length and affected 6,474, or 98.7 per cent, of the women.
- 2. That the average working hours during this period were $53\frac{1}{2}$ per week, $9\frac{1}{3}$ per day, and $5\frac{1}{2}$ hours on the short day, the short day, however, being reported in 51 establishments only.
- 3. That the longest average weekly hours reported by any establishment in this season were 60 and the shortest $42\frac{3}{4}$.
- 4. That two-thirds of the establishments, employing practically three-fourths of the women, reported average weekly hours under 55; that by far the largest single group was that reporting weekly hours over 48 and under 55, 56½ per cent of the establishments and 60 per cent of the employees being in this group; that 9.7 per cent of the establishments, employing 13.8 per cent of the women, reported a 48-hour week or under, and only 3.2 per cent of the employers reported weekly hours of 60 or more during the normal season.

TABLE 51.—WORKING HOURS IN NORMAL SEASON IN GARMENT FACTORIES IN 10 LOCALITIES, AS REPORTED BY EMPLOYERS.

[The laws of Indiana limit the hours of children to 48 per week and 8 per day, unless the consent of the parents is secured. In that part of the table which gives the per cent reporting average weekly hours 117 girls who were working in establishments reporting prevailing hours of more than 48 have been excluded. Hours shown in this table do not include overtime.

	Estab-	Pre- vailing	ments	Establish- ments report-		Women		Average hours.				
Cities.	lish- ments	num- ber of women		ormal son.	affec	eted.	age dura- tion	Hours	Pre- vailing	Long	Short	
	uled. employe	em- ployed.	Num- ber.	Per cent.	Num- ber.	Per cent.	in weeks	per week.	daily hours.	day.	day.	
Indianapolis ¹	25 9 11 6	2,437 1,895 862 502	23 8 11 5	92. 0 88. 8 100. 0 83. 3	2,423 1,825 862 499	99. 4 96. 3 100. 0 99. 4	33½ 45‡ 37½ 37‡	55 521 5112 538	9; 9; 9; 9;		5 1/3 5 1/3 5 1/4	
Richmond and Mun- cie New Albany, La Fay-	5	314	5	100.0	314	100.0	36§	$51\frac{1}{12}$	91		44	
ette, and Hammond Evansville	7	296 255	4 7	100.0 100.0	296 255	100.0	32 38½	561 5413	93 93		$\frac{7\frac{1}{2}}{6\frac{1}{6}}$	
Total	67	6,561	63	93.9	6,474	98.7	363	53½	2 91		5½	

	Per cent reporting weekly hours of—											
Cities.	423 1	o 48.		nd under 5.	55 and t	ınder 60.	60.					
	Estab- lish- ments.	Women affected.	Estab- lish- ments.	Women affected.	Estab- lish- ments.	Women affected.	Estab- lish- ments.	Women affected.				
Indianapolis 1	18. 2 20. 0	30.0 8.4 20.0	54.6 75.0 54.5 20.0	60. 7 68. 6 62. 4 30. 0	31. 8 12. 5 27. 3 60. 0	9. 3 9. 9 29. 2 50. 0	12.5	21.5				
ette, and Hammond. Evansville			25.0 57.1	8.0 55.7	50.0 42.9	46.5 44.3	25.0	45.5				
Total	9.7	13.8	56.5	60. 1	30.6	18.0	3.2	8.0				

One establishment, employing 55 women, did not report daily or weekly hours.
 One establishment did not report daily hours.

DULL SEASON.

The summarization shows—

- 1. That 38, or 56.6 per cent, of the 67 establishments reported a dull season averaging 13½ weeks in duration and affecting 2,874, or 43.8 per cent of the women.
- 2. That the average working hours during this season were practically 49 per week, 83 hours per day, and 5 hours on the short day, which occurred in 31 establishments.
- 3. That the longest regular hours reported by any one establishment during the dull season were 59 hours a week and the shortest 30 hours per week.
- 4. That of the 38 establishments reporting dull seasons, approximately 38 per cent reported weekly hours of 48 or under; and that

the-largest single group, 35.2 per cent, reported weekly hours over 48 but under 55.

TABLE 52.-WORKING HOURS IN DULL SEASON IN GARMENT FACTORIES IN 10 LOCALITIES, AS REPORTED BY EMPLOYERS.

[The laws of Indiana limit the hours of children to 48 per week and 8 per day, unless the consent of the parents is secured. In that part of the table which gives the per cent reporting average weekly hours, 92 girls who were working in establishments reporting prevailing hours of more than 48 have been excluded. Hours shown in this table do not include overtime.]

Cities.	Establishments reporting dull season.			Women affected.		Average hours.				
Cities.	Num- ber.	Per cent.	Num- ber.	Per cent.	ration in weeks.	Hours per week.	Prevail- ing daily hours.	Long day.	Short day.	
Indianapolis ¹ . South Bend. Fort Wayne. Terre Haute. Richmond and Muncie.	17 4 7 4	68. 0 44. 4 63. 6 66. 6 20. 0	979 629 569 395 75	40. 2 33. 2 66. 0 78. 7 23. 9	164 12 85 12 161	47 521 471 521 488	84 91 2 81 93 84		5 1 4 2 4 2 4 3 4 3	
New Albany, La Fayette, and Hammond Evansville	2 3	50.0 42.9	155 72	52.4 28.2	93 103	49 <u>1</u> 522	9 9½		41 61	
Total	38	56.6	2,874	43.8	13½	488	2 8 3		5	

			Per cent reporting weekly hours of-												
Cities.	30 and under 35.			35 and under 42.		o 48.		48 and er 55.	55 to 59.						
	Estab- lish- ments.	Women af- fected.	Estab- lish- ments.	Women af- fected.	Estab- lish- ments.	Women af- fected.	Estab- lish- ments.	Women af- fected.	Estab- lish- ments.	Women af- fected,					
Indianapolis ¹		0.3			18.8	3.4	18.8 50.0 14.3 100.0	22. 1 7. 8 9. 8 100. 0	31. 2 50. 0 14. 3	21. 1 92. 2 26. 6					
Richmond and Muncie New Albany, La Fayette, and							100.0	100.0							
Hammond					50.0	10.3	66. 7	44.4	50. 0 33. 3	89. 7 55. 6					
Total	2.7	.1	10.8	17.8	24.3	14.6	35.2	29. 4	27.0	38.1					

 $^{^{\}rm 1}$ One establishment employing 55 women did not report daily or weekly hours. $^{\rm 2}$ One establishment did not report daily hours.

BUSY SEASON.

It is indicative of the difference in the nature of the Indiana garment factories from that of most clothing factories to find that only a small per cent reported a busy season.

The table for the busy season shows—

- 1. That only 28.3 per cent of the establishments reported a busy season, and these establishments employed but 19.2 per cent of the women, showing that they were the smaller establishments. The season averaged 184 weeks in duration.
- 2. That the average weekly hours in the busy season (exclusive of overtime) were but slightly longer than in the normal season, 55 being

the average, with average daily hours of $9\frac{2}{3}$, and a short day of $6\frac{1}{6}$ hours reported for 15 establishments.

- 3. That the maximum weekly hours reported were $62\frac{1}{2}$ and the minimum weekly hours $45\frac{1}{4}$.
- 4. That of the establishments reporting busy season, 39.1 per cent reported hours of under 55; but these establishments employed but 32.3 per cent of the women. Fifty per cent reported weekly hours of 55 and under 60. These employed only 21 per cent of the women. Only 11.1 per cent of the establishments reported hours of 60 or over, but as these included 1 of the 10 largest firms scheduled, the employees working these hours were by far the largest single group, being nearly 47 per cent. The establishments reporting 48 hours or under per week during the busy season were but 5.6 per cent of the total and employed but 1 per cent of the women.

TABLE 53.—WORKING HOURS IN BUSY SEASON IN GARMENT FACTORIES IN 10 LOCALITIES, AS REPORTED BY EMPLOYERS.

[The laws of Indiana limit the hours of children to 48 per week and 8 per day, unless the consent of the parents is secured. In that part of the table which gives the per cent reporting average weekly hours, 13 girls who were working in establishments reporting prevailing hours of more than 48 have been excluded. Hours shown in this table do not include overtime.]

	Establishments reporting busy season.		Women affected.		Aver- age	Average hours.					
Cities.	Num- ber.	Per cent.	Num- ber.	Per cent.	dura- tion in weeks.	Hours per week.	Prevail- ing daily hours.	Long day.	Short day.		
Indianapolis ¹ South Bend Fort Wayne Terre Haute Richmond and Muncie New Albany, La Fayette,	3 2 1	36. 0 11. 1 27. 3 33. 3 20. 0	930 70 107 9 50	38. 6 3. 7 12. 4 1. 8 1. 6	173 39 211 143 233	55 3 52½ 50 58½ 57½	9½ 9 9½ 10¾ 9¾	2 111	7 41 41 5 82		
and Hammond Evansville	$\frac{1}{2}$	25. 0 28. 6	43 49	14. 5 19. 2	20 53	59 55	10		9 5		
Total	19	28.3	1,258	19. 2	184	55	93	2 111	64		

			Per cent	reporting	weekly h	ours of		
Cities.	45 ₄ 1	o 48.		48 and er 55.	55 and u	nder 60.	60 to	62½.
	Estab- lish- ments.	Women affected.	Estab- lish- ments.	Women affected.		Women affected.	Estab- lish- ments.	Women affected.
Indianapolis 2			37.5 100.0	31. 9 100. 0	50.0	5.3	12.5	62.8
Fort Wayne Terre Haute Richmond and Muncie	33.3	12. 4	33.3 50.0	20. 6 33. 3	33. 4 100. 0	67. 0 100. 0	50.0	66. 7
New Albany, La Fayette, and Hammond Evansville		 			100.0 100.0	100. 0 100. 0		
Total	5. 6	1.0	33.3	31.3	50.0	21.0	11.1	46.7

¹ One establishment employing 55 women did not report daily or weekly hours.

² Only one establishment reported a long day.

OVERTIME PERIODS.

The summary here shows-

- 1. That overtime was reported by 46.2 per cent of the establishments. Only 38.8 per cent of the establishments, affecting 12.7 per cent of the employees, reported definite information, however. The average duration of the overtime period varied from 2½ weeks to 10 weeks in the different cities, but averaged 6½ weeks in all cities.
- 2. That the average weekly hours for this period were 58, the average daily hours $10\frac{1}{6}$; that the long day, reported by 16 establishments, averaged 12 hours and the short day, reported by 19 establishments, averaged $6\frac{1}{8}$ hours.
- 3. That the maximum weekly hours reported for any establishment were 69 and the minimum weekly hours 49½.
- 4. That during the overtime periods the largest per cent of establishments in any one group (38.4 per cent) reported hours of 55 and under 60, but the largest number of employees in any one group (65 $\frac{1}{2}$ per cent) were in the group reporting weekly hours of 60 and under 65, though only 30.8 per cent of the employers were in this group.

TABLE 54.—OVERTIME HOURS IN GARMENT FACTORIES IN 10 LOCALITIES, AS RE-PORTED BY EMPLOYERS.

		PURT	ED 51	LMF	1.0	LKŞ	·				
	rer	lishment orting		Womer ffected		Ave			Average	hours.	
Cities.	Num ber.	Per cent.	Nur ber		er	age d ratio in week	on I	Iours per veek.	Pre- vailing daily hours.	Long day.	Short day.
	Der.	cent.	Det		, iii		_		nours.		
Indianapolis South Bend Fort Wayne Terre Haute Richmond and Muncie New Albany L. Factor			2 4 3	89 37 35 4 16	24. 7 2. 2 4. 4 . 8 5. 1		74 3 21 72 0	564 614 564 594 563	98 11 94 98 114	12½ 10¾ 11¾ 11½	63 4 64 8 44
New Albany, La Fayette and Hammond Evansville		25. 71.			13. 9 28. 2		6 53	69 59½	$\frac{12\frac{1}{2}}{16\frac{1}{2}}$	121	` 9
Total	1 20	38.	8 7	76	12.7		61	58	10°	12	64
Cities.	Maxi- mum weekly	Mini- mum weekly		d under	ī		ınder	60 an	weekly i ————d under 65.		o 69.
	hours.	hours.	lish-	en af-	· lis	h- le	en af-	lish-	Wom- en af- fected.	lish-	Wom- en af- fected.
Indianapolis. South Bend. Fort Wayne. Terre Haute. Richmond and Muncie.	65½ 61¾ 64 61½ 57	49½ 61 52½ 58 56	30. 0 50. 0	6, 1 17, i	2. 50	5. 0	25. ò 11. 5 25. 0 100. 0	20. 0 100. 0 25. 0 50. 0	100.0		
New Albany, La Fayette, and Hammond Evansville	69 66½	$\frac{66\frac{1}{2}}{52\frac{1}{2}}$	20.0	30. 6		0.0	5, 6	40, 0	55. 5	100. 0 20. 0	100.0 8.3
Total	69	491	23, 1	8. 2	35	3. 4	22.6	30. 8	65. 5	7.7	3.7

¹ Five establishments reporting overtime have not been included because no figures relative to the amount of overtime or the number of women affected were reported.

SUMMARY.

Summing up the information on seasons and hours as reported by the employers, it may be said that for the Indiana garment industry as a whole the normal season is by far the most important period. averaging nearly three-fourths of the year for 94 per cent of the establishments.

The working hours generally found in the garment factories are 54 or under per week, and in no season except overtime periods are regular hours exceeding 59 found to any considerable extent. 48-hour week prevails only in a small per cent of establishments.

During overtime periods the hours ran up as high as 69 per week and averaged 58 per week, but less than one-half of the establishments reported overtime and it affected only one-eighth of the women employed.

TABLE 55.—SUMMARY OF WORKING HOURS IN GARMENT FACTORIES IN 10 LOCALITIES
COMBINED, AS REPORTED BY EMPLOYERS.

		olish- nts ting.		men eted.	Aver- age dura-		Average	e hours.		Maxi- mum	Mini- mum
Seasons.	Num- ber.	Per cent.	Num- ber.	Per cent.	tion in weeks.	Hours per week.	Pre- vailing daily hours.	Long day.	Short day.	week- ly hours,	week- ly hours.
Regular hours: Normal season 1 Dull season 1 Busy season Overtime hours: Normal, dull, and busy seasons 3	63 38 19	93, 9 56, 6 28, 3	6,474 2,874 1,258	98. 7 43. 8 19. 2	363 135 184 61	53½ 485 54½ 54½	91 84 93 107	2111	5½ 5 6½ 6½	60 59 62½ 69	42 <u>4</u> 30 45 <u>1</u> 50

DURATION OF SEASONS AND WORKING HOURS AS REPORTED BY INDIVIDUALS.

Unlike the situation in the department stores, where the seasons vary for different departments and each girl can speak only for the demands on herself, the run of business in a factory engaged in the manufacture of a single grade of goods affects all employees at the same time except for the varying amount of unemployment among workers during the dull season.

The information given by the individual women corresponds so nearly with that given by the employers that it confirms rather than supplements the employers' information. The following tables show the duration of seasons and working hours as reported by 517 women. It should be noted here as in the employers' tables that the hours for the normal, dull, and busy seasons are exclusive of all overtime, and that all overtime periods are grouped in one table.

One establishment did not report hours, another did not report daily hours.
 Only 1 establishment reported a long day.
 Five establishments reported some overtime, but did not specify the amount or the number of women

NORMAL SEASON.

The summary for the normal season shows that 99 per cent of the women reported a normal season averaging 32½ weeks in duration, with weekly hours averaging 51½, rather less than the employers reported. This may be accounted for in part by the fact that through incorrect addresses a slightly undue proportion of individuals reporting were from establishments running shorter hours.

The average day was $9\frac{1}{6}$ hours, as compared with $9\frac{1}{3}$ reported by employers, the short day $5\frac{1}{6}$ hours, as compared with $5\frac{1}{2}$. The longest regular weekly hours in the normal season reported by any individual were 61, and by employers 60; and the shortest, 39 reported by individuals, while the employers reported $42\frac{3}{4}$.

Eighteen and eight-tenths per cent of the individuals reported weekly hours of 48 or under, a rather larger per cent than was reported by the employers, which may have been influenced by the circumstance mentioned above. The per cent reporting regular hours of 60 or over per week was very small, being only 0.6 per cent.

TABLE 56.—WORKING HOURS IN NORMAL SEASON, REPORTED BY 517 WOMEN EMPLOYED IN GARMENT FACTORIES IN 5 CITIES.

						Season	of norn	nal hou	rs.			
	Women	Dura- tion of		Aver-		Averag	e hours.		Per o	ent reweekly	porting	g aver-
Cities.	sched- uled.	em-	Women report- ing.	age dura- tion in weeks.	Hours per week.	Pre- vail- ing daily hours.	Long day.	Short day.	39 to 48.	Over 48 and un- der 55.	and dun- t-der 6	60 to 61.
Indianapolis ¹ South Bend Fort Wayne Terre Haute Evansville Total	259 85 87 41 45	41 42½ 39¼ 32¾ 39¼ 40	255 85 87 41 45	30 3 383 333 263 314 324	50½ 50½ 51¼ 53¼ 55½	9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9	2 9 1 1	5 5 43 7 5½ 5½	30. 6 3. 5 10. 4 17. 1	62.7 96.5 65.5 43.9 26.7	6.3 24.1 36.6 71.1	0.4 2.4 2.2

[Hours shown in this table do not include overtime.]

DULL SEASON.

Forty-three and seven-tenths per cent of the individuals reported dull season—almost exactly the proportion reported by employers—and the duration of the season was 11½ weeks as reported by individuals, while the employers reported 13½ weeks. This difference in duration may be accounted for by the fact that the individuals would lose some time in the dull season through lay offs, and would also take their vacations (if they took any) in that season. The average weekly hours are 44½, daily 8½, with the short day of 4½ hours.

 $^{^1}$ Four did not report duration of season, 3 did not report weekly hours, and 2 did not report daily hours. 2 Only 1 woman reported a long day.

The maximum weekly hours reported were $57\frac{1}{2}$, as compared with 59 reported by the employers, whose minimum (30 hours per week) was 10 hours in excess of the minimum of 20 hours reported by one woman.

Ninety-six and one-half per cent of the women reporting dull season reported weekly hours under 55, while the employers reported only 62 per cent of the women working under 55 hours during the dull season. Sixty-five and one-half per cent of the women reported 48 hours or under, but the employers reported only 32½ per cent of the women affected by those hours.

From women employed in such establishments as reported sharp seasonal variations the complaint came repeatedly that they did not have enough work to keep them busy all day during the dull season, and some said they did not have enough work to pay them for going to the factory. It should be remembered that this would not apply to the garment industry throughout Indiana, but only to a small proportion of the factories.

TABLE 57.—WORKING HOURS, IN DULL SEASON, REPORTED BY 517 WOMEN EMPLOYED IN GARMENT FACTORIES IN 5 CITIES.

	Women	Aver-	Av	erage hou	ırs.	Per	cent repo	rting av lours of—		ekly
Cities.	report- ing dull season.	age dura- tion in weeks.	Hours per week.	Prevail- ing daily hours.	Short day.	20 and under 35.	35 and under 42.	42 to 48.	Over 48 and under 55.	55 to 57½.
Indianapolis	123 30 38 23 12	12½ 11 10¼ 10¾ 7¼	411½ 48½ 44½ 44½ 48 51½	84 81 81 81 91	4 1 4 1 5 2 5 2 5 2 5 2 5 2 5 2 5 2 5 2 5 5 2 5 5 2 5 5 2 5 5 2 5 5 2 5 5 2 5	22.0	31.7 6.7 5.3 4.4 8.3	21. 1 26. 6 76. 3 47. 8 16. 7	25. 2 66. 7 15. 8 43. 5 25. 0	2. 6 4. 4 50. 0
Total	226	111	445	84	1 44	12.0	19.9	33.6	31.0	3.5

[Hours shown in this table do not include overtime.]

BUSY SEASON.

A busy season was reported by 132, or 25.5 per cent, of the individuals, while the employers who reported a busy season employed 19.2 per cent of the women. The average hours for the individuals were $55\frac{11}{12}$ weekly, $9\frac{2}{4}$ daily, $6\frac{1}{12}$ on the short day, and a long day of $11\frac{1}{3}$ hours reported by 16 women. These hours are almost exactly the same as those reported by the employers. In the matter of maximum and minimum, however, the individuals report a slightly higher maximum week, $63\frac{1}{4}$ hours, and a slightly higher minimum, 47 hours. This maximum does not represent the hours for any establishment as a whole, simply the hours worked by one woman, and the same is true of the minimum.

¹ 193 women reported a short day.

Of the individuals, 47.7 per cent reported weekly hours of 55 or more. There were approximately 18 per cent who reported hours over 60. In this season only 6.8 per cent reported a week of 48 hours or under. These per cents differ considerably from the per cents reported by the employers for specified weekly hours, but as only 19 employers reported a busy season, one or two large establishments might, and do, affect the per cents of women employed, so that they lose their value for comparison with the individuals.

Table 58.—WORKING HOURS IN BUSY SEASON REPORTED BY 517 WOMEN EMPLOYED IN GARMENT FACTORIES IN 5 CITIES.

	•						•						
	Wom- en re-	Aver-		Average	e hours.			ent rep eekly ho		average			
Cities.	port- ing busy season.	age du- ration in weeks.	Hours per week.	Pre- vailing daily hours.	Long day.	Short day.	47 to 48.	Over 48 and under 55.	55 and under 60.	60 to 63 4.			
Indianapolis South Bend Fort Wayne Terre Haute	91 2 17	912 4 63	55 3 50 55½	93 9 103	111	6½ 5 5⅓	8.8 5.9	53. 8 100. 0 35. 3	22.0	15. 4 17. 6			
Evansville	22	85	57 3	93	121	73		13. 7	54.5	31.8			
Total	132	83	55 11	93	1113	2 6 1 2	6.8	45. 5	29.5	18. 2			

[Hours shown in this table do not include overtime.]

OVERTIME SEASON.

Ninety-one, or 17.6 per cent, of the individuals report overtime while the employers report but 12.7 per cent of the women working overtime. The average duration of the overtime season reported by individuals is $3\frac{1}{2}$ weeks; by employers, $6\frac{1}{3}$ weeks. It is probable that many individuals worked a little overtime, and these occasional short periods of overtime may have sometimes not been reported for the establishment as a whole. The figures given in this season for the individuals represent the average weekly hours for overtime periods, with the prevailing daily hours in those weeks. The average weekly hours for these weeks are $58\frac{1}{2}$, daily hours $10\frac{1}{6}$, long day $10\frac{5}{6}$, and short day 6 hours. These correspond almost exactly with the hours reported by employers for the overtime periods, except that the long day reported by employers averages 12 hours.

The maximum weekly hours reported by any individual were 75, eight hours longer than the employers' maximum, and the minimum hours reported by any individual were 51, as compared with 49½ reported by employers. As in other seasons, these differences might quite possibly occur, since the maximum and minimum represent in each case the hours of one person only.

¹ Only 16 report a long day.

^{2 112} women reported a short day.

The individual reports, as well as those of employers, practically all show more than 55 hours per week during the overtime period, while the employers report larger per cents at the longer hours than the individuals.

Summing up the relation between the reports of seasons and hours as given by employers and by individuals, the two reports show in general close agreement in the averages of daily and weekly hours for the different seasons. The duration of seasons varies in the two reports, as it must, since one is the report of individuals, a few of whom worked the entire 52 weeks in the year, and the other is the report of establishments covering the whole year. The per cents of women working specified weekly hours in the several seasons as reported by employers differs from those reported by individuals.

TABLE 59.—OVERTIME HOURS REPORTED BY 517 WOMEN EMPLOYED IN GARMENT FACTORIES IN 5 CITIES.

	Wo- men	Aver-		Λ verag	e hours.		Per ce		orting av lours of-	verage v 	veekly
Cities.	re- port- ing over- time.	age dura- tion in weeks	Hours per week.	Pre- vail- ing daily hours.	Long day.	Short day.	51 and under 55.	55 and under 60.	60 and under 65.	65 and under 70.	70 to 75.
Indianapolis. South Bend. Fort Wayne. Terre Haute. Evansville.	55 3 8 7 18	4 3 2 3 3 3 2	57½ 56½ 59 61¼ 60¾	10 10 11 11 <u>1</u> 10	11½ 12½ 10¾	61 81 61 61 62 62	23. 6 66. 7 12. 5 14. 3	56. 4 50. 0 14. 3 50. 0	12. 7 33. 3 25. 0 57. 1 33. 3	7. 3 12. 5 14. 3 11. 1	5. 6
Total	91	3.5	581	101	1 105	2 6	18. 7	49. 4	22.0	8.8	1.

^{1 42} reported a long day.

PAY FOR OVERTIME.

Of the 67 garment factories scheduled, 31, or 46.2 per cent, reported overtime to some extent; all reported extra payment for overtime, 23, or 74 per cent, at regular rate and 8, or 26 per cent, at rate and one-half. Of the individual women reporting overtime, 86.8 per cent reported pay for overtime.

In contrast to the employers' statements, 13.2 per cent of the women individually scheduled reported overtime which was not paid for at all. Since it is obviously impossible not to pay pieceworkers for overtime, the inference would be, as is the fact, that the women reporting overtime without pay are for the most part time workers. The actual amounts earned by time workers through overtime were not large and did not affect the earnings to any extent.

² 71 reported a short day.

TABLE 60.—NUMBER AND PER CENT OF WOMEN REPORTING OVERTIME WITH PAY AND WITHOUT PAY AND RATE PAID FOR OVERTIME IN GARMENT FACTORIES OF 5 CITIES.

	Wo-	portin	en re- g over- ne.	Wo	men rej	porting	overtim	e with	pay.	time	en re- g over- with- pay.
Cities.	men sched- uled.	Num-	Per	То	tal.	At regu-	At rate	At	Not re-	Num-	Per
		ber.	cent.	Num- ber.	Per cent.	lar rate.	and a half.	time rate.	port- ing rate.	ber.	cent.
Indianapolis South Bend	259 85	55 3	21. 2 3. 5	55 2	100. 0 66. 7	43	7	3	2	1	33.3
Fort Wayne	87	8	9. 2	7	87.5	3		4		i	12.5
Terre Haute Evansville	41 45	7 18	17. 1 40. 0	7 8	100.0 44.4	4	1	2	1	` 10	55.6
Total	517	91	17.6	79	86.8	59	8	9	3	12	13. 2

EARNINGS.

The method employed in getting the earnings of the women employed in the garment factories was, in general, the same as that employed in getting the earnings of those in the stores. The earnings as reported by the individuals were taken in exactly the same way; that is, average weekly earnings for full-time weeks worked, with the exception that occasional days' absences were not deducted from the time worked. A "full-time week," however, should be understood to mean the full time that the factory was running. In other words, if a factory cut its hours from 54 to 44 on account of slack work, the 44 hours would be considered a week's work, though the time was less and the earnings probably less than in the normal season.

The employers were asked to submit their pay rolls for the selected week, and since the greater part of the women were pieceworkers, who would therefore have no weekly rate of pay, the actual earnings for the selected week of each woman or girl on the pay roll were taken.

The prevailing method of pay in the garment industries of Indiana, the method reported by employers for 82 per cent of the women in their establishments and by 74 per cent of the individual women interviewed, was the piece-rate system. Practically all work which can be put on that basis is paid for "by the piece." The time-work is generally of such a nature that it can not be adapted to piece rates. Time rates are also paid to beginners for the first few weeks, during which their piece-rate earnings would be so low as to discourage them from persevering until they had gained at least a partial mastery of their occupations.

With this system the basis of payment, the seasons and varying tension of business have a greater influence on the earnings in the garment factories than on the earnings in the stores, except where the commission system is in effect in the stores. When the orders

come fast to the firm, the work comes fast to to pieceworkers and they can work to the greatest advantage, even though they work no longer hours than when business is slow and work comes with waits of varying length in between. Whenever there is an actual lengthening of hours, the earnings are, of course, increased, and conversely with the shortening of hours in dull seasons, the earnings are decreased.

The cumulative per cents of all women, both piece and time workers, at specified earnings, as reported both by the employers and by the individuals, are shown in the two tables following. Table 61 shows again what was shown in the discussion of the wage data from stores, viz, that the 5 cities in which individual schedules were taken represent the same industrial sections of the State as are represented by the entire 10 cities.

TABLE 61.—CUMULATIVE PER CENTS OF WOMEN RECEIVING SPECIFIED WEEKLY EARNINGS IN 67 GARMENT FACTORIES, AS SHOWN BY ESTABLISHMENT PAY ROLLS FOR A REPRESENTATIVE WEEK.

		A ver-			1	'er cen	t with	weekl	y earni	ngs		
Cities.	Women re- ported.	for	Un- der \$3.	Un- der \$4.	Un- der \$5.	Un- der \$6.	Un- der \$7.	Un- der \$8.	Un- der \$9.	Un- der \$10.	Un- der \$12	\$12 or over.
Indianapolis	1 585 891	\$7. 78 6. 36 6. 62 16. 28 6. 16	7. 5 8. 9 8. 8 13. 5 14. 8	13. 6 19. 1 15. 8 26. 0 22. 4	20. 6 31. 1 28. 2 38. 7 32. 3	32. 8 44. 8 42. 5 48. 3 49. 8	43. 1 58. 3 56. 8 61. 6 65. 5	54. 6 72. 7 71. 9 70. 6 77. 1	64. 8 83. 7 80. 9 77. 9 85. 7	73. 2 91. 5 88. 7 83. 9 91. 1	86. 9 98. 3 95. 5 92. 7 94. 6	13. 1 1. 7 4. 5 7. 3 5. 4
Total	331	1 6. 86 6. 73	8. 9 8. 8	16. 9 13. 9	26. 8 26. 9	39. 8 39. 0	52. 1 55. 3	64. 9 67. 4	74. 9 77. 6	82. 7 88. 2	92. 5 96. 1	7. 5 3. 9
and New Albany Grand total	 	5. 28 1 3. 92	9. 2	35. 6 17. 2	51. 9 27. 5	59. 4 40. 3	70. 6 52. 8	80. 0 65. 5	88. 8 75. 4	94. 4 83. 3	92. 9	7.1

¹ Including the average earnings of 100 women whose specified earnings were not reported.

² Total for five cities in which individual schedules were taken.

TABLE 62.—CUMULATIVE PER CENTS OF WOMEN RECEIVING SPECIFIED WEEKLY EARNINGS, AS REPORTED BY 513 INDIVIDUALS EMPLOYED IN GARMENT FACTORIES.

		A ver-			Pe	er cent	with v	veekly	earnin	ıgs—		
Cities,	Women report- ing.		Un- der \$3.	Un- der \$4.	Un- der \$5.	Un- der \$6.	Un- der \$7.	Un- der \$8.	Un- der \$9.	Un- der \$10.	Un- der \$12.	\$12 or over,
Indianapolis	S5	\$7. 96 6. 83 2 7. 36 6. 56 7. 29	1. 6 3. 5 3. 6 4. 4	5. 4 12. 9 8. 3 7. 3 11. 1	15. 1 24. 7 16. 7 26. 8 20. 0	24. 4 36. 5 23. 8 41. 5 31. 1	36. 8 54. 1 36. 9 56. 1 40. 0	48, 4 68, 2 53, 6 73, 2 66, 7	64. 3 78. 8 79. 8 87. 8 77. 8	77. 1 88. 2 86. 9 88. 1 82. 2	90. 7 97. 6 97. 6 95. 1 91. 1	9. 3 2. 4 2. 4 4. 9 8. 9
Total	513	3 7. 50	2.3	7.8	18.3	28.3	41. 3	56. 1	72.3	81.9	93. 4	6.6

Including 1 whose rate of pay was not reported.
 Including 3 whose rate of pay was not reported.
 Including 4 whose rate of pay was not reported.

As this total is taken from a pay roll for a representative week, it will not agree with totals on other tables showing the usual number of women employed in normal season.

VALUE OF AVERAGE WEEKLY EARNINGS AS REPORTED BY EMPLOYERS.

The significance of average weekly earnings in this investigation, as in every other, must be judged in the light of the conditions under which such earnings were taken. Employers were requested to submit for a "representative week" a complete pay roll, including the hours worked. Only 28, or a little more than 42 per cent, of the 66 establishments furnishing data were able to furnish the actual hours worked by both time and piece workers during this representative week, though an additional 18 establishments, or 27 per cent of the firms, were able to furnish the actual working hours of time workers. Inasmuch, however, as the pieceworkers outnumber the time workers, at the rate of about 5 to 1 in the garment factories of Indiana, the question arises as to the value of the average weekly earnings furnished by the employers.

The 46 establishments, 28 of which furnished a record of the actual hours worked by time and piece workers, employed more than 3,300 women and girls, or over 55 per cent of the total number of women and girls on the pay rolls in the 66 garment factories furnishing payroll data. It is possible, therefore, to get a fair idea of the significance of average weekly earnings from these establishments without making any deductions from the context of industrial conditions in which they were taken.

The table below shows that the time lost from the full working schedule by time workers in the 46 establishments ranged in the several cities from 0.8 per cent to 12.8 per cent, averaging for all cities 6.3 per cent. The pieceworkers show a loss ranging from nothing to 15.3 per cent, averaging for all cities 11.3 per cent. It is more than probable that this 11.3 per cent is in excess of the actual time lost, due to the fact, that quite a number of large concerns pay every two weeks, and their records therefore cover a two-week period. In computing averages for one week both time and earnings were divided by 2, even though the hours worked by certain individuals appeared to be but a full-week schedule. Unless such cases were definitely marked as working hours for one week, and such notations were rarely made, no assumptions were made and the policy of dividing the two-week pay roll was consistently followed throughout. Had such exceptions been made, the percentage of loss in time would have dropped considerably below 11 per cent for the pieceworkers, as in the 9 establishments paying every two weeks there were 200, or approximately 11 per cent, of such cases where what may easily have been a full week was cut in two.

Furthermore, whenever a firm attempts to maintain a 60-hour schedule, the percentage of lost time is higher than when a firm maintains, for example, a 54-hour schedule. In other words, the working

hours in Indiana seem to be gravitating toward a shorter actual schedule, irrespective of the nominal schedule. Consequently the employees of one firm may be reported as losing 10 per cent of the nominal schedule, though their actual working hours were the same as those of the employees of another firm whose loss of time from the nominal schedule was very much less than in the case of the first firm. It appears, however, from the following table that the maximum amount of time lost during the representative week, as shown by records available for one-half of the women employed in Indiana garment trades, did not exceed an average of 10.3 per cent, taking time and piece workers together:

TABLE 63.—ACTUAL HOURS WORKED IN A REPRESENTATIVE WEEK COMPARED WITH THE FULL-TIME WORKING HOURS IN 46 GARMENT FACTORIES REPORTING BOTH EARNINGS AND HOURS.

	Women on estab-	lishmen ing act worked	in estab- its report- ual hours in a repre- re week.	Average hou	e weekly irs.	D
Cities.	on estab- lishment pay rolls.1	Number.	Per cent.	Full- time hours.	Actual hours worked in a represent- ative week.	Per cent of time lost.
Indianapolis:						
Pieceworkers	1,823	791	43.4	54.4	47. 4	12.9
Time workers	445	183	41.1	53. 4	50.2	6.0
South Bend:					4-0	
Pieceworkers	1,390	1, 195	86.0	52.9	47.0	11.0
Fort Wayne:	195	176	90.3	51.5	47.2	8.3
Pieceworkers	747	302	40.4	50, 6	42.8	15.3
Time workers.	144	32	22.2	51.2	48.4	5.5
Terre Haute:	111	02		01.2	10, 1	0.0
Pieceworkers	428	97	22.7	48.2	48.2	
Time workers	57	40	70.2	55, 1	54.6	.8
Richmond and Muncie:						
Pieceworkers	293	152	51.9	50.0	48.7	2.6
Time workers	38	38	100.0	51.2	48.7	5.5
Evansville:				*0.0		
Pieceworkers	112	87	77.7	52.8	47.4	10.1
Time workers	111	105	94.6	55.3	54.7	1.0
Hammond, La Fayette, and New Albany:	72	49	68.1	61.0	52.8	13.5
Time workers	88	76	86.4	61.0	53. 2	12.8
TIMO WOLDS						
Total:	İ	1	1		Į	1
Pieceworkers	4,865	2,673	54.9	52.9	46.9	11.3
Time workers	1,078	650	60.3	53.9	50.6	6.3
Piece and time workers	5,943	3,323	55.9	53.1	47.6	10.3

¹ Including 66 establishments.

The average weekly earnings reported by employers, therefore, should, other factors being equal, reflect within 10 per cent the average weekly earnings of a full-time week. That this conclusion is in accord with the facts develops upon comparing the average weekly earnings as reported by the women individually scheduled, which

¹ See Table 62; also method of computing earnings of individuals, p. 32.

are the average earnings for substantially a full-time week during the period of employment, and the average weekly earnings as reported by the employers 1 for a representative week. The average earnings reported by the individuals for a full-time week are approximately 8.4 per cent higher than the average weekly earnings reported by the employers for a representative week, wherein the time lost is approximately 10 per cent in the cases where records are available. does not mean that the groups earning specified amounts necessarily come within 10 per cent of each other, for the time losses shown on an employer's pay roll may be due to a few individuals working only a small fraction of a week or to many individuals losing a small fraction of time. In each case the average amount of time lost and the average earnings for the whole pay roll might be the same, but the groups losing time and earnings would be materially affected. Tables 61 and 62 show that the groups earning specified amounts, as reported by employers and by individuals, are in fact materially different except for the last four groups.

That the amount of time lost during the week fairly representing the level of business should not exceed an average of approximately 10 per cent, is not surprising if the subject is discussed in close relation to the conditions under which the average earnings were secured and with constant and intelligent reference to the exigencies of successful business. It must not be overlooked that the employers were asked to submit a pay roll fairly representing normal conditions of business. There would be no motive for failing to comply with this request to the extent of submitting a pay roll which represented less than normal business activity, and consequently subnormal weekly earnings. There might be a tendency to submit pay rolls that represented more than normal activity, and consequently less than the normal amount of lost time. If, therefore, the pay roll which represents normal, if not more than normal business activity, showed an excessive loss of time, either there is a lack of scientific management because of inadequate productivity, unprofitable investment in idle equipment, waste of power and frequently of heat, as well as a needless expenditure for general operation—all of which is inconsistent with the successful conduct of business over any long period of time; or the excessive loss of time reflects an oversupply of labor under normal conditions, which in this case was not in accord with the facts. On the contrary, it was apparent that the supply of labor was not more than was adequate, and in some instances the employers maintained that if they could get more help they would increase their equipment.

It may be said in passing that even the 10 per cent loss from a pay roll representing normal conditions of business raises the question as to efficiency of administration. In none of the garment factories scheduled were two shifts operating. A number of employers remarked to the investigators that while some of the time workers came promptly and left promptly the pieceworkers were much inclined to come late or to go early. The question arises as to whether such a laxity of working schedule is in the interest of good business. either for the establishment or for the employee. If the workinghour schedule is well within the sustained working capacity of the average operator, 100 machine pieceworkers coming late or going early a half hour a day means 50 hours of lost productivity a day, or 300 hours in the week, to say nothing of any waste of power or of the fact that the overhead charges are practically the same with those 300 hours of productivity saved or lost, yet this loss of time amounts to less than 6 per cent on the basis of a 9-hour day. On the other hand, the pieceworking employee is losing between 5 and 6 per cent of the possible earnings a day, even if the schedule is but a 9-hour schedule. If the schedule is excessive for the amount of strain involved in the work, causing the women to work less than the regular factory hours, ordinarily there will still be a tendency frequently to work the full factory hours in order to make up for lost time, thus cutting off needed rest and leisure and paying for it afterwards in reactions and further losses of time.

GROUP EARNINGS.

The actual earnings reported by individuals for full-time weeks show that only 41.3 per cent of the women in the garment industries were in the group earning less than \$7, the group in which 48.9 per cent of the department-store women were found. This does not mean that the factory workers earned on the whole more than the store workers. As a matter of fact, their average earnings were a trifle lower, but it does mean that there were fewer garment workers at the lowest earnings and that their earnings advance more rapidly up to a certain point than the earnings of women in stores, as is shown in Tables 23 and 62. Nearly three-fourths of the women in the garment factories and two-thirds in the stores average less than \$9 a week for the weeks actually worked. The proportion of women earning over \$10 is 18 per cent in the garment factories and about 27 per cent in the stores.

COMPARATIVE EARNINGS OF PIECE AND TIME WORKERS.

Closely related to earnings is the question of occupation. The principal difference in occupations in the Indiana garment factories, owing to the fact that the chief article of manufacture is coarse

clothing, is in the work done by pieceworkers and by time workers. For the pieceworkers the occupations were practically all some variation of machine operating. Though the different machine processes in the manufacture of a garment were generally classed as different occupations, the distinctions were largely arbitrary and not uniform, as they varied with the product of each establishment. As this was not essentially a study of occupations, no attempt has been made to subdivide into specific occupations the number of women in the two main groups of piece and time workers. In general, it may be said that the factories manufacturing coarse clothing have less sharply defined occupations, while the establishments manufacturing high-grade men's or women's clothing have a greater variety of occupations as well as a wider range of pay.

Earnings of piece and time workers are shown in the foregoing and the following tables, summarizing reports of employers and of women employees.

TABLE 64.—CLASSIFIED WEEKLY EARNINGS OF WOMEN EMPLOYED IN 66 GARMENT FACTORIES IN 10 LOCALITIES, AS SHOWN BY THE ESTABLISHMENT PAY ROLLS FOR A REPRESENTATIVE WEEK.

,				Piec	ework	ers ear	ning				m	Aver-
Cities.	Under \$3.						\$8 to \$8.99.		\$10 to \$11.99.	\$12 and over.	Total piece- work- ers.	earn- ings of piece- work- ers.
Indiananalis:												-
Indianapolis: Number Per cent South Bend:	151 8.3	119 6. 6	128 7. 0	204 11. 2	172 9. 4	212 11.6	173 9. 5	161 8. 8	268 14. 7	235 12. 9	1,823 80.4	\$7.78
Number	113 8. 1	112 8, 1	174 12. 5	192 13. 8	190 13. 7	213 15. 3	166 11. 9	119 8. 6	96 6. 9	15 1, 1	1,390 87.7	6. 47
Fort Wayne: Number Per cent Terre Haute:	70 9. 4	55 7. 4	95 12. 7	100 13. 4	100 13. 4	113 15. 1	67 9. 0	63 8. 4	55 7. 4	29 3.8	747 83. 8	6. 58
Number Per cent Richmond and Mun-	52 12. 2	44 10.3	46 10. 7	32 7. 5	10.3	33 7. 7	21 4. 9	18 4. 2	25 5.8	19 4. 4	1 428 88. 2	6.00
cie: Number Per cent Evansville:	24 8. 2	12 4.1	30 10. 2	34 11. 6	53 18. 1	39 13. 3	31 10.6	35 11. 9	24 8. 2	11 3. 8	293 88. 5	6. 93
Number Per cent Hammond, La Fayette, and New Al-	14 12. 5	14 12.5	15 13. 4	23 20. 6	24 21. 4	7.1	7.1	1.8	1.8	1.8	112 50. 2	5. 46
bany: Number Per cent	1 1. 4	3 4. 2	6 8.3	9.7	13 18. 1	13 18. 1	12 16. 6	9 12, 5	8 11.1		72 45. 0	7. 34
Total: Number Per cent	425 8. 7	359 7. 4	494 10. 1	592 12, 2	596 12. 3	631 13. 0	478 9. 8	407 8. 4	478 9. 8	311 6. 4	1 4,865 81.9	6, 95

¹ Including 94 pieceworkers in one establishment which reported average earnings only.

TABLE 64.—CLASSIFIED WEEKLY EARNINGS OF WOMEN EMPLOYED IN 66 GARMENT FACTORIES IN 10 LOCALITIES, AS SHOWN BY THE ESTABLISHMENT PAY ROLLS FOR A REPRESENTATIVE WEEK-Concluded.

				Time	work	ers ea	rning	;—				Aver-		Aver-
Cities.	Un- der \$3.	\$3 to \$3.99.	\$4 to \$4.99.	\$5 to \$5.99.	\$6 to \$6.99.	\$7 to \$7.99.	\$8 to \$8,99.	\$9 to \$9.99.	\$10 to \$11.99.	\$12 and over.	Total time work- ers. ¹	age earn- ings of time work- ers.	Total piece and time work-	
Indianapolis:														
Number Per cent South Bend:	19 4. 3	19 4.3	31 7. 0	74 16. 6	61 13. 7	48 10. 8	58 13. 0	31 7. 0	42 9. 4	62 13. 9	445 19, 6	\$ 7. 76	2, 268	\$ 7. 7 8
Number Per cent Fort Wayne:	28 14, 3	50 25, 6	16 8. 2	25 12. 8	24 12. 3	16 8. 2	8 4.1	2. 1	12 6. 2	12 6. 2	195 12. 3	5. 54	1,585	6.36
Number Per cent Terre Haute:	5. 6	5. 6	15 10. 4	28 19. 4	27 18. 7	22 15. 3	13 9. 0	6 4. 2	6 4. 2	11 7. 6	144 16. 2	6. 79	891	6. 62
Number Per cent Richmond and Muncie:		7.0	3 5. 3	8.8	7 12. 3	3. 5	7 12. 3	8. 8	15. 8	9 15, 8	² 57 11.8	8.36	485	6. 28
Number Per cent Evansville:	5 13. 2	13. 2	13 34. 2	15. 7	2. 6	2.6	7.9		5.3	5.3	38 11. 5	5. 18	331	6. 73
Number Per cent Hammond, La Fayette, and New Al-	19 16. 5	2.6	6. 1	16 13. 9	9. 6	18 15. 7	9. 6	10 8. 7	5. 2	10 8. 7	111 49. 8	6. 87	223	6. 16
bany: Number Per cent		21 23. 9	20 22. 7	5. 7	5. 7	2 2.3	2.3		1 1. 1		88 55. 0	3.58	160	5. 28
Total: Number Per cent	111 10. 3	110 10. 2	105 9. 7	159 14. 8	136 12, 6	109 10. 1	102 9. 5	56 5. 2	78 7. 2	106 9.8	² 1,078 18. 1	6. 74	5,943	6. 92

TABLE 65.—CLASSIFIED WEEKLY EARNINGS OF WOMEN EMPLOYED IN THE GAR-MENT FACTORIES IN 5 CITIES, AS REPORTED BY INDIVIDUALS.

				P	'iecewo	rkers e	earning	<u></u>					Av- er-
Cities.	Un-der \$3.	\$3 to \$3.99	\$4 to \$4.99.	\$5 to \$5.99.	\$6 to \$6.99.	\$7 to \$7.99.	\$8 to \$8.99.	\$9 to \$9.99.	\$10 to \$11.99	\$12 and over.	Not re- port- ed.	To- tal piece- work- ers.	age earn ings of piece work ers.
Indianapolis:								0.00	-				•
Number Per cent South Bend:	2.0	1 6 2.9	16 7.8	18 8.8	27 13. 2	$\begin{array}{c} 24 \\ 11.7 \end{array}$	16. I	2 26 12.7	31 15.1	19 9.3	0.4	205 100. 0	\$8.0
Number Per cent	1.7	3 5.1	3.4	3 8 13.6	13 22, 0	11 18.6	9 15.3	10.2	10.2			59 100. 0	7.2
Number Per cent Perre Haute:	$\begin{smallmatrix}&&3\\4.&1\end{smallmatrix}$	5.5	8. 2	5.5	12.3	10 13.7	20 27.4	8. 2	9.6	1 1.4	3 4.1	73 100.0	7.3
Number Per cent		2 5.6	4 8 22, 2	5 13.8	3 4 11.1	1 8 22. 2	16.7		2.8	5.6		36 100. 0	6. 8
Evansville: Number Per cent	8.3	8.3	33.3	8.3	8.3	$\frac{3}{25.0}$	8.3					$12 \\ 100.0$	5.4
Total: Number	9	1 16	4 36	3 36	3 54	1 56	69	2 38	45	22	4	385	7.
Per cent	2.3	4.2	9.4	9.4	14.0	14.5	17.9	9.9	11.7	5.7	1.0	100.0	

http://fraser.stlouisfed.org/

Per cent based on total number of piece and time workers.
 Including 6 time workers in one establishment which reported average earnings only.

				Time	work	ers ea	rning					Av-		Av- er-
Cities.	Un- der. \$3.	to	\$4 to \$4.99	\$5 to \$5.99	\$6 to \$6.99	\$7 to \$7.99	\$8 to \$8.99	\$9 to \$9.99	\$10 to \$11.99	\$12 and over.	To- tal time work- ers.	er- age earn- ings	To- tal time and piece- work- ers	age earn- ings of piece and time work- ers.
Indianapolis:		i												
Number Per cent		7.4	9 16.6	6 11. 1	9.3	6 11. 1	8 14.8	7 13.0	7.4	9.3	54 100. 0	\$7.58	259	\$7.96
South Bend: Number Per cent	2	5 19. 2	8 30,8	2 7.7	$\frac{2}{7.7}$	3.8		7.7	7.7	7.7	26 100, 0	5.93	85	6.83
Fort Wayne: Number		19. 2	1	2	2	4	2		2	1	14	7.65	87	7.36
Per cent Terre Haute: Number		1		1	1	28.6	14.3		14.3	7.1	100.0	6, 80	41	6.56
Per cent		20.6		20.0	20.0		••••		40.0	•••••	100.0			

TABLE 65.—CLASSIFIED WEEKLY EARNINGS OF WOMEN EMPLOYED IN THE GAR-MENT FACTORIES IN 5 CITIES, AS REPORTED BY INDIVIDUALS—Concluded.

15 13

2.3 9.1 13.6 11.4 9.8 15.2 10.6

12

9.1 100.0

10.6

132

7.33 1 517

7.50

The average earnings of pieceworkers as reported by individuals (\$7.56) is but 23 cents higher than the average earnings reported by time workers (\$7.33) and the data from employers show a difference of but 24 cents in the earnings of piece and time workers, pieceworkers' average being \$6.95 and time workers' \$6.74. The average earnings for both piece and time workers is \$7.50 as reported by individuals and \$6.92 as reported by employers. The explanation of the lower earnings reported by the employers has been discussed on page 34.

It has been shown that the earnings of piece and time workers do not differ materially. There is nevertheless a difference in the opportunity presented in piece and time work. Few time workers, aside from forewomen, will ever receive more than the weekly rate, while piece rates, being based on the productivity of the average worker, will permit the exceptionally skilled pieceworker to earn much more than the average. But the pieceworker, to earn high pay, must not only be an exceptionally skilled worker, but must work with unceasing speed and concentration. Many girls reported occasional high earnings, but said they could not maintain the rate. Furthermore, the pay roll and cost records of one highly seasonal establishment, studied for a number of weeks during the rush season,

Number...

¹ Including 4 whose average earnings were not reported.

¹ Manufacturing men's coats.

^{66172°-}Bull. 160-14---6

showed that after a week in which overtime had been worked and the workers had been speeded up, so that the output was above the normal for the time worked and the labor cost per garment therefore reduced, the following week, when the hours were reduced to normal, showed not only a decreased output but a decreased rate of output and an increased labor cost per garment. This was but one establishment, so no general deductions can be made, but the indications are significant.

EARNINGS RELATED TO AGE AND EXPERIENCE.

In the following table the relation between earnings, age, and experience is shown:

TABLE 66.—AVERAGE WEEKLY EARNINGS, BY SPECIFIED AGES AND YEARS OF EX-PERIENCE, AS REPORTED BY 508 WOMEN EMPLOYED IN GARMENT FACTORIES.

		d un- years.		d un- years.	18 an der 22	d un- years.		d un- years.	25 an der 30		30 an der 35	
Years of experience.	Num- ber.	Average earnings.	Num- ber.	Average earn- ings.	Num- ber.	Aver- age earn- ings.	Num- ber.	Aver- age earn- ings,	Num- ber.	Aver- age earn- ings.	Num- ber.	Average earn-ings.
Under 1 year	32	\$ 3.49	18	\$5.03	16	\$5.63	8	\$6.08		\$5.47	4	\$5, 82
1 year		4.88	9	5.15	14	6.76	1	8.50	1 2	4.65	1	12.01
vears		[.	18	6.36	18	7.13	5	6.46	6	7.95	1	7: 12
S vears	.	 .	3	6.78	23	7.62	5	7.12	2	7.75	2	8.1
vears	.		} 1	4.50	12	7.29	8	8.76	11	8.62	2	8.5
years					21	7.47	8	6.52	6	9.02	3	10.1
years		[·	3	7.48	11	7.10	7	10. 15	3	9.0
vears	.				3	7.94	7	10.10	7	8.93	1	10.0
years					1	5.39	11	8.78	6	8.89	3	19.9
							5	8.73	14	9.03	l i	7.5
0 vears					J	l	3	7.29	2 18	8.54	4	10.1
1 vears	.				J		1 1	10.00	6	9.96	1	8.3
2 vears					٠	l <i></i> .	1	7.50	4	9.94	7	9.3
3 vears					J	l	:		Ī	12.00	1 2	8.3
4 vears		l	1	1	1	1	1	1	1 2	10.45	2	13. 2
5 years		l			J	1		1	ī	7.50	6	9.0
6 years									l . .		2	8.2
years 0 years 1 years 2 years 3 years 4 years 5 years 7 years	.	l <i></i>			J			l	l		3 2	9.7
18 years		1	l	1			l	1			1 2	8.6
9 years		1	l	1	J	1	l	1			I	1
20 years		1	1	1	1						i	14.0
21 to 29 years												
30 years and over												
o yours and over						1					1	
Total	. 41	3.80	4 49	5.63	111	7.07	4 74	7.78	5 88	8.75	3 50	1 9. 1

Includes wage of 1 working only 44 days a week.
 Not including 2 not reporting earnings.
 Not including 1 not reporting earnings.
 Not including 1 not reporting experience.
 Not including 2 not reporting experience.
 Not including 2 not reporting earnings and 1 not reporting experience.

TABLE 66.—AVERAGE WEEKLY EARNINGS, BY SPECIFIED AGES AND YEARS OF EXPERIENCE, AS REPORTED BY 508 WOMEN EMPLOYED IN GARMENT FACTO-RIES-Concluded.

	35 and 40 y	under ears.		under ears.		under ears.		rs and er.	Tot	al.
Years of experience.	Num- ber.	Average earnings.	Num- ber.	Average earnings.	Num- ber.	Average earnings.	Num- ber.	Average earnings.	Num- ber.	Average earnings.
Under 1 year. 1 year. 2 years. 3 years. 4 years. 4 years. 5 years. 6 years. 7 years. 9 years. 10 years. 11 years. 12 years. 13 years. 14 years. 15 years. 16 years. 17 years. 18 years. 19 years. 10 years. 10 years. 11 years. 12 years. 12 years. 13 years. 14 years. 15 years. 16 years. 17 years. 18 years. 19 years. 20 years. 21 to 29 years. 21 to 29 years. 30 years and over.	3 1 1 3 3 3 4 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 2	\$5.57 8.40 10.00 13.40 13.00 7.57 9.25 6.53 8.45 6.50 11.00 13.00 7.94 9.86 11.00 11.04 8.10	2 1 2 2 3 3 1 1 2 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1	\$6.26 8.00 9.05 7.75 8.00 9.00 8.20 7.46 8.64 7.21 12.57 7.67 11.50 8.79 10.00	1 1 2 2 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	\$4.56 5.00 7.00 7.34 6.83 8.75 7.00 6.91 8.14	1	\$4.53 4.75 4.91	93 1 42 51 41 38 1 45 26 20 27 20 4 23 12 18 5 5 13 4 4 8 4 5	\$4. 79 6. 30 6. 98 7. 96 8. 16 7. 72 8. 35 9. 05 2. 8. 71 8. 88 8. 81 9. 36 12. 08 8. 35 7. 47 9. 28 8. 62 8. 99 8. 88 8. 14
Total	3 44	8.82	37	8.53	11	6.80	3	4.73	5 508	7.51

The most significant fact shown by this table is that neither age nor experience can raise the earnings above the level reached at a comparatively early age and limited number of years of experience. Looking first at the effect of age on the earnings, the table shows that the young girls under 16 years of age reported average earnings of \$3.80, which is 69 cents higher than the earnings of girls the same age in the retail stores. The earnings of each successive age group steadily increase through the group 30 and under 35 years of age. From that point the earnings steadily decrease until for the group 60 years and over the earnings have dropped back to \$4.73 per week. The numbers at these ages are not large enough, however, to be significant. The highest earnings reported for any one group were those of the women 30 to 34 years old, whose average earnings were In this group were 50, or approximately 10 per cent of the The largest group was that 18 and under 22 years of age, whose average earnings were \$7.07. From 25 to 50 years of age the average earnings range between \$8.53 and \$9.19. It must be remembered that these earnings are for practically full-time weeks, only absences amounting to less than six days scattered throughout the period of employment being deducted from the earnings. All other lost time was deducted from the number of weeks employed. Assum-

¹ Not including 1 not reporting age.
2 Includes wage of 1 working only 4½ days a week.
3 Not including 1 not reporting earnings.
4 Not including 3 not reporting earnings.
5 Not including 4 not reporting earnings.
6 Notincluding 4 not reporting earnings, 3 not reporting experience, and 2 not reporting age.

ing that the earnings after 25 were sufficient for the support of the average woman, it is difficult to see how, in the case of many of the women, provision can be made for years preceding 25 or succeeding 50 without financial assistance of some sort, or without sinking to a standard of living too low for "health or reasonable comfort."

The influence of experience on earnings was very similar to that of age. At first every year of experience brings increased earnings, but after a very few years of experience its effect on earnings ceases and so far as experience goes the earnings remain at the same level, raised or lowered principally by the factors of individual efficiency. The earnings of 93 women with less than one year's experience averaged \$4.79. They were not exclusively the younger women by any means, as nearly one-third were over 21 years of age. The number of women reporting more than 10 years' experience was so few that no definite deduction concerning the relation between their earnings and experience can be made. The majority of the women reported from 1 to 10 years of experience.

DURATION OF EMPLOYMENT AND UNEMPLOYMENT.

The average period of employment during the year in the garment industry was, for the 517 women, 40 weeks. When it is taken into consideration that 18 per cent of these women had had less than a year's experience, i. e., entered the industry for the first time some time during the year covered by this investigation, and therefore may have worked considerably less than a full year, and that others may have left the garment industry for some other during the year, the industry in Indiana seems to afford comparatively steady work. The number of weeks varied considerably in the different cities, but in the Terre Haute group, where the average was the lowest, strikes were a large factor in the unemployment. The table following shows that of those who had had one or more years of experience 151, or 38.6 per cent, worked from 48 to 50 weeks, and nearly 74 per cent worked 44 weeks or more.

TABLE 67.—WEEKS OF EMPLOYMENT IN GARMENT FACTORIES DURING THE YEAR, AS REPORTED BY 424 WOMEN HAVING ONE OR MORE YEARS OF EXPERIENCE IN THIS INDUSTRY.

		Num- ber	Numl	er repo	rting sp	ecified v	reeks of	employ	ment di	iring th	e year.
Cities.	Num- ber re- port- ing.	with 1 or more year's	Un- der 26 weeks.		32 and under 36 weeks.	36 and under 40 weeks.	40 and under 44 weeks.	44 and under 48 weeks.	48 and under. 51 weeks.		Weeks not re- ported.
Indianapolis. South Bend. Fort Wayne. Terre Haute. Evansville.	239 85 87 41 45	214 67 70 31 42	10 4 4 7 2	3 1 2 2	5 1 1	10 2 2 2 2 9	13 2 5 5 15	37 11 25 7 7	96 25 21 3 6	37 22 11 5	3
Total: Number Per cent	517 100	424 82. 0	27 6. 4	8 1.9	8 1. 9	25 5. 9	40 9. 4	87 20, 5	151 35, 6	75 17. 7	3 0.7

The question arises as to how the remainder of the time—that is, the time not actually employed in the garment industry—was spent. An analysis has been made showing the proportion of the time spent in the garment industry, in other employment, and in actual unemployment. For this table the number of weeks in 1913 prior to any individual's first employment have been eliminated, so the per cents are based on the 25,581 possible weeks of work for the 517 individuals. Women having no other unemployment in this year except time prior to their first employment have not been considered unemployed.

TABLE 68.—WEEKS OF EMPLOYMENT IN GARMENT FACTORIES, AND IN OTHER EM-PLOYMENTS, AND NUMBER OF WEEKS OF UNEMPLOYMENT IN 1913, REPORTED BY 517 WOMEN EMPLOYED IN GARMENT FACTORIES IN SPECIFIED LOCALITIES.

	Wo-	Possi-	Weeks in gar facto	ment	Work i	n other	employ	ments.	τ	nempl	oy ment	
Cities.	Cities. men sched- weeks	ble weeks	Num-	Per	Wom port	en re- ing.	Wee	ks.	Wome		Wee	ks.
			ber.	cent.	Num- ber.	Per cent.	Num- ber.	Per cent.	Num- ber.	Per cent.		Per cent.
Indianapolis South Bend Fort Wayne Terre Haute Evansville	259 85 87 41 45	12,693½ 4,251 4,185½ 2,132 2,319	10,5995 3,6135 3,4155 1,3485 1,768	83. 5 85. 0 81. 6 63. 2 76. 2	28 11 12 5 6	10. 8 12. 9 13. 8 12. 2 13. 3	466½ 146¾ 152½ 83 128	3.7 3.4 3.6 3.9 5.5	223 70 78 38 44	86, 1 82, 4 89, 7 92, 7 97, 8	1,6273 4914 6174 7003 423	12.8 11.6 14.8 32.9 18.3
Total	517	25, 581	20,7451	81.1	62	12.0	9761	3.8	453	87.6	3,8593	15, 1

 $^{^{1}}$ As a number of the women did not begin working until after the first of the year, the possible weeks o work are less than 52 times the number reporting.

For the 517 women there were 25,581¹ possible weeks of work in the year 1913; 20,745½ of these weeks, or 81.1 per cent, were spent in the garment industry. Looking at the proportion of time spent in the garment industry for each city, it will be seen that the per cent is much lower in Terre Haute and considerably lower in Evansville, thus bringing down the average for the State. The Terre Haute situation was affected materially, as has been noted, by strikes. In Evansville the lower per cent of employment in the garment factories was due to the fact that two large establishments closed down entirely for several weeks in the summer, and as a large part of the Evansville women scheduled were in those establishments the per cent was materially reduced.

OTHER EMPLOYMENT.

Turning to the "other employment," the table shows that 62, or 12 per cent, of the women report other employment, covering 976½ weeks, or 3.8 per cent of the possible weeks of work. Terre Haute, which had the lowest per cent of employment in the garment industry,

¹ This does not include the weeks in 1913 prior to any woman's first employment, but includes all other time.

did not report the highest per cent in other employment; on the contrary, it had almost exactly the average but it had over twice the average per cent of unemployment. Of these 62 women reporting other employment, two-thirds went into other factories, one-sixth went into hotel and laundry work, and the remaining one-sixth reported work in various miscellaneous occupations, including store work, telephone, and office work.

TABLE 69.—WOMEN INDIVIDUALLY SCHEDULED IN GARMENT FACTORIES REPORTING "OTHER EMPLOYMENT," AVERAGE DURATION OF SUCH EMPLOYMENT, AND AVERAGE WEEKLY EARNINGS THEREIN.

		Women	reporting	other empl	loyment.	
Cities.	Number.	Total weeks worked in other employ- ment.	Average number of weeks per person,	Average weekly earnings in other employ- ment.	Average weekly earnings in garment factories.	Average age.
Indianapolis Terre Haute Evansville Fort Wayne South Bend. Total	5 6	466 83 128 1521 1463 9761	17. 3 16. 6 21. 3 12. 7 13. 3	\$6.90 6.81 6.28 4.51 24.80	\$6.04 5.55 6.02 5.21 25.34	23. 4 26. 6 22. 0 19. 3 17. 9

Not including 1 woman doing home dressmaking during 1½ weeks of lay off; earnings not reported.
Not including earnings of 2 women not reported.

As has been stated, the "other employment" was, for two-thirds of the women, employment in some other manufacturing industry. generally the one in which work was most easily obtained. average amount of other employment was 16 weeks per person, a considerable amount, which would seemingly represent definite work carried on for some time. That women who reported this other employment were not up to the average of the workers in the garment industry is shown by their average earnings, which were \$5.62, almost \$2 lower than the general average in the garment factories. Their average earnings in other industries (\$5.91) were a trifle higher than in the garment industries. That they were not the younger girls is shown by their average age, which was 22 for all cities and ranged from 18 to 261 in the different cities. Whether this other employment meant an effort on the part of these women, who had not done even as well as the average in the garment industry, to better themselves by trying some other work can not be more than brought up as a question from the material available at the present time.

UNEMPLOYMENT.

Turning to the actual unemployment of the women studied, there is a period of 3,859\frac{2}{3} weeks, representing 15 per cent of the possible number of weeks of work and affecting 87.6 per cent of the women to be considered.

Inasmuch as it was not the purpose of this investigation to make a sharply analytical study of the causes of unemployment, it is not possible to discuss the subject with as much detail and accuracy as will be necessary before final conclusions will be warranted. The material here is principally valuable as pointing out the factors to be clearly developed in some future study. The full extent-of unemployment or of its various causes can not be shown, but at least the tendencies are plainly indicated and show where further investigation should be made.

To facilitate discussion of the data here presented unemployment has been separated into three groups—unemployment from causes directly traceable to the industry, from causes in no way connected with the industry, and unemployment due to illness.

Under the first group falls the unemployment due to lay off. Six hundred and forty-four and one-sixth weeks or 16.6 per cent of the time unemployed, are attributed to this cause, which was reported by 39.7 per cent of the women. In other words, although the garment trades of Indiana are not sharply seasonal, a worker may expect, according to the figures presented by these 517 women, an average of about $7\frac{1}{2}$ days lay off. In the year 1913 the floods caused additional periods of lay off, since some factories were forced to close, amounting to 505 weeks, or 1.3 per cent of the total amount of unemployment. While this would not be normal, and has not therefore been included under lay offs proper, it was something beyond the power of the worker to prevent. Strikes were responsible for 266½ weeks of idleness, or 6.9 per cent of the total number of weeks of unemployment. Leaving out of the question the last two groups as not normally to be expected, the average worker, then, must expect to provide out of her earnings for 1½ weeks of enforced idleness. The question arises as to whether the worker can not fill in this time to advantage in some other industry. From the information gathered from individuals it would seem that she can not as a rule. Only three women, or 1.7 per cent of those reporting lay off, reported any other employment during that time. For two of them the other work was casual sewing at home for neighbors, for the other it was temporary work during the preholiday rush in a department store. Temporary work is difficult to find at a moment's notice, and temporary workers are not desired in any industry except at periods of temporary activity, nor can they fit themselves to do the work of a new industry in a few days. The probability of having the time of lay off occur simultaneously with the time of temporary activity in some industry where no previous training or special fitness is required is remote.

Turning to the causes which are in no way related to the industry, it appears from the table that "Voluntary vacation" and the group

"Other personal reasons" are dominant factors. By far the greater part of the unemployment not due to the industry was charged to the latter group of causes, i. e., illness in the worker's family, family cares or responsibilities which demanded presence at home, lack of necessity for steady work, etc. One thousand seven hundred and thirty-eight and five-twelfths weeks, or 45.1 per cent, of the unemployment were chargeable to this group of causes, and affected 52.8 per cent of the women.

TABLE 70 .- AMOUNT, CAUSES, AND DISTRIBUTION OF UNEMPLOYMENT REPORTED BY 466 WOMEN FOR THE YEAR 1913 IN GARMENT FACTORIES IN 5 LOCALITIES.

		nploy- ent.			Cá	auses a	nd dis	tributi	on of u	nempl	oymen	t.		
Cities.				Lay	off.				s conn indust		Lay o	fî beca	use of	floods.
	Wom- en re- port- ing.	Weeks		men ting.	We	eks.		men ting.	We	eks.	Wor repor	men ting.	We	eks.
	mg.		Num- ber.	Per cent.	Num- ber.	Per cent.	Num- ber.	Per cent.	Num- ber.	Per cent.	Num- ber.	Per cent.	Num- ber.	Per cent.
Indianapolis . South Bend Fort Wayne . Terre Haute .	2 70 78 38	1,627 ² / ₃ 491 ¹ / ₆ 617 ¹ / ₆ 700 ² / ₃	83 16 41 7	37. 2 22. 9 52. 6 18. 4	1641 262 1181 292	10. 1 5. 4 19. 2 4. 2	3 12	31.6	266 į	38.0	25 29	11. 2 37. 2	20 g	1.3
Evansville Total	5 453	423 3, 859 ²	180	75. 0 39. 7	305½ 644½	72. 2 16. 6	16	9. 1 3. 5	286	7.4	1 55	2.3	505	1.3

		Causes and distribution of unemployment.														
	Ve	oluntar	y vacati	on.	Oth	er perso	nal reas	ons.		Illr	iess.	• •				
Cities.	Wor	men ting.	We	eks.	Wor	men ting.	We	eks.	Wor	men ting.	Wee	eks.				
	Num- ber.	Per cent.	Num- ber.	Per cent.	Num- ber.	Per cent.	Num- ber.	Per cent.	Num- ber.	Per cent.	Num- ber.	Per cent.				
Indianapolis South Bend Fort Wayne Terre Haute Evansville	98 31 39 13	43.9 44.3 50.0 34.2 2.3	2291 673 891 32 2	14. 1 13. 8 14. 5 4. 6 . 5	115 54 39 23 8	51. 6 77. 1 50. 0 60. 5 18. 2	8592 2812 258 3213 172	52. 8 57. 3 41. 8 45. 9 4. 2	66 21 25 10 13	29. 6 30. 0 32. 1 26. 3 29. 5	347 5 54½ 123½ 51½ 75¾	21. 4 11. 1 20. 0 7. 3 17. 9				
Total	182	40.2	420	10.9	239	52, 8	$1,738_{12}^{5}$	45. 1	135	29.8	$653\frac{1}{12}$	16.9				

Voluntary vacation covered 420 weeks, or 10.9 per cent of the time, and was reported by 40.2 per cent of the women. The line between voluntary vacation and some of the other personal reasons is very difficult to draw, but so far as was possible only the time that was voluntarily taken off for the purpose of rest and recreation was

One woman, out of employment for 6 weeks, did not report cause.
 Two women, with total unemployment of 61 weeks, did not report causes.
 Caused by strike.

⁴ Caused by firm going out of business.

⁵ Three women, with total unemployment of 67 weeks, did not report causes.

included in this group. It is a question whether these periods of rest should be called "unemployment." Vacations are recognized as needful for the average worker, and in the mercantile establishments the custom of providing vacations with pay is growing. Only one or two cases of vacation with pay were reported in the garment factories.

Unemployment due to illness.

The remaining cause of unemployment was illness. One hundred and thirty-five, or 29.8 per cent, of the women report a total of 653₁₂ weeks, or 16.9 per cent, of all the unemployment as being due to illness. This, for the whole number of women, would average over 7½ days apiece. If these figures indicate truly the normal conditions, it means that the woman in the garment industry must expect to lose time from illness as well as from lay offs, and something over a week would be the normal expectation. This question of unemployment due to illness has seemed of such importance that an effort has been made to get further light on its relation to the industry and to the individuals, although the material available is not sufficient to do more than indicate probabilities.

The following table gives the amount of illness per individual reporting illness and the rates per thousand for the women in the Indiana garment factories. The only available figures to compare with these, as has previously been stated in the discussion of the department stores, are the figures from the Leipzig Local Sick Fund. The table, therefore, gives both the Indiana and the German figures. Except in the first three age groups the Indiana figures are too small to be materially valuable in making comparisons. Where the numbers are larger, the tendencies seem to be in general agreement with the showing in Indiana.

The rates of illness in the Indiana garment factories are lower than the Leipzig rates for "Clothing and cleaning" trades. The rate of cases of illness for the total, all ages, being 273.6, as compared with 352.5, and the rate of days of illness being 7,933, as compared with 9,112. In this connection it should be taken into consideration that in the Leipzig statistics all women who died are included, which is not the case with the Indiana statistics. The amount of illness per person reporting illness, on the other hand, seems to be higher in the Indiana factories than in the Leipzig industry, the average being 29 days compared with 25.9 days. The effect of this is shown on theartes per thousand, for while the rate of cases of illness in Leipzig is 28.8 per cent higher than in Indiana, the rate of days of illness per thousand is but 14.9 per cent higher.

TABLE 71.—RATE OF SICKNESS AMONG 517 WOMEN EMPLOYED IN GARMENT FACTORIES IN 5 INDIANA CITIES, COMPARED WITH THAT SHOWN BY THE "LEIPZIG LOCAL SICK FUND."

	W		Indian actories		ent	indu Leij	ıstries, ozig Lo	as rep	orted Fund	leaning by the (com-
			Aver-	Rate p	er 1,000.	Num-		Aver-	Rate pe	er 1,000.
Age groups. $$	Total num- ber sched- uled.	Num- ber of cases of sick- ness.	dura- tion of each case of sick- ness (days).	Cases of siek- ness.	Days of sick- ness.	ber of wom- en under obser- vation 1 year.	sick- ness.	duration of each case of sick- ness (days).	Rate p Cases of sick- ness.	Days of sick- ness.
Under 15 years. 15 and under 25 years 1 25 and under 35 years. 35 and under 45 years. 45 and under 55 years. 55 and under 65 years. 65 and under 65 years. 75 years and over.	1	71 42 18 2 1	24. 6 30. 6 34. 4 92. 0 78. 0 3. 0	1,000.0	8, 927 8, 000 18, 400 11, 143 3, 000	544 35, 251 11, 402 3, 540 1, 561 685 170 2	160 11, 619 4, 511 1, 450 658 271 66	23. 4 23. 7 28. 0 30. 2 34. 1 35. 5 55. 1	329. 6 395. 6 409. 6 421. 5 395. 6 388. 2	6,875 7,796 11,070 12,390 14,388 14,047 21,388
Total	517	135	29.0	273, 6	7,933	53, 155	18, 735	25, 9	352.5	9,112

¹ The Indiana figures include in this group girls 14 and under 25 years of age.

LIABILITY INSURANCE AND DIRECT MEDICAL AID.

Twenty-three, or 34.3 per cent, of the establishments employing 30.2 per cent of the women reported the maintenance of liability insurance. Six of these firms reported the benefits available for a limited period only, three others "during disability." This provision is made only for disability due to injury and not for that due to illness.

The table below summarizes available information also concerning the amount of direct aid reported by firms in case of disability resulting from any cause.

Table 72.—PROVISION FOR MEDICAL AID IN 67 GARMENT FACTORIES AS REPORTED BY EMPLOYERS.

Provisions.	Establish- ments reporting.		Wor emplo		Estat me: repor aid f	nts ting		eal aid ring ye		du	blishi ing (ident:	lisabilit	paying y caus	wages ed by
					Lim-	Dur-	Es- tab-	Wom-	A ver- age num-				nber ng—	Num- ber
	Num- ber.	Per cent.	Num- ber.		ited	ing	lish- ments	en re-	ber of days aid was given.		Per cent.	Full wages.	Half or three- fourths wages.	ing rate
Direct	26	38.7	3,557	54. 2	15	7	11	37	1 3. 5	17	25. 4	13	2	2
Through liability companies. Total	23	34.3	1,983	30. 2	6	3	4	11	(2)	12	18.0	7		5
	49	73.1	5,540	84. 4	21	10	15	48	1 3. 5	29	43.3	20	2	7

¹ Average for 13 women only; time of others not reported.

2 Four of the 11 received first aid only; 1 woman received aid for 1 day; the others did not report.

http://fraser.stlouisfed.org/ Federal Reserve Bank of St. Louis

SANITARY PROVISIONS.

The table below, which summarizes the sanitary provisions in the garment factories, shows that in the matter of numbers the toilet accommodations are not deficient. It also shows that almost a fifth of the establishments required some artificial light during the day, the question as to the need of artificial light being limited in the schedules to the "daylight hours" and "clear days." Nearly 39 per cent of the women employed in establishments requiring artificial light in some of their workrooms required such light for their work.

Nearly 42 per cent of the establishments had installed some ventilating devices other than doors and windows. As the range of efficiency in ventilating devices is so great and so dependent upon their proper manipulation, no attempt has been made to state the number of women affected. Neither has any attempt been made to report upon the state of ventilation in the factories, as that was among the special subjects included in the survey made by the National Health Service. The purpose here is only to indicate the standards which the proprietors of Indiana garment factories are trying to maintain by showing the amount of provision made for health and sanitation.

TABLE 73,-TOILET FACILITIES, VENTILATING DEVICES, AND ARTIFICIAL LIGHTING IN 07 GARMENT FACTORIES.

			Toi	lets.		blish- ts re-	Arti	ficial lig	ght requ	ired.
Citles.	Estab- lish ments report- ing.	Women employ-		Average number of wom-	venti device than	ting lating s other doors indows.	men	blish- ts re- ting.		men cted.
			wom- en.	en per seat.	Num- ber.	Per cent.	Num- ber.	Per cent.	Num- ber.	Per cent.
T. 22		0.407	4141			20.0				
Indianapolis South Bend	25 9	2,437 895	2 141 84	17 23	7 5	28. 0 55. 6	8	32. 0 33. 3	304 3 50	46.8 26.3
Fort Wayne	ııı̈́	862	59	15	7	63.6	i	10.0	3	13.0
Terre Haute	6	457	4 28	16	4	66.7		10.0		10. (
Richmond and Muncie New Albany, La Fayette,	5	314	18	17	1	20. 0	1	20. 0	7	9.3
and Hammond	4	296	17	17	3	75.0	(5)			
Evansville	7	255	6 2 2	9	1	14. 3				
Total	67	7 6, 516	369	17	28	41.8	13	19. 4	364	38.8

5 One establishment did not report. 6 One establishment employing 55 women did not report. 7 Not including 45 women for which sanitary conditions were not reported.

DETAILED TABLES—DEPARTMENT AND OTHER RETAIL STORES AND GARMENT FACTORIES.

Following are the detailed tables of all the information furnished by employers and employees concerning hours, wages, and conditions of labor.

Based on number of women in establishments requiring artificial light.
 Not including 1 establishment, employing 3 women, which reports "several," and 2 establishments, employing 16 each, which report 3 seats each, "shared by other offices and factories."
 Two establishments did not report number of women affected.
 One establishment employing 3 women did not report.

WORKING HOURS OF WOMEN EMPLOYED IN SELLING DEPARTMENTS AS REPORTED

[Bracketed hours indicate either a permanent change of hours during the year or that the individual had worked in more than 1 establishment or worked in shifts. Establishments in which different hours apply to workrooms have been noted.]

INDIANAPOLIS

Es-					Regular	workir	ng hour	rs.						hours ertime
tab- lish- ment			Norm	al seaso	n.			D	ull seas	son.		Bu	sy sea	son.
num- ber.	Dura- tion: Wks.	Wo- men af- fect- ed.	Children af- fect- ed.	Hours, usual day.	Hours, ex- cep- tional day.	Hours per week.	Dura- tion: Wks.	Fe- males af- fect- ed.	Hours, usual day.	Hours, ex- cep- tional day.	Hours per week.	Dura- tion: Wks.	Wo- men af- fect- ed.	Hours per week.
. 1	50⅓	7		² 53	{ ³ 10 11 1	503								
2	30}	80	5 6	9	111	56 <u>1</u>	{ 7 8	} 76	$\begin{cases} 9\\ 8 \end{cases}$	11½ 9	56½ 49	} 3	100	561
63	$\begin{cases} 6\\15 \end{cases}$	264	5 20	9	{ 11½	56½ 54	41 51	263	9	{ 11½	56½ 54	3 16	396	$\begin{cases} 56\frac{1}{2} \\ 54 \end{cases}$
6 4	93	1	ļ	9	111	56 1	$ \begin{cases} 4\frac{1}{2} \\ 5\frac{1}{2} \\ 8\frac{1}{3} \\ 7 \end{cases} $) 1	$\begin{cases} 9 \\ 8 \end{cases}$	113	$\begin{cases} 56\frac{1}{2} \\ 51\frac{1}{2} \end{cases}$	231	2	561
5 06	$ \begin{cases} 14\frac{1}{2} \\ 14\frac{1}{2} \\ 29\frac{1}{2} \end{cases} $	68 70 3	5 14 5 15	} 9 9	$\left\{\begin{array}{c} 11 \\ \dots \\ 12 \end{array}\right.$	56 54 57	7 5½ 8½ 10¾	74 68 } 3	\ 8 { 9 8	11 9 12 81	56 49 57 481	3½ 3½ 3 3	102 85 3	56 49 57

¹ Wherever the maximum working hours occurred on the days immediately preceding Christmas the 6 working days before Christmas were considered the week, although a Sunday intervened.

27-day week shift system; 5 short days of 53 hours and 2 long days, either 1 of 111 and 1 of 10 hours or both of 111 hours.

3 Sunday working hours.

4 Also worked 33 hours Christmas day, which immediately followed the maximum week.

5 Children do not work more than 9 hours a day or 54 hours a week throughout the year.

6 Working hours in the alteration department were the same as in the selling department, except as followe:

follows:

Hours worked in alteration department when differing from those of selling department,

	Num- ber of	I'eı	iod of	addition	al over	time ho	urs.	
lish- ment	alter- ation work- ers.	Dura- tion in weeks.	Num- ber of wo- men.		CTCCD-	Aver- age weekly hours.	Maxi- mum weekly hours.	Differences in regular hours.
3	16	$a \begin{cases} 3 \\ 6 \end{cases}$	} 19	∫ 9 9 11	$ \left\{ \begin{array}{c} 11 \\ 11 \\ \end{array} \right. $ $ \left.\begin{array}{c} 11 \\ 11 \\ \end{array} \right. $	60 603	614	None.
4	2	$a\left\{\begin{array}{c} 8\\ 8\end{array}\right.$	} 3	9	$\left\{\begin{array}{c} 11\\113\end{array}\right.$	60½ 58½	61½ 59	No overtime hours before Christmas.
6	3	$\begin{bmatrix} a \\ 2 \\ 1 \\ 1 \end{bmatrix}$	3	{ 9 8	$ \left\{ \begin{array}{c} 11 \\ 12 \\ 81 \\ 101 \\ \end{array} \right. $	61 59 521 501	62 59\ 53\ 50\	Do.
9	39	b 26	14	9	$\begin{cases} 10^{-} \\ 10\frac{1}{2} \end{cases}$	55	55½	None.
12	6					.		No overtime hours before Christmas.
13	130	a 1	90	$\left\{\begin{array}{c}9\\11\frac{1}{2}\end{array}\right.$	}	611	611	Never work more than 54 hours.
16	5	3	10	12	9	66	66	None.
21	48	7	25	$ \begin{cases} 12^{2} \\ 9 \\ 11 \end{cases} $	}	60	60	None.
24	30	ā	30	83	93	52	52	None.
25	6	9	13	81	{ 9 10⅓	} 55½	551	None.
		<u> </u>	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	!	

a Do not work overtime hours given for selling departments.
b Overtime also occurs at irregular intervals throughout the year; do not work the overtime hours given for selling departments.
7 Not reported.

OF DEPARTMENT AND OTHER RETAIL STORES IN SPECIFIED CITIES BY EMPLOYERS.

[Bracketed hours indicate either a permanent change of hours during the year or that the individual had worked in more than 1 establishment or worked in shifts. Establishments in which different hours apply to workrooms have been noted.]

INDIANAPOLIS.

			Wor	kin g ho	ırs durin	ıg overtii	no seas	on,				
Normal season and dull season. Before Christmas.										Es- tab- lish- ment		
Season.	Dura- tion: Wks.	Fe- males af- fect- ed.	Hours, usual day.	Hours, excep- tional day.	Average weekly hours.	Maxi- mum hours per week.	Dura- tion: Wks.	Fe- males af- fect- ed.	Hours, usual day.	Hours, excep- tional day.	Maxinum hours per week.1	num- ber.
							11/2	12	121	13 į	4 821	1
Dull	$ \begin{cases} 1\\1\\ 1 \end{cases}$	} 25 } 25	8 9 103	$\left\{\begin{array}{c} 9\\ 37\\ 11\frac{1}{2}\\ 11\frac{1}{2}\end{array}\right.$	56 63½ 62 59½	57 64½ 69	11/2	91	11½		69	2
			1 9\$	11	593	66½	11/2	3	11 1		69	64
Normal.	2	15	12}	$\left\{ egin{array}{c} 9 \ 12 \end{array} ight.$	} 66	(7)	1/2	114	11	9	60	٠ 5
							1/2	3	12	9	66	.00

WORKING HOURS OF WOMEN EMPLOYED IN SELLING DEPARTMENTS INDIANAPOLIS—Continued.

		-			Regular	workir	ıg hou	rs.					ing ing ove	hours ertime
Es- tab- lish- ment			Norm	al seaso	ο.			Г	ull seas	on.		Bu	sy sea	son.
num- ber.	Dura- tion: Wks.	Wo- men af- fect- ed.	Chil- dren af- fect- ed.	Hours, usual day.	Hours, ex- cep- tional day.	Hours per week.	Dura- tion: Wks.	Fe- males af- fect- ed.	Hours, usual day.	Hours, ex- cep- tional day.	Hours per week.	Dura- tion: Wks.	Wo- men af- fect- ed.	Hours per week.
7	{ 1 30½	226	20	$\left\{\begin{array}{c} 8\frac{1}{2} \\ 9 \end{array}\right.$	}	{ 51 54	4 9	233 251	9 8	41	54 44 1	} 3½	276	54
8	$\begin{cases} 17\frac{1}{2} \\ 13 \end{cases}$	} 75		9	{	56½ 54	8 9	} 75	{ 9 8	11½ 9	56½ 49	} 3	125	56}
39	{ 27 1	145 119	i	9 8	5	54 45	43 1 5	} 110	81 81 8	5	54 51 45	6	161	55
10	$\left\{\begin{array}{c}13\\13\end{array}\right.$	} 47	ļ	$ \begin{cases} 9 \\ 8\frac{1}{2} \end{cases} $	11½ 9	56½ 51½	8½ 9	} 45	{ 9 8	11½ 9	54 49	$\left\{\begin{array}{c}4\\1\\3\\1\\3\end{array}\right.$	47 100 100	56½ 51½ 54
11	$\left\{ \begin{array}{l} 12 \\ 17\frac{1}{2} \end{array} \right.$	65	 .	{ 91 83	11 9	564 523	7 10	} c5	{ 91 83	11 9	565 523	1 3	125	{ 565 533
3 12	$\left\{\begin{array}{c}9\\21\frac{1}{2}\end{array}\right.$	} 44	15	81,3	{ 11 ₁ 8 ₂	56 53½	$\begin{cases} 7\\1\\9 \end{cases}$	59	811 811 811 711	1113	56 51½ 47¾	3	76	5 3½
³ 13	$\left\{\begin{array}{c} 8\\14\end{array}\right.$	395	4 16	9	113	{ 56½ 54	$ \begin{cases} $	411	8 9 9 8	11½ 9	56½ 54 49	45	561	54

¹ Hours worked on holiday which occurred in this week.

Hours worked in alteration department when differing from those of selling department.

	Num- ber of	Per	riod of	additio	nal over	time ho	urs.	
lish- ment	alter- ation work- ers.	Dura- tion in weeks.	Num- ber of wo- men.		evceb-		Maxi- mum weekly hours.	Differences in regular hours.
3	16	$a \begin{cases} 3 \\ 6 \end{cases}$	} 19	9 9 11	$ \left\{ \begin{array}{c} 11 \\ 11\frac{1}{2} \\ \end{array} \right. $	60 ₂	61.}	None.
4	2	a{ 8 8	} 3	9	{ 11 11}	60½ 58½	61½ 59	No overtime hours before Christmas.
6	3	$a \begin{cases} 7\\2\\1\\1 \end{cases}$	3	$\begin{cases} 9 \\ 8 \end{cases}$	$ \begin{cases} 11 \\ 12 \\ 8 \\ 10 \\ \hline{1} \end{cases} $	61 59 521 501	62 59½ 53½ 50¾	Do.
9	39	b 26	14	9	10 10½	} 55	55}	None.
12	6					·····		No overtime hours before
13	130	a 1	90	$\left\{\begin{array}{c}9\\11\frac{1}{2}\end{array}\right.$	}	611	613	Christmas. Never work more than 54 hours.
16	5	3	10	12	9	66	66	None.
21	48	7	25	11	}	60	co	None.
24	30	5	30	81	91	52	52	None.
25	6	9	13	81	{ 9 10⅓	55	55 }	None.
	<u> </u>	1	!	1	!		1	1

² Not reported.
3 Working hours in the alteration department were the same as in the selling department, except as

a Do not work overtime hours given for selling departments. b Overtime also occurs at irregular intervals throughout the year; do not work the overtime hours given for selling departments.

⁴ Children do not work more than 10 hours on Saturday and 55 hours a week throughout the year.

OF DEPARTMENT AND OTHER RETAIL STORES, ETC.—Continued. INDIANAPOLIS—Continued.

			,				i					Es-
	Nor	mal sea	son and	dull seas	on.			Befo	re Christ	mas.		lish- ment
Season.	Dura- tion: Wks.	Fe- males af- fect- ed.	Hours, usual day.	Hours, excep- tional day.	Average weekly hours.	Maxi- mum hours per week.	Dura- tion: Wks.	Fe- males af- fect- ed.	Hours, usual day.	Hours, excep- tional day.	Maxi- num hours per week.	num- ber.
Normal.	$\begin{bmatrix} 1 \\ 2 \end{bmatrix}$	16 64	$12\frac{1}{2}$ $10\frac{1}{2}$	$ \left\{ \begin{array}{c} 9 \\ 9 \\ 13 \\ 12\frac{1}{2} \end{array} \right. $	64½ 58¾	64½ 58¾	}					
Dull	1.1	6	9 12½	121 1 1 8	57½ } 64	57½ (2)]	125	113	9	64	
Normal.	{ 3	108	9	$ \left\{ \begin{array}{c} 18 \\ 13 \\ 9 \\ 12 \\ 5 \\ 11 \end{array} \right. $	54½	57	h					
	l 1	90	8	11	451	48	 					31
Dull	13	104 109	$\left\{\begin{array}{c} 9\\12\\11\end{array}\right.$	$\begin{cases} 8 \\ 5 \end{cases}$	63	63 54						
					, 		, 1	100	11½	81	63	10
Dull	1	35	91	$\left\{ \begin{array}{c} 11 \\ 12 \end{array} \right.$	} 59 3	59 3	3	125	$\left\{\begin{array}{c} 9\frac{1}{2} \\ 10\frac{2}{3} \end{array}\right.$	10½ 11	} 601	1:
do	1	3	811	$ \begin{cases} 10\frac{5}{12} \\ 11\frac{5}{12} \end{cases} $	} 57½	57½	1 2	87	811	$\left\{\begin{array}{c} 11\\11\frac{1}{2}\end{array}\right.$	603	3 19
Normal .	{ 1 1	} 25 300	9	{ 11½ 13 11	60½ 58 60½	60½ 58 60¾	}					3 13

WORKING HOURS OF WOMEN EMPLOYED IN SELLING DEPARTMENTS INDIANAPOLIS—Concluded.

Es-					Regulai	worki	ıg hou	rs.		-		Work dur seas	ingovo	hours ertime
r.s- tab- lish-			Norm	al seaso	21.			I	mll seas	on.		Bu	sy sea.	son.
ment num- ber.	Dura- tion: Wks.	Wo- men af- fect- ed.	Children af- fect- ed.	Hours, usual day.	Hours. ex- cep- tional day.	Hours per week.	Dura- tion: Wks.	Fe- males af- fect- ed.	Hours, usual day.	Hours, ex- cep- tional day.	Hours per week.	Dura- tion: Wks.	Wo- men af- fect- ed.	Hours per week.
14	18½	6		9	91	541	{ 10½ 7	} 6	{ 9 8	9 <u>1</u> 8 <u>1</u>	54) 48)	3½ 2	} 9	$\left\{ egin{array}{c} 54rac{1}{2} \ 55 \end{array} ight.$
15	303	2		9	12	57	174	2	9	12	57	4	2	57
1 16	{ 6 7	} 5		9	12 8 8 103	} 56 } 54½	5½ 5 9	} 5	$\left\{\begin{array}{c} 9\\ 9\\ 8\end{array}\right.$	8 101 12	56 54½ 52	19}	8	57
17	{ 36 1	} 55	<u> </u>	{ 9 8½		54 51	9	55	8	4	44	5	125	54
18	$\begin{cases} & \hat{8}_{3}^{2} \\ 2 & 4\frac{1}{3} \end{cases}$	38	6	29° 81	111 111	561 533	8	} 44	9	{ 11}	56} 54	9 13	44 49	561 531
19	26	53	 	9	ļ	54	12g	53	$\begin{cases} 9\\ 8 \end{cases}$	9	54 49	} 43	74	54
20	32	6		9		54	8 9	6	9 8		54 48	2	6	54
1 21	2112	35		9	ļ	54	$\begin{cases} 4\\ 9 \end{cases}$	30	81	41	54 47	} 17½	45	54
22 23	42 51}	12	1	8½ 8½ 9	}	51 52 1	9	8	8		48	1	8	521
1 24	17-3	22		83		51	$\begin{cases} 7\frac{1}{3} \end{cases}$	} 18	$\left\{\begin{array}{c} 8\frac{1}{8} \\ 8\end{array}\right\}$	9	51 49	} 17 1	40	51
1 25 26	17 174	6 8		8 <u>1</u> 8 <u>1</u>	9	51½ 51	9	6 8	81	9	49 49 51	26 24	6 12	51½ 51
20 27	213	25		8½ 8½		51	182	25	81	{	51 47	31/2	31	51
28	29}	20	ļ	8	ļ	48	161	16	8		48	5	32	51

¹ Working hours in the alteration department were the same as in the selling department, except as

Hours worked in alteration department when differing from those of selling department.

Es-	Num- ber of	Per	iod of	addition	al over	time ho	urs.	
tab- lish- ment num- ber.	alter- ation	Dura- tion in weeks.	ber of wo-		excep-	Aver- age weekly hours.	Maxi- mum weekly hours.	Differences in regular hours.
3	16	$a \begin{cases} 3 \\ 6 \end{cases}$	} 19	9 9 11	$ \left\{ \begin{array}{c} 11 \\ 11\frac{1}{2} \\ 11\frac{1}{2} \end{array} \right. $	60 603	61½	None.
4	2	a{ 8 8 7	} 3	9	{ 11 11½	60½ 58½	61½ 59	No overtime hours before Christmas.
6	3	$a \begin{cases} 7\\2\\1\\1 \end{cases}$	3	9 8	$ \begin{bmatrix} 11 \\ 12 \\ 81 \\ 10\frac{1}{2} \end{bmatrix} $	61 59 521 501	62 59} 53} 50}	Do.
9	39	ь 26	14	9	{ 10 10}	55	551	None.
12	6			-		ľ .		No overtime hours before Christmas.
13	130	a 1	90	$\begin{cases} 9 \\ 11\frac{1}{2} \end{cases}$	}	611	611	Never work more than 54 hours.
16	5	3	10	12	9	66	66	None.
21	48	7	25	$\begin{cases} 9\\11 \end{cases}$	}	60	60	None.
24	30	5	30	81	912	52	52	None.
25	6	9	13	81	{ 9 10½	} 55½	551	None.

^a Do not work overtime hours given for selling departments. ^b Overtime also occurs at irregular intervals throughout the year; do not work the overtime hours given for selling departments. ^a Since Sept. 1, 1913, hours have been shortened to $\1_2 hours on week days, with a 11^1_4 -hour day on Saturdays, as before, making a 53^3_4 -hour week.

OF DEPARTMENT AND OTHER RETAIL STORES, ETC.—Concluded. INDIANAPOLIS—Concluded.

			*									Es-
	Nor	mal sea	son and	dull seas	on.			Befo	ore Chris	tmas.		tab-
Season,	Dura- tion: Wks.	Fe- males af- fect- ed.	Hours, usual day.	Hours, excep- tional day.	Aver- age weekly hours.	Maxi- mum hours per week,	Dura- tion: Wks.	Fe- males af- fect- ed.	Hours, usual day.	Hours, excep- tional day.	Maxi- num hours per week.	ment num- ber.
Normal.	$ \begin{cases} 5 \\ 3 \\ 2 \end{cases} $	6 } 6	9 { 9 8	9 <u>1</u> 9 <u>1</u> 8 <u>1</u>	55 55 49	55 55 49	}	9	103	8 9 9 9	593	} 14
	·····		`				ľ					15
							ļ					1 16
Normal.	1	10	9	10}	55 <u>}</u>	57						17 18
•••••												19
Dull	1	6	8	9	49	49						20
Normal .	1	10	81/2	10½	53	53						2 21 22 23
Dull	1	18	81	93	52	52	 					2 24
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·												² 25 26
(Normal.	1	} 8	8	10	50	50	ļ					27

66172°-Bull. 160-14-7

WORKING HOURS OF WOMEN EMPLOYED IN SELLING DEPARTMENTS TERRE HAUTE.

					Regulai	worki	ng hou	rs.						hours ertime
Es- tab- lish-			Norm	al seaso	n.	_		I	oull seas	on.		Bu	sy sea	son.
ment num- ber.	Dura- tion: Wks.	Wo- men af- fect- ed.	Children af- fect- ed.	Hours, usual day.	Hours. ex- cep- tional day.	Hours per week.	Dura- tion: Wks.	Fe- males af- fect- ed.	Hours, usual day.	Hours, ex- cep- tional day.	Hours per week.	Dura- tion: Wks.	Wo- men af- fect- ed.	Hours per week.
1 1	23	175	25	81	11½	54	7	200	81	11½	54	11/2	22 5	54
2	121	2		9	12	57	18	2	9	{ 10 12	} 57	$\left\{\begin{array}{c} 3\frac{1}{2} \\ 3\frac{1}{2} \end{array}\right]$	2 2	63 66
3	271	. 3		10	$12\frac{1}{2}$	$\delta 2\frac{1}{2}$	13	្រ	10	121	621	5	j	621
4 5 6	24½ 35½ 31½	3 13 46	2	9 9 9	12 12 12	57 57 57	27 13 18	3 15 43	9 9	12 12 12	57 57 57	3 2	21 70	57 57
7	491	56	 	9	12	57]			1	65	57
18	313	40	 	9	12	57	13	35	9	12	57	3	40	57
19	29	45	3	83	113	55	{ 8 <u>1</u>	} 22	{ 83 84	113 103	55 51½	} 3	37	55
¹ 10		.					18	4	83	114	54	33}	6	54
1 11	371	68		81	11	521	9	68	72	101	491	3	78	52}
1 12	371	166	62	81	$11\frac{1}{2}$	531	9	150	8}		50	3	218	53 չ
13	481	17		8	101	50}		[!		! !		3	17	501

EVANSVILLE.

										,	,	,	,	,
1	411	13		10	$\left\{ egin{array}{c} 13 \ 13 brace ight.$	63 7 631	9	13	10	13	63	ļ		
2	42	4	1	9	13	8 58	$\begin{cases} 7 \\ 2 \end{cases}$	} 5	9	13 4 13	8 58 } 53	}		
93	323	9		9}	123	59	171	9	9;	123	59			
9.1	50	8		$\left\{ egin{array}{c} 6rac{1}{2} \ 12rac{1}{2} \end{array} ight.$	5 10	} 60½		ļ				(+)		
5	2 6	52	5	92	12	10 57	16	57	9	812	57	81	57	57
96	261	55		9	12	57	21½	50	9	12	57			
7	493	45		9	12	57				ļ				
8	31	5		9	12	57	9	4	9	12	57	11	5	57
9	381	10		9	12	57	11	10	9	10	55			
10	51	5		9 9 9	12	57	ļ		J	!			·	
11	51	5		9	12	57		!						
11 12	33	8	J	9	12	57	18	8	9	12	57	1	!	

¹ Working hours in the alteration department were the same as in the selling department, except as follows: Establishment 1.—10½ weeks, 53 hours; 12½ weeks, 63 hours, and did not work any extended hours of selling force. Establishment 8.—4 weeks, 66 hours; 11½ hours usual day. Did not work selling force extended hours. Establishment 9.—3½ weeks, 68 hours; 11½ hours usual day. Did not work selling force extended hours. Establishment 10.—24 weeks, 61½ hours; 11 hours usual day. Establishment 11.—½ week, 61½ hours; 11½ hours usual day. Establishment 11.—5 weeks, 63½ hours; 11½ hours usual day. Normal season, 32 weeks, 53 hours, 4 women; 56½ hours, 20 women. Dull season, 6½ weeks, 53 hours; 8½ weeks, 53 hours; 4 women; 56½ hours, 20 women.

2 Affected only women over 16 years.
3 Sunday working hours.
4 Not reported.
C Only 20 women worked overtime one of these weeks.
6 Children work 50 hours per week throughout year, except the week before Christmas, when they worked

⁶ Children work 50 hours per week throughout year, except the week before Christmas, when they worked

OF DEPARTMENT AND OTHER RETAIL STORES, ETC.—Continued. TERRE HAUTE.

							1					Es-
	Nor	mal sea	son and	dull seas	on.			Bef	ore Chris	tmas.	-	tab- lish- ment
Season.	Dura- tion: Wks.	Fe- males af- fect- ed.	Hours, usual day.	Hours, excep- tional day.	Aver- age weekly hours.	Maxi- mum hours per week.	Dura- tion: Wks.	Fe- males af- fect- ed.	Hours, usual day.	Hours, excep- tional day.	Maxi- num hours per week.	num- ber.
Normal.	{ 2 16	² 100 56	11½ 8½	$ \begin{cases} 8\frac{1}{2} \\ 9\frac{1}{2} \\ 10\frac{1}{2} \end{cases} $	63 } 56	63 56	} ,	225	111	8½	63	11
Dull Normal . Dull	2 8 6	$rac{7}{2}$	11½ 9	$\left\{ egin{array}{c} 10rac{1}{2} \ 12 \end{array} ight.$	$\begin{cases} 69 \\ 58\frac{1}{2} \end{cases}$	69 58½	J 3	4	12	{ 9 11½	} 68½	2
Normal .	6	3	10	$\left\{\begin{array}{c}12\\12\frac{1}{2}\end{array}\right.$	63	63	1/2	6 3	$\left\{\begin{array}{c} 10 \\ 12\frac{1}{2} \\ 12 \end{array}\right.$	111 121 9	68½ 66	3 4
							100 to 10	21 70	12 12	9	66 66	5 6
Normal.	1	56	9	$\left\{\begin{array}{c} \begin{smallmatrix} 3 & 3 \\ 12 \end{smallmatrix}\right]$	$60\frac{1}{2}$	60½	1	71	12	9	66	7
Dull	J 2	17	9	10 12 11 11 12	61	(4)	} ,	40	ſ 9	\	65	18
Dun	2	24	9	$\left\{\begin{array}{c}11\\12\end{array}\right.$	59	60] 2	40	12	ţ	00	••
Normal.	2	5 35	8 3	$\left\{\begin{array}{c} 9\frac{2}{3} \\ 11\frac{2}{3} \end{array}\right $	56	56)					
Dull	$\left\{\begin{array}{c}1\\1\end{array}\right]$	} 5	∫ 8 3	$\left\{ egin{array}{c} 11rac{7}{3} \\ 12rac{7}{3} \end{array} \right.$	} 58½	581	1/2	37	113	8 3	64	19
	1	, ,	J 84	$\begin{cases} 103 \\ 113 \end{cases}$	55	55)					
Normal.	2	6	∫ 8 <u>1</u>	10 3 11 1	} 57 3	57 3	1/2 1/2	6 78	11½ 11	8½ 8½	63 601	1 10 1 11
	_		11	111	{ ⁻	_	- 1) **	-	
Normal .	2	10	813	$\begin{cases} 10\frac{2}{3} \\ 11\frac{1}{2} \end{cases}$	553	553	12	218 17	$\left\{\begin{array}{c} 8\frac{1}{3} \\ 11\frac{1}{2} \\ 10\frac{1}{3} \end{array}\right.$	} 8	59½ 58	1 12 13

EVANSVILLE.

-				·									
					ļ	· • • • •		11	14	{ 13 13½	}	791	1
		 				. .		1	5	13	12	76	2
Normal.	1/2	5	101	$\left\{ egin{array}{c} 91 \ 123 \end{array} ight.$	}	62	62	11	15	123	121	75 <u>1</u>	3
			-					2	7	$\begin{cases} 9\frac{1}{2} \\ 12\frac{1}{2} \end{cases}$	8 12	} 75½	4
		,			ļ			11/2	52	$\overline{12}^2$		72	5
Normal Dull	1	17	9	$\left\{\begin{array}{c} 11\frac{1}{2} \\ 12 \end{array}\right.$	}	61%	(4)	2	81	12		72	6
Normal .	1	2	{ 11 10	} 12	ĺ	63	(4)	11/2	57	12		72	7
		. <i></i>			ļ			1	5	12		72	8
Normal.	1	4	9	$\begin{bmatrix} & 11 \\ & 12 \end{bmatrix}$	}	61	61	11/2	10	12		72	9
				` 	ļ			1	5	12		72	10
								1 1	5 8	12 12		72 72	11 12

Only 2 women at a time work 63\(\) hours a week.
 Children work 4 hours per week less in normal and dull seasons. On Saturday work from 12 m. to

Schildren work 4 hours per week less in normal and dun seasons. On saturday work nour 12 m. to 10 p. m.

9 Working hours in the alteration department were the same as in the selling department, except as follows: Establishment 3.—13 hours less throughout year and do not work overtime in normal and dull seasons. Establishment 4.—1 hour less in normal and busy seasons; 2 hours less in dull season; no overtime in busy season, but 2 weeks overtime averaging 624 hours; maximum, 66 hours in normal season. Establishment 6.—54 hours throughout year. Establishment 18.—One hour less throughout periods of regular hours and worked no extended hours. Establishment 19.—Extended hours in busy season were 61 and occurred 10 weeks. Establishment 21.—Probably 3 girls worked 15 minutes overtime, two or three averaging during the year.

evenings during the year.

10 Children do not work more than $8\frac{1}{2}$ hours for 5 days, and $11\frac{1}{2}$ hours on Saturday.

WORKING HOURS OF WOMEN EMPLOYED IN SELLING DEPARTMENTS EVANSVILLE—Concluded.

Es-					Regulai	r worki	ng hou	rs.						hours ertime
tab- lish-			Norm	al seaso	n.			I	ull seas	on.		Bu	sy sea	son.
ment num- ber.	Dura- tion: Wks.	Wo- men af- fect- ed.	Children af- fect- ed.	Hours, usual day.		Hours per week.	Dura- tion; Wks.	af-	Hours, usual day.	Hours, ex- cep- tional day.	Hours per week.	Dura- tion: Wks.	Wo- men af- fect- ed.	Hours per week.
13	392 51	20 5		9	12 12	57 57	71/2	16	9		54	3	35	57
15	45	26		9 83	113	55 <u>1</u>	41	20	83	113	$55\frac{1}{2}$			
16	2 15	23		9	12	57	8	23	9	12	57			
17 418	$\frac{35}{173}$	13 9		9	12 12	57 57	15 91	6 13	9	12	57 57 55	231	17	57
1 19	251	94		83	113	55	{ 1113 111	75	83	$\begin{cases} 11\frac{2}{3} \\ 4\frac{3}{3} \\ 11\frac{2}{3} \end{cases}$		} 1	127	ก็อั
20	271	7		9	12	57	$\begin{cases} 9 \\ 4 \end{cases}$	} 6	9	12	54 57	} 11	10	57
• 21	213	1		85	10}	53	8	} 1	81	10½	53 51	105	1	53
4 22	173	27		9	12	57	83	27	9	12	57 54	22	27	57

FORT WAYNE.

			F		- 1								1	
1	271	5		9	12	57	23	5	9	12	57			
2	27	35		9	12	57	$\left\{egin{array}{c} 8rac{1}{2} \ 13 \end{array} ight.$	} 35	9	$\left\{ \begin{array}{c} \cdots \\ 12 \end{array} \right.$	54 57 55% 53 56½	} 2	35	57
5 ;}	16	7		85	113	53 &	$\left\{ \begin{array}{c} 8 \\ 9 \end{array} \right]$	7	84	$\frac{11\frac{2}{3}}{}$	55 8 53) 1s	9	55 §
4	$\left\{\begin{array}{c} 37 \\ 4\frac{1}{2} \end{array}\right.$	} 11		9	{ 11½	56½ 54	5 4	j n	9	$\begin{cases} 11\frac{1}{2} \end{cases}$	56 <u>}</u> 54	j		
5	31	38		83	113	55½	$\left\{egin{array}{c} 9 \ 8rac{1}{2} \end{array} ight.$	36	83	$\begin{cases} 11\frac{3}{4} \end{cases}$	$55\frac{1}{5}$	$2\frac{1}{2}$	53	55½
5 6	313	60	3	83	111	² 55	{ 8 }	63	83	$\begin{cases} 11_{4}^{1} \end{cases}$	² 55 5 521	$\left\{\begin{array}{c}2\frac{1}{2}\end{array}\right.$	63	55
5 7	35½	121	2	83	111	3 55	$\begin{cases} 4\\ 9 \end{cases}$	123	84	{ 11}	$\frac{55}{52\frac{1}{2}}$	$\left\{\begin{array}{c}2rac{1}{2}\end{array}\right.$	163	55

Hours worked in alteration department, when differing from those of selling department, in Fort Wayne.

Estab-	Num- ber	P	eriod of	addition	al extend	ed hours	3.	
lish- ment num- ber.	of altera- tion work- ers.	Dura- tion in weeks.	Num- ber fe- males.	Hours, usual day.	Hours, excep- tional day.	Aver- age weekly hours.	Maxi- mum weekly hours.	Differences in regular hours.
3	- 5 10	$\left\{egin{array}{c}2\\1\\20\end{array} ight.$	6 9 11	111 11 10½	85 81 11	65 § 66 61 ½	65 § 66 61 ½	[Normal, 14 weeks, 53½ hours. Dull [6 weeks, 53½ hours.] It weeks, 51 hours.
7	i	12	15	113	83 111	64	64	None.
9		4 6 1	5 2 4	103 81 113	83 101 11 83	63\{ 57\{ 66\}	631 571 661	None. None. None.

¹ Hours worked on a legal holiday which fell in this week.
2 In business only 25½ weeks during year.
3 25 additional women were employed for 6 hours a day 8 days before Christmas.
4 Working hours in the alteration department were the same as in the selling department, except as follows: Establishment 3.—1½ hours less throughout year and do not work overtime in normal and dull seasons. Establishment 4.—1 hour less in normal and busy seasons; 2 hours less in dull season; no overtime in busy season, but 2 weeks overtime averaging 62½ hours; maximum, 66 hours in normal season. Establishment 6.—54 hours throughout year. Establishment 18.—One hour less throughout periods of regular hours and worked no extended hours. Establishment 19.—Extended hours in busy season were 61 and occurred 10 weeks. Establishment 21.—Probably 3 girls worked 15 minutes overtime, two or three evenings during the year.
5 Working hours in the alteration department were the same as in the selling department except as follows:

OF DEPARTMENT AND OTHER RETAIL STORES, ETC.—Continued.

EVANSVILLE—Concluded.

	Nor	mal sea	son and	dull seas	on.			Befe	ore Chris	tmas.		tab- lish-
Season.	Dura- tion: Wks.	Fe- males af- fect- ed.	Hours, usual day.	Hours, excep- tional day.	Aver- age weekly hours.	Maxi- mum hours per week.	Dura- tion: Wks.	Fe- males af- fect- ed.	Hours, usual day.	Hours, excep- tional day.	Maxi- num hours per week.	ment num- ber.
Oull	1	16	9	1 13	461	46½	13	35	12		72	13
Normal.	i	20	8.3	113	58_{2}^{1}	58½	112	5 37	12 12		72 72	14
Dull	1	13	9	$\left\{ egin{array}{c} 9rac{7}{2} \ 12 \end{array} ight.$	$\left.\right\}$ 57 $\frac{1}{2}$	571	112	3 32	12	11	70	16
	· · · · · ·			·			$\frac{11}{2}$ $1\frac{1}{2}$	35 13	12 11	11 12	70 68	11
Normal.	$\begin{Bmatrix} 1\\1 \end{Bmatrix}$	} 6	83 103	$\left\{\begin{array}{c} 11_{3}^{2} \\ 10_{3}^{2} \\ 11_{3}^{2} \end{array}\right.$	} 59 65	59 65	$\left.\begin{array}{c} 1_{\frac{1}{2}} \\ 1_{\frac{1}{2}} \end{array}\right.$	127	113	103	68	19
]				$\frac{1}{2}$	10	12	9	66	20
							11/2	1	10½		63	2

FORT WAYNE.

	·				
		1½	10 { 113 12	}	711 1
		112	55 11	12	70 2
	.	1	9 113		70 3
	.	1½	15 112		69 4
		1	68 113	103	681 5
		1	63 111		5 673 6
		1	163 111		7 671 7
1 1	1 1 1 1		i i		L .

⁶ Children work 52½ hours per week except during week before Christmas, when they work 65 hours. 7 Children work 52½ hours per week throughout the year.

WORKING HOURS OF WOMEN EMPLOYED IN SELLING DEPARTMENTS FORT WAYNE—Concluded.

					Regular	worki	ıg hou	rs.				Work dur seas	ing ov	hours ertime
Es- tab- lish- ment			Norm	al seaso	n.			D	ull seas	on.		Bu	sy sea	son.
num- ber.	Dura- tion: Wks.	Wo- men af- fect- ed.	Children af- fect- ed.	Hours, usual day.	Hours, ex- cep- tional day.	Hours per week.	Dura- tion: Wks.	Fe- males af- fect- ed.	Hours, usual day.	Hours, ex- cep- tional day.	Hours per week.	Dura- tion: Wks.	Wo- men af- fect- ed.	Hours per week.
1 g	$ \begin{array}{c} 22\frac{1}{2} \\ 26 \\ 4 \end{array} $	25 } 10		83 81	11½ { 11	55½ 53½ 51	$ \left\{ \begin{array}{c} 18 \\ 8 \\ 12\frac{1}{2} \\ 5 \end{array} \right. $	} 22 } 10	83 81	{ 11½ - 11	551 521 531 531		25 12	55½ 53½
¹ 10	20	7	ļ	83	1112	551	20	5	83	111	551	11	7	2 551
11	18	3		83	111	55 <u>1</u>	{ 9 8½	} 2	83	{ 111 10}	55½ 54½	} 151	3	551
12	16	5		9	12	57	{ 4 g	4	9	12	57 54	22	8	57
13 8 14	39½ 30	16 29		8 3 83	113 111	55 <u>1</u> 55	9	11 35	83 83	113	55½ 52½	31/2	35	55½

SOUTH BEND.

1 2 4 3 4 4 5 6 7	$ \begin{cases} 5\frac{1}{2} \\ 9\frac{1}{2} \end{cases} $ $ \begin{cases} 17 \\ 12 \\ 35\frac{1}{2} \end{cases} $ $ \begin{cases} 2 \\ 10\frac{1}{2} \end{cases} $ $ \begin{cases} 9 \\ 21 \end{cases} $ $ \begin{cases} 22\frac{1}{2} \end{cases} $	<pre>} } }</pre>	7 78 1 7 3 2 60	83 83 9 83 9 10 9 10 81 82	\[\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc	} } }	57½ 55½ 55½ 55½ 56 56½ 56½ 56½ 56½ 56½ 55½ 55	7½ 4½ 13½ 6½ 7 6 9 8 10 10¾ 4½ 8½ 8½ 8½ 8½	6 52 1 6 3 3 4 60 30	82 83 9 83 9 10 9 81 82	$\left\{\begin{array}{c} 11\\ 11\frac{1}{2}\\ 11\frac{1}{2}\\ 11\frac{1}{2}\\ 11\\ 11\\ 11\\ 10\frac{1}{2}\\ 11\\ 11\\ 11\\ 11\\ 10\\ 10\frac{1}{2}\\ 10\frac{1}{2}\\ 110\frac{1}{2}\\ 110$	\ 57\\ 55\\ 57\\ 56\\ 56\\ 56\\ 58\\\ 51\\ 53\\\ 55\\	17½ 1 7 14 25 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	89 83 2 83	\[\begin{array}{c} 57\frac{1}{2} \\ 55\frac{1}{2} \\ 54\frac{1}{2} \\ 58\frac{1}{2} \\ 58\
	J 10	}			10½ 11	}	55}	7½ 8½	30	81		53 <u>!</u> } 55!	11 0	43	531
4 10	50 20½	i	27 1	 8 <u>3</u> 8 <u>3</u>	$ \left\{ \begin{array}{c} 11\frac{3}{4} \\ 10\frac{1}{2} \\ 11\frac{1}{2} \end{array} \right. $	}	55 <u>}</u> 57	2 2½	1	83	$\left\{ \begin{array}{c} 101 \\ 111 \end{array} \right\}$	} 57	83	1	57

¹ Working hours in the alteration department were the same as in the selling department except as follows:

Hours worked in alteration department, when differing from those of selling department in Fort Wayne.

Estab-	Num- ber	P	eriod of	addition	al extend	led hour	s.	
lish- ment num- ber.	of altera- tion work- ers.	Dura- tion in weeks.	Num- ber fe- males.	Hours, usual day.	Hours, excep- tional day.	Average weekly hours.	Maxi- mum weekly hours.	Differences in regular hours.
3	5	2	6	1113	85	65 5	654	
6	10	$\left\{ egin{array}{c} 1 \\ 20 \end{array} \right.$	9 11	11 10½	8½ 11	66 61½	66 61 }	Normal, 14 weeks, 53\ hours. Dull 6 weeks, 53\ hours. Dull 11 weeks, 51 hours.
7	22	12	15	113	83	64	64	None.
8	12	4	5	103	{ 11 \ 8 \ 10 \ 10 \ 10 \ 10 \ 10 \ 10 \	631	631	None.
9	3	6	2	81	101	571	57 <u>1</u>	None.
10	4	1	4	111	83	661	661	None.

OF DEPARTMENT AND OTHER RETAIL STORES, ETC.—Continued. FORT WAYNE-Concluded.

			Wo	rking ho	urs durin	ig overtii	me seas	on.				_
	Nor	mal sea	son and	dull seas	on.			Befo	ore Chris	tmas.		Es- tab- lish- ment
Season.	Dura- tion: Wks.	Fe- males af- fect- ed.	Hours, usual day.	Hours, excep- tional day.	Aver- age weekly hours.	Maxi- mum hours per week.	Dura- tion: Wks.	Fe- males af- fect- ed.	Hours, usual day.	Hours, excep- tional day.	Maxinum hours per week.	num-
							1	30	101	111	65	- ;
Dull	1	3	101	$\left\{\begin{array}{c}8\frac{1}{2}\\11\end{array}\right.$	} 59½	591	11/2	14	11	91	64 <u>1</u>	,
					/ 	 	1	5	11½	{ 83 101	641	10
							1	2	{ 83 101	11 113	61	11
							1	5	$\left\{ egin{array}{c} 7 \\ 12 \end{array} ight]$	}	57	12
												1: 1:

SOUTH BEND.

		1	1	· · · ·	1	1	1	1	ſ	I	ı	ī
}							11/2	7	11½		69	1
							21	89	$\left\{\begin{array}{c} 10\frac{1}{2} \\ 11\frac{1}{4} \end{array}\right.$	83 113	663	2
							31	3	11	ļ	66	3
}							112	. 7	11	 	66	4
[1	3	, 11	····	66	5
}		ļ					$\left\{\begin{array}{c} \frac{1}{2} \\ 1\frac{1}{2} \end{array}\right.$	} 2	11 9 11	{ 9 11½ } 11½	65 62 <u>1</u>	6
Normal.	$\left\{\begin{array}{cc} 1\\1\\1\\1\end{array}\right.$	} 12 27	8½ 8½	$ \left\{ \begin{array}{c} 10 \\ 11 \\ 10 \\ 11 \end{array} \right. $	57 54½ } (5)	57 <u>1</u> 54 <u>2</u> 57 <u>2</u>	1	83	103	,	641	7
						ļ	113	45	101	$\begin{cases} 8\frac{1}{2} \end{cases}$	} 61½	8
		ļ				.]	2	45	93		601	9
 		ļ	 			.	1 1	1	10}	$ \begin{cases} 11\frac{3}{4} \\ 8\frac{1}{4} \end{cases} $	601	10

<sup>Four salesgirls worked 11 hours overtime in alteration department for one week in this period.
In business only 39 weeks in 1913.
Working hours in the alteration department were the same as in the selling department except as</sup> 4 Working hours in the alteration department which the stabilishment 3.—6 additional extended weeks of 66½ hours, 3 weeks of 57½ hours, Christmas overtime hours worked in selling department by part of force.

Establishment 6.—Saturday hours are 11½ throughout year.

Establishment 10.—Hours irregular—less than those of selling force.

4Not reported.

WORKING HOURS OF WOMEN EMPLOYED IN SELLING DEPARTMENTS

SOUTH BEND-Concluded.

Es- tab-			Norm	al seaso	Regular	workin	ig hour		Pull seas	ion		seas	ingove	hours
lish- ment num- ber.	Dura- tion: Wks.	Wo- men af- fect- ed.	Children affected.	Hours, usual day.	Hours,	Hours per week.	Dura- tion: Wks.	Fe-	Hours, usual day.	Hours,	Hours per week.		Wo-	Hours per week.
11 2 12	$ \begin{cases} 7 \\ 14 \end{cases} $ $ \begin{cases} 19\frac{1}{2} \\ 10 \end{cases} $	7 } 12		83 83	11 113 113 113 113 111 111 103 112	\ 57½ 55½ 55½ 55½ 57½ 57½ 57	6 6½ 8½ 93	7 6 }	} 83 83	$ \left\{ \begin{array}{c} 11 \\ 11\frac{1}{2} \\ 11\frac{1}{2} \end{array} \right. $ $ \left\{ \begin{array}{c} 11 \\ 11\frac{1}{2} \\ 11\frac{1}{2} \end{array} \right. $	57½ 55½ 55½ 55½	6 11½ 1½	8	57½ 55½ 55½
2 13 14 15	$\begin{cases} 42\frac{1}{2} \\ 7 \\ 19\frac{1}{2} \\ 20 \end{cases}$	117 } 35 1	11	83 { 73 81 8	11½ 11¼ 11 11	55 491 521 48	8½ 8½ 9½ 4 17	128 33 1	81 73 81 8	{ 41/4 11/4 10/4 11	503 493 521 541 48	1 15	35 1	52½ 48

MUNCIE.

									,	,		,	-	
1 2 3	22 443 391	22 17 9	2	9 83 9	12 113 12	57 55 <u>}</u> 8 57	17 4½ 8½	18 17 11	9 83 9	12 113 12	57 55½ 5 57	11 13	26 43	57 55½
4 5	28½ 35½	22		9	12 12	57 57	15½ 13	22 12	9 9	12 12	57 57	7½ 3	34 14	57 57
; 6	51	12 6		9	12	57	{ 8} 10}	} 5	{ 9 8½	12	$\left\{\begin{array}{c} 57 \\ 54\frac{1}{2} \end{array}\right.$	271	12	57
7 18	44 40	1 26		9	12 12	57 57	73	26	9	12	57	7½ 3	1 29	57 57
79	28	17		9	12	57	13	14	9	12	57	91	17	57
7 10 7 11	14 8 8	10 7		9 9 83	11 11	56 56	13	10	9	11	56	24½ 8½	10 7	57 56
7 12 7 13	16 26	111 1	1	9	$\frac{10^3}{12}$	9 54½ 57	10 26	103	83 9	103 12	9 54 <u>1</u> 57	25½	127	9 541

HAMMOND.

$ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	} 59 59\} 59\} 59	1 1½ 2	41 24 170	59 ¹ / ₄ 59 58	
--	-------------------	--------------	-----------------	--------------------------------------	--

¹ Maximum week, worked by 4 women; other 3 women worked 583 hours. ² Working hours in the alteration department were the same as in the selling department except as follows:

follows:

Establishment 12.—Saturday hours 11! throughout year. Week before Christmas 64 hours.

Establishment 13.—Saturday hours in dull season were 8!.

Maximum week worked by 13 women; other 14 women worked 58 hours.

Also 30 extra girls for irregular hours just before Christmas.

Children did not work more than 54 hours per week during year.

Hours worked on legal holiday which fell in this week.

Working hours in the alteration department were the same as in the selling department except as follows:

Establishment 6.—59 hours throughout year with 14 hours Saturday. Overtime one-half week, making total for week 74 hours. Usual day 14 hours. Exceptional day 9 hours.

OF DEPARTMENT AND OTHER RETAIL STORES, ETC.—Continued.

SOUTH BEND-Concluded.

													Es-
	Nor	mal sea	son and	dull s	eas	on.			Befo	ore Chris	tmas.		tab lish men
Season.	Dura- tion: Wks.	Fe- males af- fect- ed.	Hours, usual day.	Hour exceptions day	p- il	Aver- age weekly hours.	Maxi- mum hours per week.	Dura- tion: Wks.	Fe- males af- fect- ed.	Hours, usual day.	Hours, excep- tional day.	Maxi- mum hours per week.	num ber
••••								1	7	{ 10½ 8¾	83 111 2	} 1 60}	1
		 				• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •		1	27	- 81	$\left\{\begin{array}{c} 11\frac{1}{2} \\ 10\frac{1}{2} \end{array}\right.$	} a 60 ·	2 1
		ļ 		ļ				1	133	83	$\left\{\begin{array}{c} 10\frac{3}{4} \\ 11\frac{1}{4} \end{array}\right.$	} 59	2 1
				ļ	!	•••••		2	40	81	10	} 57½]
			_							<u> </u>			
						MU	NCIE.						
D ull	1	18	9	{* 10) <u>}</u>	} 583	581	1	4 33	12	None.	72	
				l				112	43	113		70⅓	
Dull	1	12	9	6 4 12		52	52	31/2	18	103	$\left\{\begin{array}{c}9\\12\end{array}\right.$	5 691	
		<u> </u>	ļ					1/2	35	12	$\left\{\begin{array}{c}9\\12\frac{1}{4}\end{array}\right.$	661	
		<u> </u>						1/2	14	12	9	66	
							- • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	3	6	12	9	66	1
				(ii) _{F0}		1/2	1	12	(9	66	,
Dull	1	4	9	$ \left\{ \begin{array}{c} 11 \\ 12 \\ \hline 6 4 \\ 12 \end{array} \right. $		} 59	59	1/2	29	11	$\begin{cases} 12 \\ 9 \end{cases}$	63	ĺ
Normal.	1	15	9	12	2	} 52	52	1/2	21	11	12	63	2
• • • • • • • • •						 .		1/2	10	11	12	63	7]
								1212	7 141	11 10 ³	$ \left\{ \begin{array}{c} 9 \\ 12 \\ 9 \\ 12 \\ 9 \\ 12 \\ 9 \\ 8_{4}^{3} \\ \end{array} \right. $	62 9 60½	7] 7] 7]
	ļ <u>_</u>	I		<u> </u>	!	HAM	MONI).).	l	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	
					_					<u> </u>			
								1½	19	11	12	11 68	10
			¦		• • •	. 	¦	1	54	11	121	11 674	
	 -		<u> </u>					1/2	24	11	12	11 66	
								11	230	11		11 66	

Establishment 8.—54 hours for 30 weeks, these weeks occuring in each season.

Establishment 9.—Did not work overtime before Christmas.

Establishment 10.—55 hours for 27 weeks, occuring in normal and dull seasons.

Establishment 11.—Did not work overtime before Christmas.

Establishment 12.—54 hours throughout year for dressmaking department. Alteration department hours Letaloisament 12.—34 nours inroughout year for dressmaking departments as selling department.
 Establishment 13.—55\(\frac{1}{2}\) nours (average) throughout year.
 Open only 17 weeks during year.
 Children did not work more than 52\(\frac{1}{2}\) hours per week during year.
 Store in operation only 16 weeks in 1913.
 Girls under 18 do not work over 60 hours per week.

WORKING HOURS OF WOMEN EMPLOYED IN SELLING DEPARTMENTS LA FAYETTE.

Es-					Regula	workir	ıg hou	rs.				Work dur seas	ing ov	hours ertime
tab- lish- ment			Norma	al season	n.			I	ull seas	ion.		Bu	sy sea	son.
num- ber.	Dura- tion: Wks.	Wo- men af- fect- ed.	Children affected.	Hours, usual day.	Hours, ex- cep- tional day.	Hours per week.	Dura- tion: Wks.	Fe- males af- fect- ed.	Hours, usual day.	Hours, ex- cep- tional day.	Hours per week.	Dura- tion: Wks.	Wo- men af- fect- ed.	Hours per week.
11	30	50		91	113	58	{ 11 9	} 44	{ 91 83	} 113	{ 58 55⅓	} ½	55	5 3
2	281	24		9	111	56}	8 11 A	20	$\begin{cases} 9 \\ 8\frac{1}{2} \end{cases}$	113	7 56½ 54	} 2	48	561
13	301	22		9	111	56½	$\begin{bmatrix} 8 \\ 9 \end{bmatrix}$	22	81 82 9 81	113	\$ 56½ 54	2	22	$56\frac{1}{2}$
14	30½	23	ļ	9	111	561	171	23	81	111	54	3	23	56 <u>1</u>
1 5	191	7		9	111	561	{ 17 13	} 7	{ 9 81	1112	{ 56½ 54	}		
16	301	60		9	11½	56 <u>1</u>	9 9	} co	8 9 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8	1113	\$ 56½ 54	} 2	80	56½
7						ļ	121	} 6	81 81 9	113	$\begin{cases} 56\frac{1}{2} \\ 51\frac{1}{2} \end{cases}$	291	6	561
18	23	48		9	113	5 6½	17	48	83	11	53}	1112	48	561

RICHMOND.

1 2 3 3 3 4 8 5 6 7 8 9 9 10 11 12 13	32½ 34½ 31 22 429 49½ 24 15½ 13 13 36½ 30½	13 17 42 13 2 18 2 11 2 11 2	. 0½ 9 . 8½ . 8½ . 9 . 9 . 8¾ . 8½ . 9 . 9 . 8¾ . 8½ . 9 . 9 . 8¾	12½ 12 113 11½ 11½ 11½ 11½ 11½ 11½ 11½ 11½ 11½	55 55 54 57 56½ 553½ 54 60 54 56 56 59	18 13 16½ 16 9 17 10½ 18 18 14 { 9 21	12 17 42 13 3 18 3 2 11 20 2 10	9 83 84 9 84 95 9 84 85 9 85 85 85 85 85 85 85 85 85 85 85 85 85	12½ 12 113 111½ 12 114 115 115 115 115 115 115 115 115 115	55 ± 57 55 54 60 54 56 59 57 54	$\begin{bmatrix} \frac{1}{2} \\ 2\frac{1}{2} \\ 2\frac{1}{2} \\ 12 \\ 4\frac{1}{2} \\ \frac{1}{2} \\ \frac{4\frac{1}{2}}{4\frac{1}{2}} \\ 25 \\ 1 \\ 20 \\ 24 \\ 1 \end{bmatrix}$	17 33 62 20 3 2 18 40 3 2 11 28 4	60 57 55 55 57 56½ 54 60 54 56 59
		- 1	1	112 1112 1113	13	21 17	13	9 81 9	12	57 54 56½	} 1	4	59

¹ Working hours in the alteration department were the same as in the selling department, except as

Establishment 5.—Regular hours in busy season and dull season \(\frac{1}{2}\) hour less than regular hours of normal season and dull season of selling department, and work but 1 overtime week of 60 hours.

Establishment 6.—Regular hours throughout the year are one hour less; overtime hours are one week of 58\) hours, \(\frac{1}{2}\) week of 63 hours, and 3 weeks of 57 hours.

Working flours in the attention department which the follows:

Establishment 1.—1 hour less per week in normal season of 43 weeks and in dull season of 9 weeks.

Establishment 3.—54 hours per week for 22 weeks of busy season and 30 weeks of dull season.

Establishments 4 and 8.—2 hour less per week throughout regular period, and do not work overtime before Christmas.

OF DEPARTMENT AND OTHER RETAIL STORES, ETC.—Continued.

LA FAYETTE.

					ırs durin	g overth	ne seas					Es-
	Nor	mal sea	son and	dull seas	on.			Befo	ore Chris	tmas.		lish- ment
Season.	Dura- tion: Wks.	Fe- males af- fect- ed.	Hours, usual day.	Hours, excep- tional day.	Aver- age weekly hours.	Maxi- mum hours per week.	Dura- tion: Wks.	Fe- males af- fect- ed.	Hours, usual day.	Hours, excep- tional day.	Maxi- num hours per week.	num-
							1}	60	11	12	69	11
Dull	1	6	9	{ 11 { 11}	} 60½	60 <u>}</u>	1½ 1⅓	66 22	11 <u>}</u> 11 <u>}</u>	111	69 69	1;
							1	23	111	{ 11 112	69	1.
Dull	1	9	9	$\left\{\begin{array}{c}11\\11\frac{1}{2}\end{array}\right.$	603	603	11	7	11	$\left\{\begin{array}{c}11\frac{1}{2}\\12\end{array}\right]$	67½	1 !
						 	11	80	111	` 9	64	1 (
							1	6	9	$\begin{cases} 11 \\ 11 \end{cases}$	} 60½	,
							1/2	48	9	$\begin{cases} 10\frac{1}{2} \\ 11\frac{1}{2} \end{cases}$	583	1;

RICHMOND.

Normaldo Dull	1 1 1	14 12 13	9 8 3 8 <u>1</u>	$ \begin{cases} 23 \\ 12 \\ 101 \\ 11\frac{3}{4} \\ 11\frac{1}{2} \end{cases} $ $ \begin{cases} 12\frac{1}{2} \end{cases} $	} 51 } 58 } 57½ } 60	51 58 57½	1 1 1 1	17 49 62 20 3	12 12 113 113 113 113	121	73 72 70 70 69½ 69	1 2 3 4 5
Dull	1	18	83	111111111111111111111111111111111111111	58	58	1 1 1 1 1	40 3 2 13 28	{ 111/2 111/2 111/2 12/3 11/3 11/3	9}	69 69 69 69 67	7 8 9 10
							12 12	10 	11 11}	9 8½	63 6 3	12 13 14

Hours worked on legal holiday which fell in this week.
 Working hours in the alteration department were the same as in the selling department, except as follows:

¹⁰¹⁰⁰WS:

Establishments 3 and 4.—Regular weekly hours, 54. Christmas week of 69 hours. No other extended weeks.

Establishment 5.—Did not work overtime before Christmas.

4 In business only 43½ weeks in 1913.

WORKING HOURS OF WOMEN EMPLOYED IN SELLING DEPARTMENTS NEW ALBANY.

			Working hours during overtime season.											
Es- tab- lish- ment num- ber.			Norm	al seaso	n.			I	oll seas	Busy season.				
	Dura- tion: Wks.	Wo- men af- fect- ed.	Children affected.	Hours, usual day.	Hours, ex- cep- tional day.	Hours per week.	Dura- tion: Wks.	af-	Hours, usual day.	Hours, ex- cep- tional day.	Hours per week.	tion:	Wo- men af- fect- ed.	Hours per week.
1 1 2	23½ 42½	2		8 <u>}</u> 9	$ \begin{cases} 10\frac{3}{4} \\ 11\frac{3}{4} \\ 11 \\ 12 \end{cases} $	} 56½	21 9	2 16	8½ 9	$ \begin{cases} 103 \\ 113 \\ 11 \end{cases} $	} 56½	7	2	561
3	24	3		9	$\left\{ egin{array}{ll} 12 \\ 11 \\ 12 \end{array} \right.$	59	23	3	9	$ \left\{ \begin{array}{c} 12 \\ 11 \\ 12 \end{array} \right. $	59	45	3	59
14	32½	62		83	$\left\{\begin{array}{c}11\\12\end{array}\right.$	} 57	10	62	83	$\left\{egin{array}{c} 11 \ 12 \end{array} ight.$	} 57	3	80	57
5	481	2		9	$\left\{\begin{array}{c}11\\12\end{array}\right.$	} 59			ļ			3	2	59
16	$42\frac{1}{2}$	3		9	$\left\{\begin{array}{c}11\\12\end{array}\right.$	} 59	9	3	9	$\left\{\begin{array}{c}11\\12\end{array}\right.$	} 59	[
7	38	10		83	$\left\{\begin{array}{c}11\\12\end{array}\right.$	} 57	11½	10	81	$\left\{\begin{array}{c}11\\12\end{array}\right.$	} 57		ļ	
s	3 30½	2		83	$\begin{cases} 10 \\ 10\frac{1}{2} \end{cases}$	54½	9	1	83	{ 10 103	541			<u> </u>
9	50	2		82	103 114	563		ļ 				11/2	.3	.563

WEEKLY RATES OF PAY OF WOMEN EMPLOYED IN DEPARTMENT BYEM · INDIANAPOLIS.

Es- tab- lish- ment num- ber.	Cash girls, messengers, bundle wrappers, packers, inspectors, and stock girls who received an amount within each classi- fied weekly rate.							Saleswomen who received an amount within each classified weekly rate.									
	der	to	\$5.00 to \$5.99.	and		Aver - age week - ly rate.	der	to	to	to	to	to	to	\$10.00 - to \$11.99.	and	Total.	Aver- age week- ly rate.
1 2 3 4	13 45		1	•	14 53	\$3.17 3.22	3	1 22	 5 20		1 6 15	1 8 25	3 12		4 7 13	45	
5 6 7 8 9	13 34 12	14		 6 3	14 1 56 45			77	13 1 3		27 1 21	33 21		2	2	89 121	7.39 10.75 8.91 4.61 8.73
10 11 12 13 14 15	13 63			1 11			10	25 39 74	16 2	1 16	1 4	3 1 33 2	4 12	21 1	36		11.25
16 17 18	10				10	3.60		7	6	13	6		5		1 3 2 1 6 1	5 53 30	8.28

¹ Working hours in the alteration department were the same as in the selling department, except as follows:

Establishment 2.—Two additional extended weeks of 68 hours.

Establishment 4.—Five additional extended weeks {2 of 67 hours.} Usual day being 10½ hours.

Establishment 6.—One additional extended week of 63 hours.}

OF DEPARTMENT AND OTHER RETAIL STORES, ETC.—Continued.

NEW ALBANY.

	Nor	mal sea	son and	dull seas	son.			Befo	ore Chris	tmas.		Es- tab- lish-
Season.	Dura- tion: Wks.	Fe- males af- fect- ed.	Hours, usual day.	Hours, excep- tional day.	Average weekly hours.	Maximum hours per week.	Dura- tion: Wks.	Fe- males af- fect- ed.	Hours, usual day.	Hours, excep- tional day.	Maxi- num hours per week.	ment num ber.
							1/2	2	$ \left\{ \begin{array}{c} 8\frac{1}{2} \\ 12\frac{1}{4} \\ 9 \\ 12 \\ 9 \end{array} \right. $	11 113	641	
							1/2	18	$\left\{\begin{array}{c}9\\12\end{array}\right.$	}	64	:
				ļ			1/2	4	$\left\{\begin{array}{c}9\\12\end{array}\right.$	}	64	
Normal . Dull	$\left\{\begin{array}{c}4\\1\\1\end{array}\right.$	} ² 12	83	$\left\{\begin{array}{c}10\frac{1}{4}\\12\end{array}\right.$	59 583 583	59	1/2	80	12	$\left\{\begin{array}{c} 8\frac{1}{2} \\ 11 \end{array}\right]$	64	
						ľ	3	2	$\begin{cases} 9\\11 \end{cases}$	$ \begin{array}{c} 11\frac{1}{2} \\ 12 \\ 0 \\ 12 \end{array} $	633	
				ļ			ž	3	11	$\left\{\begin{array}{c}9\\12\end{array}\right.$	63	
Normal.	1	12	81	$\left\{\begin{array}{c} 11\\12\frac{1}{2}\end{array}\right.$	61	61	13	34	$\left\{\begin{array}{c}9\\11\end{array}\right.$	12	63	
					······		11/2	4	101		63	
	ļ						1/2	3	10%	$\left\{\begin{array}{c} 83 \\ 11\frac{1}{4} \end{array}\right.$	61	

AND OTHER RETAIL STORES IN SPECIFIED CITIES, AS REPORTED PLOYERS. INDIANAPOLIS.

eeived an	alterati mount	on or : within	milline n each	ery wo classif	rkroon led we	is who ekly re	re- ite.	ar ot]	yers id ier oyees.		fice oyees.	То	tal.	Es- tab- lish-
Un- der to to \$5.00. \$5.99. \$6.9	to	l to l	to	\$10.00 to \$11.99.	and	Total.	Aver- age week- ly rate.	NT	Aver- age week- ly rate.	Num- ber.	A ver - age week - ly rate.	Num- ber.	A ver- age week- ly rate.	ment num- ber.
5 6 3 1	1 1 8 8 8 1 12 1 12 1 18	8	5 2 1 14 13 28 3	2 3 1 1 2 22 22 16	_i	2 7 3 160 85	9. 04 9. 00 10. 43 9. 83 10. 71 11. 18 8. 75 8. 88	8 1 3 8	6.00	30 30 13 38	7. 49 11. 56 7. 58 10. 67 10. 58 8. 66 8. 00 9. 67 9. 50	74 311 7 84 9 434 89 289 42 61 64 706	6, 88 10, 64 7, 01 9, 89 9, 08 4, 61 9, 49 5, 00 4, 70 6, 59 7, 37 9, 82	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9

Number affected varied from 5 to 12 per weeks.
 In business only 41 weeks.

WEEKLY RATES OF PAY OF WOMEN EMPLOYED IN DEPARTMENT

INDIANAPOLIS—Concluded.

s- b-	Cash wi an an fie	n girli rappe id sto i amo id wee	s, me rs, pa ck gi int w kly r	sseng ckers, rls w ithin ate.	ers, bu inspect ho rece each c	indle ctors, eived lassi-	Sal	eswoı	nen w	ho re	ceived w	l an a eekly	mour rate.	it with	in eacl	ı classi	fied
ent m- er.	der	\$4.00 to \$4.99.	to	and	Total.	Aver- age week- ly rate.	der	to	i to	to	to	to	to	\$10.00 to \$11.99,	and	Total.	Aver age week ly rate
19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28	2	3 1 2	1 1	3	2 7 2 3	\$3,50 5,21 4,75 4,67			1	8 1 1 2 1 2 2 2	2 1 4 3	8 3 1 3 1 1 1 1 8 2	2 2 2 1	9 1 2 2 1 4 6	10 17 3 11 3 4 1 9	47 5 23 8 5 18 4 10 22 17	\$9. 4 8. 1 13. 6 9. 2 14. 1 12. 6 11. 7
	1		1	1	1		TE	RRE	HA	UTI	E.	:		i		; ,	
1 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13		3	2	5	2	3.00 3.00 5.00 4.50 4.50	0 19	2		1 2 1 3 19 2 	10 4 1 1 8	11 9	3 9	3 4 5	9 11 11 7 2 5 17	2 3 10 47 54 34 12	\$7. 6. 5. 6. 3. 8. 5. 12. 8. 8. 6.
						·	E	VAN	svii	LE.							
1 2 3 4 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	ļ	44			11 2	3. 30 3. 36 3. 36	10	7 (63 193 193 193 193 193 193 193 193 193 19	2	2 1 8 6 4 1 1 1 1 2 1	2 2 2 2 1	1 1 4 4	1 2 1 1 1 2 2 1 1 2 2 1 1 2 2 1 1 2 2 1 1 1 2 2 1 1 1 2 2 1	3 1 5 5 2 5 1 1 1	5 3 4 1 1	10 3 5 8 15 5 25 26 7 13 56	5. 7. 6. 7. 11. 10. 5. 5. 4. 8. 3. 4. 3. 8. 5. 11. 10.
							FO	RT	WA:	YNE.					-		
1 2 3 4 5			i	ļ 	2	\$6.00			5 26	2	10	2	1 2	5 4 1	2 1	6 37 9 9	\$5. 6. 9. 8. 5.

AND OTHER RETAIL STORES IN SPECIFIED CITIES, AS REPORTED PLOYERS—Continued.

INDIANAPOLIS—Concluded.

												,				
w	omer ived	in al an an	terati nount	on or withi	milline n each	ery wo classif	rkroom ied we	is who ekly ra	re- ite.	a ot	yers nd her oyees.		fice oye e s.	То	tal.	Es- tab- lish-
Un- der \$5.00.	\$5.00 to \$5.99.	to	\$7.00 to \$7.99.	\$8.00 to \$8.99.	to	\$10.00 to \$11.99.	\$12.00 and over.	Total.	A ver- age week- ly rate.	Num- ber.	A ver- age week- ly rate.	Num- ber.	A ver - age week - ly rate.	Num- ber.	Aver- age week- ly rate	ment num- ber.
1	2	2	1 4 4 4 1 1	1 4 8 2 2	3	14 1 1	7 1 2 5 5	22 41 6 22 7 12	9.91 8.33 10.11 8.93			6 1 4 2 1 4 1 2	12.00 10.50 8.00 12.00 9.00 12.00	53 8 68 18 6 51 14 25 24 20	8.33 12.33 10.79	19 20 21 22 22 24 24 25 20 27
			-				TER	RE :	HAU'	re.						
2	2	3 3 3	5 3 6	1 1	2 1 1 3 1 3 3	3 8 1 3 1	1 9	18 5 33 4 12 19	7. 80 11. 05 9. 38 9. 21 8. 79	7 9	\$19.14 	19 22 5 6 19 1	\$7.63 11.00 8.10 10.50 7.42 8.00	176 2 3 3 13 49 64 40 56 11 86 156	\$7.03 6.50 5.67 7.00 5.54 3.95 8.36 6.04 10.61 11.18 8.44 8.18 6.78	10 11 12 15
			·				EV.	ANS	VILL)	E.					·	
4	3	3 3 2 1 2 2 1	1 2 2 5 3	1	1	1 2 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 2 2	2 4 1 2	1 20 4 2 4 4 122 7 13	\$10.00 7.45 7.50 9.00 8.38 6.75 11.50 10.04 9.43 8.23	8 6	12.81	1 1 1 3 3 4 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	\$10. 10 3. 50 7. 00 12. 00 3. 25 10. 00 7. 00 6. 50 11. 00 7. 00 8. 00 10. 00 10. 03	14 5 9 57 8 55 44 10 11 15 5 9 26 27 7 7 17 18 18 46	\$7. 18 5. 20 7. 44 7. 28 7. 50 4. 70 7. 18 9. 30 10. 18 9. 30 10. 5. 17 4. 53 7. 75 3. 86 9. 14 9. 64 10. 00 10. 12	1
			2	i	2 1	1	i 1	4 5	\$10.75 8.80	i	\$15.00	1 2 3 2	\$5.00 9.50 7.17 9.75	7 46 14 12 43	\$5.71 7.42 9.36 8.13 5.71	1 2 3 4 5

WEEKLY RATES OF PAY OF WOMEN EMPLOYED IN DEPARTMENT BY EM

FORT WAYNE—Concluded.

										Conc	iaac	·u.					
Es- tab- lish-	Casl wi an an fie	n girk rappe id sto i amo ed wee	s, me rs, pa ck gi unt w ekly r	esseng ckers rls w rithin ate.	ers, bi , inspe ho rec each (undle ctors, eived classi-	Sal	es wo i	nen w	'ho re	ceivec V	d an a reekly	amoui rate.	nt witl	hin eac	h class	ified
ment num- ber.	Un- der	\$4.00 to \$4.99.	to	and	Total.	A ver - age week- ly rate.	der	to	to	to	to	to	to	\$10.00 to \$11.99.	and	Total.	Aver- age week- ly rate.
6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	3	2			3 2	\$3.00 4.00		2	100 4 1	10 222 5 1	5 16 2	2	5 9 4 3	8 11 7 1 3 2 2	19 15 1	53 107 23 7 5 2 6 17 23	\$10. 15 8. 28 8. 15 8. 00 9. 80 10. 00 8. 67 4. 44 6. 17
							so	UTH	ВЕ	ND.							
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	10 10 10	344	1 3 3	3	11 6 	\$3.00 4.50 3.46 4.03		77 17 17 17 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18	1 3 4 12 2 2 2 3	6 1 3 3 14 12	1 9 2 8 3 1 7 2	1 4 1	5 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	2 4 1 1 3 5	4 16 2 1 1 9 4 	7 52 1 4 3 2 45 19 23 1 6 6 28 28	11.50 9.92 7.25 8.25
								MUI	CII	E.							
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	21	1		18	18	\$3.50 7.36 2.50	8	10 4 6 2 2 2	4 6 1 4 1 1 1 5	3 1 2 1 5	1 3 1 2	1	1 1 1 1 1 2	3 3 1 3 1 8	2 3 1 	23 16 9 21 7 5 1 1 12 8 7 46	\$4.43 4.66 3.39 7.00 9.93 9.20 12.00 5.36 8.96 8.50 11.29 7.21
							н	AM:	MON	D.							
1 2 3 4	9	14	1	6	11 22	\$3.68 4.82	4	8	7 8 8 11	8 7 4 26	2 5 16	3	.	3 7	6	12	\$5.80 6.73 5.69 7.16

AND OTHER RETAIL STORES IN SPECIFIED CITIES, AS REPORTED PLOYERS—Continued.

FORT WAYNE—Concluded.

W	omer eived	n in al an an	lterati 10unt	on or withi	millin n each	ery wo	rkroon ied we	ns who ekly ra	re- ate.	ai ot	yers nd her oyees.		fice oyees.	То	tal.	Es- tab- lish-
der	to	to	\$7.00 to \$7.99.	to	to	\$10.00 to \$11.99.	and	Total.	A ver- age week- ly rate.	Num- ber.	A ver- age week- ly rate.	Num- ber.	Aver- age week- ly rate.		Aver- age week- ly rate.	
	1	3	1 11 2 	1 4 4 1	1 2 1	5 7 1 1 1 1	1	12 33 6 2 2 2 1	7, 66 9, 50 10, 00 9, 50 10, 00	13 9 1		20 2 •1	16.00	175 40 10 9 5 7	10.19 8.50 10.11 10.20 8.86 4.58	6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14

SOUTH BEND.

1	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	3 1	1 1 1 6	1 1 2	1 2 1 1 1 2 2 1 1 2 1 1	1 5 1 2 2 3 3 1 7 1	100 5 110 110 111 118 118	10, 25 7, 83 9, 60 14, 60 5, 00 11, 13 11, 00 11, 58	4	\$20.00 18.18	11 6 2 2 1 1	8. 67 8. 00 9. 75 7. 00 18. 00 8. 00 10. 74	87 1 8 6 2 79 46 25 3 11	6.00 10.88 8.88 7.25 8.30 7.52 5.59 7.00 14.68 7.32 8.81 7.77	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13
 					1	i 							33 1	7.77 9.00	14

MUNCIE.

	i -	1	1	1	ī	Γ			1	1	1			i		
ļ					ļ							1	\$8.00		\$4.58	1
					ļ			Í				2	9.00	18	5.14	2
l		l	1	l <i></i> .		l				l		1	5.50	10	3,60	3
l	ì <i></i>	l .	1]]		1		1 2	\$9.00			1 2	6.75	26	7.00	4
l			1	i	1 1			1	9,00	J	l <i></i> .	1	8,00	9	9.61	5
1	1	1 1	1	 	1	1	1	7	8, 29	1	\$20.00	1	10,00	14	9.57	6
l			1	l i	l	1		1 2	9.00			1	9.00	4	9.75	Ž
			1	l		l ï		l ī	11. 25			$\tilde{2}$	7.50	28	7.01	8
1			1	1	1	_		Ιī	9.00			ī	9,00	14	8.96	ă
	l	1	i					ı i	9, 25			î	7.00	13	8.62	10
		1 *	1 1				ĩ	1 7				1				11
			1 :	1 5			6	3.			14 90	11				11
1 3	l o	1 *	1 0	1	1 1	٥	0	29			l .			110		12
		j			1	•••••	• • • • •	i 1	9.00					1	9.00	13
3	6	4	5	1	1 1	3	1 6	29 1	9.38 8.69 9.00	7	14.29		12.00 8.27	12 115 1	10.71	

HAMMOND.

			1	2 3 \$15.33 2 7 10.57	4 \$22.50		17 \$5.80 1 67 7.58 2 12 5.69 3 11 7.07 4
--	--	--	---	--------------------------	-----------	--	--

66172°-Bull. 160-14---8

BULLETIN OF THE BUREAU OF LABOR STATISTICS.

WEEKLY RATES OF PAY OF WOMEN EMPLOYED IN DEPARTMENT BY EM

LA FAYETTE.

Es- tab- lish-	w ai ai	rappe id sto i amo	s, me ers, pa ock gi ount v ekly r	ckers irls w vithin	ers, be, inspection for the contract of the co	undle ctors, eived classi-	Sal	eswoi	nen v	vho re		d an : veekiy			nin eac	h class	ified
ment num- ber.	Un- der	to	\$5.00 to \$5.99.	and	Total.	Aver- age week- ly rate.	der	l to	to	to	l to	to	to	\$10.00 to \$11.99.	\$12.00 and over.	Total.	Aver- age week- ly rate.
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8		2			2	\$4. 25	5	11 1 4	20 10 2 1 1 1 15	3 6 4	5 3 2 4	3	3	3	3	21 7	7.50 6.14 7.57 12.40
							R	CH	MOI	D.							_
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8							3 1	12 1 i	1 4 4 1 2	5 4 3	3	l .	2 1 1	1 9 2 2	1 1	12 19 40 12 1 21 21	5. 21 6. 79 7. 29 9. 00 7. 25 3. 88

NEW ALBANY.

2 3 4 5 6 7	7		1		8	\$ 3. 25	2 1 9 	2	6	4 1	4	1 7	3	9	3	15 3 52 2 3 9	\$4.50 6.40 5.17 6.88 5.00 6.00 4.00 4.06 6.00	
----------------------	---	--	---	--	---	-----------------	-----------------	---	---	-----	---	-----	---	---	---	------------------------------	--	--

AND OTHER RETAIL STORES IN SPECIFIED CITIES, AS REPORTED PLOYERS—Continued.

LA FAYETTE.

W	1 1 3 2 1 1 4 7.50 1 1 1 0.00 1 1 0.00 1 0.00 1 0.00 1 0.00 1 0.00 1 0.00 1 0.00 1 0.00 1 0.00 1 0.00 1 0.00 1 0.00															
der	to	to	to	to	to	to	and	Total.	age week- ly	Num-	age week- ly	Num- ber.	age week- ly	Num-	age week- ly	ment num-
i	4	6	2 1	1 2 2	1	1 1 1 1	3	4 6 2 18 8	7, 50 10, 33 9, 00 8, 08 7, 25	3		2 2 2 1 3	7, 50 14, 00 11, 00 9, 00 11, 67 9, 00	30 28 30 10 75 14	5.03 9.02 8.55 7.00 7.89 9.21	2 3 4 5 6 7
		i	1 2 1 1	i	1	1	1	1 2 1 1	\$7.50 7.50 12.00 11.00	3		1 5 3 1	12.10 8.60 7.33 9.00	20 50 16 3 2 22 22 5 3 13 24 3	5. 56 7. 18 7. 59 9. 67 7. 25 4. 11 9. 80 7. 33 9. 27 8. 13 8. 83 10. 88	2 3 4 5 6 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13

	1	2	1 4 10.10 1 10.00	10	7. 05 74 2 2 5. 50 10	\$4.50 1 6.34 2 5.17 3 6.83 4 5.00 5 7.00 6 4.15 7 4.06 8 6.00 9
--	---	---	----------------------	----	--------------------------------	--

[Bracketed hours indicate either a permanent change of hours during the year, or

INDIANAPOLIS.

							Other e	mploy- nt	
Indi- vidu- al num- ber.	Age.	Conjugal condition.	Occupation.	Years of ex- peri- ence in present indus- try.	Weeks em- ployed during year.	Aver- age weekly earn- ings.	Weeks.	Earn- ings.	Weeks of un- employ- ment.
1	25	Single	Saleswoman, lace	7	50	\$11.50			2
2	28	do	Saleswoman, candy	2	1 52	7.00			
3 4 5 6	19 41 49	Divorced Single	Saleswoman, general Saleswoman, domestics Store matron Saleswoman	15 13	24 48 3 50 52	(2) 7.25 5.00			28 4 2
7	(⁴)	Separated. Widowed.	Department head, lace	4½ 10	50	(2) 11.24			2
•	~		(Saleswoman, jewelry and)		1	1		•••••	_
8	28	Single	neckware.	14	43	11.00	·····		9
9	23	do	Department head, stationery	3	50	7.00			2
10	21	do	Department head, gloves	4	49.	12.00		•••••	3
11	39	do.7	Saleswoman, general	12	43	8.30	 		9
12	35	do	Saleswoman, confectionery Department head, leather	(2)	51	(2)			. 1
13	20	do	goods.	} 2	8 51	9.00			1
14	21	do	Cashier	3	50	8.33			2
15	30	do	Saleswoman, suits	9	8 51	15.00			: 1
16	32	Separated.	Saleswoman, general	6	8 51	(2)			1
17	20	Single	Saleswoman, lace	3	3 37	5.11	6	\$ 36.00	9
18	22	do	Saleswoman, suits	(²)	50	8.12			2
19	24	do	Millimery maker	72	51	7.83			1
20	26	do	Saleswoman, pictures	9	503	5.94			112
21	35	do	(Department head, muslin underwear.	} 12	48	15.00			4
22	40	do	Saleswoman, waists, under- wear, lace.	} 10	{ 25 19	7.81			8
23	27	do	Saleswoman, corsets	51	50	10.00		 	2
24	30	do	Saleswoman, groceries	10	51	(2)		·····	1
25	26	do	Saleswoman, notions	4	9 50	4.52			2
26	31	do	Department head, corsets	15	35	15.00			17
27	21	do	Saleswoman, ribbons	53	8 52	5.94		 	
28	22	Married	Saleswoman, patterns and	8	11	5.00	9	58.50	32
	į	l	books.	1	,	1	J	j	1

¹ Includes 2 weeks' vacation with pay and occasional days' absence with pay.

² Not reported.
3 Includes ½ week's vacation with pay.
4 35 to 40.
5 Reported as none, but store reports shorter hours in summer and a majority of its employees also report shortened hours.

PLOYED IN DEPARTMENT AND OTHER RETAIL STORES.

that the individual had worked in more than one establishment, or worked in shifts.]

INDIANAPOLIS.

		Regu	lar wo	rking h	ours.			w	orkin	g hour	s duri	ng ove	rtime	seaso	ns.	
Sea	son of		nal	Seas		short	ened	Ве	fore C	hristm	ıas.	Ot		an bei stmas.	fore	Indi- vidu- al
Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. ex- cep- tion- al day.	Hrs. per wk.	Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. ex- cep- tion- al day.	Hrs. per wk.	Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. maxi- mum day.	Maxi- mum hours per wk.	Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	maxi- mum	Hrs. per wk.	num- ber.
$ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	9 { 9 { 13 9 9 103 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9	11½ 5½ 6 12½ 11½ 11½ 11½ 11½ 11½	56½ 55½ 60 56½ 56½ 56½ 56½ 56½ 554 56½ 554 57½ 555	8 37 9 7 }	8 8 8 8	9 9	49 49 49 49 49	1½ 3 1 1½ 1½ 2½ 2½ 1	13 13 12½ 12 13 12 12 12 12	13½ 13 12½ 13 13 12 12 12 12 12	79½ 78 75 73 72½ 72 72 72 72 71 72	31/2	12	12	72 60½	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
421	9	111	56}	(5)				11/2	111	13	71 <u>3</u>	{ 2 3	9 11	$ \begin{cases} 11\frac{1}{2} \\ 64 \\ 11\frac{1}{2} \\ 64 \end{cases} $	60½ 66½	10
$ \begin{cases} 12 \\ 21 \\ 502 \\ 26 \\ 14 \\ 422 \end{cases} $	11½ 9 9 9 9 9	12½ 13½ 11½ 12½	682 54 581 561 54 583	9 } * 8 7	 8 8 9	9	45 49 54	} 1 1	13½ 11¾ 13	13½ 12 13	71 701 70	1 2	11½	13½ 11	71 58 <u>1</u>	11 12 13 14
41	91		57	88	81	51	47-3					$\left\{\begin{array}{c}1\\1\end{array}\right.$	$ \left\{ \begin{array}{c} 124 \\ 9\frac{1}{2} \\ 9\frac{1}{2} \end{array} \right. $	$\begin{bmatrix} 12\frac{3}{4} \\ 6 & 3\frac{1}{4} \\ 12\frac{3}{4} \\ 6 & 3\frac{1}{4} \end{bmatrix}$	661	15
\$ 50 25 40 40 40	9½ 9¼ 9 9	12½ 12½ 11½ 11½ 11½	60 60 56½ 56½ 54	3 9 7 } (5)	8½ 8½	9 <u>1</u> 9	52 51½	1 1 1	11½ 11¼ 11½	12½ 12½ 12½	70 70 69	$\left\{ egin{array}{c} 1 \\ 1 \\ 2 \\ 2 \end{array} ight.$	12 ₁₂ 9 ₁₂ 9 11 <u>1</u>	127	67½ 65 62 69	16 17 18 19
38 341 38	9 9	11½ 11½	56½ 54 56½	(*)		9	49	1 2	11½ 11½	1113	69 69	2 { 1	9	$ \begin{bmatrix} 11\frac{1}{2} \\ 11\frac{1}{2} \\ 65 \\ 9 \end{bmatrix} $	61½	20 } 21
{ (2) 14	9	1112	56 <u>1</u>	(2) 2		9	49	(2) 1	·ii;	113	69	$ \begin{cases} 1 \\ $	9	11½ 66	53 62½ 55	22
42 42 28	9 9 9	11½ 11½ 11½	56½ 56½ 56½	7 8 }•9	81 81 81	9 9 9	51½ 51½ 51½	1 1 1 1	11½ 11½ 11½	11½ 11½ 11½	69 69 69			66		23 24 25
26	9	1112	54 56½	5	8	9	49	2	11½	113	69	{ 1 1 1	9	$ \left\{ \begin{array}{l} 11\frac{1}{2} \\ 65 \\ 9 \\ 64 \end{array} \right. $	61½ 53	26
26 131 9	91 91 9	12 1	573 543 54	89	81	91	493	{ 3, 2	91 123 113	123 128 12	58 675 67½	}				27 28

⁶ Hours on Sunday.
7 Single first part of year, married and keeping house last 4 months of year.
8 Includes 1 week's vacation with pay.
9 Includes 2 weeks' vacation with pay.

WORKING HOURS AND EARNINGS OF WOMEN EMPLOYED INDIANAPOLIS—Continued.

==-									
							Other e	mploy- nt.	
Individual number.	Age.	Conjugal condition.	Occupation.	Years of ex- peri- ence in present indus- try.	Weeks em- ployed during year.	Average weekly earnings.	Weeks.	Earn- ings.	Weeks of un- employ- ment.
29	19	Single	Saleswoman, music	21/2	1 52	\$7.50			
30	18	do	Saleswoman, ribbons	1	491	4.17			21
31	21	do	Saleswoman	2	13	4.28		. 	5
32	23	do	Saleswoman, linens	3	39	2 5.38	13	3\$87.75	
33	17	do	Saleswoman, hair goods	1,1	51	4.61			1
34	29	Separated.	Department head, jewelry	7	52	9.00	 		
35	35	Single	Department head, wash goods.	} 18	52	16.00			
36	22	do	Saleswoman, notions, etc	4	25	6. 12			27
37	(4)	do	Saleswoman, silverware	14	1 41	12.58			11
38	21	do	Saleswoman, candy	3	5 51	5. 50			1
39	18	do	Saleswoman, toys	$2\frac{1}{4}$	6 52	3.91			
40	24	do	Saleswoman, general	7	46	8.00	 		6
41	24	do	Saleswoman, hardware	4	6 43	6.87			9
42	28	Separated.	Saleswoman, ribbons	3	17	6.77	10	66.00	25
43	17	Single	Saleswoman, hardware	3	23½	4.52	15	149. 25	131
44	17	do	Stenographer	172	29	8.28			23
45	19	do	Saleswoman, candy	31	1 51	7.01			1
46	28	do	Saleswoman, linings	61	48	8.25			4
47	(4) 17	do	Saleswoman, toys Saleswoman, hardware	9,	8 16	9 14.50			36
48 49	18	do	Saleswoman, toys	1 21	13 1 51	4. 28 4. 82	13	78.00	26 1
50	18	do	Saleswoman, general	3	41	6.00			11
51	15	do	Wrapper	_	37	3.78	3	10.50	12
52	16	do	do	1	38	3.69	1		14
5 3	23	do	Saleswoman, notions	, -	31	6, 57			481
54	23	do	Floorwalker	6	1 511	10.00		1	1
55	28	do	Saleswoman, shirt waists	31/2	37	10.50	 .		15
56	50	Widowed.	Tailoress	30	10 50	8.21			2
57	14	Single	Saleswoman, chinaware	13	19	4.38	22	170.50	11
58	20	do	do	1	24 *	4.03	26	(11)	2
59	17	do	Saleswoman, art department.	} 1	49	4.28			3

¹ Includes 2 weeks' vacation with pay.
2 Not including P. M. commissions, amount not reported.
3 Approximately.
4 Not reported.
5 Includes 1 week's vacation with pay.
6 Includes 1½ weeks' vacation with pay.

			Regu	lar wo	rking h	ours.			w	orkin	g houi	rs duri	ng ove	erti m e	seaso	ns.	
	Sea	son o		nal	Seas		short urs.	ened	Ве	fore C	hristn	ıas.	Ot		an bei stmas.	ore	Indi- vidu- al
p	Vks. em- oloy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. ex- cep- tion- al day.	Hrs. per wk.	Wks, em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. ex- cep- tion- al day.	Hrs. per wk.	Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. maxi- mum day.	Maxi- mum hours per wk.	om-	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. maxi- mum day.	Hrs. per wk.	num- ber.
1	26 14½ 25 13 9½ 3 29½	912 913 913 91 91 91 9	11 ₁ / ₂ 12½ 11½ 11½ 11½	57 54½ 58 55 54 56½ 56½	} 1 9 } 8 }9	812 83 9	9 ₁ 1 ₂	49½ 52½ 54	$ \left\{ \begin{array}{c} 2 \\ \frac{1}{2} \\ 3 \\ \frac{1}{2} \\ \frac{1}{2} \\ \frac{1}{2} \end{array} \right. $	913 123 94 124 124 123	191 123 123 123 124 124	573 67-5 581 67 3 67	} }				29 30 31 32
	29½ 13 10 19½	91 91 9	12½ 11½	58 ² 55 55 56½ 54	} 8 } 7	8 3 8	9 1 9	52a 49	$ \begin{cases} 3 \\ \frac{1}{2} \end{cases} $	12½ 12½ 9 12	12½ 12½ 12½ 13²	67 57 2 661	$\left\{\begin{array}{c}3\\2\\7\end{array}\right.$	9 8	11½ 10¼ 11¼ 11½ 12½	583 511 561 662	33
ſ	14 22 13	9 9 9	111	56 <u>1</u> 54	9	8	9	49	, 1	9		561	5 2	9 11 { 9 11½	1111 121 1111 1111	561 661 64 59	35
	34½ 31½	8½ 9	11	51 56	15	8	4½ 9	44 <u>1</u> 44 <u>1</u> 49	1 2 1½ ½	1112 11 12	11½ 11½ 13	66± 66 66	} 2 10	8 9	{ 9 10 11	} 51 58	36 37 38
	42½ 44½	9	11 { 9 12	56 } 60	59	8	9	49 	1 1 ½	{9 12 12	} 13 12	66 66					39 40
Ĺ	21½ 12 14½ 20½	9 9 9	12 11 11 1	57 54 56 56	9		9	49	$ \begin{array}{c c} & \frac{1}{2} \\ & 1\frac{1}{2} \\ & \frac{2\frac{1}{2}}{2} \end{array} $	12 11 9	12 11 12	66 66 57	1	9	{ 11 _{7 5}	} 61	41 42 43
r	19½ 9 41½ 13	8 9 9	}11½ 12 11½	{ 51½ 56½ 57 56½	} 19	8	9	49	1 ½ ½	12 11 11 ²	12 11½ 12	66 65½ 65½	1	9	123	65	44 45 46
8	34 15½ 7½ 28½ 14	9 9 9 9	12½ 11½ 11½	54 57½ 56½ 56½ 54	} 8		9	47	1 2 2 1 2	11½ 11½ 11½	12½ 12 11¾	65 643 643	5	9	10	57½	47 48 49
	39 29 8 211	10 9 9	{ 81 112 102 112 112	55½ 55½ 56½ 54	 7 } 8	8½ 8½ 8½	9 9	51½ 51½	2 1 1	10½ 10¾ 11½	12 10‡ 11 <u>‡</u>	64½ 64½ 64					50 51 52
	$ \begin{array}{c} 2\frac{1}{2} \\ 30 \\ 12 \\ 6 \end{array} $	9 9 9	11½ 11½	54 56½ 54 56½	}19 }7	 8 8	9	49 49	1 1	11½ 11½	11½ 11½	64 64	 { <u>1</u>	1112	114	64	53 54 } 55
7	22 46 10½	9 9	11½ 11½	54 561 561	2	 8 <u>1</u>	9	51 <u>1</u>	2	11½ 11½	11½ 11½	64 64	\ \ \ 2 \ \ 3 \ 3 \ \ 3 \ 3 \ 3	$\begin{cases} 9 \\ 11\frac{1}{2} \\ 9 \end{cases}$	11½ 11½ 11½ 10½ { 10½ 11½ 10½	59 64 58 59 58	56 57
	17½ 21½ 3 18 2½	9 9 103 9	113	56½ 56½ 63 54 56½	31/2	8	9	49	1 1	11½ 11½	11 <u>1</u>	64 64	{ š 	} 9 	{ îĭ∄	59	} 58 59

 ⁷ Hours on Sunday.
 8 Includes 3 week's absence with pay.
 9 Does not take into consideration \$67.50 received at end of year as her portion of profit-sharing division.
 10 Includes 1 week of sick leave with pay.
 11 Not over \$150.

WORKING HOURS AND EARNINGS OF WOMEN EMPLOYED INDIANAPOLIS—Continued.

							Other e	mploy- nt.	
Individual number.	Age.	Conjugal condition.	Occupation.	Years of ex- peri- ence in present indus- try.	Weeks em- ployed during year.	Average weekly earnings.	Weeks.	Earn- ings.	Weeks of un- employ- ment.
60 61	16 23	Single Married	Saleswomando	1 2 26	12½ 6	\$4.29 6.10		••••	39½ 46
62	20	do	Bookkeeper	4	1 51	6.01			1
63	30	Separated.	Saleswoman, boys' clothing	3	48	9.34			4
64 65	26 45	Single	Cashier. Saleswoman, ready-to-wear	$\begin{array}{c} 6 \\ 20 \end{array}$	49 50	7.50 10.00			3 2
66	17	do	Wrapper	1/3	18	3.51	26	\$108.00	8
67	30	do	Saleswoman, jewelry	5	50	7.00			2
68	24	Separated.	Saleswoman, stationery	2	51/2	4.91			461
69 70	16 16	Single	Saleswoman, music Saleswoman	12	27 40	· 4.58	2 12	110.00	25 12
71	40	Married	Saleswoman, suits	1	15	10.00			37
72	18	Single	Saleswoman, general	1/2	24	5.39			28
73	36	do	Saleswoman, art needlework.	21/2	50	8.64			2
74 75	17 29	do Married	Saleswoman, dress goods	1 10	14 49	7.50 10.85		 	38 3
76	21	Single	Saleswoman, veilings	5	48	9.86			4
77	17	do	Saleswoman, art needlework.	12	51	5.5 2		ļ	1
78	19	do	Saleswoman, notions	3½	37	7.16	15	75.00	
79	29	Separated.	Saleswoman, confectionery	6	50	5 10.50			2
80	18	Single	Saleswoman, lace	3	301	9.20			211
81	19	do	Cashier	4	47	8.00			5
82	30	do	Department head, trim- mings.	6	50	9.00			2
83	33	do	Buyer and saleswoman, toi- let articles, etc.) 11	1 51	9.47			1
84	17	do	Saleswoman, music	2	52	6.00			
85	21	do	Saleswoman	5 52	5	6.12	 	 	47
86	'19	do	do	4	49	4.94	 	ļ	3
87	20	do	Saleswoman, candy	61	51	4.76	 	 	1
88	16	do	Saleswoman, kitchen ware	12	25	4.28			27
89	34	Separated.	Saleswoman, domestics	1,1,	52	6.65	ļ		

Includes 1 week's vacation with pay.
 This work was in the evening in addition to regular employment.
 Hours on Sunday.

		Regul	ar wor	king h	ours.			W	orkin	ıg hou	rs duri	ng ove	ertime	sensor	ns.	
Sea	son of hou		nal	Seas	on of hou	shorte irs.	ened	Ве	efore C	Christm	ıas.	Ot		an bei stmas.	lore	Indi- vidu- al
Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. ex- cep- tion- al day.	Hrs. per wk.	Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. ex- cep- tion- al day.	Hrs. per wk.	Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. maxi- mum day.	Maxi- mum hours per wk.	Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. maxi- mum day.	Hrs. per wk.	num- ber.
10½ 5 27½ 15 12½ 41½ 41½ 41½ 2 8 13 35 2½ 16	9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9	11½ 12½ 11½ 11½ 11½ 11½ 11½	54 54 56 56 56 56 56 56 56 56 56 56 56 56 56	} 1 8 7 8 }	8 81 82 8	9 11½ 11½	49 54 51 <u>3</u>	2 1 1 2 1	9 11½ 11½ 11½ 11½ 11½ 11½	11½ 11½ 11½ 11½ 11½ 11½ 11½ 11½ 11½ 11½	64 64 64 64 64 64 64	{ 1	1112 9	111 111	64 59	60 61 62 63 64 65 66 67
16 32½ 13	9 9 9	11½ 11½ 11½	54 54 56½ 56½	9 7	8 8½	9 9	49 51½	2 1 1 2	9 11½ 	11½ 11½ 11½	64 64 64	1 1	11½ 9	$\begin{cases} 11\frac{1}{2} \\ 11\frac{1}{2} \\ 37 \end{cases}$	64 } 63½	69 70 71
$ \left\{ \begin{array}{c} 8 \\ 7 \\ 7 \\ 26 \\ 13 \\ 4 \end{array} \right. $	10 9 9 9 ₁ 9	11½ 11½ 12½	59½ 56½ 54 57½ 54 54 54	9	9 <u>11</u> 8	9 <u>12</u> 9	54½ 49	1	111	12	631	1 1 1 1 1	11½ 9 9;12 9	$ \begin{array}{c} 11\frac{1}{2} \\ 11\frac{1}{2} \\ 8 7 \\ 12\frac{1}{2} \\ 12 \end{array} $	64 63½ 63½ 57	72 73 74 75
$ \left\{ \begin{array}{l} 42\frac{1}{2} \\ 16 \\ 24 \end{array} \right. $	9 9 9	113 113 	56½ 56½ 54 56½	$ \begin{cases} 6 \\ 7 \end{cases} $ $ \begin{cases} 3 \\ 6 \end{cases} $	8 8 9 8	11 2 9	51½ 49 54 49	} (1)	111	113	63½ 63½	1 { 1 1	9 9	$ \begin{cases} 11\frac{1}{2} \\ 33 \\ 11\frac{1}{3} \\ 37 \\ 33 \end{cases} $	63½ 63½ 59½	75 76 77
$ \begin{cases} 2\frac{1}{2} \\ 28\frac{1}{2} \end{cases} $ 49\frac{1}{2}	9 9 { 9 }	11½ 6 7 {	56½ 54 52 6 59	}				3	13	13	63	3 3	9½ 9½	11½ 9½ 86% 11½	57 631	78
{ 4 15 30	10 } 9 9	1112	56 59 56 1 54 54	9 5	8	9 4½	49 44½	1½ 2	9 { 9 12	$ \begin{cases} 12 \\ 3 \\ 3 \end{cases} $ 12	63	$ \begin{cases} 1 \\ 2 \\ 8 \\ 1 \end{cases} $	9 8 9	$\left\{ \begin{smallmatrix} 9 \\ 3 & 3 \\ & 11 \\ & 12 \end{smallmatrix} \right.$	} 57 47½ 57	80
{ 12 30 17 25	9 9 9	11½ 11½	56½ 54 56½ 54	} 6 } 8	8 8	9	49 49	1	11	11½	621	{ i i	8 11	10 11½	55 62½	82 83
1 28½ 23 22½	9 9 9	{111 <u>3</u> ·ii	56½ 56 54 56 54	} }				1/2	11	11 11	62 62					84 85
2 21 2 2 8	9 9 9	11 113	54 56 54 { 55½ 58	}				1/2	11	11	62					86
18½ 15 8 2½	9 9 (4) 9	11 11	56 54 56	} } }	8	9	49	1 1	11	11	62					87
14 ²	9		54 54	9	8	5	45				 	1	${9 \atop 11\frac{1}{2}}$	1112	611	89

⁴ Not reported.
5 Receives in addition to this 2 meals a day.
6 Every third week worked 7 hours Sunday.

WORKING HOURS AND EARNINGS OF WOMEN EMPLOYED INDIANAPOLIS—Continued.

							Other e	mploy- nt.	
Individual number.	Age.	Conjugal condition.	Occupation.	Years of ex- peri- ence in present indus- try.	Weeks em- ployed during year.	Average weekly earn- ings.	Weeks.	Earn- ings.	Weeks of un- employ- ment.
90 91	16 24	Single	Saleswoman, toilet goods Saleswoman, ready-to-wear	3	9 49	\$4.00 12.00	4	\$16.00	30
92	29	do	Saleswoman, bargain table	2	48	9.50			4
93	28	do	Saleswoman, underwear	8	49	11.00			3
94	21	do	Saleswoman, hardware and toys.	ŧ	9	4.11	15	(4)	28
95	17	do	Saleswoman, domestics	12	4	7.50			48
96	18	do	Saleswoman, china and glass	2	44	4.00			
97 98	19 28	do	Bookkeeper	1½ 10	51 50½	6.88			1 1½
99	25	do	Clerical	10	2 49	15.00			3
100	37	Married	Alteration worker	5	46	12.02			6
101	24	Single	Floorwalker	6	51	6.50			1
102	26	do	Saleswoman, silks	8	50	20.00			2
103	30	Married 5	Saleswoman, embroidery	3	11	6.00		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	41
104	24	Single	Saleswoman, ready-to-wear	23	48	15.00	······		4
105	26	do	Department head, embroidery.	6	² 50	14.00			2
106	15	do	Saleswoman,cake, and stock girl.	} 3	34	4.01	2	9.00	16
107	19	do	Saleswoman, dry goods	6	51	4.09	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		1
108 109	27 25	Married Single	Saleswoman, draperies Department head, hosiery	1 12	50 2 50	6 6.00 10.13			2 2
110	20	do	Saleswoman, toilet goods	5	41	11.40			11
111	26	do	Saleswoman, embroidery	8	48	13.50			4
112	19	do	Saleswoman, muslin under-	} 4	50	9.35			2
113	29	do	Department head and buy- er, millinery.	} 10	² 51	20.00			1
114	30	Separated.	Saleswoman, laces	<u>\$</u>	35	8.00			17
115	19	Single	Tailoress	4	42	5.11			10
116	20	do	Bill clerk	5	50	9.00			2
117	32	Married	Saleswoman, coats and suits.	5]	50	18.12		••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••	2
118	33	Single	do	6	49	18.12			3
119	23	do	Saleswoman, leather goods	1/2	24	8.04			28

Not reported.
 Includes 1 week's vacation with pay.
 Hours on Sunday.

			Regul	lar wor	king h	ours.			w	orkin	ıg houi	rs duri	ng ove	ertime	seaso1	15.	
	Sea	son of hou		nal	Seas		short urs.	ened	Ве	efore (Christn	ias.	Ot		nan be stmas.	fore	Indi- vidu- al
er ple	ks. n- oy- d.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. ex- cep- tion- al day.	Hrs. per wk.	Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. ex- cep- tion- al day.	Hrs. per wk.	Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. maxi- mum day.	Maxi- mum hours per wk.	Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. maxi- mum day.	Hrs. per wk.	num- ber.
 	$6\frac{1}{2}$ $43\frac{1}{2}$ 16 24 21 $19\frac{1}{2}$	813 9 9 9 9	10½ 12 11½ 11½ 11½	53 15 2 57 56 12 54 56 54 56 12	2 5 } 7 } 7	8 8 8	9 9	49 49 49	2½ ½	9 11 9 10½	1212 12 12 11½ 11½	61 5 61 61 61	(¹) 1	9	$\left\{egin{array}{c} 11rac{1}{4} \ 8 \ 4rac{1}{2} \end{array} ight.$	} 61	90 91 92 93 94
	1½ 2 2 41 40	812 814 9 9	11 9 11½ 	53½ 51½ 57¾ 54 54 54	} 6 2 8 8 1 8	83 8 8	91 41 5	53 44½ 45	2	11 11 <u>1</u>	11	61	$egin{array}{c} 3 \ 1 \ 1 \ 12 \ \end{array}$	9 <u>1</u> 9 9	12½ 12½ 12½ 11½	60½ 60½ 57½ 60½	95 96 97 98 99
{	27 14 24 28½ 14 16 26 8	9999999	11½ 11½ 11½ 11½	54 56½ 54 56½ 54 56½ 54 56½	\	8 8 8	9 9 9	49 49 49	1	1113	111.	603	1	9	$ \begin{array}{c} 11_{\frac{1}{2}} \\ 11_{\frac{1}{2}} \\ \begin{cases} 11_{\frac{1}{2}} \\ 3 & 4 \end{array} $	601	100 101 102 103
	2½ 14 25 40 7½ 17	9 9 9	11}	54 56½ 54 54	}····· } 7 28 5	8 8 8	9 5 9	49 45 49	} 3	111	1113		$\left\{\begin{array}{c}1\\1\\2\end{array}\right.$	9 9 9	${ \begin{array}{c} 12\frac{1}{2} \\ 9 \\ 3\frac{31}{2} \\ 12 \end{array} }$	60 } 57½ 60	103 104 105 106
{ {	11 15½ 41 40 11 18	813 9 9 9 9 9 9 9	9 11½ 11½	51½ 56½ 54 54 54 56½ 54	} 9 7 28 7	8 8 8 8	8 9 5 4½ 9	48 49 45 44½ 49	1 1/2 2	11 9	11 { 9 3 1½	60 } 55½	{····· 1 2 2 2 1	9 11 9 9	$ \begin{cases} 11 \\ 12 \\ 11\frac{1}{2} \\ 3 \\ 11\frac{1}{2} \end{cases} $	60 58 59½ 59½ 57	107 108 109 } 110
\ \{\ \frac{1}{2}	17 22 16 26 13 29	9 9 9 8 8 8	11½ 11½ 11½ 11½	56½ 54 56½ 54 55½ 53 56½	} 5 } 7 } 58	8 8 7 §	9 9 8‡	49 49 48	1	105	11 3 { 9 <u>1</u>	591	${}^{{2}\choose{2}}$	9	{ 9 3 3 4 3 4 3 3 4 3 3 4 3 4 3 4 4 4 4 4	59½ 57 59½	111 112 113
	22½ 38 33	9 9	11½	54 44 54 56 <u>1</u>	} 3 5 } 6	8½ 8½ 8	9	51 <u>3</u> 51 49	1/2	91	{ 8 4 ²	59½	$\begin{cases} \frac{4}{2} \\ 10 \end{cases}$	9 8½ 9 9	$\begin{array}{c} 11 \\ 11 \\ 11 \\ 11\frac{1}{2} \\ 11\frac{1}{2} \\ 2\frac{1}{2} \\ 11\frac{1}{2} \end{array}$	59\\ 58\\\ 59\\ 59\\ 59\\ 59\\ 56\\\\ 56\\\\\ 56\\\\\ 56\\\\\\\ 56\\\\\\\\	114 115 } 116 }
()	25 17 23	9	1113	54 ² 56 ¹ 54	}	8	9	49					\ \frac{1}{1}	9 9 8	$ \begin{array}{c} 9\frac{1}{2} \\ 9\frac{1}{2} \\ 11\frac{1}{2} \\ 11\frac{1}{2} \\ 9\frac{1}{2} \end{array} $	58 55½ 59 56½ 58	118
11	(1) 13	9		54	4 1	9 8		54 49	4	9	9 3 2½	} 56½	1 1	9	9½ 12 ∫ 9	55] 57 } 58½	119

⁴ Was millinery apprentice; no pay.
5 Deserted by husband.
6 Not including P. M.'s, amount not reported.

WORKING HOURS AND EARNINGS OF WOMEN EMPLOYED INDIANAPOLIS—Continued.

								mploy- nt.	
Individual number.	Age.	Conjugal condition.	Occupation.	Years of ex- peri- ence in present indus- try.	Weeks em- ployed during year.	Average weekly earnings.	Weeks.	Earn- ings.	Weeks of un- employ- ment.
120	33	Widowed.	Saleswoman, linens	112	151	\$5.50			1
121	28	Single	Saleswoman, bargain tables.	6	51	(2)			1.
122	23	do	Head saleswoman, jewelry	8	33	11.10			19
.123	23	do	Bookkeeper	8	1 51	12.00			1
124	15	do	Clerical	83	23	4.09			29
125	16	do	Saleswoman, ribbons	ŧ	7½	4.51			441
126	.37	Widowed.	Saleswoman, coats and suits.	41/2	13 39	23.00			
127	16	Single	Saleswoman	3	5}	4.00		i	46½
128	20	do	Saleswoman, stationery	4	49	6.00			3
129	.44	do	Saleswoman, neckwear	3	163	7.50	••••••		35½
130	22	Married	Cashier	73	49	6. 53			3
131	17	Single	Marker	2	50	4.97			2
132	53	do	Saleswoman and buyer, cor- sets and underwear.	25	1 492	9. 50			2}
133	17	do	Millinery worker	12	26	5.00		· · · · · · · ·	26
134	20	do	Saleswoman, gloves	572	1 43	9.50			9
135	24	do	Saleswoman and buyer,	81	4 52	14.90			
136	18	do	leather goods. Typist and assistant cashier.	98	5 45	64.00			7
137 138	57 36	Widowed. Married	Fitter Department head, dresses	9 5	17 28	10.00 8.14			35 24
			- ,						24
139 140	23 45	Single	Department head, hair goods Saleswoman, suits	1 t 30	1 36	15.00 10.00			16
141	(²)	Married	Fitter	20	50	7.54			2
142	28	Separated.	Saleswoman, prints	10	42	9.25			10
143	22	Single	Saleswoman, coats and suits.	5	18 16½	7 9. 55			171
144	17	do	Alteration worker	2	1 49	4.51			3
145	17	do	Floorwalker	17	8 50 %	5.34		• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	11/2
146 147	15 17	do	Saleswoman Wrapper	2	13	4.31 3.43		•••••	39
148	34	do	Saleswoman, underwear	15	46	8.90			6
149	35	Widowed.	Saleswoman, linens	12	151	9.50			. 1
150 151	27 38	Single	Saleswoman, bargain tables. Department head, linens	$\frac{1\frac{1}{2}}{9}$	12½ 50	6.56 8.91	8	\$72.00	31½ 2
			· .			ł			
152	30	do	Saleswoman, dresses	3}	50	7.00			2
153	25	do	Saleswoman, handkerchiefs.	11	43	5.64		ļ	9

¹ Includes 1 week's vacation with pay.
² Not reported.

³ Hours on Sunday.
4 Includes 2 weeks' vacation with pay.

			Regul	ar wor	king h	ours.			V	/orkir	g hou	rs duri	ng ove	ertime	seaso	ns.	
	Sea	son o	f norn	al	Seas	on of hou	short ırs.	ened	Be	fore C	hristn	ıas.	Ot	her th Chris	an bei stmas.	fore	Indi- vidu- al
1	Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. ex- cep- tion- al day.	Hrs. per wk.	Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. ex- cep- tion- al day.	Hrs. per wk.	Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. maxi- mum day.	Maxi- mum hours per wk.	Wks, em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. maxi- mum day.	Hrs. per wk.	num- ber.
	42½ 16 26	81.2 9 9	8 11 111	51 56½ 54	8 8	815 8	9	50½ 49	1/2	1011	1013	58½	1	9	11½	58 <u>1</u>	120 121
K	26	9	${10 \atop 11\frac{1}{2}}$	} 58½	}			ļ	3	9	$\left\{ egin{array}{c} 9 \\ 8 & 1 rac{1}{2} \end{array} ight.$	} 55½					122
{	13 20	9 9 9	11½	54 56½ 54	16	8	9	49	 			• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	$\left\{\begin{array}{c}2\\3\\7\end{array}\right.$	8 9 9	10 11} 11	51 58½ 56	123
1,	13 4	9	93	54½ 54	9	8	9.	49	1	10	101	58½	·····				124
K	$2\frac{1}{2}$	9	93	543	}				1	97	93	58½					125
1	9 1	91		55½	 1								4	93	93	581	126
K	2½ 41	9 9	}11	56 54	}···· ₇		43	441	2	9	13	58	1	9	13	58	127 128
	111	91		55			*2	1123	3	91	91	57	Ji	9	$\begin{cases} 39\\ 33 \end{cases}$	} 58	129
1,	24		113	58	,					02	02	0.	1	9	12	58)
Ŋ	25 26	91 91 91	113	55½ 58	}	••••						• • • • • •		•••••			130
K	24 11½	9	111	551 562	} N							• • • • • •			(113	1	131
K	26	9		54	18	8	9	49		••••	•••••	• • • • •	(1	9 8	$\left\{ \begin{array}{c} 11\frac{1}{2} \\ 10\frac{1}{2} \\ 11\frac{1}{2} \end{array} \right.$	58 511	132
	16	9	••••	54	9	8	5	45					$\left\{\begin{array}{c}1\\1\\1\end{array}\right.$	9	11 ²	58° 49	133
ľ	34 42	9		54 54	17	8	5 43	45			••••	• • • • • •	{ î	9	îĭ 11	58 58	} 134 135
	5 44	91		57									1	91	101	58	
1	16 13	9	$\frac{123}{12\frac{1}{2}}$	57-2	1	81	$12\frac{1}{2}$	55			••••						136 137
Ŋ	15 13	999999999	12	57½ 54 57	}						••••		•••••	••••			138
Ï	15 13 39 26 20 13 29 18 5½	9	91	54 <u>1</u> 54	8	8	41/2	443				•••••	2	9	111	571	139 140
1,	20 13	9	$\frac{11^{1}_{2}}{12}$	56 <u>3</u> 57	· · · · · ·						•••••		4	9.	11½ 12½	57½ 57å	141
ľ	29 18	9	 12	54 57	}				•		• • • • •	•••••					142
K		9	9	54	} 6	8	9	49		ſ 9)		5	9	101	55½	143
	40 <u>1</u> 43	9	9 93	54 543	8	8	9	49 49	1	{ 9 10 93	} 10 9}	57 57		•••••			144 145
K	10 23	9	93	54 543	}				3	9	93	57					146
ľ	41	9		54	19	8	41/2	443	2	912	91	57			(32	ļ	147
	42 37	9	•••••	54 54	1 8	83	 5	473	11/2	9 9 <u>1</u>	9 <u>1</u>	54½ 57	3	9	{ 3 3	57 57	148 149
	7}	91		55½			••••		3 5	91	92	57		9½	9½		150
1.	40	9		54	7	8	4½	443	3	9	{ 8 3	57	•••••	••••			151
K	17 24	9	113 91	563 541	9	8	91	491								ļ	152
	38	9	ļ	54	ļ]	4	9	$\left\{egin{smallmatrix} 9 \ 3\ 2rac{3}{4} \end{smallmatrix} ight.$	561	1	9	${\left\{ \begin{smallmatrix} 9 \\ 3 & 23 \end{smallmatrix} \right\}}$	} 56 3	153

⁶ Includes 8 days' vacation with pay.
⁶ Has in addition dinner each day.

Earnings for 16½ weeks only.
 Includes ½ week's vacation with pay.

WORKING HOURS AND EARNINGS OF WOMEN EMPLOYED INDIANAPOLIS—Continued.

							Other e	mploy- nt.	
Individual number.	Age.	Conjugal condition.	Occupation.	Years of ex- peri- ence in present indus- try.	Weeks em- ployed during year.	Average weekly earnings.	Weeks.	Earn- ings.	Weeks of un- employ- ment,
154 155	27 30	Single	Department head, waists, and saleswoman, hosiery. Saleswoman, muslin under-	} 12 10	51 46	\$12.00 9.00 6.21	}		1 6
156	26	do	wear. Saleswoman, draperies and ready-to-wear.	} #	441	7.00			7}
157	17	do	Wrapper	11	42	3.70	3	\$4.50	7 .
158	18	do	Bookkeeper	3½	48	4.42			4
159	17	do	Saleswoman	1	$\left\{\begin{array}{c} 13\\21\end{array}\right.$	4.11	9	40.50	9
160	27	do	Cashier	6	17½	10.00	17	200.00	171
161	34	Separated.	Saleswoman, groceries	15	50	9.00			2
162	26	Single	Cash girl	5	26	8.00		• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	23
163	25	do	Saleswoman, laces (Saleswoman, bargain count-	13	$27\frac{1}{2}$	4.75			241
164	21	do	ers.	} 5	46	7.52		• • • • • • • •	6
165	22	do	Stenographer	11	50	15.00			2
166	19	do	Cash girl	3	48	6.00		• • • • • • •	4
167	36	do	Saleswoman, millinery	2	48	10.00		• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •
168	2 8	do	Clerical	12	50	20.00		· • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	• 2
169	30	do	Saleswoman, coats and suits.	10	48	(1)		• • • • • • • •	4
170	27	do	Stock girl and cashier	3	51	5.08	•		1
171	22	do	Saleswoman, hair goods	6	51	14.00		• • • • • • • •	1
172	34	do	Saleswoman, coats and suits.	20	50	12.00			2
173	19	do	Floorwalker	4	50	6.74			2
174	(1)	Married	Saleswoman, millinery	3	21	7. 19			. 31
175	39	Widowed.	Bookkeeper and cashier	ŧ	81/2	10. 59	15	182.50	28չ
176	23	Simgle	Millinery worker	4	18	(¹)			34
177	20	do	Clerical	61	48	8.00			4
178	22	do	Cashier	10½	48				4
179	(1)	Widowed .	Saleswoman, millinery	15	49	(1)			3
180	30	Single	Saleswoman, prints	2	211	6.00			301
181	17	do	Wrapper	11	52	3.12			
182	19	do	Saleswoman, notions	11	52	8.75			
183	221	do	Clerical	8}	49	4.50			3
i	į	ı	¹ Not repo	orted .		I	i	l	
			2100 100	/					

Ind	fore	an bei	her th	Ot	195	hristm	fore C	B.	ened	short	on of	Seas	nal	norn	son of	Sea
vidu		stmas.	Chris		ias.	,111 12 (111	iore C	1 100		ırs.	ho	l		rs.	hou	
al num ber	Hrs. per wk.	Hrs. maxi- mum day.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Maxi- mum hours per wk.	maxi- mum	Hrs. usu- al day.	Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. per wk.	Hrs. ex- cep- tion- al day.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. per wk.	Hrs. ex- cep- tion- al day.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Wks. em- ploy- ed.
1 1									54	9	9	9	56½ 56½	11½ 11½	9	42 12
1									49	9	81	9	55½		9 <u>1</u> 9	6 29 <u>1</u>
1		••••							49	9	8	9	56½ 56½ 54	(1111 1111 	9 9,	17 16
1									49 49	9	8	} 7 } 4	56½ 54 56½ 54	11½ 11½	9 9 9	17 24 13 17
1 1									49	9	8	, } 7	56½ 56½ 54	11½ 11½	9 9 9 9	$\frac{17\frac{1}{2}}{13}$
1				- <i>-</i>						••••		}	561 54 561	11½ 11½	9	30 13 13 18 81 17
1		•••••	•••••						49 49	9	8	} 1 } 9	54 56½ 54	111	9 9 9 9	8½ 17 20
10									49 49	9	8	7	56½ 54 56½	11½ 11½	9	20 17 26 13 28 13
10												}	54 561 54	111	9 9 9	28 13 35 13
10									49		 8	} }	56½ 54 56½ 54	11½ 11½	9 9	13 37 15 26
1												}	56½ 54 56½	11½ 11½	9	13 38 26
17									49 40	9	8	} 9 } 7	54 561 54	113	9 9	16 17
17					55	10	9	}	49 45	9 5	8	2 4	56½ 54 56½	111	9 9 9	26 26 17 2 19 21 2
13												{	54 (1) 56½	·:::·	9 (¹) 9	$\frac{19}{21}$
17												}	511 561 54	111 111 111 111	9 9	4 14 14
17 17			· · · · ·						 49	9	8	} } 8	56½ 54 56½ 54	11½ 11½	9	13 35 13 27
17												}	56½ 54	11 <u>1</u>	9	13 36 9
18 18							•••••		48	8	8	} } 9	56½ 54 56½ 54	112	999999999999999999999999999999999999999	12½ 13
18				.	٠,		İ	İ	49	9	8	9	56½ 54	111	9	30 17 26

WORKING HOURS AND EARNINGS OF WOMEN EMPLOYED INDIANAPOLIS—Continued.

							Other e	mploy- nt.	
Individual vidual number.	Age.	Conjugal condition.	Occupation.	Years of ex- peri- ence in present indus- try.	Weeks em- ployed during year.	Average weekly earnings.	Weeks.	Earn- ings.	Weeks of un- employ- ment.
184	21	Single	Clerical.	7	51	(1)			1
185	18	do	(Saleswoman, millinery and	} 1}	48	\$6.90			4
186	36	Divorced	Corsets Forewoman, alterations	8	52	15.00			
187	26	Single	Timekeeper	11	50	16.00			2
188	24	do	Cashier and clerk	31	50	8.60			2
189	24	do	Cashier	10	49	(2)			3
190	45	Widowed.	Saleswoman, suits	12	41	21.44			. 11
191	18	Single	Cashier	4	51	7.00			1
192	40	Married	Department head, skirts	5	50	20.00			2
193	32	do	Saleswoman, dry goods	3	23	5.00			29
194	25	do	Saleswoman, suits	23	₃ 52	21.00			
195	15	Single	Wrapper	132	22	2.82	4	\$16.00	26
196	18	do	Saleswoman, notions	33	50	4.00			2
197	18	do	do	1	393	4.04	8	56.00	41/3
198	29	do	Saleswoman, waists	10	50	10.00	 		2
199	27	do	Saleswoman, art department	21	49	7.00	 		3
200	36	do	Saleswoman, muslin under- wear.	} 7	43	9.56			9
201	25	do	Pay-roll clerk and cashier	8	6 52	18.00			
202	44	Widowed.	Assistant buyer and sales- woman, notions	} 13	4 50	(6)			2
203	35	Single	Saleswoman, white goods	11	4 49	14.00			3
204	23	do	Order clerk, grocery	1 2	36	4.56			16
205	18	do	Saleswoman and marker	2	48	4.27			4
206	27	do	Skirt fitter	8	52	12.00			
207	66	Widowed .	Salesweman, art	7	4 49	20.00			3
208	16	Single	Saleswoman, candy	1/2	3	5.00			49
209	21	do	Saleswoman, baby carriages.	3	7 50	7.98			2
210 211	38 15	Married Single	Saleswoman, waists	56	29 40½	12.00 4.00			23 11½
212	19	do	Saleswoman, stationery	43	4 51	6.46			1
213	40	do	Saleswoman, ready-to-wear	17	37	8.50	15	(9)	
214 215	31 62	Married Single	Bookkeeper and cashier Saleswoman, cloaks and suits	30	4 51 413	13.85 14.00			101
216	19	do	Stenographer	2	5 52	9.00			27
217 218	17 15	do	Stock girldo	12 12	25 26	3.42 3.38			26
219 220	33 15	Widowed.	Saleswoman, coats and suits.	10	49	20.00			3 43
220	45	Single Married	Wrapper Saleswoman, gent's furnish-	1 1	263	3.50 7.90			251
221	40	maineu	ings	} }	202	1.90	J	1	202

Not reported.
 Over \$10.
 Including 2 weeks' vacation with pay.
 Including 1 week's vacation with pay.
 Includes 10 days' vacation with pay.

INDIANAPOLIS—Continued.

		Regu	lar wo	rking h	ours.			W	orkir	ıg hou	rs dur	ng ove	ertimo	seaso	ns,	
Sea	son o	f norn	nal	Seas	son of	short urs.	ened	Ве	efore (Christn	as.	Ot		nan bei stmas.	fore	Indi- vidu- al
Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. ex- cep- tion- al day.	Hrs. per wk.	Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. ex- cep- tion- al day.	Hrs. per wk.	Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. maxi- mum day.	Maximum hours per wk.	om-	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. maxi- mum day.	Hrs. per wk.	num- ber,
\[\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc	99999999999999999999999998#	11½ 11½ 11½ 11½ 11½ 11½ 11½ 11½ 11½ 11½	56½ 56½ 56½ 56½ 54 56½ 54 56½ 56½ 56½ 56½ 56½ 56½ 54 56½ 54 56½ 54 555 56½ 54 555 56½ 54 555 56½ 554 555 56½ 554	\ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \	8 8 8 8 8 8 8	9 9 9 9 9 4½	49 49 49 49 49 441 49 441 49 441 49 441 45	1)2	9	10	563	{ 1 2 2	9 9	111/2	56 <u>1</u> 56	184 185 186 187 188 189 190 191 192 193 194 195 196 197 198 199 200
17 13 26	9° 9	11	54 56 54	}	8	9	49					•••••				200
38 { 13 20 25 { 20 34 41 21 41 27 301 42 20 41 303 114 37	9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9	11 11 11 9½	54 54 54 54 54 54 54 54 54 54	49 48 9 8 18 45 7 9 58 9 9 9	8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8	4½ 5 9 9 4½ 5 5 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9	44½ 45 49 51 44½ 44 49 45 45 45 44½ 49 49 47	2 2 2	9 9½ 9 9¼	11 91 82 82 91	56 56 56 55 <u>4</u>	2 { 1 1 3 2 1 8 10 2 3 3 3 6	9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9	11 10 11 11 11 11 10 8 11 10 10 10 10 91 91 91 91 91 91 91	56 51 56 56 55½ 55 55 55 55 55 55 55	202 } 203 204 205 206 207 208 209 210 211 212 213 214 215 216 217 218 219
9 17½	9 1		55 55	9	8	9	49									220 221

66172°—Bull. 160—14——9

<sup>Not reported, but is at least \$10.
Including several occasional days' absence with pay.
Hours on Sunday.
Was caretaker of house; had lodging free.</sup>

							Other e	mploy- nt.	
Individual al num- ber.	Age.	Conjugal condition.	Occupation.	Years of ex- peri- ence in present indus- try.	Weeks em- ployed during year.	Average weekly earnings.	Weeks.	Earn- ings.	Weeks of un- employ- ment.
222	38	Married		} 3	1 52	\$14.00			
223	28	Single	Saleswoman, coats and suits.	13	39	19.00			13
224	14	do	Wrapper		11	3.75			41
225	16	do	dō	1 1 7 E	34	4.00			18
226	22	do	Stenographer and assistant cashier)	2 52	12.25			
227 228	21 19	do Married	Saleswoman, groceries Saleswoman, shirtwaists	3	8½ 4	6.12 36.00	8	\$28.00	43½ 40
229	17	Single	Stenographer	1 26	52	1 7.31	<i>.</i>		1
$\frac{230}{231}$	17 33	Married	Alteration worker Saleswoman, neckwear	$\frac{3\frac{3}{4}}{20}$	15 4 51	8.00 10.74	37	148.00	1
232	16	Single	Wrapper	1	123	3.36	5 1	26.13	34
233	15	do	Salesweman, candy	2.		3.00	14	49.00	35
234 235	20 16	do	wrapper and cashier	3	49	4.00 3.00			3 1
235 236	19	do	Wrapper	3 3	3 50	8.00			49
237 238	15 23	do	Inspector and wrapper Alteration worker	4 ¹³	5 43	3.00 15.00	$\frac{4}{2}$	14.00 40.00	43
239	20	do	Saleswoman, waists	j b	j əv	7.92		40.00	2
240 241	45 43	do	Alteration worker Forewoman, alteration	8 5	46 50	10.00	•		2 43 9 2 6 2 18 2 4
242 243	19	do	Trimmer, millinery	3 9	34 50	10.00 8.00		10.00	18
244	25 15	do	Saleswoman, candy Wrapper Alteration worker	11/2	40	2.64	8	20.00	4
245 246	17 39	do	Alteration worker	13	43 37½	4.33 15.50	. 10		9 4½
247	14	do	Errand girl	1	13	3.92	1		39
248 249	16 14	do	Anteration worser Saleswoman, suits Errand girl Wrapper do do	2	7 11	3.00 3.15	8 12	22.00 36.00	37 29
250	16 15	do	do	2 5	52	3.50 3.00	[333
251 252	22	do	Millinery maker	8 12	18 ¹ / ₃	8.00			1
253 254	15 16	do	Cash girl Errand girl and wrapper		8 42	2.50 3.00	28	156.00 48.00	16 2
255	19	Married	Saleswoman, general	3	31	5.66	ļ		21
256	14	Single	Wrapper	11	15	3.50	1	4.00	36
257 258	15 16	do	Cash girl	157 607 41.4 41.4 22	15 33	2.40 5.00	4 11	18.00 55.00	33 8
259	37	do	Clerical Saleswoman, millinery	41	36	10.60	i		16
260	18	do	Cashier	1 2		6.00	26	156.00	
261 262	16 16	do	Saleswoman, candy	1 1	40 25\}	4.00			12 26\frac{1}{2}
263	16	do	Saleswoman, hardware	3 ³ / ₄	37	4.07			15
264 265	20 25	do	Alteration worker	34	47 17	8.09 7.74	13	5 50.00	5 22
266	17	do	Wranner	1 3	4.51	3.50			1
267 268	27	do	Saleswoman, draperies Saleswoman, beddings Saleswoman, bargain tables	53 5	4 49½ 4 45½	11.12 7.90			2\} 6\}
269	25	do	Saleswoman, bargain tables.	11	16	7.90 7.55	26	173.00	102
$\frac{270}{271}$	22 20	do	Saleswoman, general Demonstrator and sales-	11/1	25 17	8.14 6.30	····i	6.00	34
	-		woman, gloves and mil- linery.					1.50	
2 72	33	Divorced	Saleswoman and assistant buyer, laces.	10	4 51	10.00		 	1
$\frac{273}{274}$	30 14	Single	Draper	1 2 2 2 6	19 14	12.00 3.00			33 38

 ¹ Including 2 weeks' vacation with pay.
 2 Including 1 week's vacation with pay and 3 weeks' absence in occasional days with pay.
 3 Not including commissions, amount not reported.

Sea	son o	norm	nal	Seas	on of	short	ened		•			Ot	her th	nan bel	ore	1.
	hou			Luas	hou			Ве	tore C	hristn	ias.			stmas.		In vi
Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. ex- cep- tion- al day.	Hrs. per wk.	Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. ex- cep- tion- al day.	Hrs. per wk.	Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. maxi- mum day.	Maxi- mum hours per wk.	Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. maxi- mum day.	Hrs. per wk.	nu b
32	812		51	9	8		48	1	83	9	51½	10	81/2	12	541	
$\frac{39}{10} \\ 24$	912		54½ 54 54	9	 8	8 <u>1</u>	481	1 1	 9 9	9 <u>1</u> 9 <u>1</u>	54½ 54½					
3 3	81		51	7	71/2	81	46			<u>-</u>		$\left\{\begin{array}{c}2\\9\\1\end{array}\right.$	} 8½	$ \begin{cases} 8\frac{1}{2} \\ 9\frac{1}{2} \end{cases} $	47 54 52	}
$\frac{81}{4}$	9		54 54					 					, - 			. '
43 15 43	9 9		54 54 54	9 8	8 8	4 5	44					 				
43 43 9 9	9 811		54 531	}												
3	9 9 9		54 54 54	8	81	5	471									
41 5 43	9 9		54 54 54	9	9	4	49									
43 46 50	9 9 9		54 54 54	7	9	4	49									
34 43	9		54 54	7 9	81	4	441 511									
31 40 37½	9 9 9 9		54 54 54	3	81 81 8	9 9	49									
13 ² 7 4	9 9		54 54 54	7		9	49									
43 161	9 9		54 54 54	9 2 9	8 8	9 41 41	49 441 441									
42° 8 33 31	9		54 54	9	8	8	45									
31 4 10	9 8 11 9		54 53½ 54	} 1	711		471									
33 10	9 9		54 54 54	9	8	9	49	ļ								
26 39	9 7}	8	54 45½	<i>)</i>												
$\frac{1}{16\frac{1}{2}}$	9 9		54 54 54	9	8	9	49	ļ								
42 17 43	9 9 9		54 54 54	5 8	9	4	49									
$\frac{41\frac{1}{2}}{38}$	9		54 54	4 8 4 7½	8 8 8	5 5 5	45 45 45									
16 17 17	9 9		54 54 54	8	8	5	45									
42	9		54	9	8	41	443									
19	9		54	9	°	41/2	445					• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •				

⁴ Including 1 week's vacation with pay. ⁵ In addition received board and lodging.

275 15 Single. Wrapper and telephone operator. 276 24	Earnings.	Weeks of un- employ- ment.
Todicy Variety Varie	ings.	of un- employ- ment. 30 39 36
Column		39 36
276 24 do Saleswoman, underwear 4\frac{1}{2} 13 7.00		36
277 15 -d0 Clerical 15 16 d0 278 16 d0 Wrapper 1		36
280 15 .do		28
280 15 do d		00
and house furnishings. 282 20doSaleswoman, infant depart 5 52 10.00		39
and house furnishings. 282 20doSaleswoman, infant depart 5 52 10.00		2 9
om la la ment.		
283 40do Corset buyer and sales- 25 252 (1)		
284 16 do Wrapper 4 16 3.50 3	\$9.00	33
285 18do Wrapper and timekeeper 11 50 4.00		2 4
287 30do Accountant 4 3 47 (1)		5 1
289 18do Salesman, groceries 3 35 6.00 8	20.00	9
290 40do Saleswoman, coats and suits. 14 43 41.00	84.00	9
292 18do Stenographer 1 13 10.00 12	96,00	21
293 30 do Department head neckwear 8 350 12.00		37
294 15 do Cash girl 1 12 3.00 3 295 14 do Errand girl 1 9 3.00 296 14 do Cash girl 1 9 3.00 297 16 do Cash girl 1 9 2.50 297 16 30 40 15 19 2.50	13.80	37
294 15 do Cash girl \$ 12 3.00 3 295 14 do Errand girl \$ 9 3.00 296 14 do Cash girl \$ 9 3.00 297 18 do \$ 9 3.00		43 43
297 16 do do do 19 2.50		43 33
298 14 40 40 41 8 8 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9		44
299 28 Married Saleswoman, gloves 10 9 10.22 2	36.00	41
300 30 do Accountant. 1½ 552 7.60	72.00	18
	12.00	33%
303 16 do Wrapper 17½ 2.91		333 342
		8
305 30do Buyer, gloves, lans, and 14 51 14.00		1
306 26 do Department head, costumes 8 49½ (¹) 307 15 do Wrapper ½ 22½ 3.00		$\frac{2\frac{1}{2}}{29\frac{1}{2}}$
308 15 do Cash girl and wrapper 3 16 2.92 5 309 46 Married Saleswoman, table linens, 11 502 10.00	16.00	31 11/3
310 15 Single Wrapper \frac{1}{3} 18 2.94		34
311 15 do	51.00	29
312 26 do. Waist draper. S\frac{3}{2} 44 15.00		
314 25 Single Clerk 23 4 8.00		48
315 15 do Coch girl and wrapper 3 30 3 96		22
316 15 do. Wrapper 2 627 3.22		25
317 26 .do Alteration worker. 10 41½ 10.00 318 15 .do Wrapper. ½ 3 27 3.57	· • • • • • •	25
319 24do Saleswoman, coats and suits. 21 644 14.11		8
$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	12.00	34 1
322 35 Widowed Saleswoman, coats and suits 6 38 13.82		14
		15
323 15 Single Wrapper 3 37 3.50		15

Not reported.
 Including 3 weeks' vacation with pay.
 Including 1 week's vacation with pay.

		Regul	lar wo	rking l	ours.			W	orkin	g hou	s duri	ng ove	rtime	seaso	ns.	
Sea	son o hou	f norn irs.	nal	Seas		short urs.	ened	Ве	fore C	hristn	ıas.	Ot		an bei stmas.	fore	Inc
Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. ex- cep- tion- al day.	Hrs. per wk.	Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. ex- cep- tion- al day.	Hrs. per wk.	Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. maxi- mum day.	Maximum hours per wk.	Wks, em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. maxi- mum day.	Hrs. per wk.	nu be
13	9		54	9	8	41/2	443									
13	9		54			ļ				ļ. .						
16	9		54		;-	:										
16 13	9		54. 54	8	81	9	511		• • • • •					• • • • • •		
43	9		54	7	8	41	441									
43	9		54													ĺ
43	9		54	9	8	41	44½				 					
43	9		54	2 9	8	41/2	44½	l								
16	9		54			 										1
43	9		54	7	8	4½ 4½	441									
39	9		54	39	8		445				• • • • • •		• • • • •			
44 3 42	9		54 54	3 3	8 8	4 5	44 45				• • • • • •					
26	9		54	9	8	9	49								l	
39	9		54	4	8	43	443									
29	ğ		54	7	8	92	49									
13	9		54					:								
43	9		54	7	8	9	49									
12	9		54						·			• • • • • •				
9	9		54 54				• • • • •			• • • • •				• • • • • •		
19	9		54													
9 9 19 8 9	9		54													
5 52	9		54 54												• • • • •	
13	9		54	9	8	5	45									
$\frac{18\frac{1}{3}}{17\frac{1}{2}}$	9 9		54													
173	9		54 54	5	8	9	49		'						• • • • • •	
39 37	9		54	8 14	8	41	441									
	İ			_		_										
$\frac{42\frac{1}{2}}{14}$	9		54 54	7 81	. 8 8	9	44½ 49	<i> </i>								
16	9		54	l				['
423	ğ		54	8	8	41/2	443					• • • • • •	• • • • •		•••••	
17	9		54	1	8	41/2	443								١	
4	9		54													
42	9		54	2	8	9	49			• • • • •				••••		
43 4	9		54 54	9	8	41/2	493									
21	9		54	9	8	5 5	45									
18	9		54	9	8	5	45	J ¹								1
41½	9		$\begin{array}{c} 54 \\ 54 \end{array}$	3 9	8		45		· · · · ·				• • • • •		• • • • • •	
18 38	9		54 54	6	8	5 9	49									
15	9		54			ļ										İ
43	82	11 1	52 §	3 8	7	- 	47		• • • • •							
18	81	113	$52\frac{1}{2}$	h												
20	81 81 81	91	50	j						• • • • • •	• • • • • •	· • · · · ·		• • • • • •		
37	1 21	9	$51\frac{1}{2}$!											I l	

 $^{^4}$ Not including commissions and P. Ms., amount not reported. 6 Including 2 weeks' vacation with pay. 6 Including $\frac{1}{2}$ week's vacation with pay.

INDIANAPOLIS—Concluded.

-								employ- nt.	
Individual number.	Age.	Conjugal condition.	Occupation.	Years of ex- peri- ence in present indus- try.	Weeks em- ployed during year.	Aver- age weekly earn- ings.	Weeks.	Earn- ings.	Weeks of un- employ- ment.
325 326 327	19 25 19	Single do	Stenographer. Saleswoman, shoes. Stenographer.	3 3	1 29 11 2 52	\$7.00 8.00 12.00			23 41
328 329 330 331	17 14 15 30	do do do	Saleswoman, hosiery, and wrapper. Cash girl	184 2 ²⁰	9 3½ 10 151	6.00 2.50 2.50 18.00	7	\$ 21.50	43 41½ 42 1

TERRE HAUTE.

1	21	Single	Saleswoman, general	31	2 475	\$6.00	1 1		
2	19	do	do	6	2 51	9.00			
3	30	do	Head fitter	145	3 50	13.50		. .	2
4	28	do	Department head and milli- nery buyer.	9	52	4 50.00			
5	39	Widowed.	Saleswoman, millinery	10%	44	15.00			8
6	32	Single	Head milliner	. 7	48	18.60			4
7	20	do	Saleswoman, groceries	33	3 52	9.00	-		
8	18	do	do	171	3 52	7.00	-		
9	23	do		$10^{\frac{1}{3}}$	$17\frac{1}{2}$	2.97	-		341
10	46	do	Saleswoman, silk depart- ment.	102	3 52 T	15.00			
11	21	do	Telephone operator	6 ₁ ,	ë 51		-		- 1
12	29	do	Saleswoman, millinery	5	16		-		1
13	18	do	Saleswoman, bakery Assistant floorwalker	2	50 2 50	3.87	[]		2
14	20	do	Assistant noorwarker	4 6					
15	23	do	Saleswoman, ribbons	12	-9				43
16	20	do	Saleswoman, gloves	14	51	7.50	-		1
17	24	do	Saleswoman, notions	4	49	5.00	-		3
18	23	do	Department head, notions	9	3 47	6.00		· · · · · · · · ·	5
19	19	do	Saleswoman, underwear	2	2 52	4.08	l <i></i>		
20	29	do	Saleswoman, china	$2\frac{3}{4}$ $3\frac{1}{4}$ $5\frac{7}{2}$ $2\frac{1}{4}$	504	4.57	l		$rac{1 rac{1}{2}}{1 rac{1}{2}}$
21	20	do	Clerical	31	$50\bar{b}$	6, 97	l		13
$\overline{22}$	17	do	Saleswoman	7,	7	3.64	13	6 \$3.00	32
23	21	do	Saleswoman, gas fixtures	5,51	3 50	4, 55			2
24	31	do	Saleswoman, fancy art goods.	21	307	4, 89			211
25	(7)	do	Saleswoman, paints and	- 1	21	4.60			495
20	(7)		brushes.	17	-2		1		102
2 6	21	do	Saleswoman, hosiery and underwear.	11	³ 52	6.30	-		• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •
27	48	do	Saleswoman, neckwear	14	8 52	7.00	l <i></i>		
28	21	do	Saleswoman, hosiery and underwear.	5	³ 5 1	5.00			1
29	25	do	Saleswoman, underwear and corsets.	103	³ 51	15.09			1
30	19	do	Saleswoman, neckwear and pocketbooks.	2	$50\frac{1}{2}$	4.85	-	· · · · · · · · ·	11/2
31	20	do	Saleswoman, ready-to-wear.	3	413	7,95	l		101
32	18	do	Saleswoman, ribbons, veil-	43	45	5.08		9 20.00	3
			ings, etc.	-4			-		_

¹ In 2 stores.
2 Including 2 weeks' vacation with pay.
3 Including 1 week's vacation with pay.
4 Not including bonus, amount not reported.

INDIANAPOLIS—Concluded.

		Regul	ar woı	king h	ours.			M	orkin	g hour	s duri	ng ove	rtime	seasor	ıs.	
Sea	son o		ıal	Seas		shorte	ened	Before Christmas. Other than before Christmas.				ore	Indi- vidu-			
Wks, em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	cep-	Hrs. per wk.	Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	cep- tion-	Hrs, per wk.	Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	mum	Maximum hours per wk.	11 65.	usu- al	Hrs. maxi- mum day.	Hrs. per wk.	al num- ber.
20 11 51 9	8½ 8½ 7¾ 8		51 51 46½ 49	9	78		46½	1	81/2	81	491					325 326 327 328
38	6	 	36	3½ 10 8	8 8 6	4½ 2½ 2½	49 44½ 32½	3	6 <u>3</u>	63	39	2	61	64	39	329 330 331

TERRE HAUTE.

															,		
į	38	10	{12} {13}	661	81	91	${12\frac{1}{13\frac{1}{4}}}$	643	1	131	14	771	ļ	ļ		 	1
	50	91	${11\frac{1}{2}\atop 12\frac{1}{2}}$	} 62	 				1	121	13	$71\frac{1}{2}$		l .	 	l	2
	37 <u>1</u> 49 <u>1</u>	8 2 9	113 12	55 57	71/2	83		52	1	83 12	113 12	$\frac{61\frac{1}{3}}{66}$	4 2	113 12	113 12	70 69	3 4
	41½ 15	9 8½	12 11½	57 54 55	} 7±	 8 1	102	513	1 1	12 111	12 11½	66 60	2 2	12 12	13 12	69 68	5 6
	₹ 23 49	8 3 91	113 121	58½				ļ	1	121	123	68	2	91	$\left\{egin{array}{c} 12rac{3}{4} \ 5 \ 4rac{3}{4} \end{array} ight.$	631	7
	49	9‡	121	581	 .			ļ	1	121	123	68	2	91	$\left\{egin{array}{c} 12rac{3}{4} \ 5 \ 4rac{3}{4} \end{array} ight.$	634	8
	$\frac{16\frac{1}{2}}{50\frac{1}{2}}$	9	$\frac{12\frac{1}{2}}{12}$	57½ 57			ļ		1	121 12	12 3 12	67 <u>1</u> 66	···i	121	12½	67½	9 10
	50 <u>1</u>	91	121	581				.	. 1	121	12 1	671		ļ .		(691	11
	$13\frac{1}{2}$	91	121	581					1/2	121	121	$67\frac{1}{2}$	$\begin{cases} 1\\1 \end{cases}$	91	121	$\left\{\begin{array}{c} 63\frac{1}{2} \\ 61 \end{array}\right.$	12
	49½ 49 8½ 50	91 9 91 91 9	121 121 123 123	58½ 57½ 57% 57					1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	12‡ 12 12;1 ₁ 12;1 ₂	$12\frac{1}{13}$ $12\frac{1}{3}$ $12\frac{1}{2}$	67½ 67 66¾ 66½					3 14 15 16
	46	9	12	57			ļ .	ļ	1	12	$12\frac{1}{2}$	$66\frac{1}{2}$	$\begin{cases} 1 \\ 1 \end{cases}$	9 11½	5 9 12	66 64½	} 17
i	44	9	12	57				.j	1	12	12½	$66\frac{1}{2}$	1	9 114	5 g 12	66 643	} 18
	51½ 50 50 6½ 49½ 30 2	9 9 9 9 9	121 121 121 121 121 121 121 121	571 571 571 571 571 571 571						12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12	121 121 121 121 121 121 121 121	664 664 664 664 664 664					19 20 21 22 23 24 25
	51½	9	12	57				ļ	1/2	12	12	66			¦	: :	26
	8 51 <u>1</u> 3 50 <u>1</u>	9	12 12	57 57					1. 12	12 12	12 12	66 66					27 28
	s 50½	9	12	57		ļ			ž	12	12	66			· • • • • •		29
	49	9	12	57	 -				1/2	12	12	66	1	9	12	59	30
	41 1 44 <u>1</u>	9	12 12	57 57					1 1	12 12	12 12	66 66		 !		 	31 32

<sup>Hours on Sunday.
Was millinery apprentice and worked 10 weeks with no pay.
Not reported.
Including 6 weeks' leave with pay.
Including ½ week's leave with pay.</sup>

TERRE HAUTE—Continued.

							Other e	employ- ent.	
Individual al num- ber.	Age.	Conjugal condition.	Occupation.	Years of ex- peri- ence in present indus- try.	Weeks em- ployed during year.	Average weekly earnings.	Weeks.	Earn-ings.	Weeks of un- employ- ment.
33 34	30 30	Single	Saleswoman, corsets Buyer and saleswoman.	10 17	51 1 52	\$9.84 10.00			1
35	36	do	leather goods. Saleswoman, lace and embroidery.	6}	481	9.60		ļ	33
35	35	do		91	² 50	9.00			2
37	18	do	Saleswoman, ribbons and millinery.	} *	13	4.30			39
38 39	21 34	do Separated.	Saleswoman, jewelry Saleswoman, underwear	1	14½ 20	3.50 7.63			$\frac{37\frac{1}{2}}{32}$
40	21	Single	Saleswoman, ribbons	7	3 41½	5.63			$\left\{\begin{array}{c}2\\81\end{array}\right]$
41	20	do	Saleswoman, general	513	175	5.00	5	\$15.00	\ 8\\\29\\\29\\\2
42 43	34 51	do Married	Bookkeeper and saleswoman Head fitter	10	52 17	5 12.50 14.29			35
44 45	31 19	Widowed . Single	Saleswoman, suits Saleswoman, notions, leath-	13	50 13½	8. 01 4. 00			2 38½
46	18	đo	er goods, etc. Saleswoman, notions	21	48½	4. 18	ļ		312
47	25	do	Saleswoman, neckwear	18	24	7.78			28
48	32	Married	Saleswoman, suits and un- derwear.	173	43½	5.00			83
49	50	do	Alteration worker	91	49	12.00			3
50	16	Single	Saleswoman, art department	11	50	2.64			2
51	38	do	Fitter	8	50	10.00			2
52 53	45 40	Separated. Widowed.	Saleswoman, suits Saleswoman, silks and dress goods.	83	^{17½} ^{3 51}	12.00 8.42	15½	232.50	19 1
54	17	Single	Saleswoman, notions and bargains.	31	31	3.04			21
55	32	do	Saleswoman, draperies	2	51	7.95			1
56 57	20 18	do	Saleswoman, waistsdo	21	35½ 51	6.00 4.34			163
58	28	do	Saleswoman, muslin under- wear.	101	24	8.81	23	207.00	1 5
59 60	45	Married	Saleswoman, suits	12	48½ 3 50	19.63	- 		$egin{array}{c} 3_2^1 \ 2 \end{array}$
61	31 40	Single Widowed.	Saleswoman, cloaks and suits.	6½ 5	3 491	10.00 14.00			$\begin{bmatrix} 2\\2\frac{1}{2} \end{bmatrix}$
62	29	Single	Fitter	61	3 49	15.53		50.00	3
63 64	20 24	do	Saleswoman, general Department head, corsets	9	35½ 6 51	6.00 12.00	10	50.00	$egin{array}{c} 6rac{1}{2} \ 1 \end{array}$
65	22	do	Saleswoman, inspector, and wrapper.	11/2	50	4.95			2
66 67	16 14	do do	Saleswoman, hair goods	2	46\} 16\}	3.57 1.97	77	19.75	5½ 28½
€8	47	Widowed.	Cash girl	132	3 00	8.50			! 2
69 70	42 15	Single	Saleswoman, suits Wrapper	5 5	26 5	15.00 2.00			26 47 1
71	21	do	Cashier	7	46	4.05			$\left\{\begin{array}{c}1\\5\end{array}\right]$
72	43	Separated.	Saleswoman, coats and suits.	2	2 513	12.06			2
73 74	26 24	Single	Saleswoman, cloaks and suits Saleswoman, silks	5 73	3 51 485	8.00 9.00			1 3k
75	19	do	Saleswoman, neckwear and handkerchiefs.	3*	50 g	4.91			31 13
76	31	do	Department head, jewelry	15	l _{8 50}	15.00	·	!	1 2

Includes 2 weeks' vacation with pay.
 Including ½ week's vacation with pay.
 Including ½ week's vacation with pay.
 Extra work done on Sunday.
 Not including P. M.s and commissions, amount not reported.

TERRE HAUTE-Continued.

		Regu	lar wo	rking h	ours.			W	orkin	g hour	s duri	ng ove	ertime	seaso	ns.	
Sea	son o	f norn	nai	Seas	on of	short urs.	ened	Ве	fore C	hristn	as.	Ot		an be	fore	Indi- vidu-
Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. ex- cep- tion- al day.	Hrs. per wk.	Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. ex- cep- tion- al day.	Hrs. per wk.	Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. maxi- mum day.	Maxi- mum hours per wk.	Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. maxi- mum day.	Hrs. per wk.	al num- ber.
48½ 1 50½	9 9	12 12	57 57					121/2	12 12	12 12	66 66	2 1	12 11½	12 12	66 64½	33 34
478	9	12	57	ļ				1/2	12	12	66				-	35
2 42½	9 8½	12 11½	57 54					1/2	12	12	66	$\begin{cases} 1 \\ 6 \end{cases}$	11½ 11	12 12	65 63	} 36
13 81 13	9	$\begin{array}{c} 112 \\ 12 \\ 12 \end{array}$	57 57	}				1 2	12 12	12 12	66 66	1	9	12	60	37
19½ 10½	9	12 12 12	57 57				įi	1 1 2	12	12	66	· · · ·	9	12	162	38 39
21 17	83 9	112 113 12	√55 57	$6\frac{1}{2}$	83		52	1 2 1	12 12	12 12	€6 €6	{ i	9 83	12 11½	58 57½	} 40 41
511	9	12 12 12	57 57					1	12 12	12 12	66 66			118		42
51½ 16½ 49¾ 12½	9	12 12 12	57 57					12122	12 113	$\frac{12}{12}$ $12\frac{1}{2}$	66 653					43 44 45
36	9	12	57					1/2	113	12	€51	12 (1	9	12 112	604 65	46
81/2	83	113	55				····	3	113	113	64	10	111 83 83 83	113 113 113	59 57	47
43	83	113	$55\frac{1}{2}$					<u> </u>	113	113	64½					48
481	83	112	552	• • • • • •				1/2	113	112	641	i	83	114	611	49
431/2	83	113	55½					1/2	113	113	641	5 2	83 83 9	113 113 12	61 <u>1</u> 58 <u>1</u> 62	50
46½ 14	9 82	12 112	57 55	••••				1 1	1112	12	64½ 64	$\left\{\begin{array}{c}5\\2\\1\\3\end{array}\right.$	9	12 12 112	59 <u>1</u> 57 <u>1</u>	51 52
491	83 81	113 111	54					12 12 2	11 3 11½	113 11½	63	ĭ	83 83	113 12½	642	53
30½	872	12	$54\frac{11}{12}$.			½	117	12	6311					54
29 33 § 50 § 23	8½ 8½ 8½ 8½ 8½	11½ 11½ 11¼ 11¼ 11½	54 54 54 54 54	812	8	11	51	1 1 1	112 1173 1174 1174 112	111 1113 1117 12	633 633 633 633	$\left\{\begin{array}{c}2\\12\\1\end{array}\right.$	81 81 81 87 813	11½ 11½ 11¼	55 541 581	55 56 57 58
47½ 33 32½	8½ 8½ 8½ 8½	11½ 12 12	54 54½ 54½	3 16 1 3 16 2	8	11 11½	51 51 <u>3</u>	1	11½ 11½ 11½	12 12 12	63½ 63½ 63½					59 60 61
3 48 34½ 50 49½	8½ 9 8½ 8½ 8½	$11\frac{1}{2}$ 12 $11\frac{1}{2}$ $11\frac{1}{2}$ $11\frac{1}{2}$	54 57 54 54					1 1 1 1	$11\frac{1}{2}$ 12 $11\frac{1}{2}$ $11\frac{1}{2}$	$12 \\ 121 \\ 12 \\ 12 \\ 111 \\ 111 \\ 1$	631 631 631 63					62 63 64 65
43		111	54 54					12	113	111	63 63	3	9	121	571	
16 49½	81 81 81 81 81 81	11½ 11½ 11½	54					michaelchaelchaelch	11½ 11½	11½ 11½ 11½ 11½ 11½	63					66 67 68 69 70
25½ 4½	1	115	54 54			• • • • •			$\frac{11\frac{7}{2}}{11\frac{7}{2}}$		63 63					
431	8 <u>1</u>	111	54			111	g11	1 2 3	11½	111	63 63	2	81	11½	56	71 72
42½ 3 43	81 81 81 81 81	11½ 11½ 11½	54 54	83 71	8 8 8	11½ 11	51½ 51	- SHOWEN HOU	11½ 11½ 11½ 11½	11½ 11½ 11½ 11½	63					73
41½ 43	8 <u>1</u> 8 <u>1</u>		54 54	68 68	8	11 11	51 51	1 1 2	112	112	63 63					73 74 75
42	81	113	54	71	81		51	3	111	1112	63		l		·	76

⁸ Including 1 week's vacation with pay and 4 weeks after operation when she worked only a few hours a day but was paid regular wages.
7 4 whole weeks, Saturday and Sunday of 9 weeks.
8 Including 1½ weeks' vacation with pay.

TERRE HAUTE—Concluded.

								employ- ent.	
Individual al number.	Age.	Conjugal condition.	Occupation.	Years of ex- peri- ence in present indus- try.	Weeks em- ployed during year.	Average weekly earn- ings.	Weeks.	Earn- ings.	Weeks of un- employ- ment.
60	a	G!1-	T2244		201	410.10			101
77	38	Single	Fitter	93	383	\$12.10 6.00			131
78 79	20 24	do	Saleswoman, general Saleswoman, toilet goods	3 5 2 1	46	8.00			45 6
ŝŭ	20	de	Alteration worker	$3\frac{7}{2}$	50	7.89			ž
81	21	do	Saleswoman	7	1 47	5.74			5
82	18	do	Saleswoman, notions	43	1 493	4.00			23
83	24	do	Saleswoman, corsets	10 }	2 41	9.00	 		11
84	23	do	Saleswoman, hosiery	8	1 50	6.00	ļ	-	2
85	18	do	Saleswoman, leather goods	41	1 36	3.72		·····	16
86	28	do	Saleswoman, neckwear	5	1 49	5.43			3
87	27	do	Saleswoman, draperies	13	151	10.00			1
88	20	do	Saleswoman, jewelry	1	13	8.00	26	\$156.00	13
89	27	do	Bookkeeper	5 1	50	11.80			2
90	20	do	Saleswoman, jewelry Milijnery maker and general	1 1/3	4	8.00	38	228.00	10
91	50	Divorced	i saieswoman.	l/ ~	1 48	7. 40		- · · · · · · · ·	4
92	19	Single	Milinery maker, saleswoman ribbons.	2	149	5.00			3
93	37	do	Head fitter	10 1	471	(8)			41
94	26	do	Saleswoman, laces	6 1	1 51	7.40			1
95	33	do	Saleswoman, suits	6	1 51	9.87			1
9 6	23	do	Mail-order clerk	8	151	8.99		-	1
97	33	do	Bookkeeper	10	1 51	8.00			1
98	22	do	Saleswoman, muslin under- wear.	8	1 49	9.00		· · · · · · • •	3
99	16	do	Stock girl	13	. 9	2.50			43
100 101	27 20	do	Saleswoman, gloves Saleswoman, notions and	13 4	1 50 39	$9.56 \\ 7.37$			2 13
		_	patterns.						
102 103	24 18	do	Assistant manager, café Saleswoman, general		1 46 32	4. 49 6. 00			6 20
103	15	do	Cash girl	12 13	26	1.98			26 26
				<u> </u>					

EVANSVILLE.

	í						l	ſ	
1	27	Single	Alteration worker	. 5	51.	\$6.02			1 -
2	25	do	Alteration worker	5 $\frac{1}{2}$	1 52	4.84			
3	32	do	Trimmer, millinery	10	50	8.13	ļ]	2
4	17	do	Saleswoman, jewelry	3	1 52	3.27			
5	36	Widowed.	Trimmer, millinery	12	1 51	10.00			1
6 7 8 9	40	do	Saleswoman, dry goods Bookkeeper and cashier Saleswoman, general Saleswoman, millinery	11 19	39 1 52 45 1 52	5,00 10,00 15,00 7,00		\$78.00	7

¹ Including 1 week's vacation with pay.

TERRE HAUTE—Concluded.

		Regul	ar wo	rking h	ou r s.			W	orkir	ıg houi	rs duri	ng ove	rtime	seaso	ns.	
Sea	son o		nal	Seas		short urs.	ened	Ве	fore (hristn	as.	Ot		an bei st m as.	ore	Indi- vidu- al
Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. ex- cep- tion- al day.	Hrs. per wk.	Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. ex- cep- tion- al day.	Hrs. per wk.	Wks. em- ploy- ed.	usu- al	Hrs. maxi- mum day.	Maxi- mum hours per wk.	Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	mum	Hrs. per wk.	num- ber.
26 6 42 38 29	812 8444 866 866	11½ 11 11¼ 11¼ 11¼	54 521 522 522 55	8½ 3½ 6½ 41	8 73 73 73	11 10½ 10½ 10½	51 491 491 491	1 1 2 2 1	114 114 114 114	12 114 114 114	621 612 613 614	{ 2 2 25	11½ 8½ 8½ 	11½ 11½ 11½	63 60 57½	77 78 79 80 81
13 41 ¹ / ₃ 36	8 1 8 3 8 3	11½ 11¾ 11¾	52½ 55 55	7½ 41	83 83	71	52 52	1 2 1	$\begin{cases} 83 \\ 112 \end{cases}$	} 113 } 113	61 61					82 83
43	83	11%	55	61/2	83		52 52	j	1112 1112 1112 1112 1112 82	113	61					84
30 37	8 3 8 3	113	55 55	5½ 6½	83 83		52	1 2	$ \begin{cases} 8\frac{1}{3} \\ 11\frac{3}{3} \\ 8\frac{1}{3} \\ 11\frac{2}{3} \\ 8\frac{1}{3} \end{cases} $	113	61	$ \begin{cases} & 2 \\ & .3 \end{cases} $	83 83 83	11 3 11 3	60 57½	85 86
43 12½ 34	83 83 9	113 113 12	55 55 57	7½ 15½	83 81	111	52 52½	1 1	111 84 1113 9	} 113 } 113 113	61 61 61					87 88 89
3½ 40	8½ 8½ 8½	11½ 11½	54 54	712	8 <u>1</u>		51	1 1 1	81 82 111	$11\frac{1}{3}$ $11\frac{1}{3}$	603 60			· · · · · •		90 91
41 35½ 43	8½ 8½ 8½	11½ 11¼ 11½	54 52½ 53¼	7½ 4 7½	8½ 7¾ 8¼	10½	51 49 <u>1</u> 50	1 1 2	$ \begin{cases} 111 \\ 82 \end{cases} $ $ \begin{cases} 81 \\ 112 \end{cases} $	} 11\}. } 11\}.	60 59}	8	103	11	593	9 2 9 3 9 4
43	81	1112	53 ₁	7½	81		50	1/2	${8\frac{1}{11\frac{1}{2}}}$	1112	591		82	113	57 1	95
39 43 41	83 81 81 81	113 113 113	55 54 54	$7\frac{1}{2}$ $7\frac{1}{2}$ $7\frac{1}{2}$	83 81 81 82		52 51 51	1. 2. 2. 2.	83 81 81 82	113 11½ 11½	59 59 583	₹ 3 	83 83	113 113	55½	} 96 97 98
8 37 39	83 83 9	$11\frac{3}{1}$ $11\frac{1}{2}$ 12	55½ 53½ 57	6½	8 1		50	1 ½	8 3 8 1 83	12 <u>1</u> 11 <u>1</u>	58 57 [6	8 3	11½	55 ₈	99 160 10 1
$\begin{array}{c} 42 \\ 23 \frac{1}{2} \\ 22 \frac{1}{2} \end{array}$	8 8½ 8½ 8½	10 11½ 11½	50 54 54	$\frac{31}{81}$	8	ii	48 51	<u>1</u>	8	10	531					102 103 104

EVANSVILLE.

49½ 9 40 46½ 41½ 48½ 37½ 50½	9½ } 9½ 10 9½ 9 9½ 9 9½	121 (121/2) (13) 121/2 12 12/2 12/2 12/4	60 63 64 60 58½ 57 60 60	9	9	12	57	1½ 2 2 1½ 1½ 1½ 1½ 1½	$\begin{array}{c c} 12\frac{1}{2} \\ 12\frac{1}{2} \\ \\ \vdots \\ 12\frac{1}{2} \\ 12\frac{1}{2} \\ 13 \\ 12\frac{1}{2} \\ 12\frac{1}{2} \\ \end{array}$	13 13½ 12½ 12½ 13 12½ 12½	77½ 76½ 75½ 75 75 75 75	1 { 2 { 1½ 1	9½ }13½ 11	15 13½ 12	66 76 67	1 2 3 4 5 6 7
501 361 501	91 91 81 9	$12\frac{1}{4}$ $11\frac{1}{4}$ $12\frac{1}{4}$	60 55½ 57½	6	83	4	473	1½ 1½ 1½	12½ 12½ 12¼	12½ 12¾ 12¾	75 74½ 74	····i	111	113	68	7 8 9

² Including 2 weeks' vacation with pay.
³ Not reported.

							Other e	employ- ent.	
Individual number.	Age.	Conjugal condition.	Occupation.	Years of ex- peri- ence in present indus- try.	Weeks em- ployed during year.	Aver- age weekly earn- ings,	Weeks.	Earn- ings.	Weeks of un- employ- ment.
10	21	Single	Bookkeeper and cashier	6	48	\$ 9.72			4
11	26	do	Cashier	13	47	12.00	,		5
12	17	do	Saleswoman, lace	2	1 51	3.99			1
13	19	do	Saleswoman, lace and em- broidery.	4	51	4.50			i
14	36	Widowed.	Department head, lace and embroidery.	9	491	6. 10			$2\frac{1}{2}$
15	27	Single	Saleswoman, cloaks and suits		491	8.00			21/2
16 17	17 29	do	Saleswoman, yardage goods. Saleswoman, general	1}	51 18½	4.00 6.00			1 33½
18	29	Separated.	Saleswoman, silver and leather goods.	} 3	2 43	4.00			9
-			leather goods.	11	9	5.89			j .
19 20	30 18	Singledo	Saleswoman, general Saleswoman, ribbons	3 3 3 2	3 52	4.05			43
21	23	do	Department head, toilet ar- articles.	82	50	7.70			2 5
22 23	25 (4)	do	Cashier	11 8	47 50	(4) (4)			2
24	(4)	do	Saleswoman, hosiery	25	5 50	(4)			2
25	26	do	Saleswoman, cloaks and suits	12	46	12.00		 	6
26	41	do	do	16	42	12.00		l	10
27	31	do	do	7	471	12.00			41/2
28 29	27 30	do	Saleswoman, ready to wear . Saleswoman, general	13 14 3	51 51	10.00		• • • • • • •	1 1
30	22	do	Saleswoman, millinery	5	52	9.69			l .
			•	ł	!				None.
31 32	22 28	Widowed . Single	Saleswoman, fancy waists Saleswoman, dress goods and and silks.	_	$13\frac{1}{2}$ $17\frac{1}{2}$	9.00 8.00			38} 34}
33 34	28 29	do	Saleswomen, corsets Saleswoman, coats, suits,	13 5	49	8.00			3 2
35	42	do	and hats.	ł	50	8.00			
36	29	do Widowed.	Saleswoman, dress goods Saleswoman, gloves	81/2	48½ 50	7.50 7.00			$\frac{3\frac{1}{2}}{2}$
37	39	Single	Saleswoman, gloves Saleswoman, art department	144	14	7.00			38
38	27	dő	Stock giri	6	50	7.00			2
39	22	do	Saleswoman, art department	8	51	6, 93			1
40	23	do	Saleswoman, lace and jewelry	8	51	6.00			1
41 42	20 25	do	Saleswoman, waists Saleswoman, suits and	4	48 17	6.00 6.00			35
43	20	do	waists. Saleswoman, silks and no-	6	49	6.00			3
40 41	24	do	tions. Saleswoman, neckwear and	6	49	6.00			3
45	23	do	jewelry. Saleswoman, general	8 <u>3</u>	52	5, 94		ļ.	,
46	32	Married	Saleswoman, waists	8	15	5, 07			37
47	30	Single	Saleswoman, general	1	51	5.00		}	1
48	17 22	dŏ	Saleswoman, underwear	5,,,	49	5,00			3 36
49	i i	do	Saleswoman, drugs	1 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1	16	5.00			36
50	33	do	Saleswoman, patterns	5	52	4.95	[_
51 52	20 28	do	Saleswoman, underwear	2	50 50	4, 55			2 2
	22	do	Saleswoman, hosiery Saleswoman, men's furnish-	5½ 6	50 51	4, 53 4, 50			ĺ

Including 1 week's vacation and 1 week's illness with pay.
 Including 1 week's vacation with pay.
 Including 2 weeks' vacation with pay.

			Regu	ar wo	rking h	ours.			"	orkin	g hou	s duri	ng ove	rtime	seaso	ns,	
-	Sea	son o	f norn ırs.	nal	Seas	on of ho	short urs.	ened	Ве	fore C	hristn	ıas.	Ot		an bei	lore	Indi- vidu-
t	Vks. em- oloy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. ex- cep- tion- al day.	Hrs. per wk.	Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. ex- cep- tion- al day.	Hrs. per wk.	Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. maxi- mum day.	Maxi- mum hours per wk.	Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. maxi- mum day.	Hrs. per wk.	num- ber.
{	30½ 11 4½	9 9	13½ 12½ 13	581 571 58	}				2	121	12½	74					10
	$39\frac{1}{2}$	91	121	60	5	91	${4\frac{1}{2}\atop 12\frac{1}{2}}$	55	11/2	121	$12\frac{1}{2}$	733	1	91	$12\frac{1}{2}$	621	11
	48 49	9	12 12	57 57					$\frac{2}{2}$	$\frac{12\frac{1}{4}}{12}$	$\frac{121}{123}$	73 3 73 3	1	12	12	72	12 13
	48	9	12	57				 	11/2	121	121	73 <u>1</u>					14
{	47½ 49 17 32 9	9 9 9 9	$12\frac{1}{12}$ $12\frac{1}{2}$ $12\frac{1}{4}$ 12	57½ 57 57½ 57½ 57½	}				2 2 1½ 2	12½ 12 12½ 12½ 12½	$12\frac{1}{2}$ $12\frac{1}{2}$ $12\frac{1}{2}$ $12\frac{1}{2}$	73½ 73½ 73½ 73½					15 16 17 18
	8 49 <u>1</u> 44 <u>1</u>	9 9 91	125 121 121	57 5 57 1 58 1				 	1 1½ 1½ 1½	$12 \\ 12 \\ 12\frac{1}{4}$	12 5 12 <u>1</u> 12 <u>1</u>	725 72½ 72½	1 4	 9 9}	12½ 12½	601 611	19 20 21
	45½ 41½	9 9	12 12	57 57	₇	9		54	1½ 1½	$\frac{12}{12}$	12 12	72 72					22 23
	481	9	12	57					11/2	12	12	72					24
	$35\frac{1}{2}$	9	12	57					11/2	12	12	72	$\begin{cases} 8 \\ 1 \end{cases}$	9	12½ 12½	57 \\ 60 \\ 2	25
	40½ 46	9	12 12	57 57 57					1) 1½	12 12	12 12	$\frac{72}{72}$				- -	26 27
	49½ 49½	9	12 121	57 571					15 12 12	12 12	12 12	$\frac{72}{72}$					26 27 28 29
	471	9	12	57					11	12	12	72	3	${9 \choose 12}$	12	63	30
	12 16	9 9	12 12	57 57					$\frac{1\frac{1}{2}}{1\frac{1}{2}}$	$\frac{12}{12}$	12 12	$\frac{72}{72}$					31
	47 48 1	9	12 12	57 57					2 11	12 12	12 12	72 72					33 34
	47 48 12½ 48½	9 9	12 12 12	57 57 57					$1\frac{1}{2}$ 2 $1\frac{1}{2}$ $1\frac{1}{2}$	12 12 12	$\frac{12}{12}$ $\frac{12}{12}$	72 72 72					35 36 37 38
	48½ 40½	9	12	54 57	8	9	${4 \choose 12}$	} 52	1½ 1½	12 12	12 12	72 72	1	9	113	62½	38
	481	9	12	57			(12		114	12	12	72	1	9	12	63	40
	$\frac{46\frac{7}{2}}{15\frac{1}{2}}$	9	12 12	57 57					$1\frac{1}{2}$ $1\frac{1}{2}$	12 12	12 12	72 72		.			41 42
	451	9	12	57					11/2	12	12	72	2	9	12	60	43
	471	9	12	57					112	12	12	72					44
	50½ 13½ 50 47½ 14½	99999	12 12 12 12 12 12	57 57 57 57 57					1½ 1½ 1 1½ 1½ 1½	12 12 12 12 12 12	12 12 12 12 12	72 72 72 72 72 72					45 46 47 48 49
	4112	9	12	57	9	9	${5 \choose 12}$	53	$1\frac{1}{2}$	12	12	72					50
	48½ 46½ 49½	9 9	12 12 12	57 57 57			.		$1\frac{1}{2}$ $1\frac{1}{2}$ $1\frac{1}{2}$	12 12 12	12 12 12	72 72 72	2	9	12	60	51 52 53

⁴ Not reported.
5 Including 3 weeks' vacation with pay.

!							Other e	employ- ent.	
Individual number.	Age.	Conjugal condition.	Occupation.	Years of ex- peri- ence in present indus- try.	Weeks em- ployed during year.	Average weekly earn- ings.	Weeks.	Earn- ings.	Weeks of un- employ- ment.
54	17	Single	Saleswoman, jewelry	1 2	25½	\$4. 33			261
55 56 57	22 26 25	do do	Saleswoman, jewelry Saleswoman, hardware Saleswoman, embroidery Saleswoman, candy	1 5 5	44 17 49	\$4.33 4.25 4.24 4.00	16	\$42.00	8 19 3
58	16	do	Saleswoman, prints	17	22	4.00	13	52.00	17
59	20	do	Saleswoman	4	50	4.00		02.00	2
60	16	do	Saleswoman, hardware	1	13	3.94			39
61 62	17 23	do	Saleswoman, candy	3	50 1 50	3, 87 3, 75			2 2
63	40	Widowed.	Saleswoman, tinware	13	$4\frac{1}{2}$	3,75	19	73, 75	281
64	17	Single	Saleswoman, neckwear	2	45	3, 70			7
65 66	17 18	do	Saleswoman, hardware Saleswoman, notions	$\frac{1\frac{1}{3}}{2\frac{1}{2}}$	50 2 513	3, 68 3, 57			2
67	17	do	Saleswoman	11 13	49	3,50			3
68 69	17 27	do Married	Saleswoman, hosiery Fitter	113	51 26	3. 29 10. 00			1 26
70	22	Single	Trimmer and maker, milli- nerv.	6	50	5, 19			2
71 72	19 20	do	Millinery maker	6 2	50 49	5. 10 4. 00			2 3
73	23	do	Stenographer	5	49	10.00			3
74 75	25 24	do	do	4 9	49 503	9.45 6.93			3 1½
76	20	do	Assistant bookkeeper	5	50	6.00			2
77	21	do	Cashier	7.	50	5, 26			2
78 79	18 33	do	Saleswoman, dress goods	$\frac{1\frac{1}{2}}{12}$	16 47 <u>1</u>	4.00 12.00	34	136.00	2 4½
80 81	16 40	do	Cashier Buyer and saleswoman, lace	2 18	50 48	3.00 16.08			2
			and embroidery. [Wrapper and saleswoman,	,					
82 83	16 22	do	\ linens.	} 82	23 49	3. 41 5. 00			29
84	26	do	Saleswoman, general	2½ 3	3 52	5.02			3
85	25	do	Saieswoman, general	81	51	6.50			, 1
86	21	Married	Saleswoman, skirts	3	38	6, 54			13
87	26	Single	Saleswoman, general	10	50	7.92			2
88 89	25 39	do	Saleswoman, cloaks Head saleswoman, gloves	10½ 12	48 47	10.00 13.89		· · · · · · · · ·	4 5
90	28	do	Bookkeeper and cashier	10	42	10.00			10
91 92	15 24	do	Cash girl Saleswoman, general	6	13 50	1.92 6.00			39
93 94	24 16	do	do	5 1	50 51	6, 00 2, 66			2
95	17	do	ment.	_		3.61	7	94 50	i
95 96	18	do	Saleswoman, woodenware Saleswoman, toilet articles	184 14	4½ 35⅓	3. 91	9	24, 50 36, 00	401
97	23	do	Saleswoman, waists	5	495	6.93		90.00	1 4
98	26	do	Saleswoman, skirts	5	47	10.00			$\{$ $\tilde{2}^2$
99	28	do	Saleswoman, general	7	50	8.00			$\left\{\begin{array}{c} 2\frac{1}{2} \\ 2 \\ 3 \\ 2 \\ 1 \end{array}\right.$
100	14	do	Cash girl	194	183	2. 25			$\left\{\begin{array}{c} 1\\321\end{array}\right.$
101	15	do	Cash girl and millinery ap-	\$	353	2.00		 	16
102	28	do	prentice. Head saleswoman notion	10	451	6. 59	l 	 	1
			department.		1] ","	1		1

¹ Including 1 week's vacation with pay.
² Including ½ week's vacation with pay.

		Regul	lar wo	rking h	ours.			w	orkin	g hou	rs duri	ng ove	rtime	seaso	ns.	
Se	ason of hou		ıal	Seas	on of ho		ene d	Ве	fore C	hristm	ias.	Ot		nan bei st m as.	ore	Indi- vidu- al
Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. ex- eep- tion- al day.	Hrs. per wk.	Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. ex- cep- tion- al day.	Hrs. per wk.	Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. maxi- mum day.	Maxi- mum hours per wk.	Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. maxi- mum day.	Hrs. per wk.	num- ber,
24 15½ 47½ 15½ 48½ 11½ 48½ 30½ 47½ 49½ 25 44½ 47½ 44½ 47½ 48½ 38½ 47½ 48½ 38½ 47½ 48½ 38½ 48½ 38½ 48½ 38½ 48½ 38½ 48½ 38½ 48½ 48½ 48½ 48½ 48½ 48½ 48½ 4	999999999999999999999999999999999999999	12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 1	577 577 577 577 577 577 577 577 577 577	5 6 5	9 9 9 8 2	\$\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\	} 53 } 53 } 53 } 53 } 52 49 472	110000 110000 110000 110000 110000 110000 110000 110000 110000 110000 110000 110000 110000 110000 110000 110000 110000 110000 1100000 1100000 1100000 1100000 1100000 1100000 1100000 1100000 1100000 1100000 1100000 1100000 1100000 1100000 1100000 1100000 11000000	12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 1	12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 1	72 72 72 72 72 72 72 72 72 72 72 72 72 7	6 4 4 6 3	12 12 12 9 9 12 9 9	12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12	69 69 62 59 63 60 581	54 555 567 57 58 59 61 62 63 64 65 66 67 68 67 70 71 72 73 74 75 77 78 80 80
12½ 47½ 41½ 49½ 34½ 46½ 40½ 11½ 45½ 40½ 11½ 45½ 45½ 45½ 45½ 45½ 45½ 45½ 45½ 45½ 45	9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9	12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 11 11 11 12 12	57 57 57 57 57 57 57 57 57 57 57 57 57 5	9 9 1 7 2 2	9 832 9	\$\begin{align*} \lambda \\ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \	\$ 52 54 49 47\$ 48\$ 48\$ 47\$	14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 1	11½ 11½ 11¼ 11¼ 11¼ 11¼ 11¼ 11¼ 11¼ 11¼	12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 11 12 12 12 1	71 70 2 7 70 7 70 7 70 7 70 7 70 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69	1	9	12	60	82 83 84 85 86 87 83 89 90 91 92 93 94 95 66 97 98 99 100 101

Including 2 weeks' vacation with pay.
 Including 1 week's vacation and 2 weeks' absence in scattered days with pay.

EVANSVILLE—Concluded.

103 61 Widowed Saleswoman gloves and 36 50 \$20.00	
104 17 Single	2
105	. 6
106 49 do Saleswoman, general s½ 50 6.00 107 19 do do Saleswoman, neckwear 1½ 252 7.02 108 17 do Saleswoman, neckwear 1½ 352 3.88 109 31 do Saleswoman, neckwear 8 13 5.00 110 18 do Saleswoman, millimery 2 51 6.67 111 17 do Saleswoman, patterns 2 504 3.48	33
107 19 .do Cashier 2\frac{1}{2} 252 7.02	. 2
108 17 do Saleswoman, neckwear 1\$ *52 3.88 109 31 do Saleswoman, ice cream, cream	
110 18 do Saleswoman, millimery 2 51 6.67	
$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	$\begin{array}{c c} & 12\frac{1}{2} \\ & 26 \end{array}$
116 36do Alteration worker 15 52 7.14	
117 30do. Fitter 14 47½ 11.88	41
118 45 do do Talloress 18 51 7.14 do 119 39 do do Alteration worker 15 43 8.00 do	1
120 21do	1
121 35 do. Saleswoman, notions 14 50 8.91 122 24 do. Alteration worker 5 44 5.00 123 45 Separated. do. 25 48 6.04 18. 124 17 Single. Apprentice, millinery. 3 22 2.50	8
125 21do Bundle wrapper 1½ 26 3.50	$ \begin{bmatrix} 30 \\ 2 \\ 2 \\ 22 \end{bmatrix} $
126 18	25½ 36
129 15do Saleswoman, ladies' depart- 1 50 2.48	2

FORT WAYNE.

ī		· i		1		<u> </u>			
1	35	Single	Saleswoman, general	81	49	\$11.00			3
2	30	do	Saleswoman, groceries	5	45	6.36			7
3	30	do	Saleswoman, cloaks and	7	49}	15.01			2}
4 5	16 17	do	dresses. Saleswoman, notions Saleswoman, candy and jewelry.	3 ³ 3	3 26	5. 40 4. 25			49 26
6 7			Saleswoman, fancy work Saleswoman, notions and toys.	4	$\begin{array}{c} 3 \\ 28 \end{array}$	4.83 4.45	2	\$10.00	49 22
8	44	do	Saleswoman, hosiery	21	49	8.38			3
9	35	Widowed.	do	6	249	8.00			3
10	31	Single	Saleswoman, general	8	50	8.00		l	2
11	171	do	Saleswoman, fancy work	Y S	4	5.38			48
12	23	do	and handkerchiefs. Saleswoman, stationery	1	$15\frac{1}{2}$	5.80			$36\frac{1}{2}$

¹ Not reported.
² Including 1 week's vacation with pay.

IN DEPARTMENT AND OTHER RETAIL STORES-Continued.

EVANSVILLE—Concluded.

]	Regul	ar wor	king h	ours.			w	orkin	g hour	rs duri	ng ove	rtime	seaso	ns.	
	Sea	son of hou		ıal	Seas	on of hou		ened	Ве	fore C	hristm	ıas.	Ot		an bestmas.	fore	Indi- vidu- al
Wi en plo	n- oy-	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. ex- cep- tion- al day.	Hrs. per wk.	Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. ex- cep- tion- al day.	Hrs. per wk.	Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. maxi- mum day.	Maximum hours per wk.	Wks. em- ploy- ed.	usu- al	Hrs. maxi- mum day.	Hrs. per wk.	num- ber.
4	83	9	12	57					112	11	12	682					103
4	143	9	12	57					11/2	111	12	681					104
1	8	${6\frac{63}{12\frac{1}{2}}}$	$\frac{4\frac{1}{2}}{8\frac{1}{2}}$	623					1	123	121	68					105
4	181	9	$\left\{egin{matrix} 6^{22} \\ 12 \end{smallmatrix} ight.$	} 54					13	11	12	68					106
j	1	8½ 8½	114	54					112	113	113	68					107
	3	101	11½ 13	54 67					1	112	113	671					108 109
3 2 2	5] 9 5] 5] 4] 8]	9 9 9 9 9 9	12 12½ 12 11 11 12 12	57 57 57 56 57 57 57	12	9		54	12121212121212121212121212121212121212	11 12½ 12 12 12 12 12	12 12½ 12 12 12 12 12	67 67 66 66 66 66	3 8	$9\frac{1}{3}$ 9 $\{9\frac{1}{12}$	1213	59 60 64 1	110 111 112 113 114 115
9	35	9	12	57	5	9	ſ 5	} 53	112	11	12	63	6	9	12	59	117
1 7	14	91		57			12	, ,,,		l			7	93	111	63	118
i	113	83	$10\frac{1}{2}$	54}					_	101	101	63		 f 9	·		119
1	39 <u>}</u> 10 }	9 8 1	111	54 54	7	81 ₂		463	12	11 83	} 11 11 ¹ 3	€0 59%	12 1	111	} 11	59	120 121
4	14	9	11½ 10½	55½			4	402	13	02		292		81	113		122
	22	91 91		54 57									4	9	112	57½	123 124
h	23 <u>3</u>	9	12	57	2½	9	${4 \brace 12}$	} 52									125
	26	9	12	57				ĺ	1/2	12	12	48			l	ļ	126
	16 10	9	12 12	57 57			• • • • • •										127 128
	50	9		54													129
١ '	,,,	9		948							ļ			ļ			129

FORT WAYNE.

_																			
	241	83	1112	551	8	83	····	52½		11/2	13	13	78	{	1 2 12	83 83 103	11½ 11½ 11½	591 571 611	1
X	$\frac{37}{6\frac{1}{2}}$	83	$\frac{11\frac{1}{2}}{12}$	55 <u>1</u> 57	}					11/2	12½	12½	75						2
ľ	402	9	12	57	8	9	 	54		11/2	12	$12\frac{1}{2}$	72½						3
	$^{1\frac{1}{2}}_{24\frac{1}{2}}$	9	12 12	57 57	 					1½ 1½	12 12	12 12	72 72						·4 5
	$1\frac{1}{2}$ $17\frac{1}{2}$	9	12 12	57 57	9	9		54		$\frac{1\frac{1}{2}}{1\frac{1}{2}}$	12 12	12 12	72 72						6 7
1	381	9	12	57	9	9		54	L	17	12	12	72	ļ					8
1	39	81/2	1112	54	27	8 1		51	K	12 12 12 12 12	12 9	12 12	72 57	}					9
	$\frac{41\frac{1}{2}}{1\frac{1}{2}}$	83 81	113 113	55½ 55¼	6	83		52½	Ľ	1½ 1½	113 11½	12½ 12	7i 71	ľ	1	111 83	11½ 11½	63 58	10 11
	14	83	12	553	l			J. .		$1\frac{1}{2}$	12	12	701	J	•••		 		12

³ Including 1 week's vacation and 17 scattered days' absence with pay.
4 Includes one-half week on account of sickness, with pay.

66172°-Bull. 160-14--10

WORKING HOURS AND EARNINGS OF WOMEN EMPLOYED

FORT WAYNE—Concluded.

							Other e	employ- ent.	
Individual number.	Age.	Conjugal condition.	Occupation,	Years of ex- peri- ence in present indus- try.	Weeks em- ployed during year.	A ver- age weekly earn- ings.	Weeks.	Earn- ings.	Weeks of un- employ- ment,
13 14	28 38	Single Married	Saleswoman, notions	12 4½ 3	50 50½	\$8.00 6.62			2 1½
15 16 17 18	24 42 24 40	Single Widowed . Single Widowed .	Saleswoman, laces Saleswoman, cloaks and suits Saleswoman, toys Saleswoman, ready to wear.	$10 \\ 12^{\frac{1}{2}}$	34 50 27 152	6. 15 12. 93 3. 98 10. 12	1		18 [*] 2 24
19 20	41 39	Single	Saleswoman, lace and trim- mings.	4 21	50	10.00			2
21	16 25	do	Saleswoman, china Saleswoman, music	14	51 151	7.00 7.13			1
22 23	36	do Married	Saleswoman, embroidery Saleswoman and buyer,	3 4	50 151	5. 57 12. 00			2 1
24 25 26	21 23 46	Single Widowed . Single	ready to wear. Suleswoman, china. Saleswoman, jewelry. Saleswoman, cloaks and	5 6 11	52 50 50	7.00 10.00 12.00			<u>2</u>
27 28 29	22 38 21	do do	suits. Saleswoman, dresses Saleswoman, china Saleswoman, jewelry	$\begin{matrix} 3 \\ \frac{1}{2} \\ 1\frac{1}{2} \end{matrix}$	49 22 50	$12.24 \\ 14.00 \\ 6.92$	21	\$294.00	3 9 2 2
30 31	28 22	do	Saleswoman, art department Saleswoman, furs and waists.	1	50 50	6.00 7.00			$\frac{2}{2}$
32	42	Married	Saleswoman, ready to wear	152	21	12.14	! 		31
33 34	26 30	Widowed. Single	Saleswoman, hardware Saleswoman, hair depart-	$\frac{\frac{23}{82}}{2}$	22 152	4.00 12.00	21	147.00	8 1
35	28	do	ment. Saleswoman, suits	10	148	13.29			4
36 37 38 39	23 28 26 33	do do do	Saleswoman, house dresses Saleswoman, suits Saleswoman, hoisery Bookkeeper	3 6,5 9 16	50 152 40½ 151	7, 52 11, 55 8, 14 14, 00			2 11½ 1
40	161	do	Saleswoman, general	212	48	4.65			4
41 42 43 44	27 19 22 25	do do do	Stenographer Saleswoman, shirtwaists Saleswoman, knit underwear Saleswoman, glove fitter	10 11/2 7 6	50 50 30 1 52	11.00 6.00 8.00 11.02			2 2 22
45	38	do	Saleswoman, dress goods	13	22	7.55	11	75.00	$\begin{cases} 2\\17 \end{cases}$
46	24	do	Head saleswoman, lace de- partment. Alteration worker	5	2 52	12.00			
47 48	35 23	do	Saleswoman, men's furnish- ings.	. j	1 50 8	10.00 6.00	37	370.00	7
49 50	28 40	do	Saleswoman, underwear	22	11 51	5.00 9.00	35	350.00	6
51	18	do	Saleswoman, corsets Saleswoman, ready to wear	22 11	41	9.00 5.25	1	4.50	$\begin{cases} 1\\ 3\\ 7 \end{cases}$
52 53	32 34	do Widowed.	Saleswoman, silks Saleswoman, cloaks, suits, and china.	15 6	³ 50 1 26	8,84 10,15			8 7 2 26 26
54	31	Married	Saleswoman, ready to wear	5	21	10.00		. .	31
55 50	22	Divorced	Saleswoman, toys	2	21	4.27	·····		31 1
56 57 58	31 25 16	Widowed . Single	Tailoress Trimmer, millinery Saleswoman, general	8 10 1 ¹ / ₂	37 28½ 7	15.80 15.00 5.00			14 234 45

¹ Including 1 week's vacation with pay.

² Including ½ week's absence with pay.

IN DEPARTMENT AND OTHER RETAIL STORES-Continued.

FORT WAYNE—Concluded.

		Regul	ar wo	rking h	ours.			Woi	king	hours	during	overt	ime s	easons		
Sea	son o hou	f norn ırs.	nal	Seas	on of hou	short urs.	ened	Be	fore (hristn	ıas.	Ot		nan bei stmas.	iore	Indi- vidu- al
Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. ex- cep- tion- al day.	Hrs. per wk.	Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. ex- cep- tion- al day.	Hrs. per wk.	Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. maxi- mun day.	Maxi- mum hours per wk.	Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. maxi- mum day.	Hrs. per wk.	num- ber.
39½ 39 18½ 39½ 21½ 41½ 39½	8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8	1134 1114 1114 1114 1114 1114 1114	5512 5512 5512 5512 5512 5512 5512	9 4 19 8	80 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 0	101	52½ 52½ 52½ 52½ 52½ 54½ 52½	1 1 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	112 112 113 113 114 114 114 114	12 113 113 113 113 113 113 113	701 701 701 701 701 701 701 702	2 1	103 83 83	103 113 113 113	63½ 58½ 58½	13 14 15 16 17 18 19
$ \begin{cases} 39\frac{1}{4}9\frac{1}{2}\\ 15\\ 27\frac{1}{2}\\ 149\frac{1}{2} \end{cases} $	81 81 81 81 81	113 113 113 113 113 113	55½ 55½ 55½ 55¼ 55¼	9	8 <u>3</u> 8 <u>3</u>		52½ 52½	1½ 1½ 1½ 1½	113 114 11 <u>4</u> 11 <u>4</u>	112 112 112 112	70½ 70½ 69 69	1	83	113	58]	20 21 22 23
41½ 42 42½	83 83 81 82	$11\frac{1}{2}$ $11\frac{1}{2}$ $11\frac{1}{2}$	55 <u>1</u> 55 <u>1</u> 54	9 7 6	8] 8]		52½ 52½ 51	1½ 1 1½	11½ 11½ 11½	11½ 11½ 11½	69 69 69		, 		:.	24 25 26
33½ 16½ 39½ 39½ 41½	834 834 834 834 834	11½ 11½ 11½ 11½ 11½	55\\ 55\\\ 55\\\\ 55\\\\\ 55\\\\\\ 55\\\\\\	6 4 9 9 7	84 84 84 84		52½ 52½ 52½ 52½ 52½ 52½	1 ½ 1 ½ 1 ½ 1 ½ 1 ½ 1 ½ 1 ½ 1 ½ 1 ½ 1 ½	11½ 11½ 11½ 11½ 11½	11½ 11½ 11½ 11½ 11½	69 69 69 69	8	83	12	561	27 28 29 30 31
$ \left\{ \begin{array}{c} 38 \\ 2\frac{1}{2} \\ 16\frac{1}{2} \\ 43 \end{array} \right. $	81 81 81 81	113 12 113 113 113	55½ 54½ 55½ 54%	} 9 4 18	81 81 81		52½ 52½ 52	1½ 1½ 1	12 113 113	12 11‡ 11‡	68 <u>1</u> 68 <u>1</u> 68				••••	32 33 34
{ 31 15½ 42 42 37 40½ 17 22½ 41¼ 41¼ 42½	11 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8	12 112 112 112 111 111 111 111 111 111	65555555555555555555555555555555555555	19218 7 9798	0 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 0	41/2	524 524 524 521 521 521 521 521 521 521	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	11:4 11:4 11:4 11:4 11:4 11:4 11:4 11:4		68 67½ 67½ 66½ 66½ 66¼ 66¼ 66¼	1	8½	11	582	35 36 37 33 39 40 41 42 43 44
} 14 41½	83 83	113 113	55\\ 55\\\ 55\\\ 25\\\ 5	6½ 9	83 83		52 <u>1</u> 52 <u>1</u>	1½ 1½	11½ 10¾	11½ 11½	65 <u>3</u> 65 <u>1</u>					45 46
37 <u>1</u> 6 <u>1</u>	8 <u>3</u> 8 <u>1</u>	11 <u>1</u> 11 <u>2</u>	55‡ 55‡	18	83	.	521	1½ 1½	11 11]	11½ 11½	64 <u>1</u> 64 <u>1</u>		83	111	60	47 48
9½ 40½ 23 9½ 38½ 25	00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00	11½ 11½ 11¼ 11½ 11½ 11½	551 551 551 551 551 551 551	9 } 7½ 9	83 84 84 85		52½ 52½ 51	1½ 1½ 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	82 111 101 111 111 102	1113 1113 1113 1113 1113	641 64 631 621 611	1	11½	115	63	49 50 51 52 53
$ \left\{ \begin{array}{c} 6 \\ 13 \\ 13 \end{array} \right. $ $ \left\{ \begin{array}{c} 35 \\ 281 \\ 7 \end{array} \right. $	812 5 9 813 813	11½ 8 12 9 11½	54 33 57 54 551 51	4	9		54	1 2	81 111 9	1112	60	1 4	5 9	8 12	34} 57½	54 55 56 57 58

³ Including 1 week's vacation with pay and 2 weeks' absence because of illness with pay.

WORKING HOURS AND EARNINGS OF WOMEN EMPLOYED SOUTH BEND.

								employ-	
Indi- vidu- al num- ber.	Age.	Conjugal condition.	Occupation.	Years of ex- peri- ence in present indus- try.	Weeks em- ployed during year.	Average weekly earnings.	Weeks.	Earn- ings.	Weeks of un- employ- ment.
							-		
1	25	Single	Cashier	62	46	\$12.00			6
2	21	do	Cashier and bookkeeper	3	52	15.00			
3	21	do	Saleswoman, dry goods, hosiery, underwear, neck- wear.	5	1 483	5.90			312
4 5 6	17 16 21	do do Divorced	Saleswoman, candy	1½ 2½	22 47 24	4. 98 3. 97 7. 50	27	\$237.50 196.00	3 5
7	38	Single		} 7	2 51	10.00			1
8	21	do	Alteration worker	4	50	6.44			2
9	30	do	Saleswoman, knit underwear and hosiery.	5	2 501	7.92			11/2
10	17	do	Saleswoman, lace, ribbons, etc.	13	51	5. 26		ļ	1
11	19	do	(Saleswoman, granite ware and stationery.	} 2½	45	4. 23			7
12	18	do	Telephone operator	3	175	5.00			34}
13	25	do	Cashier and bookkeeper	10	3 52	12.35			
14	19	do	Saleswoman, notions, drugs, etc.	} 13	4 452	5.09			63
15	19	do	Saleswoman, ribbons	41/2	481	6.33			33
16	30	Widowed.	Alteration worker	4	481	9.00			31/2
17	16	Single	Saleswoman, men's furnishings.	} -	211	4.00			30}
18	22	do	Alteration worker	3	50	10.00			2
19	44	do	Saleswoman, dress goods	15	2 51	12.00			1
20	24	do	Clerical	8	5 49	9.00			3
21	22	do	Saleswoman, furs	51	50	11.32			2
22	22	do	Saleswoman, notions	3	50	4.29		<u> </u>	2

Including 2 weeks' vacation with pay.
 Including 1 week's vacation with pay.
 Including 2 weeks' vacation and 1 week's absence for illness with pay.

IN DEPARTMENT AND OTHER RETAIL STORES-Continued.

SOUTH BEND.

		Regu	lar wo	rking h	ours.			w	orkin	ıg houi	rs duri	ng ove	ertime	seaso	ns.	
Sea	nson o		nal	Seas	on of ho	short urs.	ened	Be	fore C	Christm	ias.	Ot		nan be stmas.	fore	Indi- vidu- al
Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. ex- cep- tion- al day.	Hrs. per wk.	Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. ex- cep- tion- al day.	Hrs. per wk.	Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. maxi- mum day.	Maxi- mum hours per wk.	Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. maxi- mum day.	Hrs. per wk.	num- ber.
18 26½	{ 9 { 9} 9	11½ 12 ∫ 9½	} 60 } 574	}.	····	ļ .		11/2	12	12½	72 <u>1</u>		ļ			1
18	83	113 (113 (113 113 113	581 551	<u>}</u>		ļ		1	12	12 1	72 1		ļ <u>.</u>			2
∫ 18	8 1 8 <u>1</u>	113 103	573	19	83	113	55 <u>}</u>	2	12	121	721		ļ			3
19½ 20 42 21½ 26	884 884 884 884 884	113 111 111 12 (111)	55½ 55½ 55 55 55¾ 57½	J 4	8 <u>3</u>	4½	481	2 1 2½	12 12 113	12 12 12	72 71 <u>1</u> 70 <u>3</u>	[].	113	12	701	4 5 6
21 18	83 83	\11 11½ {11½ {11½	55½ 57½	}				21/2	113	111	69	113	113 113 111	12 11½	70 64 <u>1</u>	} 7
29½ 19 29	83 83 83	11½ 11½ 11½	55} 58 55}	}				21/2	111	111	69					9
14 35	9	${12 \atop 11\frac{1}{2} \atop 12}$	} 59½ 57	}				2	111	121	681		ļ			10
11	8 <u>3</u> 8 <u>3</u>	{11½ {11¼ ∫11	} 58 } 57½]		.		2 1	91	113	673					11
27½ 15	83	$11\frac{1}{2}$ $11\frac{1}{2}$ $11\frac{1}{2}$	55½ 55½]		.		21	111	111	67 3		ļ .	ļ		12
19 30½	8 <u>3</u> 8 <u>3</u>	1112 1112 113	55 <u>1</u>	}		ļ. 		21/2	93	113	67					13
16 26	83	${11\frac{1}{11}}$ ${11\frac{1}{2}}$ ${11\frac{1}{2}}$	} 58				ļ	21/2	93	113	67	1	83	113	57	14
27½ 18½	83 83 83	11½ {11 {11½	55½ 55½ } 57½			 		21	11	1113	661					15
37 10	83 83	11½ {11 {11 11½	55½ } 57½				ļ	13	11	113	663					16
4 15	9 10	12 9	57 60	 		 		$2\frac{1}{2}$	111	12	661		ļ			17
19	83	\12 {11 {11	57	 				21/2	11	11	66			 	 	18
281	83 83 83	11 11½ /11	543 551	.				21,	103	113	65 <u>1</u>					19
19 27½ 19	83 83	\111 112 /11	57½ 55¼ 57½			ļ		21/2	${7\frac{3}{10\frac{3}{2}}}$	} 113	651					20
30½ 18	9	\11\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\	56 2 59			.	ļ	112	113	114	65		ļ			21
19 19 194	81 73 81	\11\\\10\\\2\\11\\11\\11\\11\\	54½ 49¾ 52½	}				21/2	101	1113	65					22

 $^{^4}$ Including $\frac{1}{2}$ week's vacation with pay. 5 Including $\frac{1}{2}$ weeks' vacation with pay.

WORKING HOURS AND EARNINGS OF WOMEN EMPLOYED SOUTH BEND—Continued.

					I		Other e	mploy- nt.	
Individual al num- ber,	Age.	Conjugal condition.	Occupation	Years of ex- peri- ence in present indus- try.	Weeks em- ployed during year.	A verage weekly earnings.	Weeks.	Earn- ings.	Weeks of un- employ- ment.
23	35	Single	Department head, waists	11	1 51	\$13.37			1
24	25	do	Saleswoman, ready to wear	6	38½	10.00			131
25	40	Widowed.	do	13	2 491	15.00			2}
26	38	Single	Saleswoman, coats and suits.	15	18½	15.09		•••••	333
27	36	do	{Saleswoman, toilet depart- ment.	} 2	46	8.02			6
28	25	Married	Saleswoman, suits	5	44	16.58			8
29	25	Single	Saleswoman, lace	5	3 50	8.00		•••••	2
30	27	do	Fitter	10	1 51	12.93			1
31	18	do	Saleswoman, waists, skirts, etc.	3	48	5.00	•••••	• • • • • • •	4
32	29	do	Saleswoman, millinery and gloves.	6	47½	11.66		•••••	41
3 3	18	do	Millinery maker and sales- woman.	2	41	4.08		••••••	11
34	37	Married	Saleswoman, gloves	1	17½	9. 54		••••••	341
3 5	20	Single	Saleswoman, notions	4	481	6.43		• • • • • • •	31/2
3 6	28	do	Saleswoman, lace	12½	50	9.00			2
37	16	do	Saleswoman, domestics	13	48	4.56		•••	4
3 8	18	do	Cashier	4	40	7.23	<u>.</u>	•••••	12
39	20	d o	Saleswoman, jewelry and neckwear.	6	48	7.18			4
40	16	do	Cash girl	10	19	2.99			33
41	42	do	Department head, lace and embroidery.	22	46	16.00		•••••	6
		*							

 $^{^1}$ Including 1 week's vacation with pay. 2 Including 1^1_3 weeks' vacation with pay.

IN DEPARTMENT AND OTHER RETAIL STORES-Continued.

SOUTH BEND—Continued.

	ns,	seaso:	rtime	ng ove	s duri	g hour	orkin	W			ours.	king h	ır wor	Regul		
Indi- vidu- al	fore	nan bei stmas.		Ot	ıas.	hristm	fore C	Ве	ened	short	on of hou	Seas	al	f norm	son o hou	Sea
num- ber.	Hrs. per wk.	Hrs. maxi- mum day.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Maxi- mum hours per wk.	Hrs. maxi- mam day.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. per wk.	cep- tion-	Hrs. usu- al day.	Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. per wk.	Hrs. ex- cep- tion- al day.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Wks. em- ploy- ed.
23					643	121	101	11		.	.	}	58	(113 (111	83	18
24	57 601 581	11½ 11½ 11¾	81 83 83	$\left\{\begin{array}{c}2\\2\\6\end{array}\right.$	642	12	103	112	24	111	81	6_	55 <u>1</u> 571 55 <u>1</u>	(113 111 112 (101 (113 1112	8 <u>3</u> 8 <u>3</u> 83	31½ 5 15½
25					643	} 113	$\{11^{7\frac{3}{4}}$	$2\frac{1}{2}$. 	 .	572	1112	83 81	15½ 17½
26					643	113	101	11) 	$55\frac{1}{2}$ $57\frac{1}{2}$	11½ ∫11	8 <u>3</u> 8 <u>3</u>	{ 29½ 17
								-3				lì	57½	\11½ /11 \113	83	[13
27		ļ		.	61 1	11	101	1				}	541	$\begin{cases} 10\frac{3}{2} \\ 11 \end{cases}$	} 81	4 28
												}	521	11 /11	81	·····
28			· · • • •		641	1112	11	$2\frac{1}{2}$			•	}	57½ 55½	113	83 83	17 24½
											ľ	í	57½	/11½	83	19
29					64}	111	83	21/2				}·····	551	113	83	281
30	631	11.7	104	2	64	,,,	104	2 է				ĺ	574	$111\frac{7}{2}$	83	171
30	033	1112	107	2	04	1113	102	22		• • • • •		j	55}	\111 11½	83	29
													541	${10\frac{1}{2} \atop 11}$	81	5
31		; :			63½	11	103	21,				.	521	101	73	14
							1	_					$52\frac{1}{4}$	11	81 73	10
												{	493	11 /11		16½
32		<u> </u>			63}	11	103	21				<u>}</u>	56½ 54		8½ 8½ 8½	19
		1			-		1	_				Į.	$52\frac{1}{4}$	11	81	$\begin{pmatrix} 22\\4 \end{pmatrix}$
33					623	111	103	21/2]	56	103 111	81	13
					_		-	_				Į	534 554	111 111	81 81 81	25½ 2
34					621	11	101	11/2				}	514	10%	81	14
35				<i></i>	62	113	11	11				ļ	571	$\begin{cases} 11 \\ 111 \end{cases}$	83	19
								_				Į į	551	111½ 11½ /10½	83	281
36	564	11	81	1	613	101	${9\frac{3}{4}\atop 10\frac{1}{4}}$	2				 }	531	10	81	17
						ľ	İ					{	51 <u>3</u>	$10\frac{1}{2}$ $\{11\frac{1}{2}$ $\{11\frac{1}{4}\}$	81	30 18
37		·····			61 <u>₹</u>	121	103	11		· · · · ·	 -	}	58½ 55½	113	8 <u>3</u> 8 <u>3</u>	284
					0.51		,	.,	1	(43		ĺ .	58	/11 1	83	18
38		j			611	113	113	11/2	} 51 ₁	$\begin{cases} 4\frac{1}{3} \\ 11\frac{3}{4} \end{cases}$	83	3	55½	$11\frac{3}{4}$	83	171
39					611	113	113	11/2	} 503	$\begin{cases} 4\frac{1}{2} \\ 11\frac{1}{4} \end{cases}$	83	Į ,	571	${11\frac{1}{11}}$	83	∫ 18
39					013			-2	1 004	(11)	0,1		55	113	83	213
40				· · · · · ·	611	113	$\begin{cases} 8\frac{3}{4} \\ 11\frac{3}{4} \end{cases}$	112	} 51½	$\begin{cases} 4\frac{1}{2} \\ 11\frac{3}{4} \end{cases}$	83	2	$55\frac{1}{2}$	113	83	15½
41			·		613	} 113	${83 \atop 114}$	11/2	} 51‡	${4\frac{1}{2}\atop 11\frac{3}{4}}$	83	6	} 58 55}		83 83	17 21 1

³Including 1 week's vacation and 1 week of occasional absence with pay.

WORKING HOURS AND EARNINGS OF WOMEN EMPLOYED SOUTH BEND—Concluded.

								employ- ent.	
Individual al number.	Age.	Conjugal condition.	Occupation.	Years of ex- peri- ence in present indus- try.	Weeks em- ployed during year.	Average weekly earn- ings.	Weeks.	Earn-ings.	Weeks of un- employ- ment.
42	41	Single	Saleswoman, suits	4	50	\$17.40			2
43	21	Married	Saleswoman, domestics	7	50	8.30		••••	2
44	44	Widowed.	Head fitter	7	1 52	15.00			
45	23	Single	Saleswoman, coats and suits.	41	51	7.50			1
46	17	do	Saleswoman, notions and	2	15}	4.33	26	\$300.00	101
47	15	do	stationery. Cashier and wrapper	11	47	3.68	ļ		5
48	14	do	Cash girl	ł	10	3.00	1	1.25	41
49	24	do	Saleswoman, white goods, hosiery, and underwear.	6	40	8.74	······		12
50	30	do	Saleswoman, jewelry	4	51	6.00			1
51	33	do	Clerical	2	46	7.00			6
52	21	do	Saleswoman, toilet goods	5	48	7.85			4
53	25	do	Bookkeeper	(2)	52	10.00			
54	24	do	do	8	49	10.00			3
55	22	do	Saleswoman, suits	8	47	14.15	· · · · · · · · ·		5
56	17	do	Saleswoman, hosiery and underwear.	3	171	4.50	••••••	•••••	34½
57	43	do	Alteration hand	(2)	39}	9.99		•••••	121
58	25	do	Saleswoman, lace	9	49	7.00			3
59	19	do	Saleswoman, patterns	2	48	5.00			4
60	37	do	Saleswoman, coats and suits.	11	³ 49½	7.92			21/2
61	21	do	Saleswoman, fancy art goods.	5	151	5.99	•••••		1
62	40	Married	Alteration hand	2	45	6. 50			7
63	38	Single	Clerical	7	47	25.00			5
30	00	~115,6		!		20.00			

¹ Including 2 weeks vacation with pay.

² Not reported.

IN DEPARTMENT AND OTHER RETAIL STORES-Continued.

SOUTH BEND—Concluded.

	ns.	seaso:	rtime	ng ove	s duri	ig hour	orkin	W			ours,	rking l	lar wo	Regul	:	
Ind vid	fore	an bei stmas.	her th Chris	Ot	as.	Christm	fore C	Ве	ened'	short irs.	on of hou	Seas	al	f norn	son o hou	Sea
al nun ber	Hrs. per wk.	Hrs. maxi- mum day.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Maxi- mum hours per wk.	Hrs. maxi- mum day.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. per wk.	Hrs. ex- cep- tion- al day.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. per wk.	Hrs. ex- cep- tion- al day.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Wks. em- oloy- ed.
		••••			6112	} 113	{113 {8}	1	} 51}	{113 {4}	83	7	$55\frac{1}{2}$ $57\frac{3}{4}$ 58	113 {113 {11 {11 {113 {113 {113	S3 84 84 84	24 6 12
		••••			61½	11	10}	2^1_2		•••••		}	$ \begin{cases} 49\frac{3}{4} \\ 52\frac{1}{2} \\ 54\frac{1}{2} \end{cases} $	$11 \ 10\frac{1}{2} \ 11 \ 10\frac{1}{2} \ 11 \ 11 \ 11 \ 11 \ 11 \ 11 \ 11 \ $	73 73 81	8 22½ 17
				•••••	61½	11	11	2				}	} 57 54≩	{11 11 11	81 81 81	19 31
					611	11	10}	2}	493	11	73	8	52½ 53	$\begin{cases} 11 \\ 11 \\ 11 \end{cases}$	73	17½ 23
,	57	113	83	1	61 60}	11½ 11½	93 111	$\frac{2}{2}$	481	$4\frac{1}{2}$	83 84	7	$55\frac{1}{2}$ $52\frac{1}{2}$	113	83 83	12½ 39¾
1					603	} 11½	$11\frac{1}{2}$ $11\frac{1}{2}$ $8\frac{1}{2}$	11/2					521		83	81
					60½	112	83	1	} 51½	$\begin{cases} \frac{41}{1} \\ 11\frac{7}{4} \end{cases}$	82	8	} 55 55}	${11 \atop 11} \atop 113 \atop 113 \atop 113}$	S1 83	$10\frac{1}{2}$ $20\frac{1}{2}$
					601	1112	83	1/2	} 51	${11\frac{1}{2} \atop 4\frac{1}{2}}$	83	8	37½ 55}	$\begin{cases} 11 \\ 111 \\ 111 \end{cases}$	8 <u>3</u> 8 <u>3</u>	19 233
					60	113	8ª	1	} 50 ³	${11}$	83	5	57½ 55		83 83	19 21
					60	111	83	1	} 50¾	${11\frac{1}{4} \atop 4\frac{1}{2}}$	83	6	55 55	{111 111 111	81 81	18 231
-					593	101	10}	11				.	53½	(10½ 10	81	18
	533	111	8}	3	591	111	81	1				J ·	513 51	101	81 82	$\frac{321}{451}$
	591	103	103	1	601 591	10½ 11¾	10½ 9¾	$\frac{2\frac{1}{2}}{2\frac{1}{2}}$				}	513 54 55½	10½ ·	81 83	19 24½ 15
					591	113	93	$2\frac{1}{2}$				<u>}</u>	58	(113 h	83	81
Į					591	11	67	2^1_2	493	11	74	7	55½ 52½ 52½ 52½ 54½	(111 112 (101 (11 11 (101 (11	81 81	28½ 15 20½ 4
1			••••		59	11	101	$2\frac{1}{2}$			••••		49 <u>3</u> 54 <u>1</u> 52 <u>1</u>	11 (10 <u>}</u> (11 (10 <u>}</u> (10 <u>†</u>	73 81 73	14½ 4 13
	- · · · • •		•		59	11	10½	$2\frac{1}{2}$	• • • • •			} }	521 493 53 521 521 521 521	11 11 11	87778 778 81484 884	14 15 19 13 83
•					59	11	101	21				}	55½ 57½	11½ 111	83 83 83	21 19
												}	573		83	14
									47	41	81	4	55½ 51	111	83 84	31 43

³ Including 1 week's illness with pay. 4 Including 1 week's vacation with pay.

WORKING HOURS AND EARNINGS OF WOMEN EMPLOYED

LA FAYETTE.

							Other e me		
Indi- vidu- al num- ber	Age.	Conjugal condition.	Occupation.	Years of ex- peri- ence in present indus- try.	Weeks em- ployed during year.	Average weekly earn- ings.	Weeks.	Earn- ings.	Weeks of un- employ- ment.
				, .			!		
1	20	Single	Saleswoman, ready to wear	5 8	1 49 51	\$10.11			3 1
$\frac{2}{3}$	23 28	do	Saleswoman, silks Saleswoman, millinery	10	131	10.00			383
4	23	do	Saleswoman, lace and em-	8	51	6.00			1
	2.5		broidery.		01	0.00			1 1
_			(Saleswoman, draperies and	ì		7 50			
5	28	do	lace.	113	2 475	ţ			
6	17	do	Saleswoman, hosiery	13	1 50}	5.00		· · · · · · · ·	1 ½
7	20	do	Saleswoman, ribbons	3	8 51 1	5.40			1
8	17	do	Assistant cashier	11	4 51 5	5.00			· •
9	20	do	Saleswoman, underwear		49	6.00			3
10	19	do	Saleswoman, domestics	4	493	6.00			24
11	28	do	Saleswoman, notions	9	1 52				
12	26	do	Cashier	9	1 52	10.58			1;}
13	40	do	Head fitter	25 10	1 51	151			1
14 15	⇒ 30	do	Saleswoman, ready to wear		50 91	9.00		· · · · · · · · ·	2 424
16	18 33	do	Saleswoman, cloaks and	15	50	10.00			
10	33	uo	suits.	10	0	10.00			- i
17	28	do	Saleswoman, ribbons	6	5 51	6,00			1 1
18	20	do	Saleswoman, infants' wear		2 51	6.00			ī
19	23	do			1 391	7.77			121
20	21	do	Saleswoman, notions	6	1 51	5.53			1
21	36	do	Department head, altera-		341				173
		do	tion.	1	183	3, 76	:		334
22 23	15 16	do	Saleswoman, notionsdo	7	13	3, 58	97	\$61.00	
.24	21	do	Saleswoman, dolls, toys, and	72	39	6.00		\$01.00	13
.24	21		millinery.		. 00	. 0.00	,		10
25	31	do		6½	30ř	6, 50		ļ 	215
26	24	do	Department head, lace and	6	11	6.73			41
		j	embroidery.			-	i		

 $^{^1}$ Including 1 week's vacation with pay. 2 Including 1 week's vacation with pay and $\frac{1}{2}$ week's illness with pay. 3 Including 2 weeks' vacation with pay.

IN DEPARTMENT AND OTHER RETAIL STORES-Concluded.

LA FAYETTE.

		Regul	ar wor	king h	ours.			w	orkin	g hour	s duri	ng ove	rtime	seasor	ns.	
Sea	son o		ıal	Seas	on of hou		ened	Be	fore C	hr i st m	as.	Ot		an bef tmas.	ore	Indi- vidu- al
Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day,	cep- tion-	Hrs. per wk.	Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. ex- cep- tion- al day.	WK.	Wks. em- ploy- ed.	usu- al	Hrs. maxi- mum day.	Maxi- mum hours per wk.	Wks. em- ploy- ed.	usu- al	Hrs. maxi- mum day.	Hrs. per wk.	num- ber.
37½ 40 12⅓ 40½	9 9 9	12 12 12 12 11 ³ / ₄	57 57 57 563	9 9	8½ 8 	11½ 11½ 11½	54 51½ 54	1½ 1 1 1½	12 12 113 113	12 12 12 12 12	72 72 704 704 702	1 1	11 115	12 12	63 64½	1 2 3 4
141/2 311/2 41/2 41/2 41/2 41/2 41/2 41/2 41/2	99 99 88 88 89 9 9 88 88 9 9	1155 112 12 12 114 114 114 114 1114 1114	57334 567 555 555 555 555 555 555 555 555 555	8 3 9 4 8 ½ 6 7 9 9 1 8 7 9	8½ 8½ 8¼ 8¼ 8¼ 8¼ 8½ 8½	11½ 11½ 11¼ 11¼ 11¼ 11¼ 11¼ 11¼	54 54 53 521 521 521 531 532 531	1:15234112 11:15:15:15:15:15:15:15:15:15:15:15:15:1	11½ 11 11½ 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11	112 12 111 111 111 111 111 112 113 112	691 681 683 663 663 664 664 654 631 631	20 2	11 9	11 11½ 12	62 57½ 62	5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15
$\left\{\begin{array}{c} 42\\ 42\\ 16\frac{1}{2}\\ 41\frac{1}{2}\\ 9\frac{1}{2}\\ 16\\ 18\frac{1}{2}\\ 5\\ 31\\ \end{array}\right.$	8 8 9 9 14 14 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9	11 11 12 11 12 ¹ 11 12 12 ¹ 12 ¹ 11 ²	543 543 57 543 60 56 581 58	\$ 8 8 14 8 9 9 8 8	81 81 6 5 81 81 82 83	11 11 9 8 11 11 11 113 1114	52\\ 52\\\ 53\\\ 53\\\\ 53\\\\\ 55\\\\ 54\\\\\\\\\\	1 1 1 3	10½ 11 11½ 10½	11 11 12 11	631 614 615 60	1	82	11	563	17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24
26½ 4	9 83	113	56 <u>3</u> 53½	4 7	8 <u>1</u> 6	113	54 <u>}</u> 36									25 26

⁴ Including $\frac{1}{2}$ week's vacation with pay. 6 Including $\frac{1}{4}$ week's vacation with pay and 1 week's illness with pay. 6 Worked short hours because of illness.

WORKING HOURS OF WOMEN EMPLOYED IN GARMENT

[Bracketed hours indicate either a permament change of hours during the year, or

INDIANAPOLIS.

					Regula	r working	g hours.				
Es- tab- lish-			Norma	ıl scason.				;	Dull seaso	on.	
ment num- ber.	Dura- tion (wks).	Wo- men af- fected.	Chil- dren af- fected.	Hours, usual day.	Hours, excep- tional day.	Hours per week.	Dura- tion (wks).	Fe- males af- fected.	Hours, usual day.	Hours, excep- tional day.	Hours per week.
1	13	175	2	93	51	1 54	9	152	93	51	1 54
2	17	500		91	73	54	20	450	91	412	41½
3			ļ 				19½	3	5		39
4	28	10		$9\frac{1}{2}$		57	2112	9	7	4	39
5	71	16		91		57	18	13	6		36
6	46	152		9^{1}_{2}	45	52					
7							18	7	9}	71	55
8 9 3 10	174 43	16 5 66		$9\frac{1}{9\frac{1}{2}}$ 10	7½ 5	57 55 4 55 6 55	18 7½	12 5	$^{6}_{9\frac{1}{2}}$		35 55
5 11 7 12 8 13 9 14	48½ 253 253 253 253 20	57 48 65 50	9 5 7 10 5	(10) 91 91 9	(10)	6 55 6 55 54 (10)	26 26 26 16	62 55 75 55	10 10 10 (10)	5 5 5 (10)	4 55 4 55 55 (10)
15	30	39	1	9_{12}	41	51 ₁₇	83	36	9,5	41	51 ₁₇
16 17	34 52	35 40		9 9 <u>1</u>	4 <u>1</u> 4 <u>1</u>	49½ 52					
18	341	17		9	7	52	$\left\{\begin{array}{cc} 9 \\ 8\frac{1}{2} \end{array}\right.$	} 14	$\begin{cases} 8\\ 9 \end{cases}$	} 7	$\left\{\begin{array}{c} 47 \\ 52 \end{array}\right.$
$\begin{smallmatrix}&19\\ \imath\imath&20\end{smallmatrix}$	17 52	8 44	3	S\$ 9	7 § 5	52 12 50	132	6	75		47
21	46	350		83	41	48					
22 23 24 25	52 39 43 52	310 10 18 335	15	9 9 83 83	4} 4 41 43	49 <u>1</u> 49 48 48	13 9	10 15	8 8 <u>1</u>	4 41	44 48

TERRE HAUTE.

1	29	6		10	5	1: 55					
2 3 4 5 6	39 39 39 52	\$0 160 150 100	3	9§ 9 <u>1</u> 9	· 75 8 81 3	57 55½ 53½ 48	83 13 13 13	80 163 150	9 9 9 9 9	5 5 4 ₁	54 543 523 493

<sup>Children worked usual day 9 hours, exceptional day 5½ hours; 50½ hours per week.
50 of these women worked each of the maximum weeks.
Factory located in Bluffton, Ind.
Children worked usual day 9 hours, exceptional day 3 hours; 48 hours per week.
Factory located in Frankfort, Ind.
Children workel 9 hours per day, 54 hours per week.
Factory located in Crawfordsville, Ind.</sup>

FACTORIES AS REPORTED BY EMPLOYERS.

that the individual had worked in more than one establishment, or worked in shifts.]

INDIANAPOLIS.

	š.	periods	vertime	uring ov	hours d	orking	w		ours.	rking h	ular wo	Reg	
Es- tab- lish-	Maxi-	Aver-								season.	Busy s		
ment num- ber.	mum hours per week.	age week- ly hours.	tional	Hours, usual day.	Fe- males af- fected.	Dura- tion (wks).	Season.	Hours per week:	Hours, excep- tional day.	Hours, usual day.	Chil- dren af- fected.	Wo- men af- fected.	Dura- tion (wks).
} 1	$\left\{\begin{array}{c} 64\frac{1}{2} \\ 65\frac{1}{2} \end{array}\right.$	573	{ 5} 112	101	2 100	10	Busy	1 54	51	93	2	225	20
2	64	64	73	111	400	7	do	} GO	$\left\{\begin{array}{c} 7\frac{3}{4} \\ 11\frac{1}{4} \end{array}\right.$	10 1		55 0	8
3	62	601	$\left\{\begin{array}{c}10\\11\frac{1}{2}\end{array}\right]$	91	3	3	do	56	81	$9\frac{1}{2}$		3	291
4	603	57 1	$\left\{\begin{array}{c} 10^2 \\ 13 \end{array}\right]$	91	9	$2\frac{1}{2}$	Normal						
5	60	58½	$\left\{\begin{array}{c}11\\12\frac{1}{2}\end{array}\right]$	∂ ₹	} 16	10 10	Normal and busy	57		91		16	61
6	58	- 58	$\left\{ \begin{array}{c} 12\frac{1}{2} \\ 7\frac{1}{2} \end{array} \right $	9}	16	6	Normal						
7	57½	56 1	113	93	9	1	Busy	55½	8	91		11	33
8								57		$9\frac{1}{2}$		16	16 1
8 10		• • • • • • •			• • • • • • •								
6 11													
7 12 8 13													
9 14							(10)	(10)	(10)	(10)	5	50	16
15	5472	54	$\left\{ \begin{array}{c} 11\frac{3}{4} \\ 4\frac{1}{2} \end{array} \right]$	9_{12}^{5}	30	5	, -	51 7 3	4½	913	1	39	8
16 17	52½	52½	71/2	9	-4	18	Normal						
18													}
19								52	75	85		12	22
11 20 21 22	50	49 1	$\left\{\begin{array}{c}5\frac{3}{4}\\6\frac{1}{4}\end{array}\right]$	83	2	6	Normal		- -				
23 23 24													
24 25					• • • • • • •								
25		•••••											

TERRE HAUTE.

13 28	6		12½ 9	{ 10 5	} 62½ 54	Busy	7 { 4 4	3	$ \begin{cases} 10 \\ 9\frac{94}{9} \\ 9 \\ 11\frac{1}{2} \end{cases} $	8 }} 11½ }}	611	58 59 61}	1 2
ļ		;											4
													6

⁸ Factory located in Lebanon, Ind.
9 Factory located at Shelbyville, Ind.
10 Not reported.
11 Factory located in Rushville, Ind.
12 Children worked usual day 9 hours, exceptional day 3 hours; 48 hours per week.
13 Forewoman worked 58 hours for 18 weeks; another woman worked 58 hours for 7 weeks.

WORKING HOURS OF WOMEN EMPLOYED IN GARMENT LA FAYETTE, SEYMOUR, HAMMOND, AND NEW ALBANY.

					Regula	r working	g hours.				
Es- tab- lish-			Norma	al season.					Dull seaso	on.	
ment num- ber.	Dura- tion (wks).	Wo- men af- fected.	Children af- fected.	Hours, usual day.	Hours, excep- tional day.	Hours per week.	Dura- tion (wks).	Fe- males af- fected.	Hours, usual day.	Hours, excep- tional day.	Hours per week.
(1) (2) (5) (7)	17½ 39 52 19½	23 130 130 2	10	9 10 10 91	8 6 8 <u>1</u>	53 3 60 56 56	6½ 13	15 140	8 10	4 5	44 4 55

EVANSVILLE.

1	26	18		10	5	55	11}	18	9	5	50
2	31 ½	54	1	93		57			 .		
3	43	25		93	5	53₹					
4 5	$\frac{463}{3}$	40 54	1	10 9	9	59 54	5 t	40	10	9	59
6	$31\frac{2}{3}$	22	,	9	41	$49\frac{1}{2}$	15	14	9	41/2	491
7	52	30	10	9	7}	52}					· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·

FORT WAYNE.

8 1	46	49	3	10	8	9 58					
2	8	48	8	10	5	10 55	12	54	9	5	50
3	34 443	147 118	11 12	10 95	5 5	10 55 12 544	13	11 163	10	5	10 55
5	41	170	1	94	41	502	9	159	81	41	45 <u>1</u>
13 7 8 9 15 10	50½ 46½ 26 43 52	23 32 16 150 58	4	(6) 9 9 83 71	(6) 41- 41- 41- 42- 43- 43-	49 <u>}</u> 50 49 <u>}</u> 14 49 <u>\$</u> 48	4 4 4 9	32 16 139	(f) 8 8	(6) 41/4 41/2	48 44½ 44½ 44½
11	22	12		71	4	421	11	6	71	4	421

¹ Data are for La Fayette.
2 Data are for Seymour.
3 Children worked 54 hours.
4 Children worked 55 hours.
5 Data are for Hammond.
6 Not reported.
7 Data are for Mew Albany.
8 Factory located in Kendallville, Ind.
9 Children worked usual day 9 hours, exceptional day 8 hours, 53 hours per week.

FACTORIES AS REPORTED BY EMPLOYERS—Continued.

LA FAYETTE, SEYMOUR, HAMMOND, AND NEW ALBANY.

	Reg	ular wo	rking h	ours.		w	orking l	hours d	uring ov	ertime	periods		
		Busy	season.					Г.			Aver-	Maxi-	Es- tab- lish-
Dura- tion (wks).	Wo- men af- fected.	Chil- dren af- fected.	Hours, usual day.	Hours, excep- tional day.	Hours per week.	Season.	Dura- tion (wks).	males	Hours, usual day.	Hours, excep- tional day.	age week- ly hours.	mum hours per week.	ment num- ber.
20	43		10	9	59	Busy	$\left\{ egin{array}{c} 4 \\ 2 \end{array} \right.$	23	12½	{ 9 10	66½ 69	} 69	(¹) (²)
						Normal	(6)				(⁶)	(6)	(a)

EVANSVILLE.

		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			1			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·					
7	24		10	5	55	Busy	6	6	12}	{ 10 9	} 66½	661	1
						Normal	9	30	91	101	60	63	2
						do	8	10	121	5 127	611	613	3
						Normal	4	4	9	12	57	57	4 5
41/2	25		10	5	55	do	1	22	9	$\left\{\begin{array}{c}12\\4\frac{1}{2}\end{array}\right.$	521	521	6
·		•••						-					7

FORT WAYNE.

25	65	10	10	5	10 55	Normal Busy		25 4	10	\begin{cases} 12 \\ 8 \\ 12\\ 5 \\ \\ 5 \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\	64 62 57½	64 57½	8 1 2 3
				} }	i	Normal do	2 1	4 2	9 <u>1</u> 9	$\left\{\begin{array}{c} 4\frac{1}{4} \\ 10\frac{3}{4} \\ 7\frac{1}{2} \end{array}\right.$		58½ 52½	4 5 6
213	20		9	41/2	491								8 9
17	12		81	4	451	(16)				· · · · · · · ·			11 11

¹⁰ Children worked usual day 9 hours, exceptional day 5 hours, 50 hours per week.
11 5 additional children employed during autumn months.
12 Children worked usual day 8½ hours, exceptional day 5 hours, 49½ hours per week.
13 Factory located in Columbia City, Ind.
14 Children worked usual day 8 hours, exceptional day 4½ hours, 4½ hours per week.
15 Factory located in Warsaw, Ind.
16 Some overtime, but figures not reported.

WORKING HOURS OF WOMEN EMPLOYED IN GARMENT SOUTH BEND.

					Regula	ır workin	g hours.				
Es- tab- lish-			Norm	al season.					Dull seaso	n.	
~~.	Dura- tion (wks).	Wo- men af- fected.	Chil- dren af- fected.	Hours, usual day.	Hours, excep- tional day.	Hours per week.	Dura- tion (wks).	Fe- males af- fected.	Hours, usual day.	Hours, excep- tional day.	Hours per week.
11	35	380	39	10		2 60	13	419	10	5	3 53
2	41	14		9	4	49	9	12	9	4	49
13	39	175	15	10	81	4 581	13	165	10	5	³ 55
4							13	33	9	41/2	491
5	52	925	5 5	9	5	50					
6 7	49 3 50	42 28		9	5 5 5	50 50	 				
8	50 50	27 85	40	9 9	5 4½	50 49½					-

RICHMOND AND MUNCIE.

6 1 2	25 1 33 <u>1</u>	47 55	3 9	93 9	5 4½			! .			· .
3	40	85	26	9	5	50					
10 5	-33½ 51	75 14		9½ 9	4 3 5	9 524 50	16½		, ,	4 3	9 48 8

Factory located in Michigan City, Ind.
 Children worked 9 hours per day, 54 hours per week.
 Children worked usual day 9 hours, exceptional day 5 hours, 50 hours per week.
 Children worked usual day 9 hours, exceptional day 8½ hours, 53½ hours per week.
 Not reported.

FACTORIES AS REPORTED BY EMPLOYERS.—Concluded.

SOUTH BEND.

	Reg	ılar wo	rking h	ours.		w	orking	hours d	uring o	vertime	periods		
		Busy	season.					Tre			Aver-	Maxi-	Es- tab- lish-
Dura- tion (wks).	Wo- men af- fected.	Chil- dren af- fected.	Hours, usual day.	Hours, excep- tional day.	Hours per week.	Season.	Dura- tion (wks).	Fe- males af- fected.	Hours, usual day.	Hours, excep- tional day.	974	mum hours per week.	ment num- ber.
						Normal	4	30	10	103	611	613	11
			 -		•••••	do	2	7	12	$\left\{ \begin{array}{c} 9\\4 \end{array} \right]$	61	61	2 13
$\left\{\begin{array}{c} 25\frac{2}{3} \\ 13\frac{1}{3} \end{array}\right.$	} 60	10	9	412	{ 7 54 49}	}Busy	(5)						4
													5 6
													7 8
				•••••		Normal	(5)					•••••	9

RICHMOND AND MUNCIE.

233	47	3	93	81	8 571	Normal	10	6	114	j 9) 57	57	61
						do	10	10	11	$\left\{\begin{array}{c}4\frac{1}{2}\\9\\5\end{array}\right.$	56	56	3
													10 5

Located in Kokomo, Ind.
 Children worked usual day 8½ hours, exceptional day 5 hours, 48½ hours per week.
 Children worked usual day 8½ hours, exceptional day 8½ hours, 52½ hours per week.
 Two women worked 55 hours for 50 weeks.
 Located in Elwood, Ind.

^{66172°-}Bull. 160-14--11

CLASSIFIED WEEKLY EARNINGS OF WOMEN INDIANAPOLIS.

Es-		Nur	nber	of piec	ewor	kers v	vhose	earnii	ngs fa	ll with	in each	classi	fied an	nount.
tab- lish- ment num- ber.	Garments made.	der	to	to	to	to	to	to	.to	\$10.00 to \$11.99	and	fe-	hours	A ver- age earn- ings.
1 2 3	Dresses and waists Men's custom suits and overcoats. Custom coats	5 4	14 2	11 1	9 15	9 20	9 26	7 24	13 18	19 41	20 52	116 203	54.0 (1)	\$8.30 9.68
4	do												,	
5	Custom coats and													
6	pants. Sunbonnets, aprons, and flannelette gowns.	13	9	4	9	5	10	12	12	15	26	115	(¹)	8.53
7 8	Custom trousers Custom pants and vests.				• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •									
9	Cloth caps							١,.						
² 10 ³ 11	Cotton gloves	4	4	2	.2	11	11	5	6	7	9	61	61.8	7. 95
4 12	do	10	10 5	7	14 6	7	8 11	8	1 4	4 9	2	69 61	52. 4 50. 6	5. 65 6. 85
5 13	do	40	9	16	11	7	6	4	5	1	2	101	40.0	4.27
614	Gloves	3	5	i	12	7	13	5			! ĩ	47	52.1	6.14
15	Overalls and jackets.	2	ĭ	5	5	l i	5	š	i	4	9	36	52.0	8.88
16	Waists and dresses	1	3	2	7	1	5	2	ī	3	i	26	(1)	6.70
17 18	Overalls and coats Butchers' and serv- ants' uniforms.		2 	1	6	6	6	4 	5	5	2	37	(1) (1)	7.67
19	Custom shirts			l		1	2	1	2	3		8	50.4	9.02
7 20	Cotton gloves	3	5	9	6	10	1	5	2	3		44	47.8	5, 90
21	Overalls, shirts, pants, and coats.	10	10	22	39	30	38	30	35	38	31	283	(1)	7.98
22	Canvas gloves	45	31	33	43	33	37	24	8	22	5	280	41.0	5, 79
23	Dresses and skirts					2	1				1	4	49.0	8,00
24	Men's shirts, neck-				1	1	. 1	3	2			8	(1)	8.09
25	wear, bath robes. Workingmen's shirts	3	9	11	19	15	22	30	46	94	74	323	(1)	9.84

TERRE HAUTE.

1 2	Women's clothing	· · · · · ·	· · · · · ·				1	2				3	55.0	\$7.97
8 3	Workingmen's	∫ 12	7	4	2	3	3		2	1	2	36	(<u>1</u>)	4.81
	clothing.	12 12	2 12	8 22	1	5 20	4	11	- 4	4.	1	43	(1)	5.66
4	Overalls, jackets, pants, lined coats, and mackinaws.				15					20	14		(1)	7. 12
5	Workingmen's elothing.	16	23	12	14	16	7	6	3		2	99	(1)	5. 25
96	Overalls	(10)	• • • • •									94	48.0	5.51
96	Overalls	(10)	• • • • •			••••	• • • • •	••••			• • • • • •	94	48.0	5.

LA FAYETTE, SEYMOUR, HAMMOND, AND NEW ALBANY.

(11) (12) (13)	ShirtsdoCotton gloves		2	1 5	3 4	3 10	9	5.	2 7	3	21 49 2	(1) 52.8 (1)	\$7.72 7.37 3.00	
----------------------	-----------------------	--	---	--------	--------	---------	---	----	--------	---	---------------	--------------------	------------------------	--

<sup>Not reported.
Factory located in Blufton, Ind.
Factory located in Frankfort, Ind.
Factory located in Crawfordsville, Ind.
Factory located in Lebanon, Ind.
Factory located in Shelbyville, Ind.
Factory located in Rushville, Ind.</sup>

EMPLOYED IN GARMENT FACTORIES.

INDIANAPOLIS.

		Num	ber of t	imewor	kers w	hose ea	rnings f	all with	in each	classifi	ed amou	ınt.	Es-
Un- der \$3.00	\$3.00 to \$3.99	\$4.00 to \$4.99	\$5.00 to \$5.99	\$6.00 to \$6.99	\$7.00 to \$7.99	\$8.00 to \$8.99	\$9.00 to \$9.99	\$10.00 to \$11.99	\$12.00 and over.	Total fe- males.	Aver- age hours per week.	Average earnings.	tab- lish- ment num- ber.
9 2	8 2	4 16	12 35	6 34	8 19	14 19	3 14	5 22	6 25	75 188	48. 1	\$6.50 8.07	1 2
i			1		2 	1 3	1 3	<u>1</u>	1 2 4	3 8 11	56.0 57.0 (1)	10.00 9.25 9.80	3 4 5
5	1	9	8	4	2	2	3	1	1	36	(1)	5.63	6
			1	1 3	3 1	1 3		2	1 2	7 11	56.0 57.0	7. 86 8. 55	7 8
1	2	1	3	2	3	1 21 21 2	1	1	1 2 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	5 6 1 1 1 2 3 11 1 12	55. 0 66. 6 60. 0 60. 0 60. 0 55. 5 (1) (1) (1) 49. 5	8. 60 11. 92 13. 00 17. 33 16. 25 7. 75 10. 76 7. 06 15. 00 5. 21	9 2 10 8 11 4 12 5 13 6 14 15 16 17 18
	1 1	1	<u>2</u>	4	2	1 1	$\frac{1}{3}$	1 1		4 3 11	52.0 48.6 (1)	8. 09 5. 67 6. 95	7 20 21
1	4		5 2	1 1	3 1 1	3 1 3		3 1 1	2 1 1	22 6 7	43. 0 49. 0 48. 0	7.38 8.66 8.75	22 23 24
 				1	1	· · · · · · ·	1		7	10	(1)	11.99	25

TERRE HAUTE.

		2	1	3	1 3 1	1	6	2	1 1 3	1 2 5	2 2 8 5 19	55. 0 54. 0 54. 8 59. 0 55. 5	\$8.00 8.00 8.78 6.40 9.89	1 2 63 4
-	(10)	2	1	2	2	1	1	1	4	1	15 6	(1) 48.0	7. 47 7. 03	5 9 6

LA FAYETTE, SEYMOUR, HAMMOND, AND NEW ALBANY.

31 20 14 4 3 2 1 76 1	53.1	76			1		1	2	3	4	!	20	1	
-----------------------	------	----	--	--	---	--	---	---	---	---	---	----	---	--

⁸ Lower figures for factory located in Brazil, Ind.
9 Factory located in Clinton, Ind.
10 Individual earnings not reported.
11 Data are for La Fayette.
12 Data are for Hammond.
13 Data are for New Albany.

CLASSIFIED WEEKLY EARNINGS OF WOMEN

EVANSVILLE.

Es-		Nur	nber	of pie	ewor	kers v	vhose	earni	ngs fa	ll with	in eacl	h classi	ified ar	nount.
tab- lish- ment nu m- ber.	Garments made.	der	to	to	to	to	to	to	to	\$10.00 to \$11.99	and	fe-	hours	age
1 2	Shirts		2	3	4	7						16	50.6	\$5.41
3 4 5	custom made. Working garments Breeches Women's clothing.	4	5 2	3 3	3 5	6	3 2	2 4	1	1 1	₂	28 25	49. 4 (1)	5. 47 6. 80
6 7	custom made. Overallsdo	10	5	1 5	6 5	2 3	1 2	1	1			12 31	49. 5 43. 2	6. 21 4. 11

FORT WAYNE AND NEIGHBORING TOWNS.

2 1	Cotton flannel gloves and mittens.	8	7	6	4	4	9	5	4	3	1	51	(1)	\$5. 97
2 3 4 5 6 3 7 8 9	Canvas gloves. Cotton fiannel gloves. do Ladies' shirt waists. Overalls Canvas gloves. Ladies' waists. Overalls Muslin underwear	5 18 18 9 1 1 4 5	4 11 13 9 2 7 2	4 22 10 32 1 4 1 6 5	8 29 13 21 1 4 1 14 5	5 16 16 30 4 6	8 24 11 22 3 8 2 15 11	3 9 11 15 1 1 18 3	6 3 10 12 3 1 4 14 6	8 8 16 2 	1 7 3 11 5	44 141 110 173 19 24 12 109 55	(1) 43.7 40.5 (1) 47.8 41.9 45.0 (1) (1)	6. 18 5. 74 5. 92 6. 73 8. 31 6. 52 6. 80 8. 11 7. 47 3. 08

SOUTH BEND.

				·										
5 1	Men's ready - made work shirts.	31	39	50	63	55	47	38	14	16	' 3	356	51, 2	\$ 5. 99
2	Overalls and work coats.				1		2	2	1	2		8	(1)	8, 82
5 3	Shirts and house dresses.	10	14	23	21	8	22	7	9	4	2	120	(1)	5, 95
4	Women's and chil- dren's clothing.	17	14	7	5	3	4	1		2		53	40.8	4. 10
5	Men's shirts and underwear.	49	31	73	77	98	112	93	86	68	9	696	44.8	6. 44
6	Shirts		.			4	7	5	1	2		19	(1)	7.96
7	do	1		1	3	3		2	5	1		16	(1)	7.18
8	Coarse shirts	2	4	6	3	2	2	1	1	1		22	(1)	5. 41
9	Cotton flannel gloves and mittens.	3	10	14	19	17	17	17	2		1	100	46.7	6.18
		<u> </u>	i	<u> </u>		l	l		l	<u> </u>			ļ	1

RICHMOND AND NEIGHBORING TOWNS.

7 1 Cotton gloves	4	2 4 1 5	6 4 4 16	6 3 13 12	10 9 22 12	9 12 13 5	2 4 13 12	8 2 19 6	2 2 15 5	5 3 3	56 49 103 85	(1) 45.7 50.0 (1)	\$5. 89 6. 87 7. 97 6. 39]
-------------------	---	------------------	-------------------	--------------------	---------------------	--------------------	--------------------	-------------------	-------------------	-------------	-----------------------	----------------------------	------------------------------------	---

 ¹ Not reported.
 2 Factory located in Kendallville, Ind.
 3 Factory located in Columbia City, Ind.
 4 Factory located in Warsaw, Ind.

EMPLOYED IN GARMENT FACTORIES—Concluded.

EVANSVILLE.

	Nu	mber of	timew	orkers v	whose e	arnings	fall wi	thin eac	h class	ified an	ount.		Es-
Un- der \$3.00	\$3.00 to \$3.99	\$4.00 to \$4.99	\$5.00 to \$5.99	\$6.00 to \$6.99	\$7.00 to \$7.99	\$8.00 to \$8.99	\$9.00 to \$9.99	\$10.00 to \$11.99	\$12.00 and over.	Total fe- males.	Average hours per week.	Average earnings.	tab- lish- ment num- ber.
13	3	4	1 9	2	1 4	4	3	2	5	2 49	51.0 57.1	\$6. 25 6. 08	1 2
4		$egin{array}{c} 1 \\ 2 \end{array}$	2 4	9	3 9	7	1 4	4	5	1 6 48	53. 8 (1) 52. 8	9. 00 6. 00 7. 85	3 4 5
1					1		<u>2</u>			2 3	49.5 53.0	5. 10 6. 83	6 7

FORT WAYNE AND NEIGHBORING TOWNS.

				1 1	58.0	\$12.00	2 1
7 6 1	1 1 2 1 1 1	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	1 2 1 2 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 2 1 1 2 1 1 2 1 1 2 1 1 2 1	8 1 6 1 5 4 97 4 2 2 12. 2 3 1	49. 9 51. 0 44. 6 (1) 49. 5 45. 0 45. 0 (1) (1) 45. 3	5. 99 9. 85 7. 94 6. 16 6. 00 5. 30 6. 50 9. 58 12. 00 7. 00	2 3 4 5 6 3 7 8 9 4 10 11

SOUTH BEND.

2		3	6	7	4	1	1	2	3	29	55.7	\$ 6. 94	5 1
		1	1	1	1				1	5	(1)	6.90	2
1	2	1	1	1					1	7	, (1)	10. 43	53
9	7	3	2	1		2		• • • • • • •	5	6 29	41.8	4.43	4
14	39	7	10	10	10	4	3	6	2	105	46. 1	4.96	5
1 1	1 1	1	3	3	1	i		1 1 1 1		9 3 5 3	(1) (1) 50.0 49.5	6, 29 5, 87 5, 45 6, 92	6 7 8 9
										_			

RICHMOND AND NEIGHBORING TOWNS.

l					 			l	 			71
	1	3 2	7 6	1 5	 	<u>1</u>	l	·····į	 17 17	45. 1 51. 1 53. 5	\$4.56 5.02 8.50	2 3 84

Factory located in Michigan City, Ind.
 Includes 8 clippers working part of time at piece rate.
 Factory located in Kokomo, Ind.
 Factory located in Elwood, Ind.

WORKING HOURS AND EARNINGS OF WOMEN

[Bracketed hours indicate either a permanent change of hours during the year or INDIANAPOLIS.

							<u></u>		
Indi-				Years of ex-	Weeks	Aver-	Other e	employ- ent.	Weeks
vid- ual num- ber.	Age.	Conjugal condition.	Occupation.	peri- ence in present indus- try.	em- ployed during year.	age weekly earn- ings.	Weeks.	Earn- ings,	of un- employ- ment.
1	20	Separated.	Basting puller	23	49	\$6.00			3
2		Single	•	2	43	7. 77			9
- {		do		7	49	9. 76			3
4	32	do	'	4	49	7.00			3
5	19	Married	Baster	4	41	9. 51			11
6	84	Single	Operator	8	52	15.00	Í		İ
7	22	do	Finisher	3	50	5.45			
. 8	19	do	Sleeve maker	3≹	52	8. 25			
9	35	do	Finisher	111	47	5. 28			5
10	27	do	Button sewer, hand	13	4	4.00	441	\$ 311. 50	31
11	26	Separated.	Stitcher, gloves	11	47	14.30			5
12	27	Single	Pocket sewer	21	49	6.22		<u> </u>	3
13	43	do	Finisher	15	51	7.08		ļ	1
14	18	do	Shoulder baster	5	51	5. 58		ļ	1
15	19	do	do	5	51	5. 58			1
16	33	do	Operator	15	50	10.48			2
17	27	do	do	9 <u>₹</u>	43	12.50		ļ	9
18	22	do	Collar baster	9	49	10.90			2
19	21	do	do	5 <u>1</u>	50	11. 16	ļ		2
20	36	Widowed.	Checker out	11/2	51	7.00			1.
21	24	Single	Operator	6	52	9.58		 	
22	25	do	Finisher	5	485	11.24		: -	31/2
23	21	do	Collar baster	4	48	8.05	ļ		. 4
24	48	Married	Buttonhole maker	4	49	10.83	ļ		3
25	29	Single	Operator	9	41	11.49	ļ	ļ	. 11
26	18	do	Coat cleaner	4	50	4. 53	ļ		. 2
27	26	do	Operator	(1)	46	10.61	ļ		. 6
28	19	do	Edge baster	2	47	9. 29		 	. 2
29	38	Widowed.	Girdle maker	3	48	11.66			. 4
30	17	Single	Hand sewer	11	52	4. 70			.
31	40	do	Buttonhole maker	11	481	9. 27			. 31
32	20	do	Hemmer	5 1	48	6.00			. 4
	1		l	1	!		1	1	(

¹ Not reported.

EMPLOYED IN GARMENT FACTORIES.

that the individual had worked in more than 1 establishment or worked in shifts.]

INDIANAPOLIS.

					Regul	ar wo	rking	hours.					Worl	cing h	ours d	luring	
	N	ormal	seaso:	n,	. :	Dull s	eason			Busy	season	•			e perio		Indi vid-
p	Vks. em- loy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. ex- cep- tion- al day.	Hrs. per week.	Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. ex- cep- tion- al day.	Hrs. per week.	Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. ex- cep- tion- al day.	Hrs. per week.	Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. ex- cep- tion- al day.	Hrs. per week.	ual num ber.
(13 (¹) 14 22	91 93 83 91	71 41 41 72	53 ³ 53 ¹ 48 54	22 } (¹) 18	61 (1) 63	4½ (1) 4½	35½ (1) 38½	7 (1) 9	9½ (¹) 12	7 1 (1) 7 1	54 (1) 673	7 2	12½ 12¾	7 1 11/2	69 68‡	
	41	9	41/2	491	4	7	41/2	391	3	12½	41/2	60	1	121/2	$\left\{\begin{array}{c} \frac{41}{7} \\ 7 \end{array}\right.$	67	
	22	91	73	551	11	7	41	391	4	91	$\begin{cases} 7^{\frac{3}{4}} \\ 11^{\frac{1}{2}} \end{cases}$	} 57 <u>1</u>	4	111	↓ 9 7≩	651	
	46	91/2	41/2	52					6	121	8 8 91	641	ļ				ĺ
ſ	8 7	$9\frac{1}{2}$	$\begin{cases} 9\frac{1}{8} \\ 8\frac{1}{8} \end{cases}$	57 56	26	$\begin{cases} \frac{4\frac{1}{2}}{6\frac{1}{2}} \end{cases}$	} 4½	$\begin{cases} 20 \\ 30 \end{cases}$	} 3	91/2		37	$\begin{cases} 2\\ 4 \end{cases}$	9 <u>1</u> 11½	11½ 9½	59 64	}
•	18	91	73	54	26	71	41/2	36 1 40 1 40 1	8	111	73	64	·····	ļ			ľ
	16	91	73	54	26	7	41/2	30 40	} 5 2	11 1 10	7 <u>3</u> 8 <u>1</u>	64 581		113	· · · · · ·	632	1
•	46	9	41/2	491									1	113	11/2	631	
-	• • • • •	ļ			25	61	41/2	35 3	20	91	73	54	4	111	{ 7 } { 9 }	63	:
	22	91	••••	57	25	7		42 ∫ 37½	4	${9\frac{1}{2}}$	}	63	ļ				1
	19	91	8	55½	26	7½	41/2	\ 42 ² ∫ 37½	6	11	8	63	·····	••••			1
	19 38	91/2	8	55½ 53¾	26	71/2	4½	{ 42	} 6 8	11	8	63 56 3	4	112	(93	1 002	
	26	10	5 1/3 4 1/2	54½					17	9 ² / ₃	8⅓ ∫ 10	} 62½	1	•11 3	$\left\{\begin{array}{c}9\frac{2}{3}\\8\frac{1}{3}\end{array}\right.$	623	
ſ	27	} 91	74	f 54	} 6	73	41/2	∫ 38₹	} 14	111	\begin{cases} \b	$\begin{cases} 62_2 \\ 62 \end{cases}$					
	$\frac{2}{27}$	91	72	$\begin{cases} 27 \\ 54 \\ 27 \end{cases}$	6	73	41/2	431 431 431 381	14	111	91	62					
١	39	91	41/2	52	, 				12	$12\frac{1}{2}$	91 71 91 41	61				ļ	,
	30 36½	91	5	57	21	7	 -	21			91	,	1	91	111	61	:
-	302	91/2	0	52½				f 36	12 8	12 11 1	8 8 91 74 74	60½					:
	19	91	78	54	13	6–8	41/2	40	8	91	$\begin{cases} 7^{\frac{3}{4}} \\ 11^{\frac{1}{4}} \end{cases}$	} 58	 }				1
	$29\frac{1}{2}$	91	8	55½	61	91	41/2	$\begin{cases} 47\frac{1}{2} \\ 52 \end{cases}$	} 13	11	111 74 91 8	60	ľ				1
	24	91	81	56	15	4–5		25				, 	2	101	$\left\{ \begin{array}{c} 9\frac{1}{2} \\ 8\frac{1}{2} \end{array} \right.$	} 60	1
	341	101	83	60	15½	83	$\left\{ egin{array}{c} 4rac{1}{2} \ 8rac{3}{4} \end{array} ight.$	48 1 52 1	(1)	(1)	(ı)	(1)	[, 	,
ſ	24 10	9 <u>1</u> 8 1	$\frac{4\frac{1}{2}}{4\frac{1}{4}}$	52 48	}				ĺ				12	12	{ 9 44	} 59½	;
	13	91	41/2	503	12	91		461	9	91	73	54	$\begin{cases} 2\\11 \end{cases}$	}10 2	14 77 94	§ 58½	:
	42	91/2	5	52½	1	9 7	5	52½	{ 3 }	11 ² / ₄	$\begin{cases} 5\\91\\5 \end{cases}$	} 59 <u>1</u> } 57	}		{ 8 1 { 9 1	} 59½	
	18	91	73	54	17	6–8	41/2	40	{ 8 7	} 91	113 73 73 93 73	54) } 2	91	{ 10 ²	} 59	
•	20	91	73	54	201	7	1½ 1½	391	5	91	74	56 54	3	101	73	59	:
	46	9,5	$4\frac{7}{12}$	51 2	·····				-	 			2	113	$\left\{\begin{array}{c}9^{\frac{1}{13}}\\\frac{1}{13}\end{array}\right.$	} 58 1 2	:

WORKING HOURS AND EARNINGS OF WOMEN INDIANAPOLIS—Continued.

Other employment. Years Indi-Weeks of ex-Aver-Weeks peri-ence in age weekl**y** videm-Conjugal of unployed ual Age Occupation. condition. employ ment. during numpresent earnber. indusyear. ings. Earntry. Weeks. ings. Single.... Glove maker..... 32 \$6.00 20 33 16 3 34 28 Work distributor..... $2\frac{1}{4}$ 43 ...do..... 8.14 9 35 23 ...do.... Buttonhole maker..... 6 50 6.72 2 36 18 ...do..... Pocket sewer..... 3 51 3.94 1 26 Work distributor 9 50 37 do 11.26 1 38 26 2 403 7.81 \$110.00 3 9 43 Widowed 50 8.00 39 Operator..... 13 40 24 Divorced... 3 29 6.14 23 41 17 Single.... Basting puller.... 11 44 4.88 8 42 55 Married. Marker..... 5 48 7,00 15.00 16 43 19 Single... Operator..... 3 36 44 28 ..do..... Bundle-room hand..... 3 48 7.50 7 27 ..do.... 9.01 13 75.00 45 Operator..... 38 1 46 27 ...do..... Waist trimmer..... 81 49 9.00 3 22 Skirt maker..... 12.00 47 71 471 41 24 .do....do 71 50 12.00 2 48 49 27 ..do..... Coat maker..... 11 47 9.16 5 50 27 do Pocket sewer..... R 52 6.00 26 49 12.00 3 51 12,00 52 21 do 4 49 3 21 ..do..... Coat baster..... 48 7.28 53 4 54 17 ..do..... Collar baster 46 5.91 6 ..do..... Collar liner 461 55 20 5 4.34 3 Coat baster.... 23 Married ... 6 451 7.87 10.00 $6\frac{1}{2}$ 56 14 57 40 ..do..... Operator..... 48 7.59 4 58 17 Single.... 1⁷2 39 3.72 8 44.00 5 27 .do.... Buttonhole maker. 45 8,89 7 59 14 2 7 60 22 ..do..... Collar maker..... 45 8.77 61 36 . .do.... 5 471 7.00 41 do Joiner and trimmer..... 8.05 22 5 491 $2\frac{2}{3}$ 62 Waist maker.... 80.00 63 27 ..do.... 1 39 6.10 10 3 64 49 ďο Buttonhole maker 12 22 5.82 30 65 19 ...do..... Operator..... 3 47 15.00 5 26 26 66 Pocket sewer..... 17 .do.... $\frac{1}{2}$ 5.00

EMPLOYED IN GARMENT FACTORIES—Continued.

INDIANAPOLIS—Continued.

				Regul	ar wo	rking	hours.					Work	ing h	ours d	luring	
N	ormal	seaso	n,		Dull s	season	1.		Busy	season	ı .	ov	ertim	e perio	ds.	Indi- vid-
Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. ex- cep- tion- al day.	Hrs. per week.	Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. ex- cep- tion- al day.	Hrs. per week.	Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. ex- cep- tion- al day.	Hrs. per week.	Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. ex- cep- tion- al day.	Hrs. per week.	ual num- ber.
6 24	9	{ 4] 7½	49½ 52½	}								2	9	{ 12 7k	} 58½	3:
15	93	51	54	9	93	51	54	15	93	5 <u>1</u>	54	4	111	71 91 51	581	3
14	91	73	54	18	5–7	5}	30	10	91	73	54	8	102	97	581	3
21	83	71	51	26	61	4	{ 311	} 4	8	$\begin{cases} 7\frac{3}{4} \\ 7\frac{1}{4} \\ 12\frac{1}{4} \\ 11\frac{3}{4} \end{cases}$	5 8				,	3
30	93	51	54	6	93	5 1	\ 35 <u>₹</u> 54	4	93	1 54	58					3
251	91	41/2	52	9	91	4}	52	6	111	$\left\{\begin{array}{c} 91\\4\frac{1}{4}\end{array}\right]$	58				ļ	3
48	10	43	543								, 	2	10	${101 \atop 7}$	} 58	3
25	91	41/2	52				(271	4	10	8	58				ļ	4
29	9½	8	55½	9	7½	41/2	$\left\{\begin{array}{c} 37\frac{1}{2} \\ 42 \end{array}\right.$	6	10	8	58		· · · · ·			4
40	9,5	472	513	3	8	4	44	5	{11 1} 943	10 5 4 1 2	} 57 11		• • • • •			4
28	9,5	473	513					5	98	412	51 3	3	9,5	$\left\{\begin{array}{c} 4\frac{7}{12} \\ 12\frac{5}{13} \end{array}\right.$	} 57 3	4
31	91	41/2	52			- -	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •				••••	17	912	$\begin{cases} 7 \\ 12\frac{1}{2} \end{cases}$	$57\frac{1}{2}$	4
27	91	5	52½	5	91	5	52½	2	9 1	5	52½	4	$9\frac{1}{2}$	$\begin{cases} 12 \\ 5 \end{cases}$	$57\frac{1}{2}$	4
14	91	5	521	13	91	5	$52\frac{1}{2}$	$\begin{cases} 7 \\ 12 \end{cases}$	10 9½	} 5	{ 55 52₃	1 2	10 9½	} 7½	{ 57½ 55	} 4
24	93	43	53 1	10}	92	43	53 1	7	93	43	531	6	93	$\begin{cases} 11\frac{7}{43} \\ 4\frac{3}{4} \end{cases}$	} 57 1	4
26	93	.43	531	11	93	43	53½	7	92	43	531	6	93	$\begin{cases} 4^{\frac{3}{2}} \\ 11^{\frac{1}{2}} \\ 4^{\frac{1}{2}} \end{cases}$	} 57₺	4
23	91	72	54	20	71	45	{ 361 401	} 4	10 <u>}</u>	{ 91 74	} 57				, 	4
13	{ 9½ 9	} 4½	503	30	5	412	30	8	91	412	52	1	91	$\left\{egin{array}{c} 4rac{1}{2} \\ 12 \end{array}\right.$	} 57	Į į
14	91	72	54	16	7	4}	{ 40 35	} 16	91	73	54	3	91	73 103	57	
14	91	73	54	16	7	41	40 35	16	91	73	54	3	91	7	57	5
251	91	73	54	14}	71	41	361 402	6	91	73	54	2	91	101	57	5
24}	9}	73	54	13½	71	41/2	361 403	6	91	73	54	2	91	74 104	57	l
21	91	73	54	221	91	41/2	461 502	} 3	91	$\left\{ egin{array}{c} 10rac{3}{4} \\ 7rac{3}{4} \end{array} \right.$	} 57			102	, 	
271	9	71	521	7	ſ 7½	41	45	7	9	71	52½	4	10 1	{ <u>9</u>	} 57	5
23	9	41	493	13	\ 9 8}	43	461	11	9	71	523	1	101	$\begin{cases} 7\frac{1}{2} \\ 9 \end{cases}$	57	
24	91	73	54	13	71	41	403	**	ľ	• 2	02.2	2	101	$\begin{cases} 7\frac{1}{2} \\ 9\frac{1}{4} \end{cases}$	57	
		_		16	63	-		} 3	91	73	54	3	101	$\left. ight\} \left. egin{array}{c} 7rac{3}{9} \\ 9rac{1}{2} \end{array} \right.$	57	
23	91	73	54	10	<u>-</u> ا	4½	{ 33\\\ 38\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\	ľ	97	12	34	l °	103	1 7	3 31	"
20	912		57	5 6	62 93	41/2	33 2 28 2	4	91/2		57				ļ .	6
451	9,5	472	513	[, 	.		ļ	2	9,5	{ 11 11 4 7 3	} 56 3	6
401	93	41/2	52	3	91	41/2	52	4	91	4½	52	2	91/2	1112	561	Ι ε
35	10	51	551			ļ	 	4	10	∫ 10}	} 56½	<u> </u>		*2	ľ	
18	91	73	56½	4	73	5	433	ļ <u>.</u>		\ 5½ ······	J ~~2			ļ,		6
39	91	41/2	52	ļ	-		ļ	5	91	41/2	52	3	91	$\begin{cases} 4\frac{1}{2} \\ 11\frac{1}{2} \end{cases}$	} 56	6
9	9	7½	52½	13	61	43	37	3	91	71	55	1	91	71 101	56	.6

WORKING HOURS AND EARNINGS OF WOMEN INDIANAPOLIS—Continued.

Individ- ual num- ber.	Age.	Conjugal condition.	Occupation.	Years of ex- peri- ence in present indus- try.	Weeks em- ployed during year.	Average weekly earn- ings.		Earn- ings.	Weeks of un- employ- ment.
67	35	Single	Waist trimmer	10½	481	\$ 6.51			13
68	17	do	Glove piecer	$2\frac{1}{2}$	49	6.95			1
69	22	do	Inspector	1	8	7.00	31	\$374.00	13
70	24	Married	Operator	3 25	6	4.45	24	144.00	22
71 72	15	Single	Glove turner	28	6 4	3.40 1.89	6 5	27.00	40
	14	do	Inspector	1,3			9	26.50	43
73	20	do	Coat maker	4	451	8.97			61
74 75	59 15	Married Single	OperatorGeneral helper	$12\frac{1}{3}$	46 50	7.50 4.07		-	6 2
76 77	19	do	ag sewer.	1	15	5.00	26	124.00	9
77	37 33	Separated. Divorced	Operator Repairer	111	46 51	7.50 12.00			6
78 79	-22	Single	Repairer. Edge baster.	$\frac{1\frac{1}{2}}{2\frac{1}{2}}$	20	6.80			32
80 81	(1)	do Widowed	Hand sewer Forewoman	10 18	48 52	12.60 8.50			4
82	(1) 23	Single	Assistant iorewoman	2	171	5.00	22	220.00	121
83	18	do	Assistant bookkeeper	21	50	6.52			2
84	25	do	Skirt maker	6	45	7.90			7
85	39	Divorced	Finisher	5	32	7.70	16	120.50	4
86	54	Separated.	Glove hemmer and tipper	1/3	17	2.60			35
87	16	Single	Feller	ŧ	8	6.00	42	277. 20	
88	18	do	Glove operator	1	44	10.00	 		8
89	16	do	do	ł	12	4.66	<u> </u>		40
90	16	do	Glove turner	3	35 §	3.45			161
91	43	Married	Buttonhole maker	17	50½	8.67			11/2
92	25	do	Operator	6	52	7.66			
93 94	36 37	Single Widowed .	Serger Repairer	11 25 82	50 21	9.40 7.00			2 31
95	29 42	Single Married	Repairer Operator Decay		50	(1)			2
96 97	29	Widowed.	Presser	$3\frac{5}{12}$	38 52	6.09 3.20	11	63.50	3
98	(¹)	Married	Glove inspector.	1 1}	49	5.05			
99	24	Single	Shoulder baster	·10	41	4.75			3 11
100	23	do	Embroiderer	6	50	8.00			2
101	37	Separated.	Operator	13	$20\frac{1}{2}$	4.02	• • • • • • • • •		31½
102 103	43 37	Single Widowed.	Operator	$\frac{20}{2^{\frac{5}{4}}}$	33 3 11	$\frac{5.00}{5.55}$	6	36,00	$\frac{18\frac{1}{3}}{35}$
104	14	Single	Errand girl	2 4 3	17	4.76		50.00	35
105	50	do	Hemmer, skirts	101	50½	10.00			14
106 107	17 21	do	Glove operatorFeller	$\frac{2\frac{2}{3}}{3}$	50 j	9.50			13
108	36	do	Operator	10	50 51	$12.00 \\ 12.00$			2
109 110	17 17	do	do	3	45	4.93			7
111	32	Divorced	Inspector	1 g	9 13	4.00 10.00	17	187.00	43 22
112	25	Married (Separated	Operator	4	43	9. 21	-		9
113	35	{ or di-	}do	6	52	9.25			
114	18	Vorced	Forewoman	5	48	8.75			1
115	24	Married	Operatordo.	7	15	10.00			37
116 .	17	Single	do	3	51	7.92	¹		1

¹ Not reported.

EMPLOYED IN GARMENT FACTORIES—Continued.

INDIANAPOLIS—Continued.

-					Regul	lar wo	rking	hours	•		·		Worl	cing h	ours (luring	i
:	N	ormal	seaso	n.		Dull s	seasor	1.		Busy	season	ı ,	ov	ertim	e perio	ods.	Indi- vid-
	Wks. em- oloy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. ex- cep- tion- al day.	Hrs. per week.	Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. ex- cep- tion- al day.	Hrs. per week.	Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. ex- cep- tion- al day.	Hrs. per week.	Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. ex- cep- tion- al day.	Hrs. per week.	ual num- ber.
İ	33	9	4½	49½	71/3	812	41/2	47		ļ			{ 8 1	9	$\begin{cases} 7\frac{4}{2} \\ 12 \\ 4\frac{1}{2} \\ 12 \end{cases}$	52 § } 55½	67
1	47	9	41/2	491			 				ļ		2	ġ	12 43	55½	68
1	8 6 6	10 ₁ 10	514 512	551										· · · · ·		ľ	69 70 71
١.	6	9½ 10¼		55½ 55½ 55½ 55½ 49½													71
K	3	1013	512 412	$\frac{55\frac{1}{2}}{49\frac{1}{2}}$	}		ļ										72
	$20^{1\over 2}$	91	72	54	$\begin{cases} 6 \\ 5 \end{cases}$	$6\frac{3}{4}$	$\begin{cases} 6\frac{3}{4} \end{cases}$	40½ 33¾ 53¼	9	91	72	54	5	91	$\begin{cases} 10\frac{1}{4} \\ 7\frac{3}{4} \end{cases}$	55	73
ĺ	31 50	93 10	41	531 541	9	93	41/2	531	6	93	61	55	Í	-		ľ	74 75
	15	9,5 10	43 44 713	55		-10											74 75 76 77 78 79 80 81 82 83
	$\frac{43\frac{1}{2}}{51}$	93	41 51	$\frac{54\frac{1}{2}}{54}$	$\frac{2\frac{1}{2}}{2}$	10	4½	54½									78
	(i) 1	91	$7\frac{3}{4}$	54	12 (¹)	91 5-7	41/2	461 30	8. (1)	9 <u>‡</u>	7 ³ / ₂	54 (1)					79 80
1	52	9		54					91	9	41/2	491	8	9		53	81 82
	50	93	43	53½								,					
	25	9	4½	491	12	9	41/2	491	4	9	73	52½	4	9	$\left\{\begin{array}{c} 7\frac{1}{2} \\ 9\frac{1}{2} \end{array}\right.$	$53\frac{1}{2}$	84
K	5 5	(1) 9	(1) 5	(1) 50½	6 9	(1) 9	(1)	36	3 4	9^{1}_{2}	(1) 5½	(1) 53	}	-		- -	85
1	2	9	41/2	491			.		14	9	4}	491	1	9	$\left\{\begin{array}{c}12\frac{1}{4}\\4\frac{1}{2}\end{array}\right.$	} 52 ³ ₄	86
1	8	9.5	${9\frac{1}{2} \atop 4\frac{7}{12}}$	} 52 ₄			 						 			ľ	87
	42	9	413	491								<i></i> .	2	9	{ 12	} 524	88
ł	11	9	41/2	491				İ					1	ÿ	$\begin{cases} 4\frac{1}{2} \\ 12 \end{cases}$	$\left\{\begin{array}{c} 52\frac{1}{2} \end{array}\right $	89
ı	29\$	9	4½ 4½ 4½	49½ 49½									6	9	44 74 74 75	523	90
Ì	16	9			13 13	8 82	41/2	441 343	181	9	41/2	491	3	9	71	52 1	91
1	35 44	9.7 01	472 5	52½ 52½	\ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \	83 83 91	4 ² / ₃	48 52½	}	••••		•••••	••••			•••••	92 93
	21 50	9½ 9½ 9½	5	52½ 52½ 49½													94 95
	29	92	3 4½	$\frac{32_{\frac{5}{2}}}{49_{\frac{1}{2}}}$					9	9	7₺	$52\frac{1}{2}$					96
	15½	9	71	$52\frac{1}{2}$	$\left\{ egin{array}{c} 21rac{1}{2} \ 9 \end{array} ight.$	7 7	4½	39½ 21	} 6	9	71/2	$52\frac{1}{2}$	••••				97
İ	40 41	.9 83	41 84 42 43 44 41 41	49½ 52½		••••	· · · · ·						9	9	7 <u>1</u>	521	98 99
	41 6½	9	41	$\frac{49\frac{7}{2}}{52}$	7	9	$4\frac{1}{2}$	491		••••	• • • • • •		2	9	71	521	100
K	14	91 83 91 91	43	48	}				•••••		•••••					•	101
Ì	33 3 11	91	42	52 52 49 1							· · · · · · ·					,	102 103
	9	$\begin{cases} 9^{2} \\ 91 \end{cases}$	41	$\frac{49\frac{1}{2}}{52}$	} 4	5	$4\frac{1}{2}$	$29\frac{1}{2}$	4	$\left\{egin{array}{c} 9 \ 9rac{1}{2} \end{array} ight.$	} 4½	52					104
	501 501	91 01	41	52 52						·••							105 106
	50° 51	91	41	52 52 52 52													107
1	33	912121212121212121212121212121212121212	412121212121212121212121212121212121212	52	12	91	41/2	52									108 109
	9 13	91 91	414	$\frac{52}{52}$::::::	:::::			110 111
	43		41	52													112
K	26 26	83 91	4½ 4½	475 52	}	- <i></i>											113
Ι`	40	9	41	491					8	91	$4\frac{1}{2}$	52					114
	15 42	$\frac{9\frac{1}{2}}{9\frac{1}{2}}$	41	52 52	9	9	41	491		:::::							115 11 6

WORKING HOURS AND EARNINGS OF WOMEN

INDIANAPOLIS—Continued.

Indi- vid- ual num- ber.	Age.	Conjugal condition.	Occupation.	Years of ex- peri- ence in present indus- try.	Weeks em- ployed during year.	Average weekly earn- ings.	Other of me	Earnings.	Weeks of un- employ- ment.
117 118 119 120	20 23 69 45	Single do Widowed .	Operatordo	1½ 2 1 23	$ 51\frac{1}{2} $ $ 52 $ $ 34\frac{1}{2} $ $ 50\frac{1}{2} $	\$3.94 5.00 4.53 8.00			17½
120	18	Single	Inspector, shirts Operator	25 211	50 ₂	9.83		 	$\begin{vmatrix} 1\frac{1}{2} \\ 2 \end{vmatrix}$
122	21	do	Pocket sewer	3	48 <u>1</u>	7.32			3 1
123	19	do	do	5	51½	12.26			3
124 125	42 33	do Married	Bander, shirts Forewoman	23 14	48 49	9.00 20.00			4 3
126	27	do	Coat maker	6	23½	12.00			281
127	39	do	Stock keeper	31/2	44	9.55			8
128	18	Single	Bundler	312	51 1	7.63			5 6
129	26	do	Scalloper	8	46	10.71	2	\$ 30.00	4
130	15	do	Inspector	3	18	3.85			34
131 132	20 43	do Widowed.	Operator, forewoman Buttonhole maker, fore-	2½ 11	48 45½	10.00 8.00			4 71
133	24	Married	woman. Hemstitcher	(¹)	28	10.00	ļ		24
134 135	15 20	Single	Cuff maker, gloves	104 112	$\frac{22\frac{1}{2}}{47\frac{1}{3}}$	4.16 5.50			29 <u>1</u> 42
136 137	19 19	do	doGlove makerdododo.	$\frac{1}{2}$	46 5 49	6.50 8.00			51 3
138	30	do	do	91	48 27	7.50			4
139 140	17 20	do Married	do	(¹) 3	27 47	8.00 9.00			25 5
141	15	Single	do	§ 2	5	4.00	8	37.00	39
142 143	17 19	do	Timekeeper	4	13 50	4.00 6.30	37	185.00	39 2 2 1
144	33	do	Forewoman	20	² 51	14.00			í
145 146	15 15	do	Glove inspector	11/2 11/2 2	48 35	4.13 3.00			17
147	14	do	Glove turner. Glove inspector.	12	24	5.00			28 2
148	17	do	Glove turner	$\frac{2}{2\frac{1}{2}}$	50 38	9.00 8.00			2 14
149 150	17 18	do	(llove inchester	3,5 8	38	8,00			14
151	35	do	Operator.	8	52 11	8.00 3.36	26	104.00	;
152 153	14 25	do	Operator Glove repairer Operator Glove operator Glove operator Glove piecer	21 21	13	10.50		104.00	15 39
154	15	do	Glove operator	3	71 481	$\frac{1.55}{5.50}$			443
155 156	19 17	do	Glove operator	21	45	7.50			$\frac{3\frac{1}{2}}{7}$
157	14	do	[do	$4\frac{1}{4}^{3}$	6	4.50			46
158 159	23 23	do	Glove piecer.		$\frac{50}{10\frac{1}{2}}$	8.00 6.29			$\frac{2}{41\frac{1}{2}}$
160	24	do	Glove piecerdo	24 11 18	12	6.38			40
161 162	15 28	do	Glove turner	1 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	50½ 49	4.00 10.50		• • • • • • • •	$\frac{1\frac{1}{2}}{3}$
163	14	do	Glove turner		40½	4.00			11½
164	19	do	Operator	1	48	6.07			4
165 166	14 14	do	Glove inspectordo	5 26 3	$\frac{10}{15\frac{1}{2}}$	2.58 4.00			42 364
167	14	do	Glove turner	3 7 7	81/2	3.00			431
168 169	22 17	do	Sample maker, gloves Cuff hemmer, gloves	7 3	50 47	6. 50 6. 50			2 5 1
170	21	do	Conar-machine operator	3 5	51	8.12	ļ		į
$\frac{171}{172}$	26 36	do	Operator	$\frac{5}{12}$	51 46	8. 12 (1)			1 6
172	30	·αο	Operator	14	40	(4)			. 0

1 Not reported.

EMPLOYED IN GARMENT FACTORIES—Continued.

INDIANAPOLIS—Continued.

N	ormal	seaso	n.		Dull s	eason	ı .		Busy	season	ı .	ov	ertim	iours d e perio	ds.	Inc
Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. ex- cep- tion- al day.	Hrs. per week.	Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. ex- cep- tion- al day.	Hrs. per week.	Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. ex- cep- tion- al day.	Hrs. per week.	Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. ex- cep- tion- al day.	Hrs. per week.	vid ua nun bei
39½ 40 30½ 32½ 41½ 8½	9 9 9 85 84 92	7 7 4 7 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4	52 52 49 52 48 52	4 4 }	9 9	7 7	52 52	8 8 4 18	9 9 9 85	7 7 7 7 7	52 52 52 52 52					1 1 1
$25\frac{1}{2}$	91	41/2	50 <u>3</u>	11	63	4}	40	10	91	4½	50%	2	9 <u>†</u>	$\begin{cases} \frac{4\frac{1}{2}}{10\frac{1}{2}} \end{cases}$	} 513	1
16 21 39 19½	91 83 95 95 95 81	$4\frac{1}{2}$ 8 $4\frac{7}{12}$ $4\frac{7}{12}$ $4\frac{7}{4}$	503 513 513 513	13 14	9 <u>1</u> 8	4½ 	461 504 48	223 13 10	9½ 8¾ 9√2	73 8 47 ₉	54 513 513					1 1
4 40	83 9	4\\\4\\\\	48 49½	,				4	9	{ 11 4½	} 51½]
43	83	41	48					ļ			, - 	8	8]	$\left\{ egin{array}{c} 11rac{3}{4} \ 4rac{1}{3} \end{array} ight.$	} 51	:
35	81	41/2	47					8	81	41/2	47	3	81	101	} 51	
16	9	41/2	40½					- <i>-</i>				2	9	$\left\{\begin{array}{c}10\frac{1}{4}\\4\frac{1}{2}\end{array}\right]$	51	
$\substack{ 48 \\ 45\frac{1}{2} }$	9 <u>1</u> 9 <u>1</u>	43 42	51 50½													
9	9	5 5	50 50					19	9	5	50					
22½ 47⅓ 46⁵	9 9	5 4½ 4½	491 491													1 1
49 48	999999999999999999999999999999999999999	41/2	491 491													
27 47	9	4½ 4½	49½ 49½							• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •						
49 48 27 47 5 13 50	9	4½ 4½	49 <u>1</u> 49 <u>1</u>													
51	9	4½ 4½	49½ 49½													
48 35 24 50 38 38 33½ 11 13 7½ 44½ 45 6 50 7½ 9	9	41	49½ 49½													
24 50	9	41	49½ 49½													
38	9	41/2	491 491			••••										
33 ½	9	41	49½ 49½	8 1	9	4½	491	10	9	4½ 	491					
$\frac{13}{7\frac{1}{2}}$	9 9	41/2	$\frac{49\frac{1}{2}}{49\frac{1}{2}}$						••••							
44½ 45	9	41	49½ 49½	4	9	41/2	49½		• • • • • •		•••••					
6 50	9	41 41	491 491					• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	.						- 	}
$\frac{7\frac{1}{2}}{9}$	9	41 41	491 491	3 3	9	4½ 4½ 4½ 4½	31½ 31½ 49½					<i>-</i>				1
23½ 49	9	41 41	491	13	9	$4\frac{1}{2}$	49½	14	9	$4\frac{1}{2}$	491					. !
40½ 41	9	41	49½ 49½ 49½	```					••••							1
4 7	83		48 491	} 3	9	41/2	49½	3	9	 4½	49 <u>1</u>				•••••]
151	84 9 9 9 9 9	41	491			· · · · · ·										1 1
15½ 8½ 50 47 30 30	9	41	49 1 49 1			· · · · · ·										.]
47	ı 9 İ	41	49½ 49½	9 9	9 9	 4½	49 <u>1</u> 49 <u>1</u>	12 12	9	41/4 41/2	491					.]

² Includes 1 week's vacation with pay.

WORKING HOURS AND EARNINGS OF WOMEN

INDIANAPOLIS—Continued.

Indi- vid- ual	A m	Conjugal		Years of ex- peri- ence in	Weeks em-	Aver- age weekly	Other o	employ- ent.	Weeks
num- ber.	Age.	condition.	Occupation.	present indus- try.	ployed during year.	earn- ings.	Weeks.	Earn- ings.	employ- ment.
173 174	20 31	Single	InspectorOperator	3 5	51 49	\$7.05 9.00			1 3
175 176	35 42	do	Collar-machine operator Operator	10 <u>1</u>	48½ 20	10. 00 5. 25			3½ 32
177 178	17 17	Single	Finisher	1.7	50 9	5.00 4.28	30	\$90.00	2 13
179 180	19 35	do Married	Operator	3 5	51 32	11.02 8.00			1 20
181	36	Widowed.		1	17	, 7.75			45
182 183	48 40	Single	Forewoman	8 23	51\\\49\\\	10.87 12.00			21
184	42	do	Operator	25	1 50%	9.00			1,3
185 186	23 35	do	Buttonhole maker Necktie maker	$\frac{4}{15}$	47½ 50	9.91 9.97			$\frac{4\frac{1}{2}}{2}$
187 188	40 34	do	InspectorFinisher	$\frac{5}{12}$	50 51	8.00 8.75			2 2 1
189	25	do	Buttonhole maker	6	481	7.11			31
190	18	do	Operator	13	49	$\begin{cases} 6.48 \\ 6.00 \end{cases}$			3
191	24	do	do	4	49}	9.00			21
192 193	22 35	do	FinisherOperator	3 1 3	45 50	9.00 8.50			7 2
194	23	Married	do	2.5	22	9.00	4	24.00	26
195 196	$\frac{21}{25}$	Single	Feller	73	47 46	5.00 6.00			5 6
197 198	38 25	do	Inspector	15	49 51	8.75 10.00			
198	35	do	do	î	501	8.00			11.
200 201	34 25	Divorced Single	Inspector	$\frac{61}{7}$	51 52	11.78 8.50			1
202	37	do	Button sewer, machine	101	49	11.50			3
$\frac{203}{204}$	40 29	Widowed . Single	Operator	4.2	36 47	11. 50 8. 00			16 5
205	50	do	Sleeve feller	20	52	7.00			
206	24	do Married	Operatordo		50½ 48	8. 50 14. 25			11/2
207 208	20 32	Divorced			28	5.00	16½	72. 50	4 7 <u>1</u>
209	19	Single	Coat maker	11	46	6.80	4	32.00	1 2
$\frac{210}{211}$	30 30	do	Presser	713	29	6.00 10.00			48 23
212	29	Widowed.	do Operator Coat maker	4,.	44	9.50			l 8
$\frac{213}{214}$	21 19	Single	Coat makerdo	11 12 14	$\frac{463}{353}$	6.81 7.36	4 16	32.00 72.00	1 1
215	21	do	Folderdo		13	6.00			39
$\frac{216}{217}$	19 32	do	Operator	12 ¹ 13	13 44	6.00			39 8
218	21 26	do	Body maker, coats	1½ 1	50 121	8. 00 5. 00			2 39½
$\frac{219}{220}$	26	Married	Operator	$2\frac{1}{2}$	27	7.00			25
$\frac{221}{222}$	28 35	Widowed.	Collar maker Operator	4	33 50	11. 58 8. 73	. 		19
223	29	Single	Coot mal-on	19	44}	11. 10			71/2
$\frac{224}{225}$	26 40	do	Bander, overalls. Bander, shirts.	. 4	48 49	7.45 8.60			4 3
$\frac{225}{226}$	33	do	Inspector	5	50	10.54			3 2
227	44	Widowed.	do	13	44	12.57			8
228	28	Single	Feller	9	43	10.25	·		9
229 230	28 25	Divorced	Banderdo	7½ 4	$\frac{51}{42}$	11.00 9.29			1 10
231	18	Single	Strap maker	1	50	8.00			2
232	26	do	Operator	9	48	8.46			43

¹ Not reported.

EMPLOYED IN GARMENT FACTORIES—Continued.

INDIANAPOLIS—Continued.

N	ormal	seaso	n.			season	g hours		Busy	season		Worl	king l ertim	ours d e perio	luring ds.	Ir
Wks. em- oloy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. ex- cep- tion- al day.	Hrs. per week.	Wks, em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. ex- cep- tion- al day.	Hrs. per week.	Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. ex- cep- tion- al day.	Hrs. per week.	Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. ex- cep- tion- al day.	Hrs. per week.	v u nu b
41 37	9	4	49	10	7½ 8	4	411									-
37 48½	9 9 9 9 83	4	49 49	12	8	4	44									l
10	9	4	49	Ì						1	1	l				
10 40	83	414	48 49	10		4	44							1		
2	9	4	49	10 7	8 8	4	44									
30	9	4	49	8	8	4	44		[-							
32 17	9	4	49 49													1
32 17 47 34 50 44 44			48		.			4	83	41/2	483					l
341 501	8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8	41 41 41 41 41 41 41	48½ 48	153	83	41/2	484						• - •			ļ
443	8	41	48	3	83	41	391									ļ
50 42	8	41	48	<i></i>			l . .									
42 51	82	44	48 48	4	63	41	38		• • • • •							
251	83	41	48	f 9	81 81	4 1 41	451	12	83	41	48					
			48	1 2	83	41	48	} "	0.2	-1	-20					
9 40	(1)	41 (1) 44 44 44 44 44 44 44 44 44	(1)	}												
$49\frac{1}{2}$	83	41	(1) 48													
45 50	82	44	48 48				• • • • • •						• • • • •			
50 22 39	83	41	48													
39	83	44	48 48	8	83	41 41 41 41	48			ļ -			• • • •		-	
(1) 39	83	44	48	(¹) 10	83 83 83 83 83	41	48 48									
1) 50½	8	42	48	(1)	83.	41	48									
$\frac{501}{96}$	83	41	48	25		;;-	40						· · • · ·			!
26° 49½	83	41	48 48	23 21	83	41 41	48									
49	84	41	48										-			
36 47	83	41	48 48		• • • • •				• • • • •	• • • • •						
28	83	4	48	11	83	41	48	13	83	41	48					
47 28 50½ 39	83	4	48						• • • • •					•••••		
9 28	82	44	48						• • • • •	• • • • • •						
28	83	4	48 48	:		· · • · ·			-							
43 4	83	41	48	3	83		35									
29	83	41	48													
29 22 43 28 13	81	41	48 48	22	874 874 874	41	48 35		•			• • • • • •	• • • • •		•••••	
$28\frac{3}{2}$	82	41	48	3 7	83	41	391									
13	83	41	48						• • • • •							
13 32	83	41	48 48			· · · · ·		12	83	41	48		••••			
50 12½	8	41	48													
$\frac{12\frac{1}{2}}{27}$	St. C. C. C. C. C. C. C. C. C. C. C. C. C.	4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4	48 48						• • • • •		•••••					
26	83	41	48	7		41	48								:::::	
39	83	43	48	7	83		$\frac{343}{343}$	4	82	42/3	48					
27 [*] 26 39 29 39	83 92	42	48 48	15 <u>1</u> 9	8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8		344									
424	84	43	48	61	83		343 343		:::::						:::::	
37	83	43	48	9.	83		343 343 { 343	4	82	43	48					
35	83	43	48	$\begin{cases} 3 \\ 6 \end{cases}$	} 8 3	43	$\begin{cases} 34\frac{2}{3} \\ 48 \end{cases}$	}								
	02	42	40	12	{ ,,	42	34%	{	İ			Ì	- 1		1	
211	82	42/3	48	\ 9	83	43	1 48	}·····	• • • • •			•••••	• • • • •			
34 27	82 82 82 83	42 42 43	48 48	17 15	82 82		343 343								• • • • • •	
50	88	42	48													
234	82	43	48	$\left\{egin{array}{c} 15 \ 93 \end{array} ight]$	83		343	ì i	1	- 1	1	1	- 1	1]	

WORKING HOURS AND EARNINGS OF WOMEN

INDIANAPOLIS-Concluded.

Individ- uid- ual num- ber.		Conjugal		Years of ex- peri-	Weeks	Aver-	Other e	employ- nt.	Weeks
num-	Age.	condition.	Occupation.	ence in present indus- try.	ployed during year.	weekly earn- ings.	Weeks.	Earn- ings.	employ- ment.
233 234	20 25	Separated.	Operator	4	391 501				121
235 236	21 30	do	Feller	3	50 ² 491	5.80	<i></i>		22
237	40	Widowed.	Operatordo	4	481	4.84			1½ 2 2½ 3½ 2% 3%
238 239	29 21	Single	Assistant forewoman	7 1 1	49\frac{1}{3} 47\frac{1}{6}	5.99			23 38
240 241	24 (1)	do	OperatorButtonhole maker	8 27	40½ 49				11½ 3
242 243	41 40	Married Widowed	Pocket maker Operator	6½ 3	29 49	9.00			20
244	22	Single	Buttonhole maker	8	49	9.29			3
245 246	27 23	do	Operatordo	5	45 50	9.61 8.04			7 2
247	25	do	-		50	8.88			2
248 249	35 23	do Married	Finisher	20 4	$\frac{48\frac{1}{2}}{23}$	11.04 9.00	26	\$208.00	31/2
250 251	38 15	do Single	Operator Marker	1	48 11				4 4
252	24	do	Bookkeeper		2 52	16.00			
253	23	do	Joiner and hemmer		42	6.98		· • · · · • · •	1
254 255	31 44	Married Widowed.	Operator	15 5	49 51	5.50 9.00			3 1
256	23	Single	Buttonhole maker	8	491	11.76			23
257 258	17 35	do Married	OperatorShoulder baster	(³) 3¾	52 39	6.00			13
258 259	(1)	Single	Vest maker	8	48	6.00			4

TERRE HAUTE.

1	34	Single	Buttonhole maker	153	37	\$12.00		· • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	15
2	34	do	do	171	$46\frac{1}{2}$	12.00		•••••	51/2
3	30	do	Operator	1	171	6.32			341
4	17	do	Presser	2	451	3.00			61
5 .	29	do	Operator	9	20	8.00	6	\$24.00	26
6 7 8 9	57 18 21 31 60	do do	dododododododo	3	52 17½ 15½ 41 52	6.91 8.00 5.00 8.00 4.91			34½ 36½ 11
11	40	Widowed.		-	111	7.00	22	200.00	181
12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	23 17 52 35 22 27 18 25 30 38	SingledoWidoweddodododododoseparated.SingleMarried	Feller Operator Finisher Pants maker Operator do Pocket maker Operator General worker	1 1 2 2 2 2 2 1 1 1 2 2 2 2 2 1 3 3 4 1 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 3 3 4 1 3 2 2 2 2 2 3 3 4 1 3 2 2 2 2 3 3 4 1 3 2 2 2 2 3 3 3 4 1 3 2 2 2 2 3 3 3 4 1 3 2 2 2 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3	47 481 461 50 4 7 13 31 421 8	4.50 7.51 5.00 7.00 5.00 3.75 6.50 7.00 6.00	35	103.00 30.00	3½ 5½ 2 13 45 33 21 9½ 44
22	15	Single	Operator	3	34	5.50			18

¹ Not reported.

² Including 2 weeks' vacation with pay.

EMPLOYED IN GARMENT FACTORIES—Continued.

INDIANAPOLIS—Concluded.

			Regul	ar wo	rking	hours,					Worl	ing h	ours d	uring	
Norma	i seaso	n.		Dull s	eason	١.		Busy	season	•	vo	ertim	e perio	ds.	Indi- vid-
Wks. Hrs. usu- ploy- ed. day.	cep-	Hrs. per week.	Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day	Hrs. ex- cep- tion- al day.	Hrs.	Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. ex- cep- tion- al day.	Hrs. per week.	Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. ex- cep- tion- al day.	Hrs. per week.	ual num- ber.
22½ 88 46½ 88 23 88 46½ 88 47 4 88 47 47 4 88 47 47 4 88 47 47 4 88 47 47 4 88 47 47 4 88 47 47 4 88 47 47 4 88 47 47 4 88 47 47 4 88 47 47 4 88 47 47 4 88 47 47 4 88 47 47 4 88 47 47 4 88 47 47 4 88 47 4 87 4 8 4 8	4 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	48 48 48 48 48 48 48 48 48 48 48 48 47,7 46,1 42,1 40,1 (1)	17 4 27 15½ 25 	Section Sect	4 4 4 4 4 4 4 1 (1) (1) (1)	314 344 344 314 314 314 48 48 344 48 35 462 (1) (1)	13 18 18 19 25	8½ 8½ 9¼ (1)	5½ 7½ (1)	48 47 47 (1) (1)					2332 2344 23532 2366 2377 2388 2400 2422 2432 2444 2454 247 250 251 252 253 254 255 256 257 258 259 259 259 259 259 259 259 259 259 259

TERRE HAUTE.

ī		ı —	<u> </u>	i	T		[Ī	1	i	· · · · ·	Ι	i			
	35	10	8	58		¦		 -	ļ				2	$12\frac{1}{2}$	$\left\{ egin{array}{c} 8 \\ 10 \end{array} \right.$	} 65½	1
	$33\bar{7}$	10	8	58	11	9	5	50					2	10	$\begin{cases} 8 \\ 12\frac{1}{4} \end{cases}$	63	2
	16	10	5	55									11/2	12½	$\begin{cases} 5 \\ 10 \end{cases}$	$62\frac{1}{2}$	3
K	$\frac{19}{25\frac{1}{2}}$	9 10	$\frac{81}{5}$	53½ 55	},								1	121	$\begin{cases} 5\\10 \end{cases}$	$62\frac{1}{2}$	4
ľ	19	10	5	55									1	121	$\begin{cases} 5\\10 \end{cases}$	$62\frac{1}{2}$	5
	39 151	10½ 9½	8½ 5	61 521	13	101	5	57½	ļ				2	113		59 1	6
١	$15\frac{1}{2}$ $15\frac{1}{2}$	10	8	52½ 58	<u>-</u>								.	114			6 7 8 9 10
	34 13	$\frac{10}{9_{2}^{1}}$	8 8 8	58 55½	7 39	9 10	5 5	50 45									10
K	112	$9\frac{1}{2}$	8 81	55½ 57	}												11
1	40	91	81 81 82	56 55½	7 12	8½ 01	4 5	46½ 52½									12
l	36½ 36½	$9\frac{1}{2}$	8 8 8	$52\frac{1}{2}$	10 8	81 91 91 91	5 5 5	$52\frac{7}{2}$									14
	42 ⁻ 4 7	91	8	$55\frac{1}{2}$ $55\frac{1}{2}$	°	92		521									16
l	13	$9\frac{1}{2}$	8 8 8	55½ 55½						[17 18
l	$\frac{19\frac{1}{2}}{33}$	91221 9122 9122 9122 9122 9122 9122 912	8	$55\frac{1}{2}$ $54\frac{2}{3}$	$\frac{11\frac{1}{2}}{9\frac{1}{2}}$	$\frac{9\frac{1}{2}}{8\frac{1}{3}}$	5	45 46 3				· · · · · · ·					12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21
	33 [*] 8	9		54	·····		· · ·								72		
	34	91	72	$53\frac{1}{2}$									12	91	$\left\{\begin{array}{c} 7\frac{2}{3} \\ 9\frac{5}{12} \end{array}\right.$	533	. 22

3 Over one year and less than two.

66172°—Bull. 160—14——12

WORKING HOURS AND EARNINGS OF WOMEN TERRE HAUTE—Concluded.

Indi- vid-				Years of ex- peri-	Weeks	Aver-		emplo y- ent.	Weeks
ual num- ber.	Age.	Conjugal condition.	Occupation,	ence in present indus- try.	ployed	age weekly earn- ings.	Weeks.	Earn- ings.	of un- employ- ment.
23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37 38 39 40	26 24 27 60 24 22 17 29 40 26 20 25 21 24 23 19 23	dododododododo	Finisher Operator do Strap maker Operator do Go Belt-strap maker Inspector Finisher Operator Oberator Operator Operator Button sewer, machine	11 2 2 5 4 5 2 5 4 5 3 3 3 3 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5	13 34 51 48 12 1	\$10.00 10.00 8.00 4.75 7.04 4.50 4.75 7.26 4.50 8.00 6.53 5.50 4.00 10.00 7.55	14	\$182.00	1 38 23 12 21 11 36 39 18 1 4 36 25 25 14 36 36 21 14

EVANSVILLE.

1	23	do	Waist maker	10	40	\$10.05			12
2	25	do	do	15	39 1	7.50	<u> </u>		121
3	17	do	Strap maker	3	15	3.25	35	\$13 0. 2 5	2
4	30	do	Skirt draper	12	44	9.00	ļ		8
5	17	do	Operator	4	50				2
6	21	do	Sleeve maker	7	35	6.06	·		17
7	25	do	Waist maker	10	40				12
8		do	Learner	13	43				9
9	27	do	Lining maker	12*	37	10.00			15
10	40	Widowed.	Hemmer	5	50	7.00			1 2
:						1	,		: -
11	21	Single	Embroiderer	21/2	41				11
12	21	do	Operator	õ	40	5.39			12
13	18	do	Stock checker	1	49	7.06			3
14	30	do	Waist maker	10	44	10.42			1 8 1
15	22	do	Skirt maker	8	40	8.61			12
16	21	do	Operator	3+	13	7.50	39	346.50	
17			do	ĭ*	13	3.32	38	190.00	i
18	19	do	do	5	31	7.50			21
19	35	do	Coat maker	41/2	37	13.00			15
20	18	do	Sleeve hand	4	42	3.70			10
21	22	do	Operator	6	41 1	6.00			101
22	20	do	General worker	6	49	8.00	l		3
23	29	do	Designer	11	43	12.00			9
24	31	do	Skirt hanger	6	36	7.50			16
25		do	Stock girl and packer	5	39	5.50			l îš l
26		do	Head coat maker	14	46	12.00			
27		do	Skirt maker	7	36	7.18			16
28	21	do	Dressmaker	6	44	7.00			
29	29	do	Bookkeeper	5	41	10.00			
30		do	Operator.	12	41	7.50			
31		do	Finisher		36	7.34			
			Finisher						
32		do	Forewoman	6	39	19.62			13
33	23	do	Stenographer	6	41	7.00			11 2
34		do	Operator		50				2
35	35	do	do	15	37	5.03	1 13	78.00	2

Not reported.

EMPLOYED IN GARMENT FACTORIES—Continued.

TERRE HAUTE-Concluded.

	_			Regul	ar wo	rking	hours.					Worl	cing h	ours	luring	
N	ormal	seaso	n.		Dull s	eason	•		Busy	season	•	ov	ertim	e perio	ds.	Indi- vid-
Wks. em- ploy- ed:	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. ex- cep- tion- al day.	Hrs. per week.	Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. ex- cep- tion- al day.	Hrs. per week.	Wks. em- ploy- ed.	usu-	Hrs. ex- cep- tion- al day.	Hrs. per week.	Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. ex- cep- tion- al day.	Hrs. per week.	ual num ber.
39 38 14 17 36	9 9 9 9	812 812 812 812 812 713 713	53½ 53½ 53½ 53½ 53½	13 13 12 4	9 9	4½ 4½ 4½ 4½	49½ 49½ 49½ 49½ 49½									2 2 2 2 2 2
31 35 16 13	9	7½ 7½ 5	52½ 52½ 52½ 52½	6	9	41/2	491			•••••						22 23 33
21 38½ 39 15½ 12½	95 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8	71 61 41 7	51 51 50 48	13 12½ 9	81 81 81 82	33 42 4	47½ 47 46½			••••						3
12½ 37 34 35 37½ 36	81 81 72 8 71	41 62 4 6	48 47 46 1 45 <u>1</u> 44 43 <u>1</u>	10 10 3 10	8 81 71 8 71	4 41 33 4 4	44 46 2 42 <u>1</u> 44 41 <u>3</u>			•••••				•••••	•••••	3 3 3 4 4

EVANSVILLE.

39	91		57			 			.	[. .		1	121	5	75	1
381	91		57			 			-			1	${12\frac{1}{3} \atop 9\frac{1}{3}}$	}	66	2
8	101	5	57 1	6	101	5	571		 	 		1	13	5 10½	65	3
34	91		57	 			 	6	91		5 7	4	${12 \choose 9\frac{1}{2}}$	}	64 <u>1</u>	4
17	10	5	55	24	9	5	35	9	123	{ 10 5	631		 .]	5
32 23 40 34	91 91 91 91 81		57 57 57 57	5	9½		57	3 6 3 3	9½ 9½ 9½ 9½ 8½	12½ 12½ 12	63 57 62½ 62 50	6	91	121	621	6 7 8 9 10
17		$7\frac{1}{2}$	50	7	81	71/2	50	25		$7\frac{1}{2}$	r)s	1	101	101	62	
18 38	9 <u>1</u> 9 <u>1</u>		57 57	11	91/2		57	11	91	$\left\{ egin{array}{c} 12^{2} \\ 10^{3} \end{array} \right.$	601	2	9 1 91	$\left\{ \begin{array}{c} 11\frac{7}{2} \\ 12 \\ 11\frac{7}{2} \end{array} \right.$	$\begin{cases} 61\frac{1}{2} \\ 61\frac{1}{2} \end{cases}$	11 12
45	9	8	53					4	111	{ 9 8	} 601				022	13
28	9 <u>1</u> 9 <u>1</u>	ļ	57	4	93		57	10	91 91		57	2	91	111	60½	
34 13	10		57 60					6	91	121	60	•••••	••••			14 15 16 17
13 { 18 13	10 10	9 9 5	59 59 55													
13	10	5	55	}	· • • · ·							•••••	• • • • •	••••	•••••	18
20	91		57		••••		•••••	15	91	•••••	57	2	91	111	58½	19
21	91		57				••••	9	91/2	• • • • • •	57	12	110	} 10	581	20
401	91/2		57		••••			ļ. 	••••			1	$\begin{cases} 9\frac{1}{2} \\ 10 \end{cases}$	10	$58\frac{1}{2}$	21
(1) 43	91 93 93 91 91 91 91		57 58		• • • · ·		• • • • • •	4	91	101	574	•••••	•••••			22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35
36	93		58													24
32	91		57					3 24	9½ 9½	·	57	4	91	10	571	25
36 32 18 32	92		58 58 57 57 57 57			••••		24	92	•••••	57	4	9 <u>1</u> 9 <u>1</u>	10 10	571 571	26 27
44			57							••••	1-22					28
21 28 22 32	9 9 1	••••	54 55½	·	94	••••	55 1	20 4	9½ 9¼	9	56 554	8	 9‡		55¥	29 30
22	9		54	1 2	9*		54	6	9		55½ 54	6	91	$10\frac{1}{2}$	551	31
32 19 1	9		54 551	61	91	• • • • •	55 1	7 15	9	97	55 ½ 55 ½		• • • • •		····-	32
42 37	10	5	55 55	8	9	5	42		- J							34
1 37	10	1 5 I	55	ا ا			- -	-	l		l		.	ļ	J	35

WORKING HOURS AND EARNINGS OF WOMEN **EVANSVILLE**—Concluded.

Indi- vid-		Conjugal		Years of ex- peri-	Weeks	Aver-		employ- nt.	Weeks
ual num- ber.	Age.	condition.	Occupation.	ence in present indus- try.	ployed during year.	weekly earn- ings.	Weeks.	Earn- ings.	of un- employ- ment.
36 37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44	20 23 19 28 34 40 25 40 15	Singledodo Singledodododododododododododo	Operator. Collar machine operator. Seamer Dressmaker Waist maker Forewoman Operator do Errand girl Checker	2 61	42 42 44 41 <u>1</u> 40 50 45 26 30 <u>1</u>	\$5.00 6.00 4.93 9.00 8.00 8.25 8.50 4.50 2.55 6.00		\$5.85 5.85	8½ 8½ 810½ 12 2 7 26 21½ 8

FORT WAYNE.

1										
3 25 .do	1	28	Single	Forewoman	10	1 52	\$10.00			[]
4 44 do Body maker, waists 8 49 7.73 3 5 27 do Head sample maker, waists 9 49 7.28 3 6 28 do Body maker, waists 9 50 8.73 2 7 31 do do 12 50½ 7.41 1½ 8 29 do	2	50	do	Operator, gloves	30	49	8.14		- -	3
5 27 .do. Head sample maker, waists. 9 49 7.28 3 6 28 .do. Body maker, waists. 9 50 8.73 2 7 31 .do. .do. 12 50\frac{1}{3} 7.41 11\frac{1}{3} 8 29 .do. .Operator, gloves. 4 42 11.50 9 9 39 .do. .Body work, waists. 15 47\frac{1}{2} 8.00 4\frac{1}{2} 10 37 .do. .Head sample maker, waists. 21 49 8.82 3 11 20 Married. .Operator, gloves. .5\frac{1}{1}\$ 47 5.00 .5 12 40 Single. Buttonhole maker. 17 49 8.90 3 13 30 .do. .Forewoman. 13 252 10.00 14 29 .do. .Buttonhole maker. 17 45 7.55 7 <	3	25	do	go	10	46	7.85			6
6 28 do Body maker, waists 9 50 8.73 2 7 31 do do 12 50½ 7.41 1½ 8 29 do Operator, gloves 4 42 11.50 9 9 39 do Body work, waists 15 47½ 8.00 4½ 10 37 do Head sample maker, waists 21 49 8.82 3 11 20 Married Operator, gloves 5½ 47 5.00 5 12 40 Single Buttonhole maker 17 49 8.90 3 13 30 do Timekeeper 15 252 10.00 14 29 do Forewoman 13 352 12.00 15 32 do Buttonhole maker 17 45 7.55 7 16 31 do Operator 14½ <	4	44	do	Body maker, waists	8	49	7.73			3
7 31 do do 12 50\frac{1}{3} 7.41 1\frac{1}{8} 8 29 do Operator, gloves 4 42 11.50 9 9 39 do Body work, waists 15 47\frac{1}{2} 8.00 4\frac{1}{2} 10 37 do Head sample maker, waists 21 49 8.82 3 11 20 Married Operator, gloves 5\frac{1}{1} 47 5.00 5 12 40 Single Buttonhole maker 17 49 8.90 3 13 30 do Timekeeper 15 252 10.00 14 29 do Forewoman 13 352 12.00 15 32 do Buttonhole maker 17 45 7.55 7 16 31 do Operator 14\frac{1}{2} 51 6.50 1 17 24 do Operator, gloves 5\frac{1}{2} 48 9.50 4	5	27	do	Head sample maker, waists.	9	49	7.28			3
8 29 do. Operator, gloves. 4 42 11.50 9 9 39 do. Body work, waists 15 47½ 8.00 4½ 10 37 do. Head sample maker, waists 21 49 8.82 3 11 20 Married Operator, gloves. 5½ 47 5.00 5 12 40 Single. Buttonhole maker. 17 49 8.90 3 13 30 do. Timekeeper 15 252 10.00 14 29 do. Forewoman 13 252 12.00 15 32 do. Buttonhole maker. 17 45 7.55 7 16 31 do. Operator. 14½ 51 6.50 1 17 24 do. do 8 45 9.00 7 16 31 do. do do 7 4 19 20 do.	6	28	do	Body maker, waists	9	50	8.73			2
9 39do. Body work, waists 15	7	31	do	do	12	503	7.41			13
10 37 do	8	29	do	Operator, gloves	4	42	11.50	.	<i></i> .	9
11 20 Married Operator, gloves 511 47 5.00 5 12 40 Single Buttonhole maker 17 49 8.90 3 13 30 .do Timekeeper 15 252 10.00 14 29 .do Forewoman 13 352 12.00 15 32 .do Buttonhole maker 17 45 7.55 7 16 31 .do Operator 141 51 6.50 1 17 24 .do Operator, gloves 51 48 9.50 7 18 22 .do .do Sove turner 5 43 8.25 9 20 .do Glove turner 5 43 8.25 9 20 .do Glove turner 5 43 8.25 9 20 .do Glove turner 5 43 8.25 9 20 .do Glove turner 5 43 8.25 9 21 29 .do .do Glove turner 5 6.25 19 895 8 23 30 .do .do .do 13 50 8.75 22 24 17 .do Bundler, gloves 5 48 8.00 44 25 21 .do Operator, gloves 5 48 8.00 44 26 19 .do Operator, gloves 5 48 8.00 44 27 38 .do Operator, gloves 3 48 8.57 42 28 27 .do .do .do .do .do .do .do .do .do .do	9	39	do	Body work, waists	15	471	8.00			41/2
12	10	37	do	Head sample maker, waists .	21	49	8.82			3
13 30 .do Timekeeper 15 2 52 10.00 14 29 .do Forewoman 13 2 52 12.00 15 32 .do Buttonhole maker 17 45 7.55 7 16 31 .do Operator 14½ 51 6.50 1 17 24 .do .do 8 45 9.00 4 18 22 .do .do 8 45 9.00 7 19 20 .do .Glove turner .5 43 8.25 9 20 30 .do .Inspector, gloves .3 47 8.50 .5 21 29 .do .Operator, gloves .11 47 8.50 .5 21 29 .do .Operator, gloves .11 47 8.50 .5 21 29 .do .Operator, gloves .11 47 8.50 .5 22 16 .do .do .13 50 8.75 19 \$95 8 23 30 .do .do .do .do .do .do .do .do	11	20	Married	Operator, gloves	51 ¹ 3	47	5.00			5
14 29 do Forewoman 13 * 52 12.00	12	40	Single	Buttonhole maker	17	49	8. 90			3
15 32 .do	13	30	ģo	Timekeeper	15	2 52	10.00		•••••	
16 31 do Operator 14½ 51 6.50 1 17 24 do Operator, gloves 5½ 48 9.50 4 18 22 do do 8 45 9.00 7 19 20 do Glove turner 5 43 8.25 9 20 30 do Inspector, gloves 3 47 8.50 5 21 29 do Operator, gloves 11 45 6.82 9 22 16 do do 4 25 6.25 19 895 8 23 30 do do 13 50 8.75 2 2 48 7.75 2 2 44 7.75 4 4 25 21 do Operator, gloves 5 48 8.00 4 4 25 49 4 4 4 4 4 <t< td=""><td>14</td><td>29</td><td>do</td><td>Forewoman</td><td>13</td><td>3 52</td><td>12.00</td><td></td><td></td><td></td></t<>	14	29	do	Forewoman	13	3 52	12.00			
17 24 .do	15	32	do	Buttonhole maker	17	45	7.55			7
18 22 do	16	31	do		- 1	51				_
19 20 do. Glove turner 5 43 8.25 9 9 20 30 do. Inspector, gloves 3 47 8.50 5 5 7 22 16 do. Operator, gloves 11 45 6.82 7 7 22 16 do. do.					51/2					
25 21 do. Operator, gloves 5 48 8.00 4					8					7
25 21 do. Operator, gloves 5 48 8.00 4							8. Z0			9
25 21 do. Operator, gloves 5 48 8.00 4				Operator gloves					• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	2 1
25 21 do. Operator, gloves 5 48 8.00 4				do Operator, gioves					\$05	ا ہ
25 21	22			do	138					2
25 21 do. Operator, gloves 5 48 8.00 4	24			Rundler gloves						4
27 38 do. Operator, gloves. 8 48 8.57 4 28 25 do. do. do. 4 47 8.50 5 29 27 do. do. 5 47 9.50 5 30 22 do. Sample maker, gloves. 7 52 7.02 31 25 Separated Operator, gloves. 12 22 8.64 30 32 28 Single. do. 10 22 (4) 30 33 18 do. Gloves, turner. 4 49 4.19 3 34 33 do. Operator, gloves. 5 36 10.85 16 35 26 do. do. 9 44 10.00 8				Operator gloves	5					4
27 38 do. Operator, gloves. 8 48 8.57 4 28 25 do. do. do. 4 47 8.50 5 29 27 do. do. 5 47 9.50 5 30 22 do. Sample maker, gloves. 7 52 7.02 31 25 Separated Operator, gloves. 12 22 8.64 30 32 28 Single. do. 10 22 (4) 30 33 18 do. Gloves, turner. 4 49 4.19 3 34 33 do. Operator, gloves. 5 36 10.85 16 35 26 do. do. 9 44 10.00 8	26			Inspector, gloves	3	43	6, 50			9
28 25 do do 4 47 8.50 5 29 27 do do 5 47 9.50 5 30 22 do Sample maker, gloves 7 52 7.02 31 25 Separated Operator, gloves 12 22 8.64 30 32 28 Single	27			Operator, gloves	8	48	8, 57			4
29 27 do. do. 5 47 9.50 5 30 22 do. Sample maker, gloves. 7 52 7.02 31 25 Separated. Operator, gloves. 12 22 8.64 30 32 28 Single. do. 10 22 (4) 30 33 18 .do. Gloves, turner. 4 49 4.19 3 34 33 .do. Operator, gloves. 5 36 10.85 16 35 26 .do. .do. 9 44 10.00 8	28			do	4	47	8.50			5
30 22 .do. Sample maker, gloves 7 52 7.02	29	27	do	.do	5		9.50			5
32 28 Single do 10 22 (1) 30 33 18 do Gloves, turner 4 49 4.19 3 34 33 do Operator, gloves 5 36 10.85 16 35 26 do do 9 44 10.00 8	30		do	Sample maker, gloves	7					
32 28 Single do 10 22 (1) 30 33 18 do Gloves, turner 4 49 4.19 3 34 33 do Operator, gloves 5 36 10.85 16 35 26 do do 9 44 10.00 8	31	25	Separated.	Operator, gloves	12	22				
34 33do Operator, gloves	32	28	Single	do	10	22	(4)			30
35 20 do 9 44 10.00 8	33									_
35 26 do			do	Operator, gloves						
36 17 do		26	do	do	9					8
	36	17	do	Checker out.	21	47	6.87	1		. 5 1

Including 2 weeks' vacation with pay.
 Including 3½ weeks with pay (½ week, flood).

EMPLOYED IN GARMENT FACTORIES—Continued.

EVANSVILLE—Concluded.

				Regul	ar wo	rking	hours.	•				Worl	ing h	ours d	luring	
N	ormal	seaso	n.	1	Dull s	eason			Busy	season	•	ov	ertim	e perio	ds.	Indi- vid-
Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. ex- cep- tion- al day.	Hrs.	Wks. em- ploy- ed.	usu- al day.	Hrs. ex- cep- tion- al day.	week.	Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. ex- cep- tion- al day.	Hrs. per week.	Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. ex- cep- tion- al day.	Hrs. per week.	ual num- ber.
42 42 36 37½ 40	10 10 10 9 9	5 5 5	55 55 55 54 54	8	9	5	45	2	9		54	2	9	91	55	36 37 38 39 40
50 45 26 8 18½ 44	9½ 9½ 9½ 8½ 8¾	41 42 42 41 41 41	52 52 52 51 48 491	} 4	8½		51									41 42 43 44 44

FORT WAYNE.

	44	10	5	55					7	10	5	55	1	12	5	65	1
1	31	10	5	55	14	9	5	50	4	123	$\begin{cases} 10 \\ 5 \end{cases}$	631				·····	2
1	26	10	5	55	16	9	5	50	4	121	10 5	621		'			3
	26	91	41/2	52	{ 7 4	8 9 1	4 41	44 52 ·	} 11	91	81	56	1	111	$\begin{cases} 9\frac{1}{2} \\ 8\frac{1}{2} \end{cases}$	62	4
	23	91	41/2	52	17	8	41/2	441	3	91	81/2	56	6	111	91	62	5
		-	-	53 1	11	81	4	451	3	121	{ 41 9 4 4 1 9 4 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	} 603			1 82	,	6
	36	93	41		i		Ì	-	1	-		י יו			t 01		
	43	91	41/2	52	41/3	8	4	44	1	91/2	41/2	52	2 2	12 10	$\left\{\begin{array}{c}9\frac{1}{4}\\4\frac{1}{2}\\9\end{array}\right.$	59½ 59	7 8
	41	10	5	55		91	41/2		k		;;-		l ²	10	9	99	
	$26\frac{1}{2}$	93	41/2	52	{ 8 8	8	4 4 4	52 44	} 5	111	$\left\{\begin{array}{c}4\frac{1}{2}\\9\frac{1}{2}\end{array}\right.$	} 58					9
	31	91	41/2	52	14	8	4	44	4	111	41 91	58					10
K	32 15	}10	$\begin{cases} 4 \\ 8 \end{cases}$	54 58	}												11
1	35	91	41	50 1	12	83	4	471					2	113	{ 91 41	} 57#	12
1	40	91	41	50 2	8	73	4	423	4	111) 9 <u>1</u>	} 564		J	1 43	,	13
1		1 -	-	_	1	_	ļ.	-	-	_	{ 91 41 91 41	li -					14
	42	91	41	50½	7	72	33	421/2	3	111	41	} 56 <u>₹</u>					
	34	91	41	50 <u>}</u>	10	8	33	433					1	103	$\left\{\begin{array}{c} 9\frac{1}{4}\\ 4\frac{1}{4} \end{array}\right.$	55	15
]	51	{10 9	5 41	55 49 1	}			ļ									16
	48	Ίŏ		1 222	r	ļ		l	ĺ	l							17
1	45			55													
1		10	5	55 ⁻ 55													18
	43	10 10	5	55 55											 		17 18 19
	43 47	10 10 10	5 5	55 55 55													18 19 20
	43 47	10 10 10 10	5 5 5 5	55 55 55 55	8	9	5	50									18 19 20 21
	43 47 37 25	10 10 10 10 10	5 5 5 5	55 55 55 55 55	8	9	5	50									18 19 20 21 22
	43 47 37 25 50	10 10 10 10 10 10	5 5 5 5 5 5	55 55 55 55 55	8	9	5	50									18 19 20 21 22 23
	43 47 37 25 50 48	10 10 10 10 10 10 10	5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5	55 55 55 55 55 55 55	8	9	5	50									18 19 20 21 22 23 24
	43 47 37 25 50 48 48	10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10	5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5	55 55 55 55 55 55 55													18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25
	43 47 37 25 50 48 48 41	10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10	5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5	55 55 55 55 55 55 55 55 55	2	10	5	55									18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26
	43 47 37 25 50 48 48 41 344	10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10	555555555555555555555555555555555555555	55 55 55 55 55 55 55 55 55 55													18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27
	43 47 37 25 50 48 48 41 34½ 47	10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10	555555555555555555555555555555555555555	55 55 55 55 55 55 55 55 55 55	2	10	5	55									18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28
	43 47 37 25 50 48 41 34½ 47	10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10	555555555555555555555555555555555555555	55 55 55 55 55 55 55 55 55 55 55 55 55	2 14	10 8	5 5	55 45									18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29
	43 47 37 25 50 48 41 341 47 47	10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10	555555555555555555555555555555555555555	55 55 55 55 55 55 55 55 55 55 55 55	2 14	10 8	5 5	55 45									18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30
	43 47 37 25 50 48 41 341 47 47 43 14	10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10	555555555555555555555555555555555555555	55 55 55 55 55 55 55 55 55 55 55 55 55	2	10 8	5 5	55 45									18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30
	43 47 37 25 50 48 41 34½ 47 47 43 14 22	10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 1	555555555555555555555555555555555555555	55 55 55 55 55 55 55 55 55 55 55 55 55	2 14	10 8	5 5	55 45									19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31
	43 47 37 25 50 48 41 34½ 47 47 43 14 22	10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 1	555555555555555555555555555555555555555	55 55 55 55 55 55 55 55 55 55 55 55 55	2 14	10 8	5 5	55 45									18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32
\	43 47 37 25 50 48 41 34½ 47 47 43 14 22 39 10	10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 1	555555555555555555555555555555555555555	55 55 55 55 55 55 55 55 55 55 55 55 55	2 14	10 8	5 5	55 45									19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32
	43 47 37 25 50 48 41 34 47 47 43 14 22 39 10 36	10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 1	555555555555555555555555555555555555555	55 55 55 55 55 55 55 55 55 55 55 55 55	2 14	10 8	5 5	55 45									19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33
	43 47 37 25 50 48 41 34½ 47 47 43 14 22 39 10	10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 1	555555555555555555555555555555555555555	55 55 55 55 55 55 55 55 55 55 55 55 55	2 14	10 8	5 5	55 45									19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32

 $^{^3}$ Including 2 weeks' vacation and 1 week factory closed on account of floods, with pay. 4 Not reported.

WORKING HOURS AND EARNINGS OF WOMEN

FORT WAYNE—Concluded.

Indi- vid- ual num-	Age.	Conjugal condition.	Оссираціов.	Years of ex- peri- ence in present	Weeks em- ployed during	Aver- age weekly earn-		employ-	Weeks of un- employ-
ber.				indus- try.		ings.	Weeks.	Earn- ings.	ment.
37	29	Single	Operator, gloves		48	\$10.00			4
38 39	26 18	do	Ingressor alone	$\frac{61}{3}$	47 46	7.75 7.00			5 6
40	30	do	Inspector, gloves	3	48	7.73			4
41	39	do	Finisher, waists	24	48	7.37			4
42	21	do	Operator	8	46	5.39			5
43	22	do	do	6	43	6.72			9
44	27	do	Forewoman	3	48	8.00			4
45	33	Married	Inspector	1 3	15	5.96	26	\$208.00	11
46	30	do	Splitter, waists	$2\frac{1}{2}$	51	7.12			1
47 48	28 36	do	Splitter, waists. Box plaiter, waists. Trimmer, waists. Sleeve maker, waists.	25 25 4 18	36 36	8.00 11.00	12	102.00	4 16
49	20	do	Sleeve maker, waists	83	101	5.25	371	225.00	
50	24	do	memmer, waisis	•	47	8.11			4 5 6
51 52	32 38	do	Button sewer, machine	16 10	46 46	6.88			6
53	28	do	Trimmer, waists. Sleeve setter, waists. Trimmer, waists.	10	443	(1) 8. 55			71
54	31	do	Trimmer, waists	11	46	8.37			. 6
55	35	do	Gloves, former	13 1	31	11.00	- 		1 46
56 57	14 15	do	Glove turner	1 2	6 46	2.83 8.00			6
58	15	do	Glove turner. Operator, glovesdo.	177	16	4.50	11	24.00	25
59 60	14	do do	dodo	8	23 8	3.00 4.00	2 3	3.62 3.75	27 41
61	14	do	do	Ţ2	11	3.00		3.70	41
62	15	do	Glove former and inspector	1 3	14	3.63			38
63	15	do	Operator, gloves	11	47	9.89		 	5
64	14	do	Glove former and inspector		12	2.50			40
65 66	15 17	do	Operator, gloves Button sewer, machine	12	$\frac{4\frac{1}{2}}{9}$	2.50 6.00	9 2	22.50 9.00	38½ 41
67	16	do	Uperator	14	44	6.50	<u>.</u> .	a. 00	8
68	17	do Married	⁻ . do	13	48	7.73 5.00			4
69 70	22 29	Single	Finisher and pocket maker Button sewer, machine	8	11 6	8.00	24	237.60	41 22
71	39	Widowed.	Operator	113 12 13 13 14 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15	51 1	10.00		201.00	1 3
72	16	Single	Strap maker	2	$51\frac{1}{2}$	8.00			<u> </u>
73	40 31	do	Operator, gloves	10	48 52	9.00 9.10	·····	· · · · · · · · ·	4
73 74 75	15	do	Tucker, waists. Operator, gloves.	10	13	4.00	4	10.00	35
76	15	do	do	3	3	3.83			49
77 78	15 30	do	Glove former and inspector Sleeve setter, waists	6 17 a	14 <u>1</u> 43	5.00 7.91	3	6.00	34½ 9
78 79	34	do	Onorotor	18	47	8.83			5
80	22	Married	Operator, glovesdododo	6	26	8.00			26 1
81	(1) 39	Single	do	51-4100	46	4.43 6.53			6 2
82 83	25	Married Single	Inspector	4	50 33	4.38			19
84	22 23	do	Operator	ā	44	4.09		l <i></i>	8
85		do	Glove closer	8	47	6.83			8 5
86 87	34 33	do	Sleeve setter, waists Presser, waists	12 17	51 50	12.00 (¹)			$\frac{1}{2}$
01	00		a rootor, wasto	1,	50	(7)		• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	"
									·

SOUTH BEND.

1 2 3 4 5	19 35 25 15	do Widowed . Single	Operator	8 11 12 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11	11 25½ 52 46 48	9.00 5.87 4.28	 \$3.15	6 4
6	22	do	Timekeeper	41	49			

1 Not reported.

EMPLOYED IN GARMENT FACTORIES—Continued.

FORT WAYNE-Concluded.

No	ormal	seaso	n.		Dull s	eason	ı .		Busy	season		ov	ertim	ours d e perio	ds.
ks. m- oy- d.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. ex- cep- tion- al day.	Hrs. per week.	Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. ex- cep- tion- al day.	Hrs. per week.	Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. ex- cep- tion- al day.	Hrs. per week.	Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. ex- cep- tion- al day.	Hrs. per week.
48	95	43	53 11 53 11 53 11 53 11	 				j	ļ		 				
17 16	0.8	44	5314					,					• • • • •	• • • • • •	
31	95 95 95 91	43 43 43 42	503	8	73	41	431	9	91	71	53½ 50½				
271	83	41/2	481	111	8	41	441	9	$\left\{ \begin{smallmatrix} 94\\ 8\frac{1}{2}\\ 9 \end{smallmatrix} \right.$	8	{ 50½ 53	}			
34		4	523	12	7 1 8	4	423		10	, 	(00	,			
32	9 3 9 <u>1</u> 9 <u>1</u>	41/2	52	11	8	4	44								
80 18	92	4 4 2	$\begin{cases} 52 \\ 491 \end{cases}$	}											
15	9	41/2	491 501			. 		. • • • • • •				1	. 9	7	52
31	91	41	50}	8 6	73 73	$\frac{4\frac{1}{2}}{3\frac{5}{4}}$	431	12	94	41/2	503				
30 36	91	41	50½ 50½	0	12	37	$42\frac{1}{2}$							• • • • •	
l0⅓	91	44	501												
39° 34	91	41	50½ 50¾	8 12	72 83	44	$\frac{421}{47\frac{1}{2}}$								
321	91	41	50%	131	8	3	433								
32 <u>1</u> 39 <u>1</u> 10	91	41	50½ 50¾	5 . 6	73	33	42½ 42½								[
17	9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9	41	503	14	734 84 74 74 73	43343434343434343434343434343434343434	423								
6 6	9*	5	50~		[
16 16	9	5	50 50			• • • • •		:		• • • • • •					
8 11	9	5	50												
8	9	5	50 50	• • • • •										• • • • • •	
14	ğ	5	50												
16	9 9‡	5	} 50					l	ļ						[
12	ધ છા !	5	50				ļ 				ļ				
$\frac{4\frac{1}{2}}{9}$	811	5	49.7 491	,		• • • • •									
34	8 11 9 9	43	491					10	9	4½ 4½	491				
36	9	41/2	491					12	9	4 <u>1</u>	49½ 49½				
6	9	17-18-18-18-18-18-18-18-18-18-18-18-18-18-	49¾ 49¾												
11 11 11	9	41	491												
14	9	41	491 491 491	4	9	41	491	• • • • • •							
38 13	9	$\frac{1}{4\frac{1}{2}}$	491	14	8	4	44								
3 3	80 80 80 G	5 5 5 3	491 491		• • • • •										
41	85	5	491												
36 ·	9	33	484	7 8	8	33	433 423		:-		:				
3 16	82	4	493 484 474 473	. 8	73	4	422	6	83	4	474				
6	83	41/4	1 47		<u>.</u>										
7 31	88888889 88888889	5° 4	471	33 2 15	71 72 74 74	4	41½ 423								
29	81	4	451 451	15	73	4	423				·····				
19	9	41	45	8	8	4	40*							• • • • • •	
11	8 9½	4	44 42 1	1	8	41	361								

SOUTH BEND.

10 12½		4½ 	49½ 54	13	9	41/2	49 1		 	1	12	{ 9 8⅓	624	1 2
52 44 31 43	9 3 9 9	5 81 5	531 50 531 50	17	9	41	491	 	 	1	9	8½ 8¼	53½ 53¼	5 6

WORKING HOURS AND EARNINGS OF WOMEN

SOUTH BEND—Continued.

Indi- vid-				Years of ex- peri-	Weeks	Aver- age	Other e	employ- nt.	Weeks
nal num- ber.	Age. mem	Conjugal condition.	Occupation,	ence in present indus- try.	ployed	weekly earn- ings.	Weeks.	Earn- ings.	of un- employ ment.
7	19	Single	Inspector	21	37	\$3.92			15
8	20	ob	Operator	1 3	51	6.00			1
9	35	do	do Seamer, union suits	101	51	8.75			1
10 11	19 24	do	Seamer, union suits	2	49 50	8.79 9.36			3 2 4 2½ 3 3
12	32	do	OperatorYoke ruffler	8출 10급	48	10.64			2 1
13	30	do	Operator	121	491	11,25			21
14	23	do	Sleeve operator	$\frac{4}{2}$	49	9.15			3
15 16	18 16	do	Operator	$\frac{2}{2_3^2}$	49 52	6.89 6.05			3
17	28	do	Turner. Neck band operator. Yoke ruffler. Operator.	73	48	10.25			4
18	32	Married	Yoke ruffler	10	22	10.50			30
19 20	23 23	Single	Operator	2 9	$\frac{47\frac{1}{2}}{52}$	7.30 8.00			41/2
21	23	do	Collar machine operator	21	49	8.87			3
22	19	do	Buttonhole maker	1}	52	8, 50	1		1
23	15	do	Thread cutter	-2	5	1, 50			47
24	24	do	Collar-machine operator	6,2	481	6.00			31
25	20	do	Buttonhole maker	5	511	6.93	 		1
26	20	do	Inspector	54		6.83			1
$\tilde{27}$	29	do	Operator	10	51½ 48	6.77			42
28	23	do'	do	2	$46\frac{1}{2}$	6.75			51
29	55	Married	Inspector	11	33	6.51	53	(1)	131
30	20	Single	Operator. Inspector Buttonhole maker Operator.	$\frac{2^{\frac{1}{2}}}{2}$	46	6.41			6
$\frac{31}{32}$	17 19	do	Buttonhole maker	$\frac{2}{5}$	51 46	6.00 6.00			1 6
33	19	do	Operator	5	501	5 76			1½ 34½
34	20	do	Facer	413	173	5. 75			341
35 36	24 18	do	Operator	8 21	46 50	5, 71 5, 68			6 2
37	25	doi	Collar maker	9	361	5, 50			15½
38 39	16 16	do	Facer Bander Operator Collar maker Operator, gloves	2	47	5.00 4.75			5
40	16	do	uv	218	14 <u>1</u> 51 2	3.98			371
41	16	do	Operator, gloves	+ +		4.74			10
42	14	do			161	3.82			351
43	14	do	do	1 1	151	2.88			363
44	16	do	dodo	1 1 1	$24\frac{1}{2}$	3, 72			27
45 46	15 15	do	do	1	36 153	3. 24 3. 00	ļ	 -	16
47	17	do	dodoCharger-outOperatorWork distributer	2	50	3.00 4.75			36 <u>1</u>
48	18	do	Charger-out	1	36	4, 50	13	\$78.00	3
49 50	21 16	do	Work distributor	3	33	4.27	15	52, 50	4,
51	16	do	Collar fixer	$2^{\frac{3}{5}}_{2}$	51½ 52	4.16 4.00			1/2
51 52	19	do	Collar fixer Boxer, shirts Work distributer Charger out	3 <u>1</u> 31	46	4.00			6
53	20	do	Work distributer	31	491	5. 89			$2\frac{1}{2}$
55 55	19 33	do Married	Bander, shirts	$\frac{5}{16\frac{11}{12}}$	51 43½	6.92 9.63			1 8½
54 55 56	53	Widowed.	Shirt sewer	10	35	6.83	8	(¹)	92
57	24	Single	Repairer	10	52	7.08			
58 59	35 25	do	rorewoman	16	$\frac{52}{51}$	9.86 11.00			····i
CO	44	Widowed .	dodo	20	483	12.00	l		31
61	37	Single	do. Front maker.	4	50	13.00			1 2
62 63	23 43	Widowod	Front maker	5 10	49 1 45	6.50			21 7
64	22	Widowed . Single	Body ironer	6	52	7.46 7.25			l
65	20	do	Button sewer	3 6	52	7.00			
66 67	20 25	do	Body ironer Button sewer Operator do Finisher	6	52 49	7.43			
68	18	uv	Timishon	11		7.50 7.25	19	65.00	3,

EMPLOYED IN GARMENT FACTORIES—Continued.

SOUTH BEND—Continued.

				rogui l	ar wo	rking	hours					Worl	king h	ours d	iuring ds.	
N	ormal	seaso:	n,		Dull s	eason	ı .		Busy	season	ı,		OI CINI	———		In vi
Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. ex- cep- tion- al day.	Hrs. per week.	Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. ex- cep- tion- al day.	Hrs. per week.	Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. ex- cep- tion- al day.	Hrs. per week.	Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. ex- cep- tion- al day.	Hrs. per week.	ui nu be
37	9 1	5	52½ 50													
10 41	95-2-12-13-13-14-14-14-14-14-14-14-14-14-14-14-14-14-	55555555555555555	$\frac{50}{52\frac{1}{2}}$	}												
51	91	5	$52\frac{1}{2}$;		40									
42 46	91	5	52±	7 4 7	7	5 5 5	50									
41	$9\frac{1}{2}$	5	$52\frac{7}{2}$	7	9	5	50 47½									
491	91	5	52½		:		45									
37	91	5	513	$\frac{11\frac{1}{2}}{12}$	9	5	41									
28	93	5	512	24	9 <u>1</u> 9 <u>1</u>	5 5 5 5	513 513	[l
49½ 37½ 37 28 24 22 44	91	5 51	521114 521 521 521 521 521 521 521 521 521 521	24	93	5	513									
44	91	5	511	4	9	5	50									
52 39½ 20	91	5	511] 	ļ. 	- <i></i>							
391	h -		51± ∫ 50	91/2	91	5	511									
32	} 9	5	1 51 1]}				<u> </u>		¦					• • • • • •	
5	9	51/2	501	ľ	ļ	. 										
48½	h -	5	50 ∫ 47	k		·····										
18 33½ 51½	} 9	5	50 50	}		• • • • •	ļ		¦						• • • • •	
$51\frac{7}{2}$	9	5	50	[::	·					·						
37 18 28½ 33	9	5	50 ∫ 48	11	9	5	50									
283	9	5	{ 50	}			[•									
33	9	5	50			:	·									
41 51	9	5	50 50	5	9	5	50									
46	9	5	50													
$\frac{38\frac{1}{2}}{17\frac{1}{2}}$	9 9 9 9 9 9	5	50	12	9	5	50			¦ • • • • • •						
33	9	5	50 50	13	9	5 5	50									
441	9	5	50	5½	9	5	50									
$\frac{36\frac{1}{2}}{47}$	9	5	50 50							1:::::						
14}	9	555555555555555555555555555555555555555	50													
$51\frac{3}{2}$ $20\frac{1}{2}$ $21\frac{1}{2}$	9		50		• • • • •	·								¦		
213	9	5	50			ļ				 						
165	9	5	50			 .]		¦			¦			
$15\frac{1}{3}$ $12\frac{1}{2}$	9 9 9	5	50 50	12	9	5	47		• • • • •	¦						
36	9	5	50													
15≩	9	5	50 50	12	9	5	50						¦			
38 36	9	5	50	12	9		30									
17) ě	5	50	16	9	41/2	$49\frac{1}{2}$									
51½	9999999999999999999999999999999	555555555555555555555555555	50 50												• • • • • •	l
52 43	9	5	50	3	9	5 5	45									ĺ
33	9	5	50	161	9	5	50									
$\begin{array}{c} 51 \\ 36\frac{1}{2} \end{array}$	9	5	50 50	7		5	45			·			¦			
35	9	5	50	<u>'</u>												l
35 52	9	5	50					ļ								ł
52 51	9	5	50 50							¦					• • • • • •	ĺ
48 3	9	5	50											:::::		1
50	9	5	50													
33	9	5	50 50	16½	9	5 5 5	50 50						••••	j	•••••	
40 39	9	5	50	5 13	9	5	50		 							
52	9	5	50													1
52 49	9.	5	50 50													
38 1	9	5	50									• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •				ĺ

WORKING HOURS AND EARNINGS OF WOMEN

SOUTH BEND-Concluded.

Indi-		_		Years of ex- peri-	Weeks	Aver-	Other e me		Weeks
ual num- ber.	Λge.	Conjugal condition.	Occupation,	ence in present indus- try,	ployed during year.	weekly earn- ings.	Weeks.	Earn- ings.	of un- employ- ment.
69 70 71 72 73 74 75	19 25 24 21 21 24 18 19 21	Singledo	Operatordo	3 9 9 4 9 2 ¹ / ₂ 5	52 471 502 52 48 16 50 52	\$7.00 7.00 8.80 8.46 8.94 9.00 9.08 9.26	35		41 11 12 4 1 2
77 78 79 80 81 82 83 84 85	23 24 16 17 16 18 16 44 33	do .	Sleeve runner Buttonhole maker Operator, gloves Presser, shirts. do Button sewer Inspector, shirts. Bander, shirts. Sleeve runner, shirts.	8 8 2 14 Tanga	47 493 483 103 29 37 413 473 173	9. 20 10. 30 8. 85 7. 69 5. 00 7. 00 4. 07 3. 42 10. 00 5. 00	18 20 14 4	1112, 50 80, 00 70, 00 12, 00	5 24 33 232 3 1 64 44 342

¹ Received in addition two meals a day.

EMPLOYED IN GARMENT FACTORIES—Concluded.

SOUTH BEND-Concluded.

NI.	ormal					rking ——— eason	hours.	1	Bucz	season		Worl ov	cing h ertim	ours d e perio	uring ds.	
Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. ex- cep- tion- al day.	Hrs.	Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs,	Hrs. ex- cep- tion-	Hrs. per week.	Wks.	Hrs.	Hrs. ex- cep- tion- al day.	Hrs. per week.	Wks. em- ploy- ed.	Hrs. usu- al day.	Hrs. ex- cep- tion- al day.	Hrs. per week.	Individ- ual num ber.
52 47½ 40½ 48 44 16 43 20 36 42	9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9	555555555555555555555555555555555555555	50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 48 50 50	10 7 } 11 74	9 	5 5 5	50 42½ 50 45	4 4	9 9	5 5	50 50					6 7 7 7 7 7 7
48½ 10½ 29 37 28½ 47½ 17½	9 85 85 9 81 81	5 5 5 4 5 4 5	50 49 1 491 49 47 <u>1</u> 44 39	13	81/2	5	47½									7 8 8 8 8 8

APPENDIX.

HOURS AND EARNINGS OF WOMEN IN 38 INDIANA INDUSTRIES, AS REPORTED BY EMPLOYERS TO THE INDIANA COMMISSION ON WORKING WOMEN.

The data forming the basis of this report on the hours and earnings of women employed in 38 Indiana industries were collected by the Indiana Commission on Working Women through correspondence with employers. Owing to the limitation of resources, the commission could not employ agents to make personal visits upon either employers or employees, nor would the resources even permit of correspondence with a sufficiently large number of individuals to secure a satisfactory body of information owing to the difficulty and expense of obtaining correct addresses as well as to the cost of clerical work and stenography involved in such correspondence.

Inasmuch as the investigation undertaken by the United States Bureau of Labor Statistics and the United States Commission on Industrial Relations included personal visits by agents to both employers and employees in the two industries, the Indiana Commission on Working Women decided that its work would be most effective if it concentrated such resources as it had upon the correspondence with employers, depending upon the data furnished by the Federal agencies and upon the public hearings, as the most resultful method of securing adequate information from individual wage-earning women.

Because the schedules were distributed and collected at the same time that the investigations into the stores and garment factories were being made by the Federal agencies named, and also because the data requested on such schedules covered the same period of time, the United States Bureau of Labor Statistics prints the summaries of the correspondence schedules in this Bulletin at the request of the Indiana commission in order that the material secured by the commission independently might appear in close connection with the results of the investigation into the stores and the garment trades.

Of the 257 schedules submitted by the employers to the Indiana commission and turned over to this Bureau for tabulation and summarization, 68 were not used—54 because the data were insufficient or incapable of tabulation, and 14 because they were received

¹ The Indiana Commission on Working Women is charged by the law with the duty of holding public hearings in at least 10 cities of the State.

from employers too late to be included in the statistical computations. Of the remaining 189, all gave information as to working hours, though some were deficient in minor particulars. One hundred and twenty-nine of the 189 firms submitted available information concerning earnings.

These 189 firms, covering 38 industries, employed 11,186 women and girls. The last Census of Manufacturers reports an average of approximately 23,000 women engaged in manufacturing industries in Indiana. About 6,500 of these are employed in the garment factories which were investigated by the Federal agencies named. The 11,000 women employed by the 189 firms submitting available schedules constitute therefore about 66.7 per cent of the 16,500 women employed in all other manufacturing industries according to the Census of Manufactures.

Twenty-nine of the 38 industries, represented by from 2 to 29 establishments, have been separately listed in the following tables. The other 9, represented by 12 establishments and employing but 449 women, are combined under the classification of "miscellaneous." The footnote to the table indicates just what was included under this head.

The industries employing the largest number of women are the confectionery, bakery products, electrical supplies and apparatus, woolen goods, paper boxes, cotton textiles, chains, nuts and bolts, files and castings, pharmaceutical supplies, glass and glassware, cigars and tobacco, and hosiery and knit goods. Each of these industries employs over 400 women, cigars and tobacco and hosiery and knit goods each employing over 1,900 women.

WORKING HOURS.

Briefly summarized the following table shows that over half of the 189 establishments report weekly working hours of under 55 for the major part of the year. These firms employ less than a third of the women at work in the 38 industries. Nearly 27 per cent of the firms, employing 12.3 per cent of the women, report an overtime period. The prevailing hours during this period for 25 of the 50 establishments reporting overtime were from 55 to 64 and a fraction per week. (Though this table shows the hours by groups, it it of interest to know that the majority of the establishments affected by these groups were working either a straight 55 or 60 hour schedule.) The 25 establishments reporting these hours employed more than half of the 1,333 women at work in the 50 establishments reporting an overtime period.

¹ Volume IX, page 307.

No attempt has been made to state the exact duration of the seasons (except for the overtime hours) as the reports of the establishments in many cases were not exact in this particular, often reporting seasons in such general terms as "a greater part of the year," "a few weeks," "during the summer," etc.

Normal Season.

A more detailed study of the table below will show that all of the 189 firms report a normal season—i. e., a period when business was neither sharply busy nor markedly dull; that the hours during this period, for 54 per cent of the establishments, were under 55; and that these establishments employed approximately 28 per cent of all the women workers. It shows that over half of the women were employed in nearly one-third of the establishments where the hours during the normal season ranged from 55 to 59 and a fraction. The maximum hours for this season were under 65; the minimum 42.

Dull Season.

Forty-nine or a little more than a fourth of the firms, employing 28 per cent of the women, reported a dull season during which, as might be expected, the proportion of firms and individuals affected by working hours under 55 was increased, two-thirds of the firms which reported dull season and 40.6 per cent of the women employed by such firms working under 55 hours per week.

Overtime Season.

Only about 27 per cent of the firms, employing 12.3 per cent of the women workers, reported an "overtime season." The effect of the increased business is evident in the complete disappearance from the table of the 48 or less than 48 hour schedule during the overtime season. Furthermore, only 8 per cent of the 50 firms reporting such a season worked under 55 hours a week, and these firms employed but 5.2 per cent of the 1,333 women affected by the overtime period. The maximum working hours for this season were 75½ a week, reported by one firm employing 40 women.

¹ It was not possible to separate overtime hours, as reported by employers, from the regular busy season hours, the replies frequently treating overtime and busy season hours as the same.

TABLE 74.—SUMMARY OF WORKING HOURS OF WOMEN EMPLOYED IN 38 INDUSTRIES IN INDIANA.

The laws of Indiana limit the hours of children to 48 per week and 8 per day, unless the consent of the
parents is secured. Girls who were working in establishments reporting prevailing hours of more than
48 have been excluded from the number working specified hours in the normal season.]

]	Norma	l season	١,		Dulls	eason.		0	vertim	e seaso	n.
Average weekly hours.	me	blish- nts ting.	Wor affec		me	blish- nts ting,		men eted.		blish- nts ting.	Wor affec	
	Num- ber.	Per cent.	Num- ber:	Per cent.	Num- ber.	Per cent.	Num- ber.	Per cent.	Num- ber.	Per cent.	Num- ber.	Per cent.
42 to 48 Over 48 and under 55 Over 55 and under 60 Over 60 and under 65 Over 65 and under 70 Over 70 and under 75	47 55 60 27	24.9 29.1 31.7 14.3	819 2, 294 6, 245 1, 624	7. 4 20. 9 56. 9 14. 8	18 15 13 3	36.8 30.6 26.5 6.1	520 720 1,792 18	17.0 23.6 58.8 .6	4 8 117 7	8. 0 16. 0 34. 0 14. 0 4. 0	69 285 449 195 58	5. 2 21. 4 33. 7 14. 6
75‡ Not reported									1 11	2. 0 22. 0	40 237	3.6 17.8
Total	189	100.0	10,982	100.0	49	26.3	3,050	28.1	50	26.9	1,333	12.

¹ One establishment employing 150 women did not report the number working overtime hours.

Working Hours, by Industries.

The foregoing table shows the working hours for the 38 industries collectively. It does not show what hours prevail in any given industry. The hours, which on the preceding table are shown to effect a minority of all the women employed in the 38 industries, might nevertheless be the prevailing hours in a single industry which employed more women than any other of the 38.

The table below shows the working hours which prevail in each industry in the normal, dull, and overtime seasons. The hours here set forth are (1) the regular hours which affected the greatest number of women; (2) the shortest regular hours and the longest regular hours reported in each industry, together with the number of establishments and women concerned; (3) the weekly hours affecting the greatest number during the dull season; (4) the maximum duration of the overtime season in each industry, the hours affecting the greatest number, and the maximum weekly hours.

The significance of this table lies in the fact that the hours entered thereon affect not less than half of all the women workers in any industry separately listed, and more than three-fourths of the women in all the 38 industries. With the exception of three of the industries separately listed, more than half of all the establishments in each industry are affected by the hours shown on the table, the total number so affected being approximately three-fourths of all the 189 firms reporting. The three exceptions, aside from the nine industries classed as miscellaneous 1 and employing but 449 women altogether,

¹ Industries represented by one establishment only or employing fewer than 25 women, were not separately listed.

were those manufacturing glassware, cigars and tobacco, and the manufacturing establishments where women were reported as working in the office only.

In the manufacture of glass and glassware three of the seven firms had their running hours shown on the table. A third of the 15 cigar and tobacco firms (employing, however, an overwhelming majority of the women workers) were affected by the hours shown, as were also 5 of the 14 firms employing women in the office only. It should be noted also that 5 of the 12 establishments representing the nine industries classed as miscellaneous were running the hours shown on the table.

This summary by industries, therefore, shows with no important exceptions, what hours were worked by the majority of establishments employing a majority of the women in each industry.

The striking features of the table are:

- 1. The regular weekly hours affecting the greatest number of women during the normal season range from 42 in the telephone industry to 60 in the establishments manufacturing woolen or cotton textiles, in those manufacturing furniture, and in the glass and glassware factories.
- 2. That 4,700 women, constituting a majority of those listed in this section of the table, were working from 55 to 59 and a fraction hours a week; but over 3,200 of these were in 6 establishments, representing but two industries, viz, cigars and tobacco, and hosiery and knit goods.
- 3. That the weekly hours which affected the greatest number of women during the normal season in 14 of the 29 industries separately listed, and in at least one of those classed as miscellaneous, are under 55. Though constituting half of the industries, these industries employed, all told, fewer than 3,000 women, and approximately 1,800 of the 3,000 worked these hours.
- 4. That the maximum regular hours shown on the table for the normal season were 60, barring the night shift in the telephone service, and are reported by 14 of the 29 industries separately listed and by at least one of those classed as miscellaneous. Only 1,600 women, approximately, are affected by these hours.
- 5. That 122 of the firms, representing all but three of the industries separately listed, and 9 of the 12 establishments classed together as miscellaneous, reported one short day in the week. This is important in interpreting correctly the distributing of the usual weekly hours. For example: A 54-hour week would not mean a 9-hour day if there was one short day in the week.
- 6. That overtime was reported in 20 of the industries separately listed and in at least one of the industries classed as miscellaneous, though only 50 of the 189 firms were involved in the overtime work.

The longest hours worked during this overtime period were 73 a week and 14 a day.

TABLE 75 .- WORKING HOURS OF WOMEN IN 38 INDUSTRIES IN INDIANA.

						Re	gular ho					
Industries.		Women employed.		Normal season.								
	Estab- lish- ments			Hours a	affecting ber of wo	greatest men.						
	report- ing.	Total.	Maxi- mum in one es- tablish- ment.	Week- ly.	Estab- lish- ments run- ning on sched- ule.	Women affect- ed.	Daily.1	Week- ly.	Estab- lish- ments run- ning on sched- ule.	Women affect- ed.		
Confectionery and bakery products Electric apparatus	10	430	94	59	2	150	9	52 1	1	16		
and supplies Woolen goods Printing and pub-	8 4	703 632	347 463	55 60	3	626 550	81 103	47 <u>1</u> 581	1 1	15 69		
lishing	29 4	224 39	28 20	48 48	15 1	147 20	8 8	42 48	1 1	4 20		
companies Paper boxes	3 7 4	173 438 597	74 187 180	42 56 60	$\frac{2}{1}$	92 187 300	(²) 9 9	42 50 53	2 1 1	92 56 94		
Cotton textiles Tin plate and can Chains, bolts, nuts.	3	268	150	55	1	150 127	9	50	1	58		
files, castings, etc. Pharmaceuticals Millinery	8 5 3	451 494 179	120 350 76	55 52 <u>1</u> 53	2 1 3	350 146	9 <u>1</u> - 8 - 8	52 1 48 44	1 2 1	120 96 19		
Miscellaneous indus- tries 3	12	449	175	54	2	182	9	50	1	35		
Vehicles Paper	3 10 5 2	282 144 152 25	200 60 60 17	54 50 54 60	1 5 2 2	200 96 62 25	93 8 9 10	54 45 54 60	1 1 2 2	200 5 62 25		
Furniture. Undertakers' supplies. Glass and glassware.	4 7	38 424	18 180	56 <u>1</u> 60	1 2	18 260	9 1 82	54 51	1 1	4 9		
Enameled and stamped ware Baskets	2 4	226 152	196 70	53 58 <u>1</u>	1	196 70	9	53 50	1	196 22		
springs	6 15	1,1 ²¹	23 1,377	50 58	1 2	23 1,487	8	44 44	1 3	97		
goods	5	1,916	1,313	55	4	1,731	10	55	4	1,731		
tablishments	14	248	114	461	3	123	72	43	1			
Insulated wire and	4	49	14	54 55½	2	23 52	9 10	50 55	1 1	12 25		
rubber	2 2 2	77 202 61	52 102 57	55 53	i	102 57	10 (4) 73	50 46	1	100		
Agricultural implements	2	134	122	45	1	112	8	45	1	112		

66172°-Bull. 160-14--13

¹ Daily hours here reported are those occurring in a the establishments reporting the specified minimum and maximum weekly hours.

² In 1 establishment, 6 hours per day for 7 days; in the other, 9 and 5 hours per day, alternating, for 6 days.

³ Includes mica, asbestos, watch movements, table silverware, polish, brooms, hames, wooden boxes, baby carriages, and children's vehicles.

⁴ Not reported.

TABLE 75.-WORKING HOURS OF WOMEN IN 38 INDUSTRIES IN INDIANA-Concluded.

			Re	gular h	ours.			Overtime season.						
Industries.		Nor	rmal sea	son.		Dull s	eason.				affect-			
	1	Maximu	m hour	s.			Hours	Estab-	Maxi-					
	Dai- ly.1	Week- ly.	Estab- lish- ments run- ning on sched- ule.	Wo- men af- fect- ed.	Estab- lish- ments having short day.	Estab- lish- ments report- ing.	affect- ing great- est num- ber of wo- men.	lish- ments report- ing.			Dai- ly.	Week- ly.		
Confectionery and bakery products Electric apparatus	10	€0	3	148	7	4	50	6	21	73	14	73		
and supplies Woolen goods Printing and pub-	10 (²)	60 60	1 3	550	3	3		3 2	13 7	62 <u>1</u> 70	12½ 13½	713 70		
lishing	10 10	60 60	1 1	5 6	18	ī	48 60	10 1	37 6	613 682	12 1%	68½ 68½		
companies Paper boxes Cotton textiles Tin plate and cans	9 101 (⁶) 10	\$ 63 60 60 60	1 4 2 1	46 117 300 60	 4 4 2	3 1	55 45	2 4 1 2	4 52 10 2 5 13	64 60 66½ 64	12½ 14 13	68 67½ 66½ 64		
Chains, bolts, nuts, files, castings, etc Pharmaceuticals Millinery Miscellaneous indus-	10 10 9	60 58 53	2 1 3	88 13 146	6 3 3	2 1 3	50 50½ 44	1 2 3	4 12 17	67 <u>2</u> () 50½	123 11 11 3	631 63 621		
tries 8 Bags, paper and bur-	(º)	60	2	28	9	5	55	2	13	60	101	62		
IapVehiclesPaperFurniture	10 10 10 10	55 60 60 60	2 1 2 2	79 5 30 25	3 8 1	<u>1</u> 4 <u>2</u>	55 45 	1 3 1	(10) (11)	61 59	13 10	61 60		
Undertakers' sup- plies	10 10	60 60	1 2	260 260	3 4	1	53 55	2 1	26 8	60 (10)	10	s 60		
stamped ware Baskets	10 10	59 59	1	30 18	2 4	1	45					· · · · · · · ·		
Mattresses and springs. Cigars and tobacco.	10 10	59 58	1 2	15 1,487	5 15	2 4	50 5 55		12	52 1	91	521		
Hosiery and knit goods. Clerical work in	101	58	1	93	5	1	58	1	25	58	10}	58		
manufacturing es- tablishments Coffee, spices, and miscellaneous gro-	9 1	57	1	4	9	1	46}	 				·····		
Insulated wire and	91/2	56	1	14	1		···.	1	12	521	91/2	522		
rubber Tile Pottery	10 10 9	55½ 55 53	1 1 1	52 102 57	61	i	45							
Agricultural imple- ments	9	50	1	12	2									

¹ Daily hours here reported are those occurring in the establishments reporting the specified minimum and maximum weekly hours.
² Hours were 10, 10½, and 10¾, respectively, for the 3 establishments.
³ Hours for night shift.
⁴ Overtime occurs throughout year, but affects only a few at a time and does not fall continuously on same girls.

same girls.

One establishment did not report.

Hours were 104 and 108, respectively, for the 2 establishments.

One establishment worked 3 hours overtime for 12 nights, the number of nights per week not being

reported.

8 Includes mica, asbestos, watch movements, table silverware, polish, brooms, hames, wooden boxes. baby carriages, and children's vehicles.

9 Hours were 10 and 101, respectively, for the 2 establishments.

¹⁰ Not reported.
11 Total overtime for 40 women during year was 1,483 hours, but the number of hours per night or per week was not reported.

EARNINGS.

The 131 establishments reporting average weekly earnings in a form permitting of statistical treatment employed 62 per cent of the total number of women employed by the 189 firms. They represent 33 of the 38 industries, the other five industries employing fewer than 500 women.

The average weekly earnings for the 6,891 women and girls during a representative week in the 33 industries were \$7.19. These earnings include the wages of nearly 200 children, as the table shows. To what extent the minors have depressed the general average earnings can easily be computed from the table. Taking out the minors and the amount they earned from the totals reveals the general average weekly earnings of adult women to be \$7.27—a difference of but 8 cents. As the earnings of the minors appear to be an insignificant factor, they may be disregarded in this discussion of the general average for all female workers. The table shows that the average earnings ranged from \$4.87 in the manufacture of undertakers' supplies, where 38 females were involved, to \$11.50 in the straw stitching branch of the millinery trade, where 50 women and girls were affected.

There is in this table nothing to indicate what the effect of lost time is on these earnings, and since the earnings include those of all women on the payroll for the specified week, they include the earnings of a number of women who did not work full time. This question was carefully treated in the report on earnings in the garment industries, and a study of the results found there (p. 76) will show that deductions there due to lost time averaged about 10 per cent. Whether or not there is more or less lost time in these industries than in the garment industry, can not be stated, but it should be noted that these industries, like the garment industry, reported the earnings for a representative week, when business was supposed to be at its normal level.

TABLE 76.—AVERAGE WEEKLY EARNINGS OF WOMEN IN 33 INDUSTRIES IN INDIANA.

	Wo	men p	aid at p	piece ra	ite.	Women paid at time rate.				
Industries.			ears over.		er 16 urs.	Es- tab- lish-	16 years and over.		Under 16 years.	
	lish- ments re- port- ing.	ber.	Av- erage earn- ings.	Num- ber.	Av- erage earn- ings.	ments re- port- ing.	Num- ber.	Av- erage earn- ings.	Num- ber.	Av- erage earn- ings.
Confectionery and bakery products. Electric apparatus and supplies. Woolen goods Printing and publishing Musical instruments. Telephone service companies Paper boxes. Cotton textiles. Tin plate and cans. Chains, bolts, nuts, files, castings, etc. Pharmaceuticals. Millinery, straw stitching Miscellaneous'. Bags, paper and burlap. Vehicles. Paper Un lertakers' supplies Glass and glassware. Enameled and stamped ware Baskets. Mattresses and springs Cigars and tobacco Hosiery and knit goods. Clerical work in manufacturing establishments.	1 3 2 4 2 2 2 1	14 232 54 6 2 29 371 112 219 98 34 73 24 22 208 422 1,433 614	\$4.36 8.19 7.56 5.82 9.57 8.39 7.40 9.23 6.88 8.88 8.81 10.70 7.80 9.96 7.21 5.721 7.85 7.00	1 5 14 4 8 8 8	5. 73 3. 73	4 2 1 1 1 2 2 2 3 3 2 2 1 2 2 2 3 3 3 4 2 2 3 3 3 1 1 1 3 5 5 1 2 5	50 25 166 20 142 28 113 39 13 75 16 10 50 11 47 38 86 6	\$5.36 9.04 6.02 7.57 7.10 6.04 4.88 5.86 7.31 8.48 5.40 4.87 4.87 4.87 4.97 7.67 4.05 3.89	3 1 1 2 2 5 4 3 10	\$4. 02 4. 65 4. 34 3. 23 3. 00 6. 11 4. 64 4. 75 3. 70 3. 54
ceries. Tile. Pottery.	3 2 1	29 113 40	6.78 6.48 6.98	1	4.00	2 2 1	9 57 4	7.83 5.90 6.00		
Total	46	3,865	7.69	125.	4. 60	99	1,659	6. 78	56	3. 96

¹ Includes insulated wire, watch movements, wooden boxes, asbestos, children's vehicles, silverware, and polish.

TABLE 76.—AVERAGE WEEKLY EARNINGS OF WOMEN IN 33 INDUSTRIES IN INDIANA—
Concluded.

	Women paid at piece and time rate in- terchangeably.			Manne no	er of pa t report	yment ed	Total.			
Industries.		s- b- h-		Es- tab- lish-		en 16 s and ver.	Es- tab- lish-	Num- ber	Aver- age	
	ments re- port- ing.	Num- ber.	Average earnings.	ments re- port- ing.	Num- ber.	Aver- age earn- ings,	ments re- port- ing.1	of wom- en.	earn- ings.	
Confectionery and bakery products Electric apparatus and supplies	1 2	70 22	\$5. 16 6. 89	1 2	35 48	\$6.25 6.29	6 5	200 352	\$5.38 7.97	
Woolen goods Printing and publishing	i	1	13. 50	1 2	62 17	8. 41 12. 02	3 20	145 191	7.57 7.93 7.32	
Musical instruments Telephone service companies							2 2	$\frac{22}{142}$	6.04	
Paper boxes	1	1 5	5. 75 8. 43		• • • • • • •		2 3	71 5 20	6.33 6.91	
Tin plate and cans		16	5.51				2	167	8, 59	
Chains, bolts, nuts, files, castings, etc	ī	42	6.25	1	87	7.53	6	365	6.91	
Pharmaceuticals	1	174	7.09	1	22	5. 15	3 2	371	7.40 11.50	
Miscellaneous 2	1 1	1	11.65	3	121	6.68	7	50 210	8.04	
Bags, paper and burlap	2	27	6.48				3 5	105	6.20	
Vehicles		• • • • • • •		1	5	5.85	5	38	8.86	
Paper. Undertakers' supplies	• • • • • • • •			•••••	• • • • • • •	• • • • • • •	2 3	50 38	5. 67 4. 87	
Glass and glassware				····i	9	6, 16	4	140	5.50	
Enameled and stamped ware								222	7.57	
Baskets		.:					2 2 3	58	5.01	
Mattresses and springs	i	108	3.98	2	101	6.19	9	33 1,874	7.95 7.07	
Hosiery and knit goods	i	13	4.50	1	174	7. 39	3	936	6.75	
Clerical work in manufacturing estab-	- 1	10	1.00	- 1			"	000		
lishments							25	313	10.24	
Coffee, spices, and miscellaneous gro- ceries							ا ا	39	6, 95	
Tile	···-i	25	5, 50	••••			3 2	195	6.18	
Pottery			0.00				2	44	6.89	
·							<u> </u>			
Total	15	505	5.88	16	681	7.08	131	6,891	7. 19	

¹ This total does not always agree with the sum of the preceding columns because some establishments reported both piece and time workers.

² Includes insulated wire, watch movements, wooden boxes, asbestos, children's vehicles, silverware, and polish.

The table below shows the number of industries and establishments in which the average earnings of the women employed fell within the specified wage groups:

TABLE 77.—CLASSIFIED AVERAGE WEEKLY EARNINGS, AS SHOWN IN 33 INDIANA INDUSTRIES, WITH THE NUMBER OF ESTABLISHMENTS AND WOMEN REPRESENTED.

Average weekly earnings.		es report-	Establis repres	shments ented.	Women represented.		
, ,	Number.	Per cent.	Number.	Per cent.	Number.	Per cent.	
\$4.00 to \$4.99 \$5.00 to \$5.99 \$6.00 to \$6.99 \$7.00 to \$7.99 \$8.00 to \$8.99 \$10.00 and over.	1 4 9 8 3 2	3. 7 14. 8 33. 3 29. 7 11. 1 7. 4	3 14 26 47 14 27	2. 3 10. 7 19. 8 35. 9 10. 7 20. 6	38 •448 2,417 3,210 415 363 6,891	0. 5 6. 5 35. 1 46. 6 6. 0 5. 3	

¹ The miscellaneous group, containing seven separate industries, has been counted as one.

The largest number of industries (9) fell within the group whose average earnings were from \$6 to \$6.99. This group contains the telephone, cotton textiles, hosiery and knit goods industries, and the firms manufacturing paper boxes, bags, tile, pottery, chains, bolts, castings, etc., and miscellaneous groceries. This group, however, does not represent the greatest number of establishments or the greatest number of women. Both of these come in the next group, the average earnings of which were from \$7 to \$7.99. Eight industries, representing practically 36 per cent of the establishments and 46.6 per cent of all the women, are in this group. These included some of the largest employers of women, such as the cigar and tobacco industry, woolen goods, establishments manufacturing electrical apparatus and supplies, and pharmaceuticals.

Sixty-three per cent of the industries, 55.7 per cent of the establishments, and 81.7 per cent of the women, are found in the groups earning from \$6 to \$7.99. Just where the industries which make up the remaining per cents will come, may easily be found by a study of the two tables.

It should be borne in mind that these are the average earnings, not for the women considered as individuals, but the average earnings for all women in each separate industry.